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537 171

468 2023 401
2022

2022 2023
18
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2023

CIE
) 2023 12 2022 12
48,677 54,065
14,020 23,723
14,859 13,409
27,324 19,860
24,487 27,400
45,866 56,338
16,630 20,175

191,863 214,970
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OooooOodd
2023 12 2022 12
11,715 14,359
16,603 18,699
10,863 12,814
6,698 6,295
- 4,474
1,121 1,700
47,000 58,341
(1,134) (2,003)
45,866 56,338
2023 519.8 2022 593.5
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
9,486 8,781 7,750
161 359 616
2,576 2,458 1,661
342 610 8,794
1,315 1,168 3,144
13,880 13,376 21,965
(508) 519 (169)
13,029 11,550 11,406
1,359 1,307 10,728
281 215 2,146
1,078 1,092 8,582
126 113 123
952 979 8,459
30,078 31,762 29,988
3.2% 3.1% 28.2%
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Ogoooood
2024 100
20 2023
2022
20 10 ROE
( )

2023 12
4,207 5,279 9,486
161 - 161
- 2,576 2,576
Q) 349 342
1,315 - 1,315
5,676 8,204 13,880

2022 12
3,817 4,964 8,781
359 - 359
- 2,458 2,458
610 - 610
1,168 - 1,168
5,954 7,422 13,376

2021 12
2,918 4,832 7,750
616 - 616
- 1,661 1,661
8,794 - 8,794
3,144 - 3,144

15,472 6,493 21,965
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
361 2,078 8,826
(19) (1,468) (32)
342 610 8,794
(181) 1,482 2,489
523 (872) 6,305
342 610 8,794
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
/C ) (61) (415) 1,216
1,376 1,583 1,928
1,315 1,168 3,144
2023
2022
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2023 2022
2023 138.8 2022
NNIP
2022 519 2023 508
2023
442
2022

2023 130.3 2022 13

CIE 2023

13.6 2022
AUS
AUS

AUS
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AUS

( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
295 263 236
658 563 613
1,122 1,010 940
AUS 2,075 1,836 1,789
737 711 681
AUS 2,812 2,547 2,470
1,033 905 824
798 712 751
981 930 895
AUS 2,812 2,547 2,470
1,951 1,806 1,930
EMEA 653 548 354
208 193 186
AUS 2,812 2,547 2,470
1,557 1,388 1,347
901 862 811
354 297 312
AUS 2,812 2,547 2,470

EMEA
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AUS
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
2,547 2,470 2,145
C )

25 19 33

3) 13 41

52 18 56

AUS /C ) 74 50 130

27 16 98

AUS /C ) 101 66 228
/C ) (23) 316 -

/C ) 187 (305) 97

2,812 2,547 2,470

2023 PFM
2022 NNIP
AUS

( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
269 253 211

610 581 547

1,050 992 919

AUS 1,929 1,826 1,677

749 693 625

AUS 2,678 2,519 2,302

AUS
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2023 12 37.7
2022 12 33.3 2021 12 33.9
AUS
) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
64 64 63
57 57 60
17 17 17
15 14 5
31 31 29
2023 2022 2021

2021
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AUS
( )
2023 12
AUS
29 70 99
44 2 46
11 9 20
42 22 64
126 103 229
40
AUS 269
125 61 80
80 37 78
82 42 64
67 53 62
86 57 73
16
64
2022 12
AUS
27 61 88
36 2 38
10 8 18
45 22 67
118 93 211
42
AUS 253
133 61 83
81 51 80
87 50 70
64 49 59
87 57 74
16

64
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2021 12
AUS
20 59 79
18 2 20
8 7 15
43 19 62
89 87 176
35
AUS 211
118 57 72
102 53 98
94 55 76
65 55 62
87 56 72
17
63
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AUS
( ) AUS
2023 12
109 77 186
55 75 130
22 32 54
66 3 69
252 187 439
43 3 46
295 190 485
2022 12
94 76 170
44 73 117
18 36 54
65 2 67
221 187 408
42 - 42
263 187 450
2021 12
87 78 165
25 79 104
16 39 55
70 2 72
198 198 396
38 2 40

236 200 436

184/626



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2023
12 580 2022 12 540 2021 12 420
2020 2024
2,250
2023
2020 2023

( ) 2023 12
AUS 176

75

251

560
AUS
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
12.9 19.0
10.8 12.3
13.2 14.7
CIE 9.3 12.6
46.2 58.6
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
21.3 23.0
8.6 5.9
3.5 8.4
3.6 5.0
4.0 5.6
CIE 5.2 10.7
16.3 29.7
46.2 58.6
One Million Black Women
2024
150 2022
2023
( )
29.7
1.9
(12.9)
2.4)

16.3
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12
( 2023 12
1.8
0.5
3.8
CIE 2.3
8.4
CIE
CIE 2023 50
CIE 2023 15
2022

38
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2023 12

2022 12

12.9
10.8

19.0
12.3

23.7

31.3

45%
49%
3%
3%

39%
49%
6%
6%

100%

100%

EMEA

52%
37%
11%

51%
35%
14%

100%

100%

11%
6%
15%
18%
2%
11%
28%
9%

10%
7%
13%
16%
2%
20%
25%
7%

100%

100%
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12

13.2 14.7

70% 67%

EMEA 15% 15%
15% 18%

100% 100%

6% 6%

11% 10%

6% 9%

10% 7%

13% 14%

30% 30%

22% 23%

2% 1%

100% 100%

2023 12 121 2022 12 130
2023 12 11 2022 12 17
2023 12 13 2022 12
2022 12 2022

12 2022 12
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2023 12
2016 25%
2017 2019 26%
2020 49%
100%
2022 12
2015 26%
2016 2018 26%
2019 48%
100%
CIE
CIE 2023 12 59 2022 12 118 CIE
2023 12 35 2022 12 63
CIE
( 2023 12 2022 12
CIE ( 2.4 5.5
61% 65%
EMEA 25% 25%
14% 10%
100% 100%
6% 4%
16% 15%
13% 23%
24% 22%
7% 3%
15% 14%
7% 7%
12% 12%

100%

100%

190/626
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2023 CIE
CIE

2023 12
2016 12%
2017 2019 57%
2020 31%

100%
2022 12
2015 5%
2016 2018 45%
2019 50%

100%

POS
POS
POS
2023 2024

2023 GM GM GM
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) 2023 12 2022 12
24,043 20,557
7,651 10,278
3 2
14,911 8,597
2 -
20,028 15,300
1,846 2,556
68,484 57,290
) 2023 12 2022 12
3,125 1,852
19,361 15,820
17 -
22,503 17,672
(2,475) (2,372)
20,028 15,300
2023 214.8 2022
) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
2,072 1,176 424
306 326 216
2,378 1,502 640
1,135 1,728 697
3,418 1,763 990
/( (2.175) (1,989) (1,047)
(450) (328) (210)
/C ) (1,725) (1,661) (837)
23 12 6
/( (1,748) (1,673) (843)
3,863 3,574 1,777
(45.2)% (46.8)% 47.4)%
2025
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2023
2022

2023 2022

2023 23.8 2022 58

2023 2022 17.3 11.4 2023

637
2022
2023 34.2 2022 94
506
504 2023 2022

19.9 21.8

25
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CCAR
DFAST

2023 12 1.64 2022 12 1,998.0

1,762.7
162.1
90.7
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2023 12 1.52 2022 12 2,000.8
1,685.4
417.5
97.2
90.3
313.2
2023 12 2022 12
2,498.9 1,103.5
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12 21 15 2023
12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12 26 27 2023 12
2023 12
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
1,641,504 1,441,799
241,877 247,138
116,905 117,189
14.0 12.3
2.1 2.1

20
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) 2023 12 2022 12

116,905 117,189

(11,203) (10,703)
105,702 106,486

(5,916) (6,374)

@,177) (2,009)

98,609 98,103

313.56 303.55

292.52 279.66

2023 12 337.1 2022 12

350.8
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) 2023 12 2022 12

428,417 36% 386,665 40%

323,564 27% 155,022 16%

75,945 6% 60,961 6%

241,877 21% 247,138 26%

116,905 10% 117,189 12%

1,186,708 100% 966,975 100%

USA GS USA
GSIB SE GSBE

13
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11

GCLA

GS
USA 2023 12 2022 12

discount window

14
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1933 144A

( )

2023 12

2025 15,074 12,446 7,099 13,213 47,832

2026 6,702 4,928 7,966 10,551 30,147

2027 8,989 3,332 6,981 16,790 36,092

2028 11,505 6,345 4,790 5,388 28,028

2029 99,778
241,877

2023 12

14

19
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FRB
14 19
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FRB
2024 23 SEC 10-K 2023
Part 1 Item 1 Business Available Information
FRB CCAR FRB
FRB
FRB FRB
FRB
FRB
SCB SCB
CET1 CET1
RWA
2023 CCAR FRB SCB 6.3 5.5
2023 10 2024 30 CET1 13.0
G-SIB
2023 DFAST
GS USA
GS USA 2023 DFAST

GSI GSIB GSBE
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CET1
FRB SCB

2024

2023 12

16
12

1933 10b5-1

2023 300

19
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2023 58.0
2023
2023
GS USA
GS Co. GSI GSIB GSBE
2023 2023

USA GSIB GSBE GS Co. GSI

204/626
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35.9 93.9
GSJCL
GS USA 2023 12 2023
GS Co. GSI
USA GSIB GSBE
GS
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FRB
G-SIB
2.5 SCB
G-SIB
G-SIB 2023
2024 3.0 G-SIB
SCB
50 100
20
TLAC
FRB TLAC TLAC
FRB
TLAC
2023 12 2022 12
RWA TLAC 22.0% 21.5%
TLAC 9.5% 9.5%
RWA 9.0% 8.5%
4.5% 4.5%
RWA TLAC 18 2.5
FRB G-SIB
G-SIB 2023 12 1.5
2022 12 1.0
TLAC 7.5
2.0
RWA G-SIB
G-SIB 2023 12 3.0
2022 12 2.5

4.5
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TLAC
2023 12 2022 12
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
TLAC 278,188 297,100
154,300 172,845
RWA 692,737 679,450
1,995,756 1,867,358
RWA TLAC 40.2% 43.7%
TLAC 13.9% 15.9%
RWA 22.3% 25.4%
7.7% 9.3%
TLAC
TLAC RWA RWA TLAC
RWA 2023 12
RWA 2022 12 RWA
TLAC
GS USA GSIB GSBE
6S USA

20
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GSIB
GSIB PRA
FCA GSIB
GSIB
GSIB
2023 12 2022 12
CET1 10.1% 9.7%
Tierl 12.4% 11.9%
15.4% 14.9%
GSIB
( 2023 12 2022 12
CET1 3,936 3,395
Tierl 3,936 3,395
Tier2 826 828
4,762 4,223
RWA 16,546 15,766
CET1 23.8% 21.5%
Tierl 23.8% 21.5%
28.8% 26.8%
2023 12
GSIB GSIB
2023 12 CET1
301
2023 GSIB
2023 12
3.6%

7.4%
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2023 12
GSIB GSIB
2023 12 101
GSIB 2023
12 2022 12 GSIB
GSBE
GSBE BaFin
GSBE GS USA
GSBE EU CRD
EU CRR
GSBE
GSBE
GSBE
2023 12 2022 12
CET1 10.0% 9.2%
Tierl 12.1% 11.3%
14.8% 14.0%
GSBE
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
CET1 14,143 9,536
Tierl 14,143 9,536
Tier2 22 21
14,165 9,557
RWA 39,746 30,154
CET1 35.6% 31.6%
Tierl 35.6% 31.6%
35.6% 31.7%
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2023 12
GSBE GSBE GS
USA 2023 12 CET1
97
GSBE
2023 12 2022 12
3.0% 3.0%
11.3% 10.6%
2023 12
GSBE GSBE GS USA
2023 12
58
GSBE
2023 12 2022 12 GSBE
GSBE CFTC SEC
2023 12 2022 12 GSBE
GS Co. CFTC
SEC
SEC CFTC
SEC 15c3-1 CFTC 1.17
23 E
GS Co. SEC 15c3-1

SEC
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GS Co. SEC 15¢3-1 2023 12 202.5
2022 12 222.1 SEC 15¢3-1 CFTC 1.17
23 E 2023 12 150.7
2022 12 174.6 GS Co.
15¢3-1 50 10
GS Co. 60 SEC
GS Co. 2023 12 2022 12
GSJCL
GSI PRA FCA GSI
GSI
2023 12 2022 12
CET1 9.1% 8.7%
Tierl 11.0% 10.7%
13.7% 13.3%
PRA
GSI
( ) 2023 12 2022 12

CET1 32,403 31,780
Tierl 37,903 40,080
Tier2 6,877 5,377
44,780 45,457

RWA 257,956 247,653
CET1 12.6% 12.8%
Tierl 14.7% 16.2%
17.4% 18.4%
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2023 12
GSI GSI
2023 12 CET1
18
2023 GSI
2023 12
3.5%
4.9%
2023 12
GSI GSI
2023 12
GSI CFTC SEC
2023 12 2022 12 GSI
GSI 2023 12
2022 12 GSI

GSJCL
GSJCL
2023 12 2022 12
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17

18

18
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CISO
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Al

EMEA
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GCLA

GCLA
GCLA

GCLA
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GCLA

IHC
GCLA
GCLA
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GCLA
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IHC
IHC
IHC
IHC
2023 12
GS Co. 365.8
GSI 471.7 GSJCL
24.4 GS USA 569.1
GSIB 48.0 2023 12 1,375.8
404.7 356.0

2023 12
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GCLA

30
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30

11

15
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GCLA
GCLA

2023 12 2022 12
GCLA

GCLA
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GCLA
) 2023 12 2022 12 2023 12 2022 12
282,414 312,414 282,307 281,427
131,176 96,404 124,691 116,655
413,590 408,818 406,998 398,082
204,929 217,141 231,066 228,203
150,806 149,519 133,000 126,349
22,895 12,789 16,387 11,007
34,960 29,369 26,545 32,523
413,590 408,818 406,998 398,082
1HC 65,952 69,386 66,803 64,579
117,818 109,502 114,824 113,887
229,820 229,930 225,371 219,616
413,590 408,818 406,998 398,082
GCLA

GCLA
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GCLA
IHC
IHC
IHC
IHC GCLA
GCLA
GCLA
2023 12 2,865.1 2022 12
2,734.9 2023 12 2,819.5 2022 12
2,756.9 GCLA
LCR LCR
LCR HQLA
HQLA HQLA HQLA
LCR 100

LCR
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LCR
( ) 2023 12 2023 2022 12
HQLA 401,721 397,758 401,836
HQLA 326,181 316,291 291,118
255,106 253,238 226,532
LCR 128% 125% 129%
LCR LCR
NSFR NSFR
NSFR RSF
ASF ASF
ASF ASF 100
NSFR
NSFR
NSFR
( ) 2023 12 2023
ASF 628,734 617,341
RSF 542,089 529,635
NSFR 116% 117%
NSFR NSFR
GS USA
GS USA LCR 100 LCR
2023 12 GS USA LCR NSFR GS
USA 2023 12 GS USA  NSFR
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GSI GSIB
GSI GSIB LCR 100 LCR
2023 12 12 GSI GSIB LCR
GSI GSIB NSFR 2023 12 GSI
GSIB NSFR
GSBE
GSBE LCR 100 LCR
2023 12 12 GSBE LCR
GSBE  EU NSFR 2023 12 GSBE NSFR
2023 12
DBRS R& S&P
R-1( ) F1 P-1 a-1 A-2
AC ) A A2 A BBB+
A BBB+ Baa2 A- BBB
BBB- Baa3 BB+
BBB( ) BBB- Bal BB+
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2023 31.00 .00 8.70 20.30 70% 65%
CEO 2022 25.00 .00 6.90 16.10 70% 64%
2023 30.00 .85 11.26 16.89 60% 56%
2022 23.50 .85 8.66 12.99 60% 55%
2023 20.00 .85 7.26 10.89 60% 54%
2022 17.00 .85 6.06 9.09 60% 53%
2023 16.00 .50 5.80 8.70 60% 54%
2022 12.00 .50 4.20 6.30 60% 53%
2023 13.00 .50 4.60 6.90 60% 53%
2022 10.00 .50 3.40 5.10 60% 51%
* 100 PSU
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SEC 2023
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2023 2,000,000 8,700,000 15,649,863 — 15,649,863 99 320,855 26,670,817
2022 2,000,000 6,900,000 22,404,343 — 22,404,343 — 305,077 31,609,420
2021} 2,000,000 9,900,000 10,334,614 17,045,566 27,380,180 — 264,892 39,545,072
CEO
2023 1,850,000 11,260,000 12,626,934 — 12,626,934 492 355,563 26,092,989
2022 1,850,000 8,660,000 18,127,364 — 18,127,364 — 343,897 28,981,261
2021} 1,850,000 12,460,000 9,515,417 11,363,788 20,879,205 — 319,593 35,508,798
2023 1,850,000 7,260,000 8,835,914 — 8,835,914 2,360 619,147 18,567,421
2022 1,850,000 6,060,000 11,158,962 3,341,555 14,500,517 — 1,158,036 23,568,553
2023 1,500,000 5,800,000 5,947,730 — 5,947,730 — 68,289 13,316,019
2022 1,500,000 4,200,000 9,021,951 2,339,034 11,360,985 — 68,577 17,129,562
CLO 2021} 1,500,000 6,400,000 4,731,963 — 4,731,963 — 63,358 12,695,321
2023 1,500,000 4,600,000 4,815,002 — 4,815,002 30,245 3,309,859 14,255,106
2022 1,500,000 3,400,000 9,242,922 2,339,034 11,581,956 — 4,648,229 21,130,185
2021} 1,108,046 @ 6,556,898 6,341,994 — 6,341,994 51,518 2,908,899 16,967,355
(a) 2021
2021 20 1.5
(b) 2023 2022 2023 2022 PSU
2022 PSU PSU
2023 26 NYSE
354.97 2022 PSU
PSU 2023 18 NYSE 349.09
2022 PSU
2022 PSU
23,474,795 18,940,568 13,253,870 7,222,502
8,921,760 2022 2021 PSU
2021 PSU 2021 RSU 2021
2022 2021 PSU
PSU 2022 28 NYSE 347.01
2021 PSU 2021
PSU PSU 2022 19 NYSE
347.32 2021
PSU PSU
2021 PSU PSU
14
2021 PSU
33,606,688 27,191,219 3,894,900 13,864,382 13,533,089
2021 PSU 12,241,470
2021 RSU RSU 2022 28
NYSE 347.01 2021
2020 2021 2020 RSU 2020 PSU
2020 RSU 2020 PSU RSU
PSU 2021 20 NYSE 290.47
2020 PSU
PSU 10
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15,501,920 14,273,125 1,816,125
2020 RSU RSU 12
©) 2021 10 2022
svC
sve SVC 2021 10 21
NYSE 407.59
43
sve SVC 2022
28 NYSE 347.01
61
svVe 25,568,349 17,045,682
5,012,332 3,508,619 3,508,619
(@
©) 2023
12,500 118 22,090 397 28,028 149,815 77,231
12,500 118 89,336 397 10,877 153,825 87,933
12,500 118 89,336 397 6,736 73,595 83,786
12,500 118 22,090 397 11,608 21,381 —
o 20,535 428 66,201 1,428 9,300 78,087 -
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2023/1/26 0 45,356 68,034 15,649,863
2023/1/26 0 36,595 54,893 12,626,934
2023/1/26 0 25,608 38,412 8,835,914
2023/1/18 0 18,047 27,071 5,947,730
2023/1/18 0 14,610 21,915 4,815,002
(a) 2023 2022 PSU
(b) 2022
PSU PSU 2023 26 NYSE
354.97 2022 PSU
PSU 2023 18 NYSE 349.09
2022 PSU PSU
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241,221 93,055,825
190,889 73,639,250
85,215 32,873,391
15,937 6,148,016 69,692 26,885,083
60,023 23,155,073
@) 2020 4 2024 12 RSU
(b) SEC 2023 12 29
NYSE 385.77
© 2023 2022 PSU
2022 2021 PSU 2022
2021 PSU 2021 2020
PSU 2021 10 SVC
2022 SVC SEC
2020 PSU 2021 PSU 2021 PSU 2022 PSU
SVC 2020 2021 2021 PSU
PSU
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2020 PSU 2024
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2024
C )@
107,222 (3 36,079,673
81,632 (@) 27,468,766
20,074 (b) 7,743,947
(@) 2022 12 31 2023 50 50
2019 PSU PSU
ROE
PSU 71,481 54,421 ROE 14.8
100 150
PSU 107,222 81,632
(b) 2023 2024 2020 RSU
2020 RSU 2026
2023 2024 2020 RSU
2020 RSU 2024 12
2025
©) 2019 PSU PSU 50
2023 19 2023 10 NYSE
339.62 PSU 50
2023 333.37
PSU
2,466,106 1,877,536 RSU RSU
2023 12 29 2023 12 31 NYSE
385.77
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1,258,253 6,132,350 10,657,668
RSU
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RSU
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RSU
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0 1,178,953 1,178,953
0 1,178,953 1,178,953
0 11,568,504 11,568,504
0 7,712,472 7,712,472
0 3,837,502 3,837,502
®
15,124,221 2,686,130 17,810,351
0 2,686,130 2,686,130
@ 0 0 0
0 11,568,504 11,568,504
0 7,712,472 7,712,472
0 3,837,502 3,837,502
(h) 15,124,221 2,686,130 17,810,351
0 2,686,130 2,686,130
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100,000 349,788 349,788 61,667 511,445
33,333 349,788 349,788 20,000 403,121
100,000 349,788 349,788 20,000 469,788
118,750 349,788 349,788 20,000 488,538
112,058 75,501 187,649 24,227 211,876

125,000 380,159 380,159 20,000 525,159
374,224 75,501 449,815 449,815

50,000 5,000 55,000
380,159 94,312 474,471 474,471

380,159 94,312 474,471 91,212 565,683

100,000 374,224 374,224 49,524 523,748
100,000 374,224 374,224 20,000 494,224
125,000 349,788 349,788 20,000 494,788
10,417 380,159 31,331 411,490 24,167 446,073
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PwC
PwC
PwC
PwC
2023 2022
2023 2022
( ) ( )
77.5 100% 78.1 100%
(11,701.725 ) (11,792.319 )
16.8 100% 15.0 100%
@) (2,536.632 ) (2,264.85 )
1.2 100% 2.1 100%
() (181.188 ) (317.079 )
2023 1.2
0.2
PwC
PwC 2023 76.4
2022 71.2

3471626



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)
oOoOooodn

2024 15 SEC 2024
PwC
2023 2022
2023 2022
( ) ( )

77.5 100% 78.1 100%

(11,701.725 ) (11,792.319 )
16.8 100% 15.0 100%

(€)) (2,536.632 ) (2,264.85 )
1.2 100% 2.1 100%
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 6,218 \ 938,8%6 $ 7,30 \ 1,111,286 $ 14,136 \ 2,134,395
9,532 1,439,237 9,005 1,359,665 8,171 1,233,739
3,789 572,101 4,034 609,094 3,590 542,054
18,238 2,753,756 18,634 2,813,548 15,357 2,318,753
2,126 321,005 654 98,747 11,615 1,753,749
39,903 6,024,954 39,687 5,992,340 52,869 7,982,690
68,515 10,345,080 29,024 4,382,334 12,120 1,829,999
62,164 9,386,142 21,346 3,223,033 5,650 853,094
6,351 958,937 7,678 1,159,301 6,470 976,905
46,254 6,983,891 47,365 7,151,641 59,339 8,959,596
1,028 155,218 2,715 409,938 357 53,903
15,499 2,340,194 15,148 2,287,197 17,719 2,675,392
5,698 860,341 5,312 802,059 4,710 711,163
629 94,973 812 122,604 553 83,497
1,919 289,750 1,808 272,990 1,573 237,507
4,856 733,207 2,455 370,680 2,015 304,245
1,053 158,992 1,026 154,916 981 148,121
1,623 245,057 1,887 284,918 1,648 248,832
3,210 484,678 2,716 410,089 2,739 413,562
34,487 5,207,192 31,164 4,705,452 31,938 4,822,319
10,739 1,621,482 13,486 2,036,251 27,044 4,083,374
2,223 335,651 2,225 335,953 5,409 816,705
8,516 1,285,831 11,261 1,700,298 21,635 3,266,669
609 91,953 497 75,042 484 73,079
$ 7,907 \1,193,878 $ 10,764 \ 1,625,256 $ 21,151 \ 3,193,589
$ 23.056 \ 3,480 $ 3042 \ 4,593 $ 60.25 \ 9,097
$ 2287 \ 3,43 $ 3006 \ 4,539 $ 59.45 \ 8,976

340.8 352.1 350.5
345_8 358.1 355.8
@
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$ 8,516 \ 1,285,831 $ 11,261 \ 1,700,298 $ 21,635 \ 3,266,669
C ) ( )

©2) (9,361) @n (7,097) 42) (6,342)
(1.015) (153,255) 1,403 211,839 322 48,619
(76) (11,475) ) (25,970) 41 6,191
1,245 187,983 (2,126) (321,005) (955) (144,195)
/C ) 92 13,801 (942) (142,233) (634) (95,728)
$ 8,608 \ 1,299,722 $ 10,319 1\ 1,558,066 $ 21,001 \ 3,170,941
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2023 12 2022 12
$ 241,577 \ 36,475,711 $ 241,825 \ 36,513,157
) ( 223,543 225,117 223,805 33,792,317 225,117 33,990,416
) ( 44,930 38,578 199,420 30,110,426 189,041 28,543,301
) ( 2 25 132,495 20,005,420 135,448 20,451,294
) ( 110,567 40,143 477,510 72,099,235 301,245 45,484,983
( 75,767 78,201 ) 146,839 22,171,221 130,629 19,723,673
(5,050 5,543
6,506 7,655 ) 183,358 27,685,224 179,286 27,070,393
( 366 145 ) 36,590 5,524,724 39,208 5,920,016
$1,641,594 \247,864,278  $1,441,799 \217,697,231
( 29,460 15,746 ) $ 428,417 \ 64,686,683 $ 386,665 \ 58,382,548
( ) 249,887 37,730,438 110,349 16,661,596
) ( 8,934 4,312 60,483 9,132,328 30,727 4,639,470
) ( 12,554 12,756 13,194 1,992,162 13,946 2,105,707
230,728 34,837,621 262,045 39,566,175
( ) 200,355 30,251,601 191,324 28,888,011
) ( 46,127 39,731 75,945 11,466,936 60,961 9,204,501
) ( 86,410 73,147 241,877 36,521,008 247,138 37,315,367
( 266 159 ) 23,803 3,594,015 21,455 3,239,490
1,524,689 230,212,792 1,324,610 200,002,864
( 11,203 10,703 ) 11,203 1,691,541 10,703 1,616,046
( 922,895,030 917,815,030
323,376,354 334,918,639 ) 9 1,359 o 1,359
5,121 773,220 5,696 860,039
( ) - - - -
60,247 9,096,695 59,050 8,915,960
143,688 21,695,451 139,372 21,043,778
(2,918) (440,589) (3,010) (454,480)
( 599,518,678 582,896,393 ) (100,445) (15,166,191) (94,631) (14,288,335)
116,905 17,651,486 117,189 17,694,367
$1,641,594 \247,864,278  $1,441,799 \217,697,231
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 10,703 \ 1,616,046 $ 10,703 \ 1,616,046 $ 11,203 \ 1,691,541
1,500 226,485 - - 2,175 328,403
(1,000) (150,990) - - (2,675) (403,898)
11,203 1,691,541 10,703 1,616,046 10,703 1,616,046
9 1,359 9 1,359 9 1,359
9 1,359 9 1,359 9 1,359
5,696 860,039 4,211 635,819 3,468 523,633
2,098 316,777 4,110 620,569 2,527 381,552
(2.504) (378,079) (2,468) (372,643) (1,626) (245,510)
(169) (25.517) (157) (23,705) (158) (23,856)
5,121 773,220 5,696 860,039 4,211 635,819
59,050 8,915,960 56,396 8,515,232 55,679 8,406,972
2,549 384,874 2,516 379,891 1,678 253,361
(1,345) (203,082) (1,591) (240,225) (984) (148,574)
5 755 - - 24 3,624
- - 1,730 261,213 - -
(12) (1,812) @ (151) ) (151)
60,247 9,096,695 59,050 8,915,960 56,396 8,515,232
139,372 21,043,778 131,811 19,902,143 112,947 17,053,868
8,516 1,285,831 11,261 1,700,298 21,635 3,266,669
(3.591) (542,205) (3,203) (483,621) (2,287) (345,314)
(599) (90,443) 497) (75,042) (443) (66,889)
(10) (1,510) - - (41) (6,191)
143,688 21,695,451 139,372 21,043,778 131,811 19,902,143
C )
(3.010) (454,480) (2,068) (312,247) (1,434) (216,520)
/C ) 92 13,801 (942) (142,233) (634) (95,728)
(2.918) (440,589) (3,010) (454,480) (2,068) (312,247)
)
(94,631)  (14,288,335) (91,136)  (13,760,625) (85,940) (12,976,081)
(5.796) (875,138) (3,500) (528,465) (5,200) (785,148)
29 4,379 20 3,020 11 1,661
“n (7,097) (15) (2,265) [0 (1,057)
(100,445)  (15,166,191) (94,631) (14,288,335) (91,136) (13,760,625)
$ 116,905 \ 17,651,486 $ 117,189 \ 17,694,367 $ 109,926 \ 16,597,727
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$ 8,516 \ 1,285,831 $ 11,261 \ 1,700,298 $ 21,635 \ 3,266,669
/(

)
4,856 733,207 2,455 370,680 2,015 304,245
(1,360) (205,346) (2,412) (364,188) 5 755
2,085 314,814 4,083 616,492 2,348 354,525
1,028 155,218 2,715 409,938 357 53,903
¢ ) (28,219)  (4,260,787) 35,014 5,286,764 21,971 3,317,401
( ) ( 160,227 24,192,675 (100,996)  (15,249,386) (70,058)  (10,578,057)
(163,807)  (24,733,219) 45,278 6,836,525 15,232 2,299,880
5,751 868,343 8,062 1,217,281 26,616 4,018,750
« ) 1,635 246,869 3,161 477,279 (5,556) (838,900)
D) (3.299) (498,116) 87 13,136 (8,267)  (1,248,234)
/( ) (12,587)  (1,900,511) 8,708 1,314,821 6,298 950,935
(2.316) (349,693) (3,748) (565,911) (4,667) (704,670)
3,278 494,945 2,706 408,579 3,933 593,844
() /( 487 73,532 (2,115) (319,344) - -
(40,256)  (6,078,253) (60,536)  (9,140,331) (39,912)  (6,026,313)
26,848 4,053,780 12,961 1,956,981 45,701 6,900,394
( W) (5,353) (808,249) (25,228)  (3.,809,176) (35,520)  (5,363,165)
(17,312)  (2,613,939) (75,960)  (11,469,200) (30,465)  (4,599,910)
« ) 2,050 309,530 321 48,468 2,137 322,666
C ) ) 673 101,616 (2,283) (344,710) (1,320) (199,307)
«C ) 3,047 460,067 1,800 271,782 4,795 723,997
¢ ) ( (3.570) (539,034) (3,407) (514,423) (6,590) (995,024)
47,153 7,119,631 84,522 12,761,977 92,717 13,999,340
) ( (54,066)  (8,163,425) (42,806)  (6,463,278) (52,608)  (7,943,282)
« ) 3,280 495,247 1,797 271,329 1,121 169,260
C ) 39,723 5,997,776 28,074 4,238,893 103,538 15,633,203
(1,000) (150,990) - - (2,675) (403,898)
(5,796) (875,138) (3,500) (528,465) (5,200) (785,148)
(1,345) (203,082) (1,595) (240,829) (985) (148,725)
(4,189) (632,497) (3,682) (555,945) (2,725) (411,448)
( ) 1,496 225,881 - - 2,172 327,950
() 344 51,941 361 54,507 361 54,507
27,800 4,197,522 59,602 8,999,306 134,738 20,344,001
1,851 279,482 (11,561)  (1,745,595) (5,377) (811,873)
/C ) () (248) (37,446) (19,211)  (2,900,669) 105,194 15,883,242
241,825 36,513,157 261,036 39,413,826 155,842 23,530,584
$ 241,577  \ 36,475,711 $ 241,825 \ 36,513,157 $ 261,036 \ 39,413,826
( $ 60,026 \ 9,063,326 $ 19,022 \ 2,872,132 $ 5,521 \ 833,616
C ) $ 2,389 \ 360,715 $ 4,555 \ 687,759 $ 6,195 \ 935,383
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VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE VIE
VIE VIE 17
20 50
NAV
18 22
2023 45 85
95 2022 50
85 95 2021
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2023 12 79.3 2022 12 78.7
2023 12 2,336.5 2022 12
2,339.6
2023 12 170.8 2022 12 169.4
11
2023 12 901.6
2022 12 678.8 2023
12 423.3 2022 12 675.7
2023 12 2022 12
10
2023 12 35.9
2022 12 30.1 2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2,207.1
2022 12 2,381.2
2023 12 100.2 2022 12 239.3

2023 12 2022 12
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ASC 848 2020 FASB ASU No.2020-04
ASU 2022
2021 FASB ASU No.2021-01
ASC 848 ASU
ASU
ASC 326 2022 FASB ASU No.2022-02
326 ASU
TDR
ASU
ASU 2023 ASU
SAB 121 2022
SEC SAB 121 SAB 121
SAB 121
2022 SAB 121 SAB 121
ASC 820 2022 FASB ASU No.2022-03
ASU
ASU
ASU 2024 ASU
ASC 323 2023 FASB ASU No.2023-02
323
ASU
ASU 2024 ASU
ASC 280 2023 11 FASB ASU No.2023-07
ASU
ASU 2023 12 15 2024 12 15

ASU

ASU
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ASC 740 2023 12 FASB ASU No.2023-09
ASU
ASU 2024 12 15
AsU AsU
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( 2023 12 2022 12
$ 332,549 194,698
519,130 485,134
25,100 26,048
NAV 3,000 2,941
(51,134) (57,855)

$ 828,645 650,966
$ 1,641,504 1,441,799

1.5 1.8

3.0 4.0
$ 125,715 119,578
523,709 353,060
28,704 22,830

(44,135) (47,884)

$ 633,993 447,584
$ 1,524,689 1,324,610

1.9 1.7

4.5 5.1
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,791 $ 1,734
5,161 5,461
17,138 16,942
823 1,837
187 74
$ 25,100  $ 26,048

2023 12 2022 12
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2023 12
85,190 $ 58,862 $ - 8 144,052
61,981 25,702 91 87,774
- 916 45 961
- 8,940 99 9,039
177 37,883 1,415 39,475
- 371 - 371
80 2,086 37 2,203
135,032 1,739 103 136,874
- 5,640 1 5,641
282,460 $ 142,139 $ 1,791 $ 426,390
(26,400) $ 32) $ - 8 (26,432)
(50,825) (2.343) - (53,168)
- @n - @n
- ®) - ®
124) (15,317) (70) (15,511)
(48,347) @nN ®) (48,392)
- (66) - (66)
(125,696) $ (17,827) $ 78) $ (143,601)
2022 12
75,598 $ 31,783 $ -8 107,381
22,794 15,238 67 38,099
- 1,135 66 1,201
- 9,706 88 9,794
249 27,555 1,238 29,042
- 707 20 727
27 2,349 153 2,529
44,909 2,141 100 47,150
- 5,907 2 5,909
143,577 $ 96,521 $ 1,734 $ 241,832
(23,339) $ (36) $ -8 (23,375)
(28,537) 2,172) - (30,709)
- (30) - (30)
- (16) - (16)
(64) (14,217) (61) (14,342)
- (35) @ @nN
(67,591) (488) @ (68,080)
(119,531) $ (16,994) $ 64) 3 (136,589)
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)

$144 $154

3.8 26.1 12.8 3.0 36.0 14.2

35.5 76.0 44.6 35.8 76.1 54.7

3.7 29.9 10.4

) 0.3 15.3 5.2 0.9 12.3 4.6
$1,415 $1,238

2.8 40.0 9.3 1.1 34.3 6.9

7.3 65.0 39.4 11.5 77.0 48.0

) 0.9 11.3 3.4 0.3 20.3 4.5
$232 $342

3.6 31.3 14.6 2.8 47.8 10.0

0.7 4.5 3.9 3.3 4.5 4.3

) 2.3 6.4 4.1 14.4 6.1

2023 12

2023 12

2022 12
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$ 1,734  $ 1,889
/( 154 167
/( 32 (1,889)
825 1,271
(515) (704)
(286) (345)
167 1,680
(256) (335)
$ 1,791 $ 1,734
$ 64 $ (104)
/( 3 18
/( (66) 65
90 137
an (106)
1 5
(6) (89)
38 10
$ 78 $ (64)
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 154 $ 289
/C ) 10 11
C ) 5 (11)
28 51
()} 27
(16) (26)
31 19
(1) (52)
$ 144 $ 154
$ 1,238  $ 1,318
C ) 56 29
C ) (26) (111)
656 607
Q17 (372)
(0D (247)
98 278
(129) (264)
$ 1,415 $ 1,238
$ 342 3 282
C ) 88 127
C ) an (1,767)
141 613
(181 (205)
(69) (72)
38 1,383
(116) (19)
$ 232 $ 342

2023 12 2023
122 154 32
60 62

2023

2023

2023

2022 12 2022
17.2 167 18.9
17.7) 54

2022

2022

2022
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$ 15 $ 241,850 $ 758 $ 242,623
- 9,964 2,861 12,825
- 89,694 210 89,904
- 15,393 1,449 16,842
2 59,220 816 60,038
« ) 17 416,121 6,094 422,232
- (319,045) (933) (319,978)
$ 17 $ 97,076 $ 5,161 § 102,254
(1,411)
(49,723)
(G $ 51,120
$ 1% $ (213,861) $ @.,197) $ (215,072)
- (8,923) @1,211) (10,134)
- (97,436) (168) (97,604)
- (17,122) (821) (17,943)
5) (78,222) (1,887) (80,114)
« ) (19) (415,564) (5.284) (420,867)
- 319,045 933 319,978
$ (19) $ (96,519) $ (4,351) $ (100,889)
1,411
42,724
(GD) $ (56,754)
2022 12
$ 69 $ 269,590 $ 700 $ 270,359
- 9,690 2,577 12,267
- 103,450 494 103,944
- 38,331 1,609 39,940
113 49,481 967 50,561
« ) 182 470,542 6,347 477,071
- (358,917) (836) (359,803)
$ 182 $ 111,625  $ 5,461 $ 117,268
(1,079)
(56,776)
(GD) $ 59,413
$ (32) $ (247,871) $ (1,159) $ (249,062)
- (10,163) (1,117) (11,280)
- (111,840) (332) (112,172)
- (32,435) (690) (33,125)
(15) (55,240) (1,528) (56,783)
« ) 7 (457,549) (4,826) (462,422)
- 358,917 886 359,803
$ 7 $ (98,632) $ (3,940) $ (102,619)
1,079
46,805
(D) $ (54,735)
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) / /
$(439) $(459)
(10) 75 60 /66 (10) 81 61 /60
) 31 101 56/49 31 101 60/57
$1,650 $1,460
3 1,750 130/85 5 935 149/116
0 100 26/15 (1) 100 29/18
20 70 43 /40 20 50 40 /40
$42 $162
20 90 41 /43 20 71 40 /23
15 16 16 /16 20 21 20 /20
$628 $919
23 98 42 /39 20 118 50 /46
$(1.39)  $3.06 $(0-32)/$(0.35) $(3.21)  $5.85  $(0.20)/$(0.27)
$(5.39) $31.69 $15.39/$19.35 $12.68 $48.92 $20.42/$20.36
$2.72  $1,088.00 $48.15/$35.16 $3.00  $329.28 $47.19/$39.69
$(1,071) $(561)
70) 100 65 /71 (75) 100 66 /75
1 106 14 /13 2 74 13 /7
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$ 1,521 $ 440
/( 65 839
/( @321 1,817
366 510
(1,420) (1,592)
466 100
(90) (482)
229 (111)
$ 810 $ 1,521
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
C )
$ (459) $ 183
/C ) 9 88
/C ) (78) 137
85 50
(408) (585)
423 (20)
(81 (13)
70 (299)
$ (439) $ (459)
C )
$ 1,460 $ 1,854
C ) (58) 217
C ) 274 (343)
89 107
(50) (90)
(138) (1))
(20) (21)
93 (237)
$ 1,650 $ 1,460
C )
$ 162 $ (147)
/C ) 80 95
/C ) 182) 270
2 41
@ (36)
(56) 19
4 (83)
33 3
$ 42 $ 162
C )
$ 919 $ 438
C ) (113) (59)
C ) B73) 741
4 31
an (30)
68 (245)
122 182
18 (139)
$ 628 $ 919
C )
$ (61) $ (1,888)
C ) 147 498
C ) 32 1,012
186 281
(944) (851)
169 373
(115) (547)
15 561
$ (,071) $ (561)
2023 12 2023
262 65 327
251 11
2023
2023
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2023 12
$ 46,731  $ - $ - 3 46,731
2,399 144 - 2,543
160 2,299 6,533 8,992
- 2 687 689
52 909 - 1,051
9 14 244 267
721 2,099 9,674 12,494
$ 50,072 § 5,557 $ 17,138 $ 72,767
NAV 3,000
$ 75,767
2022 12
$ 47,055  $ - 8 - $ 47,055
2,169 66 - 2,235
145 2,950 7,003 10,098
- 176 827 1,003
48 957 - 1,005
- 3 256 259
1,522 3,227 8,856 13,605
$ 50,939 7,379 $ 16,942  $ 75,260
NAV 2,941
$ 78,201
2023 12 2022 12
( )
$6,533 $7,003
6.0 31.0 12.1 5.0 21.8 11.6
7.3 4.2 27.6 10.0 70.0 55.5
() 0.4 5.3 3.0 1.3 5.7 3.3
0.9 53.3 7.7 1.8 83.4 8.3
$687 $827
7.4 18.8 14.1 8.0 20.3 14.6
() 0.4 4.1 3.9 0.6 4.2 4.1
$244 $256
7.6 8.8 8.2 5.2 8.4 7.4
$9,674 $8,856
0.5 25.2 8.3 0.5 34.3 8.3
/ 6.0 38.5 12.3 5.4 38.5 14.6
4.5 8.0 5.3 4.0 10.8 5.4
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2023 12 2022 12
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 16,942 $ 13,902
C ) 463 563
/C ) 722) (1,649)
1,651 2,362
(1,186) (1,514)
(1,762) (1,995)
2,918 6,345
(1,166) (1,072)
$ 17,138 $ 16,942
/
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 7,003 $ 4,527
C ) 360 352
C ) 1 (173)
590 1,007
(458) (125)
(1,110) (1,117)
755 2,790
(608) (258)
$ 6,533 % 7,003
$ 827 $ 1,078
/C ) 12 42
C ) (166) (339)
58 199
(148) (169)
(62) (320)
171 344
5) ©
$ 687 $ 827
$ 25 $ 382
C ) 4 12
C ) - )
2 25
- ®)
(18) (147)
- (5)
$ 244 % 256
$ 8,856 $ 7,915
/C ) 87 157
C ) (57) (1,133)
1,001 1,131
(580) (1,214)
(672) (411)
1,992 3,211
(553) (800)
$ 9,674 $ 8,856
2023 12 2023
259 463 722
(820) 561 /
2023
2023
2023
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2022 12 2022
10.9 563 16.5
(15.2) 433 /
2022
2022
2022
( )
2023 12
$ - $ 415 $ 344 $ 759
- 360 203 563
- 4,087 58 4,145
- 775 136 911
- 46 82 128
$ - $ 5,683 $ 823 $ 6,506
2022 12
$ - $ 359 $ 637 $ 996
- 435 711 1,146
i, 4,437 74 4,511
- 576 140 716
- 11 275 286
$ - $ 5,818 $ 1,837 $ 7,655
/ 2023
(53) 2022 (367) /
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2023 12 2022 12
)
$344 $637
8.0 17.1 10.5 4.1 26.9 9.6
2.0 95.0 74.0 23.1 95.0 66.0
() 0.7 2.3 1.7 1.6 3.3 2.6
$261 $785
5.0 21.4 18.1 3.0 27.0 16.1
5.3 99.2 66.0 3.6 66.2 54.4
() 0.5 6.2 1.6 0.6 6.7 2.5
$136 $140
5.6 8.7 6.1 5.8 12.7 7.7
() 2.5 2.9 2.7
$82 $275
7.3 13.5 9.6 9.4 10.0 9.9
) 36 5.2 4.2
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12
2022 12
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,837 $ 2,354
/( 26 82
/( (169) (129)
53 113
(540) (82)
(318) (403)
2 236
(68) (334)
$ 823 $ 1,837
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 637 $ 672
V/GED) 10 29
C ) 1249 (40)
10 27
@“@n (74)
(113) (95)
2 121
GD (©)
$ 344 3 637
$ 75 3 1,188
C ) 11 45
C ) () (108)
7 65
@) ®
192 (233)
- 102
(36) (266)
$ 261 $ 785
$ 140 $ 229
C ) 1 3
C ) ® @
5 3
(@) -
(@) (55)
- 13
- (51)
$ 136 $ 140
$ 215  $ 265
/C ) 4 5
/C ) 3 21
31 18
(219) -
an (20)
(€)) (€D))
$ 82 $ 275
2023 12 2023
143 26 169
(152) /
2023
2023
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2022 12 2022
47 82 129
(78) 31 /
2022
2022
2022
( )
2023 12
$ - $ 223,543 $ - 3 223,543
- 44,930 - 44,930
- 23 - 23
- 179 187 366
$ - 3 268,675 $ 187 $ 268,862
$ - 3 (26,723) $ @,737) $ (29,460)
- (249,887) - (249,887)
- (8,934) - (8,934)
- (10,532) (2,022) (12,554)
- (40,538) (5,589) (46,127)
- (72,562) (13,848) (86,410)
- sn (79) (266)
$ - 3 (409, 363) $ (24,275) $ (433,638)
2022 12
$ - $ 225,117 $ - $ 225,117
- 38,578 - 38,578
- 25 - 25
- 71 74 145
$ - 3 263,791 $ 74 $ 263,865
$ -3 (13,003) $ 2,743) 3 (15,746)
- (110,349) - (110, 349)
- (4,372) - (4,372)
- (10,914) (1,842) (12,756)
- (35,641) (4,090) (39,731)
- (63,081) (10,066) (73,147)
- (74) (85) (159)
$ - 3 (237,434) $ (18,826) $ (256,260)
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2023 12 2022 12
2023 12
6.7 11.3 ( 8.5
0.1 4.5 ( 0.9 )
2022 12
4.5 9.4 ( 5.9
0.6 5.1 ( 2.2 )
11
12 13
14 15
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
74 $ -
/( (&) -
/( 95 65
20 9
187 $ 74
(18,826) $ (23,567)
/( (212) (311)
/( (1,667) 4,459
(8,153) (10,090)
8,298 10,255
(4,542) (1,851)
827 2,279
(24,275) $ (18,826)
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ (2,743) $ (3,613)
/¢ ) @ ®)
C ) (140) 391
(506) (937)
773 1,264
(153) (13)
34 170
$ (2,737) $ (2,743)
$ (1,842) $ (2,566)
C ) 9) 12)
C ) (50) 31
(657) (621)
1,479 850
(941) (110)
8 586
$ (2,022) $ (1,842)
$ (4,090) $ (7,829)
¢ ) (36) (112)
C ) (563) 730
(4,315) (3,497)
3,418 6,201
(281) (265)
278 682
$ (5,589) $ (4,090)
$ (10,066) $ (9,413)
/¢ ) (155) (182)
C ) (914) 3,246
(2,675) (5,035)
2,622 1,940
(3,167) (1,463)
507 841
$ (13,848) $ (10,066)
$ (85) $ (146)
C ) - 61
6 -
$ @9 s (85)
2023 12 2023
18.8 212 16.7
14.1 23
22 427
2023
2023
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2023
2022 12 2022
41.5 311 44.6
36.0 64
3D 503
/
2022
2022
2022

387/626



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

ooooooo
( )
2023 12
$ 426,390 $ 143,601
51,120 56,754
$ 477,510 $ 200,355
2022 12
$ 241,832  $ 136,589
59,413 54,735
$ 301,245  $ 191,324
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 4,437 $ (4,890) $ (2,664)
1,141 1,095 1,739
2,827 11,662 5,627
7,938 7,734 8,459
1,895 3,033 2,196
$ 18,238 $ 18,634 $ 15,357
/ /

23
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FICC

2023 2022
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2023 12 2022 12

3,401 $ 1,129 675 1,385
67,815 64,490 74,297 72,979
171,109 149,444 195,052 174,687
242,325 215,063 270,024 249,051
1,271 1,533 1,516 1,802
11,554 8,601 10,751 9,478
12,825 10,134 12,267 11,280
708 15 1,041 22
1,033 1,632 520 589
88,158 95,742 102,301 111,276
89,899 97,389 103,862 111,887
5,468 5,998 9,225 9,542
635 711 698 838
10,739 11,234 30,017 22,745
16,842 17,943 39,940 33,125
31,315 39,247 26,302 26,607
122 1 685 19
28,601 40,696 23,574 30,157
60,038 80,114 50,561 56,783
421,929 420,643 476,654 462,126
298 9 335 11

298 9 335 11

7 29 29

208 53 256

5 215 82 285

303 224 417 296
422,232 $ 420,867 477,071 462,422
(32,722) $ (32,722) (31,229) (31,229)
(67.272) (67,272) (75.349) (75.349)
(221,395) (221,395) (254,304) (254,304)
(321,389) (321,389) (360,882) (360,882)
(1,335) (486) (1,388) (406)
(48,388) (42,238) (55,388) (46,399)
(49,723) (42,724) (56.,776) (46,805)
(371,112) $ (364,113) (417,658) (407 ,687)
8,170 $ 13,667 6,014 6,327
2,269 786 1,008 501
40,681 42,301 52,391 47,907
51,120 $ 56,754 59,413 54,735
@) 8 (2.732) (298) (1,887)
(13,425) (6,516) (15,229) (4,329)
36,818 $ 47,506 43,886 48,519
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) 2023 12 2022 12
3,854,689 4,241,937
16,007,915 13,104,682
12,390,595 11,137,127
32,253,199 28,483,746
299 369
498,720 529,543
619,975 577,542
1,118,994 1,107,454
11,586 9,012
268,293 150,561
6,363,700 5,304,069
6,643,579 5,463,642
306,787 341,526
3,323 3,188
199,270 255,208
509, 380 599,922
1,564,341 1,107,659
1,487 1,639
1,204,140 1,026,736
2,769,968 2,136,034
43,295,120 37,790,798
241,160 257,739
2,914 3,156
244,074 260,895
1,227 2,048
9,130 7,701
10,357 9,749
254,431 270,644
43,549,551 38,061,442
2023 12
89.8 2022 12 100.8 2023 12
2022 12 127.1
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( )
2023 12
$ 9,511 § 12,178 $ 49,045 $ 70,734
1,814 3,283 1,961 7,058
9,117 7,579 5,479 22,175
2,993 2,574 1,451 7,018
6,625 3,155 1,655 11,435
(3.046) (2.765) (3.648) (9,459)
$ 27,014 $ 26,004 $ 55,943 § 108,961
(16,288)
(49,723)
$ 42,950
$ 11,952 $ 15,972 $ 17,540 $ 45,464
792 2,508 1,067 4,367
15,335 7,934 7,299 30,568
2,526 3,643 1,419 7,588
10,183 10,048 3,340 23,571
(3.046) (2.765) (3.648) (9,459)
$ 37,742 $ 37,340 $ 27,017 $ 102,099
(16,288)
(42,728)
$ 43,087
2022 12
$ 5,509 $ 16,963  $ 53,943 $ 76,415
921 2,622 2,142 5,685
12,284 7,819 7,085 27,188
10,525 7,513 2,574 20,612
5,346 4,007 1,782 11,135
(2,661) (3,942) (4,830) (11,433)
$ 31,924 $ 34,982 $ 62,696 $ 129,602
(19,427)
(56,776)
$ 53,399
$ 9,351 $ 23,589 $ 21,467 % 54,407
993 2,635 1,071 4,699
18,987 8,736 8,712 36,435
6,400 6,135 945 13,480
7,629 7,249 2,174 17,052
(2,661) (3,942) (4,830) (11,433)
$ 40,699 $ 44,402 $ 29,539 $ 114,640
(19,427)
(46,805)
$ 48,408
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( )
( ) 0 - 250 251 - 500 501 - 1,000 1,000
2023 12
/
$ 126,667 $ 12,594 § 892 $ 3,611 $ 143,764
324,577 11,371 5,613 5,802 347,363
30,406 1,316 671 249 32,642
$ 481,650 $ 25,281 § 7,176 $ 9,662 $ 523,769
/
$ 396,984  $ 11,857  § 6,241  $ 8,246 $ 423,328
155,468 12,862 1,948 1,619 171,897
$ 552,452 $ 24,719 § 8,189 $ 9,865 $ 595,225
$ 11,147 $ 654 $ 21 % 165 $ 12,187
1,723 47 201 1,034 3,005
/C ) $ 9,424 $ 607 $ 20 3 (869 $ 9,182
2022 12
/
$ 108,703  $ 12,166 $ 1,879 $ 4,135  $ 126,883
306,484 28,188 13,724 9,092 357,488
39,302 2,916 1,416 305 43,939
$ 454,480 $ 43,270 $ 17,019 $ 13,532 $ 528,310
/
$ 372,360 $ 33,149 14,817 $ 11,757 $ 432,083
128,828 13,211 2,615 2,407 147,061
$ 501,188 $ 46,360 $ 17,432 $ 14,164 $ 579,144
$ 5,405  $ 460 % 132§ 84 % 6,081
681 1,081 1,027 2,673 5,462
/C ) $ 4,724 $ 621) $ (8%5) $ (2,589) $ 619
/
CVA CVA
FVA FVA
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CVA FVA
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
CVA $ (139) $ 320 $ 25
FVA 131 (193) 60
$ [©) $ 127 % 85
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 450 $ 288
(307) (392)
/C ) $ 143 $ (104)
$ 8,082 $ 8,892
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 30,021 $ 33,059
$ 20,758 $ 27,657
$ 2711 % 343
$ 1,584 $ 1,115
SOFR
80
80 125
/
/
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/
23
/
( 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ @ s 366 $ -
111 (350) -
/( $ 2 16 $ -
$ 3,859 $ (22,183) % (6,638)
(4,344) 21,662 6,085
/( $ (485) $ (G21) % (553)
/
(
2023 12
$ 16,523 $ (104)
$ 3,435 $ 123)
$ 14,449 $ 94)
$ 134,992 $ (10,810)
2022 12
$ 10,804  $ (350)
$ 6,311 $ (280)
$ 7,295  $ 7
$ 151,215  $ (15,134)
2023 12
(56.3) 2022 12 50.9
2023 12 173.3 2022 12 114.9
2023 12
2022 12 111
/
2023
127 125 2022
30 266 296
2021
/
( 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
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$ (276) $ 1,713 $ 755
$ (550) $ (269) 3 386
2023
/ 49 90
139 2022 2021
/
2023 12 275.2 2022 12 214.6
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) 2023 12 2022 12
( ) $ 13,747 $ 14,892
( ) 12,879 14,075
( ) 49,141 49,234
) 75,767 78,201
70,310 51,662
762 766
$ 146,839 $ 130,629
) 2023 12 2022 12

( ) $ 13,747 $ 14,892

9 13

91 87

100 100

73 71

27 29

100 100

2023 12 51.8
2022 12 53.5
/
2023 (638) 2022 (86) /
NAV 2023 12 12.7 2022
13.0
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 8,992 $ 10,098
689 1,003
1,051 1,005
2,147 1,969
$ 12,879 $ 14,075
NAV 2023 12 17.3 2022 12
16.4
NAV
NAV
NAV
NAV
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NAV
( )
2023 12
$ 875 $ 484
1,733 248
46 -
346 65
$ 3,000 $ 797
2022 12
$ 815 $ 647
1,645 303
68 -
413 138
$ 2,941 $ 1,088
/
( )
2023 12
$ 20,027 $ 19,687 0.45
27,592 26,500 1.83
10 586 544 2.05
48,205 46,731 1.25
11 11 0.01
1,635 1,420 0.10
10 1,150 979 0.84
2,796 2,410 0.40
$ 51,001 $ 49,141 1.21
2022 12
$ 8,103 $ 7,861 0.37
41,479 38,706 0.74
10 538 488 1.86
50,120 47,055 0.69
10 10 0.27
10 2,616 2,169 0.40
2,626 2,179 0.40
$ 52,746 $ 49,234 0.68
2023 12 /
/ 18.9
2022 12 /
/ 35.2
/ / 2023 16.5 12.5
2022 (28.5) (21.3)
2023 12 2022 12
2023 2022
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2023 2022
/ /
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ (9,185) $ (3,753) $  (29,213)
$ 3,161 $ 2 8 24,882
$ 8,130 $ 2% $ 50
$ 8 $ - 3 206
- - (19)
/C ) $ 8 $ -8 187
( )
2023 12
$ 13,475 $ 13,382 2.90
54,789 54,352 3.58
10 1,848 1,861 3.94
70,112 69,595 3.46
3 2 7.92
10 195 195 5.98
198 197 6.02
$ 70,310 $ 69,792 3.47
2022 12
$ 5,319 $ 5,282 2.98
45,154 43,852 3.00
10 1,026 966 2.89
51,499 50,100 2.99
10 2 2 5.63
10 161 158 3.18
163 160 3.24
$ 51,662 $ 50,260 2.99
2023 12 2022
12
2023 12 383 2022 12
2023 12 901 2022 12 14.4
2023 2022
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ (26,238) $ (50,099) $ (28)
$ 8,604 $ 3,671 $ 636
( )
2023 12
$ 33,866 759 $ 1,249 $ 35,874
25,025 563 440 26,028
21,243 4,145 - 25,388
14,621 - - 14,621
61,105 911 209 62,225
250 - 3,048 3,298
17,432 - 1,929 19,361
1,333 128 152 1,613
174,875 6,506 7,027 188,408
(5,050) - - (5,050)
$ 169,825 6,506 $ 7,027 $ 183,358
2022 12
$ 36,822 996 $ 2,317 $ 40,135
26,222 1,146 1,511 28,879
18,523 4,511 1 23,035
16,671 - - 16,671
50,473 716 513 51,702
6,326 - - 6,326
15,820 - - 15,820
1,723 286 252 2,261
172,580 7,655 4,594 184,829
(5,543) - - (5,543)
$ 167,037 7,655 $ 4,594 $ 179,286
2023 12 2022 12
2023
(367) 442
2023
60
18 (200) 637
2023 40
2024
2023 GM 20
160
2023 FDIC 150
90
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2023 12 60
60 18
2023 12 2022 12
2023
2022 12
250
FICO
2023
FICO
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( ) /
2023 12
$ 91,324 $ 54,200 $ 29,351  $ 174,875
1,212 1,213 4,081 6,506
255 1,628 5,144 7,027
$ 92,791 $ 57,041 $ 38,576 $ 188,408
$ 9,408 $ 26,328 $ 138 $ 35,874
12,097 13,574 357 26,028
10,771 3,217 11,400 25,388
10,991 561 3,069 14,621
48,536 13,207 482 62,225
- - 3,298 3,298
- - 19,361 19,361
988 154 vl 1,613
$ 92,791 $ 57,041 $ 38,576 $ 188,408
91 92 40 81
9 8 60 19
100 100 100 100
2022 12
$ 87,019 $ 53,560 $ 32,001  $ 172,580
1,112 1,844 4,699 7,655
557 3,991 46 4,594
$ 88,688 $ 59,395 $ 36,746  $ 184,829
$ 10,200 $ 29,935 $ - % 40,135
11,922 16,822 135 28,879
9,512 2,984 10,539 23,035
12,901 764 3,006 16,671
43,093 8,291 318 51,702
- - 6,326 6,326
- - 15,820 15,820
1,060 599 602 2,261
$ 88,688 $ 59,395 $ 36,746  $ 184,829
89 90 37 79
11 10 63 21
100 100 100 100
/
2023 12 2022 12
80
2023 12 2022 12 FICO
740
2023 12 2022 12 /
80
/
FICO FICO
FICO
2023 12 92 2022 12 93 /
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2023 12
( ) /
2023 $ 2,475 $ 1,912 $ 16 % 4,403
2022 1,223 3,284 - 4,507
2021 848 4,045 - 4,893
2020 306 2,098 - 2,404
2019 45 1,909 - 1,954
2018 an 2,102 - 2,473
3,857 9,355 20 13,232
9,125 24,705 36 33,866
2023 553 1,547 38 2,138
2022 1,251 2,838 - 4,089
2021 1,134 2,661 - 3,795
2020 n 1,234 - 1,505
2019 430 631 - 1,061
2018 832 744 - 1,576
7,129 3,192 309 10,630
231 - - 231
11,831 12,847 347 25,025
2023 619 54 1,627 2,300
2022 108 41 2,687 2,836
2021 22 249 2,724 2,995
2020 3 23 81 107
2019 6 - 89 95
2018 - 20 254 274
9,813 2,823 - 12,636
10,571 3,210 7,462 21,243
2023 8 - - 8
2022 5 - - 5
2018 - 303 - 303
10,978 258 3,069 14,305
10,991 561 3,069 14,621
2023 5,412 2,767 245 8,424
2022 1,940 293 69 2,302
2021 1,883 845 102 2,830
2020 1,256 469 32 1,757
2019 177 74 9 260
2018 436 66 2 523
35,605 8,242 1 43,848
1,161 - - 1,161
47,870 12,756 479 61,105
2023 60 21 - 81
2022 67 9 - 76
2021 6 8 51 65
2020 - 3 218 221
2019 - - 4 4
2018 - - 3 3
803 80 - 883
936 121 276 1,333
$ 91,324 $ 54,200 $ 11,669 $ 157,193
58 35 7 100

406/626



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

ooo0000
2022 12

( p) /
2022 $ 2,607 $ 4,042 $ 2 8 6,651
2021 1,669 4,273 - 5,942
2020 684 2,595 - 3,279
2019 209 2,779 - 2,988
2018 759 1,911 - 2,670
2017 508 2,329 - 2,837
3,709 8,746 - 12,455
10,145 26,675 2 36,822
2022 805 3,900 2 4,707
2021 m 3,460 - 4,231
2020 407 1,740 - 2,147
2019 335 1,255 - 1,590
2018 212 469 - 681
2017 1,238 797 1 2,046
7,660 3,003 - 10,663
145 12 - 157
11,573 14,636 13 26,222
2022 774 24 2,835 3,633
2021 517 143 2,848 3,508
2020 8 6 89 103
2019 7 - 99 106
2018 10 50 138 198
2017 a1 2 150 183
8,052 2,727 13 10,792
9,399 2,952 6,172 18,523
2022 5 - - 5
2018 1 - - 1
2017 - 201 - 291
12,895 473 3,006 16,374
12,901 764 3,006 16,671
2022 4,556 751 113 5,420
2021 3,289 1,078 146 4,513
2020 1,871 701 36 2,608
2019 260 79 12 351
2018 545 67 6 618
2017 293 108 - 401
30,669 5,323 2 35,994
507 61 - 568
41,990 8,168 315 50,473
2022 44 105 - 149
2021 17 162 - 179
2020 - 29 262 291
2019 - 10 - 10
2017 - - 5 5
950 59 80 1,089
1,011 365 347 1,723
$ 87,019 $ 53,560 $ 9,855 $ 150,434

58 36 6 100
2023
2023

407/626
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FICO FICO
( ) 660 660
2023 12
2023 $ 79 $ 10 $ 89
2022 132 18 150
2021 11 - 11
222 28 250
11,119 6,313 17,432
$ 11,341 $ 6,341 $ 17,682
89 1 100
64 36 100
64 36 100
2022 12
2022 $ 4,349 $ 242 $ 4,591
2021 1,080 109 1,189
2020 251 23 274
2019 160 23 183
2018 70 13 83
2017 5 1 6
5,915 411 6,326
10,762 5,058 15,820
$ 16,677 $ 5,469 $ 22,146
94 6 100
68 32 100
75 25 100
( ) EMEA
2023 12
$ 35,874 63 29 8 100
26,028 80 17 3 100
25,388 95 4 1 100
14,621 79 20 1 100
62,225 89 10 1 100
3,208 100 - - 100
19,361 100 - - 100
1,613 97 3 - 100
$ 188,408 84 13 3 100
2022 12
$ 40,135 57 34 9 100
28,879 79 16 5 100
23,035 9% 3 1 100
16,671 83 15 2 100
51,702 86 12 2 100
6,326 100 - - 100
15,820 100 - - 100
2,261 89 11 - 100
$ 184,829 81 15 4 100
EMEA
2023 12
25 17 13 11
2022 12
26 18 11 10 10
90

408/626
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( ) 30 89 90
2023 12
$ 45 $ 73 3 118
137 352 489
12 4 16
2 - 2
9 7 16
6 7 13
463 486 949
7 1 18
$ 681 $ 940 $ 1,621
0.9
2022 12
$ - $ 2 % 92
47 362 409
6 10
1 - 1
10 5 15
46 17 63
291 265 556
17 5 22
$ 416 $ 752 $ 1,168
0.7

409/626
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ooooooo
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,779 $ 1,432
1,466 1,079
19 93
860 65
17 -
- 41
$ 4,141 $ 2,710
2.4 1.6
2023 12 600 2022 12 483 30
2023 12 2022 12 90
2023 12 122.0 2022 12
204.5
2022 12
TDR 2023 ASU No.2022-02 ASU TDR
2022 12
TDR 231
TDR
2023
2023 12 2023 846
2023
2023 100

2023 12

410/626
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2023 12 2022 12
)
$ 33,866 $ 141,976 $ 36,822 $ 137,149
25,025 3,379 26,222 3,692
21,243 1,431 18,523 3,089
14,621 691 16,671 508
61,105 23,020 50,473 13,209
1,333 888 1,723 944
250 1 6,326 1,882
17,432 56,479 15,820 62,216
$ 174,875 $ 227,865 $ 172,580 $ 222,689
2023 12 41.4 2022 12
26.7
2023 12 778 2022 12 535
2023 12 625 2022 12 384
18
GDP

411/626
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FICO
120 180
( )
2023 12
$ 2,562 $ 2,981 $ 5,543
(455) (1,246) (1,70D)
55 98 153
( )/ « ) (400) (1,148) (1,548)
540 641 1,181
(126) - (126)
$ 2,576 $ 2,474 $ 5,050
1.6 14.0 2.9
C ) 0.3 5.5 0.9
$ 711 $ 63 $ 774
(90) (63) (153)
@ - (€D)
$ 620 $ - $ 620
2022 12
$ 2,135 $ 1,438 $ 3,573
(318) (555) (873)
65 82 147
( )/ « ) (253) (473) (726)
699 2,016 2,715
(19) - 19)
$ 2,562 $ 2,981 $ 5,543
1.7 13.5 3.2
«C ) 0.2 2.8 0.5
$ 589 $ 187 $ 776
124 (124) _
(&) - 2
$ 711 $ 63 $ 774
/
2023 12

412/626
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2023 12
GDP
2023 12
2024 4.2
2024 12 4.3
2025 4.2
GDP
2024 1.7
2025 1.7
2026 1.7
2024 2025
2025 7.1 2023 GDP
2.7 2024
GDP
GDP
2023 12 2023 647
637 442 GM
160
2023 2021
2022 12 2022 19.7
2022
( )
2023 12
$ 169,825 $ 88,485 $ 83,288 $ 171,773
$ 7,027 $ 3,992 $ 3,038 $ 7,030

413/626
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2022 12
$ 167,037 $ 85,921 $ 83,121 $ 169,042
$ 4,594 $ 2,592 $ 2,014 $ 4,606

414/626
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10
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 4,341) $ 4,055 (1,016)
(4,937) 6,506 (2,393)
(513) 1,072 (135)
$ (9,791) $ 11,633 (3,544)
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/
/
23
/
/
/ /
/
/
2023 12 147 2022 12
2023 12
33.7 2022 12 50.3
DVA /
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
DVA $ (1,355) $ 1,882 $ 433
DVA $ (1,015) $ 1,403 $ 322
DVA
2023 2022 2021 /
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,893 $ 2,645
90
$ 2,305 $ 3,331
$ 1,508 $ 2,633
90
2023 12 2022 12
22
878 307 18
/ 2023 (125) 2022 (281)
2021 277
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11

23

FICC
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Oooooooo
2023 12
2022 12
( )
2023 12
315,112 $ 199,753 $ 341,194 $ 60,816
(91,307) (333) (91,307) (333)
223,805 199,420 249,887 60,483
(29,136) 9,373) (29,136) 9.373)
(189,358) (182,918) (217,498) (50,807)
5,311 $ 7,129 $ 3,253 $ 303
2022 12
334,042 $ 199,623 $ 219,274 $ 41,309
(108,925) (10,582) (108,925) (10,582)
225,117 189,041 110,349 30,727
(15,350) (4,576) (15,350) (4,576)
(204,843) (171,997) (92,997) (25,578)
4,924 $ 12,468 $ 2,002 $ 573
2023 12 2022 12 2,235.4
2,251.2
2023 12 2022 12 449 .3
385.8 89.3 43.7
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0000000
( )
2023 12
$ 3 $ -
228,718 216
85,230 376
135 -
641 -
10,585 230
57 -
144 -
15,681 59,994
$ 341,194 $ 60,816
2022 12
$ 10 $ -
112,825 55
87,828 594
172 -
466 -
11,398 295
143 -
108 -
6,324 40,365
$ 219,274 $ 41,309
2023 12
( )
$ 147,945 $ 37,750
30 101,637 754
31 9 33,323 454
91 46,597 11,703
11,692 10,155
$ 341,194 $ 60,816
CIE VIE
2023 12 2022 12

55.7 79.4

420/626
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10
2023
12 2022 12
( )
2023 12
« )
$ 3,385 § 3,451 $ 6,836
- 368 368
« )
1,872 3,846 5,718
212 - 212
$ 5,520 § 7,665 $ 13,194
$ 3,122 § 6,755 $ 9,877
$ 2,407 § 910 $ 3,317
2022 12
« )
$ 3,478 % 2,963 $ 6,441
398 - 398
« )
3,793 2,522 6,315
395 397 792
$ 8,064  $ 5,882 $ 13,946
$ 3,817 8 4,895 $ 8,712
$ 4,247 987 $ 5,234
2022 12 5.56
2023 12 0.47
2023 12 2022 12
3.44 3.54
2022 12 0.45
2023 12 2022 12
23.4 16.9 2023 12
2022 12 23.6 16.4

421/626
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ooooooo
2023 12 2022 12 83.8 74.9
2023 12
2022 12 14.9 12.2
( ) 2023 12
C ) $ 7,204
C )
2025 1,930
2026 763
2027 124
2028 1,504
2029 1,669
(GED) 5,990
$ 13,194
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,002,891 $ 971,699
$ 862,988 $ 797,919
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 110,567 $ 40,143
$ 138,404 $ 70,912
$ 22,165 $ 2,932
$ 8,865 $ 6,600
$ 3,924 $ 7,525
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2022 12 98.2

2022 12 17.3 29.3

2023 12 2022 12 492.6
496.0

423/626
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ooooooo
12
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 11,244  $ 17,074
5,916 6,374
1,177 2,009
2,171 2,172
8,157 7,012
7,925 4,567
$ 36,500 $ 39,208
2023 12 2022 12 136.4 121.9
2023 12 2022 12
66.5 71.7 2023 12 2022 12
124 89 VIE
CIE 2023 14.6
2023 118
CIE 2022 2021
314 143
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 267 $ 267
FICC 269 269
2,647 2,647
1,410 1,385
1,309 1,310
- 482
14 14
$ 5,916 $ 6,374
2022 12 2023 12

424/626
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22
2023
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2023
2023
2022
2023
2022

504

2023
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ooooodd
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 2,339 $ 2,520
(1,292) (1,227)
1,047 1,293
866 1,191
(736) (475)
130 716
3,205 3,711
(2,028) (1,702)
$ 1,177 $ 2,009
2022 12 2023 12
506
2023 12
110
2023 2022
17.9 13 NN
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 681 $ 174 $ 120
2023 506
( ) 2023 12
2024 $ 101
2025 $ 93
2026 $ 86
2027 $ 86
2028 $ 86
2023 2022 2021



2023

2023 2022
2023 12 2022 12
projects 11.3
301 127 130
151 176
2023 12 2022 12
2023
123
2023 12
110
15
2023 12 2022 12

327
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oooooog
2021 333 256 305
15
2023 2022
qualified affordable housing
793
2022 2021
370
2023 12
22.6
18
518 285
637
506
34 30
110
190
285

427/626
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13
( )
2023 12
$ 120,211 $ 36,903 $ 157,114
86,457 6,855 93,312
- 46,860 46,860
31,916 - 31,916
68,177 3,643 71,820
1,568 25,827 27,395
$ 308,329 $ 120,088 $ 428,417
2022 12
$ 98,580 $ 21,330 $ 119,910
94,133 11,716 105,849
_ 32,624 32,624
44,819 - 44,819
65,155 5,069 70,224
808 12,431 13,239
$ 303,495 $ 83,170 $ 386,665
2023 12 2022 12
294.6 157.5 10
2023 12 2022 12 0.6 0.9
FDIC
FDIC 2023 12 2022 12 2,215.2 1,848.8
2023 12 2022 12 260.0
317.4 2022 12 2023
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 333,116 $ 313,598
95,301 73,067
$ 428,417 $ 386,665
USA GS USA
GSIB
SE GSBE
2023 12
( )
2024 $ 76,602 $ 30,318 $ 106,920
2025 5,534 796 6,330
2026 2,808 294 3,102

428/626
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ooooood
2027 1,262 204 1,466
2028 768 198 966
2029 1,069 235 1,304
$ 88,043 $ 32,045 $ 120,088
2023 12 144.7 311.2
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022
12
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14
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 75,945 $ 60,961
241,877 247,138
$ 317,822 $ 308,099
10
2023 12 2022 12
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 49,361 $ 38,635
23,073 18,383
1,213 1,718
2,298 2,225
$ 75,945 $ 60,961
3.64 3.71
2023 12 2022
12 296.7 217.5
( )
2023 12
$ 112,821 $ 31,023 $ 143,844
1,992 3,739 5,731
18,936 12,555 31,491
38,117 22,694 60,811
$ 171,866 $ 70,011 $ 241,877
2022 12
$ 117,092 $ 35,541 $ 152,633
1,894 2,997 4,891
19,308 14,032 33,340
36,381 19,893 56,274
$ 174,675 $ 72,463 $ 247,138
2061
SOFR LIBOR
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OooooOodd
2023 LIBOR SOFR
2023 12 2022 12 0.86 6.75 3.73
0.66 6.75 3.51
2023 12 2022 12 0.25 7.25
2.11 0.13 7.25 1.85
2023 12
( )
2025 $ 28,946 $ 18,886 $ 47,832
2026 21,970 8,177 30,147
2027 26,938 9,154 36,092
2028 19,390 8,638 28,028
2029 78,091 21,687 99,778
$ 175,335 $ 66,542 $ 241,877
(107.1) 2025 (685) 2026 (500)
2027 (11.5) 2028 (11.1) 2029 (72.6)

431/626
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( )
2023 12
$ 10,563 $ 1,654 § 12,217
4,897 3,258 8,155
18,402 55,791 74,193
141,473 5,839 147,312
$ 175,335 § 66,542 $ 241,877
2022 12
$ 6,094 $ 53§ 6,147
2,667 3,398 6,065
16,328 50,672 67,000
160,884 7,042 167,926
$ 185,973 $ 61,165 $ 247,138
2023 12 2022 12 6.13
3.44 6.27 4.97 4.08
5.00
2023 12 2022 12
1,554.7 1,739.9 2023 12 2022
12 1,577.5 1,737.0
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12 2025 2045
( )
2023 12
$ 12,215 $ 11,898 7.79
968 1,053 6.30
$ 13,183 $ 12,951 7.68
2022 12
$ 12,261 $ 11,882 6.40
968 1,054 4.86
$ 13,229 $ 12,936 6.29
2023 12 2022 12 122.2
122.6 2023 12 2022 12
119.0 118.8

432/626



2004
28.4
27.5
12 2022 12
968
939

6.345

10
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85 2023

29 I

2034 15
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15
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 7,804 $ 7,225
2,947 2,669
2,232 2,154
363 649
19 25
10,438 8,733
$ 23,803 $ 21,455
12
2023 12
2024 $ 325
2025 325
2026 288
2027 256
2028 231
2029 1,462
2,887
(655)
$ 2,232
12
4.13
2022 12
2023 $ 325
2024 334
2025 283
2026 236
2027 203
2028 1,424
2,805
(651)
$ 2,154
13
3.66
ASU No.2016-02 842
2019 ASU
2023 2022 2021 484 462
463 2023 2022 2021
2023 2022 2021
2023 12 11.8

434/626
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2023 12 257

2022 12

12

2023 12 2022

12 76 113
2023 12

22.6

18
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ooooood
16
VIE
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 20,276 $ 26,717 $ 29,048
4,446 13,935 18,396
5,951 3,617 4,377
$ 30,673 $ 44,269 8 51,821
$ 493 $ 551§ 513
2023 2022 2021
369 792 886
( )
2023 12
CHO $ 31,140 $ 2,260 $ -
28,767 1,162 78
61,648 1,192 61
12,501 685 56
$ 134,056 $ 5,299 $ 195
2022 12
CMO $ 38,617 $ 1,835 $ -
27,075 1,461 117
59,688 1,349 82
8,750 398 46
$ 134,130 $ 5,043 $ 245

436/626
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oooooog
CMo
2019
2023 12 2022 12 52.6 50.3
VIE
2023 12 2022 12
120 72
2023 12 2022 12 19.5 19.0
17 VIE
2023 32.4 27
10 2023 12
18.1
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 4,590 $ 4,644
5.7 6.6
12.2 7.7
10 $ (50) $ @n
20 $ 9 $ (48)
7.6 9.5
10 $ w7 $ (138)
20 $ (226) $ (266)
CMO
2023 12 674
5.0 2022 12 384 6.4
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12
685 398

17
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VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
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16
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
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VIE
VIE VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
VIE
VIE $ 193,934 181,697
$ 15,478 12,325
$ 2,750 659
$ 5,299 5,043
902 861
4,159 3,087
8,636 8,802
6,927 6,026
$ 25,923 23,819
VIE
VIE VIE

439/626
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VIE

( ) 2023 12 2022 12
VIE $ 123,108 $ 127,290
$ 4,867 $ 4,977
$ 4,614 $ 4,645
253 332
35 64
2 2
$ 4,904 $ 5,043
VIE $ 43,035 $ 29,193
$ 6,625 $ 4,415
$ 2,220 $ 2
$ 3,801 $ 2,679
4,733 4,414
$ 8,624 $ 7,093
VIE $ 23,188 $ 19,428
$ 3,895 $ 2,817
$ 530 $ 657
$ 685 $ 398
649 529
231 190
8,634 8,800
2,103 1,496
$ 12,302 $ 11,413
VIE $ 4,603 $ 5,786
$ 91 $ 116
$ 2 $ 154
91 116
$ 93 $ 270

2023 12 2022 12 VIE

18
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VIE
VIE
2023 12 2022 12
VIE
$ 439 $ 348
347 7
95 103
80 101
267 1,177
248 336
$ 1,476 $ 2,072
$ 850 $ 952
2 51
- 9
14 58
17 16
91 112
$ 974 $ 1,198
VIE VIE ii VIE
VIE
VIE
2023 12 2022 12
$ 417 $ 339
- 7
28 42
80 101
267 1,177
248 336
$ 1,040 $ 2,002
$ 143 $ 170
2 51
- 9
91 112
$ 236 $ 342
$ 2 $ 9
- 20
$ 2 $ 29
$ 374 $ 482
$ 374 $ 482
$ 347 $ -
67 41
$ 414 $ 41
$ 333 $ 300
14 58
17 16
$ 364 $ 374

VIE

441/626
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) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 111,202 $ 100,438
54,298 53,486
9,184 9,116
73,074 64,098
247,758 227,138
8,167 9,173
100,503 105,301
84,276 22,532
4,592 7,705
8,258 9,690
$ 453,554 $ 381,539
2023 12
) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
$ 21,672 $ 37,000 $ 51,918 $ 612
5,559 21,500 22,972 4,267
2,244 5,114 1,770 56
73,073 1 - -
102,548 63,615 76,660 4,935
2,028 3,520 2,592 27
98,860 1,191 - 452
84,130 - - 146
947 430 352 2,863
7,801 239 42 176
$ 296,314 $ 68,995 $ 79,646 $ 8,599
2023
2022 12
27.8

442/626
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 227,865 $ 222,689
19,129 3,355
764 1,094
$ 247,758 $ 227,138
2023 12 2022 12
845 620
10.1 774 2023 12 2022 12
52.9 59.5
2023 12 2022 12
31.0 31.1 21.9 28.4
2023 12
2022 12 70
88
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12 1,371.1 1,276.0
2023 12 2022 12 42.1
77.1
2023 12 2022 12 708.2
622.2 2023 12 GM
143.5
2023 12 22.5 2023
12 2022
12 18.8

443/626
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2023 12 2022 12
963 12.9
2023
2022 12
11.3
27
( )
2023 12
$ 5,240 § - 8 430
/
2024 $ 177,895  $ 28,787 $ 2,325
2025 -2026 98,843 - 3,108
2027 -2028 19,282 - 2,109
2029 29,030 - 231
$ 325,050  $ 28,787 $ 7,773
2022 12
$ 7,485 $ - 8 395
/
2023 $ 110,599  $ 20,970 $ 1,634
2024 -2025 133,090 - 3,308
2026 -2027 20,252 - 1,837
2028 27,518 - 93
$ 291,459 $ 20,970 $ 6,872
2023 12 2022 12 359 578
2023 12 2022 12 56.0 80.6

444/626
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/
2023 12 2022 12 141.9 122.3
2023 12 2022 12 146.3 126.2
2023 12
2022 12 146.0 87.4 2023 12
2022 12 146.9 87.0
MDB
14
2025 500
2022 14 250
2028 18
14
2023 10 11 2022 500
2023 11
2022 500
MDB
27

14 19
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2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12
GS
GS&Co. GS USA
et Cie
GSI GSBE
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2023 12 2022 12 40.0
200 0.01
10b5-1
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
( - ) 16.8 10.1 15.3
« ) $ 345.87 $ 346.07 $ 339.81
( : ) $ 5,796 $ 3,500 $ 5,200
2023 868
2022 11,644 2021 1,830 2023 0.3 2022 2021 0.5
2023 3.9 2022 4.6 2021 3.4
2023 13.5 2022 15.9 2021 984
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 10.50 $ 9.00 $ 6.50
2024 12
2.75 2024 29 2024 28
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2023 12
A 50,000 30,000 29,999 1,000
C 25,000 8,000 8,000 1,000
D 60,000 54,000 53,999 1,000
E 17,500 7,667 7,667
F 5,000 1,615 1,615
K 32,200 28,000 28,000 1,000
0 26,000 26,000 26,000 25
P 66,000 60,000 60,000 25
Q 20,000 20,000 20,000 25
R 24,000 24,000 24,000 25
S 14,000 14,000 14,000 25
T 27,000 27,000 27,000 25
U 30,000 30,000 30,000 25
\% 30,000 30,000 30,000 25
W 60,000 60,000 60,000 25
486,700 420,282 420,280
A $ 25,000 $ 750
C $ 25,000 200
D $ 25,000 1,350
E $ 100,000 767
F $ 100,000 161
K 2024 10 $ 25,000 700
0 2026 11 10 $ 25,000 650
P $ 25,000 1,500
Q 2024 10 $ 25,000 500
R 2025 10 $ 25,000 600
S 2025 10 $ 25,000 350
T 2026 10 $ 25,000 675
U 2026 10 $ 25,000 750
\ 2026 11 10 $ 25,000 750
W 2029 10 $ 25,000 1,500
$ 11,203
0.01
FRB
2023 7.50

60,000
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2023 5.50
10 25,000
10 2023
2021 6.30 675
25,000 5.375
20 25,000
41 2021
2023 12
A SOFR+1.01161 3.75
¢ SOFR+1.01161  4.00
D SOFR+0.93161  4.00
E SOFR+1.02911  4.00
F SOFR+1.03161  4.00
K 2024 10 6.375 SOFR+3.81161
0 2026 11 10 5.30 SOFR+4.09561
P SOFR+3.13561
Q 2024 10 5.50 +3.623
R 2025 10 4.95 +3.224
S 2025 10 4.40 +2.85
T 2026 10 3.80 +2.969
U 2026 10 3.65 +2.915
v 2026 11 10 4.125 +2.949
W 2029 10 7.50 +3.156
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12

( ) ( ) ( )
A $ 1,484.27 $ 44 $ 950.51 $ 28 $ 950.51 $ 28
c $ 1,484.27 12 $ 1,013.90 8 $ 1,013.90 8
D $ 1,463.99 79 $ 1,013.90 55 $ 1,013.90 55
E $ 6,074.57 46 $ 4,055.55 31 $ 4,055.55 31
F $ 6,077.09 10 $ 4,055.55 6 $ 4,055.55 7
J $ 1,261.02 51 $ 1,375.00 55 $ 1,375.00 55
K $ 1,593.76 44 $ 1,593.76 45 $ 1,593.76 44
N $ - - $ - - $ 787.50 19
0 $ 1,325.00 34 $ 1,325.00 34 $ 1,325.00 34
P $ 2,022.64 121 $ 1,250.00 75 $ 1,250.00 75
Q $ 1,375.00 28 $ 1,375.00 28 $ 1,375.00 28
R $ 1,237.50 30 $ 1,237.50 30 $ 1,237.50 30
S $ 1,100.00 16 $ 1,100.00 16 $ 1,100.00 15
T $ 950.00 26 $ 950.00 26 $ 511.94 14
U $ 912.50 27 $ 942.92 28 $ - -
Vv $ 1,031.25 31 $ 1,062.76 32 $ - -

$ 599 $ 497 $ 443
2024 10 2024 28
416.52 416.52 411.30
398.44 555.17
687.50 618.75 550.00
456.25 895.83 2024 12
2024 15
1,619.35 1,619.98 2024
/
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/
C )
( ) ( )
2023 12
$ @85) $ ) s (847)
892 (1,015) (123)
(499) (76) (575)
(2,618) 1,245 (1,373)
$ (3.010) $ 92 $ (2,918)
2022 12
$ (738) % @n s (785)
(511) 1,403 892
(327) @172) (499)
(492) (2,126) (2,618)
$ (2,068)  $ 942) % (3,010)
2021 12
$ 6%) % @) 3 (738)
(833) 322 (511)
(368) 41 (327)
463 (955) (492)
$ (1,438) % (634) % (2,068)
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FRB 1956
FRB
RWA
G-SIB
Tierl CET1
CET1 Tierl
Tierl SLR
SLR
2023 12
CET1 13.0 10.0
Tierl 14.5 11.5
16.5 13.5
2022 12
CET1 13.3 9.5
Tierl 14.8 11.0
16.8 13.0
2023 12 2022 12
CET1 4.5 Tierl 6.0
8.0 2023 12 3.0 2022 12 2.5
G-SIB FRB
2023 12 5.5
2022 12 6.3 2023 12
2022 12 2.5
G-SIB G-SIB
G-SIB
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( )
2023 12
CET1 $ 99,442 $ 99,442
Tierl $ 110,288 $ 110,288
Tier2 $ 14,874 $ 10,684
$ 125,162 $ 120,972
RWA $ 692,737 $ 665,348
CET1 14.4 14.9
Tierl 15.9 16.6
18.1 18.2
2022 12
CET1 $ 98,050 $ 98,050
Tierl $ 108,552 $ 108,552
Tier2 $ 15,958 $ 12,115
$ 124,510 $ 120,667
RWA $ 653,419 $ 679,450
CET1 15.0 14.4
Tierl 16.6 16.0
19.1 17.8
Tierl 4.0
SLR 5.0
SLR G-SIB
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
Tierl 110,288  $ 108,552
1,579,237 $ 1,500,225
Tierl (7.167) (8,259)
1,572,070 1,491,966
423,686 375,392
1,995,756  $ 1,867,358
Tierl 7.0 7.3
SLR 5.5 5.8
CECL
Tierl Tierl
SLR Tierl
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
105,702 $ 106,486
CECL 553 829
(5,224) (5,674)
(950) (1,770)
(639) (1,821)
CET1 99,442 98,050
11,203 10,703
(354) (199)
() 2
Tierl 110,288 $ 108,552
Tier2
Tierl 110,288 $ 108,552
9,886 10,637
5,012 5,331
(24) (10)
Tier2 14,874 15,958
125,162 $ 124,510
Tier2
Tierl 110,288 $ 108,552
Tier2 14,874 15,958
(5,012) (5,331)
822 1,488
Tier2 10,684 12,115
120,972 $ 120,667
CECL 2022
2022 2025 25 11.1
2023 12 553
2020 CECL 2020 2021 12 31
25 CECL 2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 2022 12 692 700
2023 12 2022 12 227 239
CET1 Tierl CVA
Tier2
Tier2
14
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CET1 Tierl Tier2
( )
2023 12
CET1
$ 98,050 $ 98,050
(784) 789
CECL (276) (276)
450 450
820 820
1,182 1,182
$ 99,442 $ 99,442
Tierl
$ 108,552 $ 108,552
CET1 1,392 1,392
500 500
(155) (155)
(€)) (€))
110,288 110,288
Tier2
15,958 12,115
(751) (751)
(319) -
(14) (680)
14,874 10,684
$ 125,162 $ 120,972
RWA
RWA
RWA
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RWA
VaR
99 VaR
VaR
99
VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

RWA

VaR

VaR
VaR

10

VaR

VaR

2023
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RWA
VaR
95 VaR
99 VaR RWA
VaR
VaR
VaR
2022

RWA VaR

RWA



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

oOoOooodn
RWA
RWA
RWA
( )
2023 12
RWA
$ 146,357 $ 96,322
243,094 194,236
103,704 23,637
34,223 36,920
76,481 96,755
RWA 603,859 447,870
RWA
VaR 16,457 16,457
VaR 48,496 48,496
5,032 5,032
2,718 2,718
16,175 16,175
RWA 88,878 88,878
RWA - 128,600
RWA $ 692,737 $ 665,348
2022 12
RWA
$ 142,696 $ 111,344
247,026 198,508
73,189 21,659
30,899 33,451
76,335 96,351
RWA 570,145 461,313
RWA
VaR 18,981 18,981
VaR 37,833 37,833
6,470 6,470
3,641 3,641
16,349 16,349
RWA 83,274 83,274
RWA - 134,863
RWA $ 653,419 $ 679,450
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RWA
( )
2023 12
RWA
$ 653,419 $ 679,450
RWA
3,661 (15,022)
(3,932) (4,212)
30,515 1,978
3,324 3,469
146 404
RWA 33,714 (13,443)
RWA
VaR (2,524) (2,524)
VaR 10,663 10,663
(1,438) (1,438)
923) (923)
74 (174)
RWA 5,604 5,604
RWA - (6,263)
$ 692,737 $ 665,348
RWA
2023 12 2023 12 RWA 2022 12 337.1
2023 12 RWA 2022 12 56.0
VaR
VaR
2023 12 RWA 2022 12 134.4
2023 12 RWA 2022 12 56.0
VaR
VaR
2023 12 RWA 2022 12 62.6
GS USA GS USA
GS USA FRB FDIC NYDFS
CFPB
GS USA
GS USA FDIC
2.5
CET1
GS USA CET1 Tierl
GS USA
GS USA
GS USA
GS USA
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GS USA
CET1 7.0 6.5
Tierl 8.5 8.0
10.5 10.0
Tierl 4.0 5.0
SLR 3.0 6.0
CET1 4.5 Tierl 6.0
8.0 2.5 FRB
GS USA
( )
2023 12
CET1 $ 53,781 $ 53,781
Tierl $ 53,781 $ 53,781
Tier2 $ 6,314 $ 2,951
$ 60,095 $ 56,732
RWA $ 380,774 $ 288,938
CET1 14.1 18.6
Tierl 14.1 18.6
15.8 19.6
2022 12
CET1 $ 46,845 $ 46,845
Tierl $ 46,845 $ 46,845
Tier2 $ 8,042 $ 5,382
$ 54,887 $ 52,227
RWA $ 357,112 $ 275,451
CET1 13.1 17.0
Tierl 13.1 17.0
15.4 19.0
GS USA GS USA
2023 12 2022 12
GS USA CECL 2022 25
2025 2020 CECL
2020 2021 12 31 25
2022 12 2023
12 RWA
GS USA
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
Tierl $ 53,781  $ 46,845
$ 523,546 $ 499,108
$ 722,465 $ 671,215
Tierl 10.3 9.4
SLR 7.4 7.0
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Tierl
Tierl Tierl
SLR Tierl
FRB GS USA
GS USA CFTC SEC
2023 12 2022 12
USA
2023 12
1,345.9

2022 12
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CECL
2023 12 2022 12
26
GS USA
GS
2022 12 1,337.5
2023 12
958.0 825.2



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

ooooood
21
RSU
RSU
) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 7,907 $ 10,764 $ 21,151
340.8 352.1 350.5
RSU 5.0 6.0 5.3
345.8 358.1 355.8
$  23.05 $  30.42 $  60.25
$  22.87 $  30.06 $  59.45
2023 2022 0.15 2021
0.10
2023 2022
2021 0.4 0.5 0.3 RSU
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 4,726 $ 4,553 $ 3,707
2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,536 $ 1,175
$ 4,042 $ 3,801
2023 2022 2021
33 123 595
2023 2022
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 10,949 $ 3,233 $ 24)
16,405 4,468 (980)
8,460 5,087 4,716
3,856 2,199 1,589
14,905 9,059 5,319
13,940 4,978 1,500
68,515 29,024 12,120
17,010 5,823 1,303
12,705 2,808 -
2,453 1,923 1,662
1,322 541 527
11,084 5,716 3,231
17,590 4,535 (1,073)
62,164 21,346 5,650
$ 6,351 $ 7,678 $ 6,470
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 1,230 $ 2,356 $ 2,904
389 623 574
1,964 1,658 1,926
3,583 4,637 5,404
(954) (2,079) 192
(356) (436) 72
(50) 103 (259)
C (1,360) (2,412) 5
$ 2,223 $ 2,225 $ 5,409
2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
21.0 21.0 21.0
( ) 0.6 1.3 1.9
@1.8) .4 .7
2.9 G.9 1.8)
GILTI 4.4 1.8 0.3
(1.6) 0.9) (0.6)
1.0 2.2 (0.5)
0.2 0.8 -
1.3 0.5 0.4
20.7 16.5 20.0
GILTI
2023 GILTI GILTI
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,773 $ 1,889
ASC 740 331 315
1,278 1,224
2,100 887
929 787
98 123
C ) 1,198 1,225
236 87
636 587
1,450 1,580
(GD) 165 221
10,194 8,925
(1,978) (1,569)
$ 8,216 $ 7,356
$ 752 $ 1,240
574 556
$ 1,326 $ 1,79
2023 12 929
2022 12 787
2023 12 396 2022 12 301
2023 12 18 27
16
2024
2023 12 172
172 2023 12
46 18
2033 2024
2026
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 328
308
2023 409 2022 674 2023
2022
2023 12 2022 12
2023 12 320
2022 12 205 2023 90 2022 59
2021 13 2023
12 12
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 1,533 $ 1,446 $ 1,251
143 190 297
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164 10 95
@2 (32) (111)
0 (76) (80)
@ ®) (6)
$ 1,726 1,533 $ 1,446
2023 12 14
2022 12 2021 12 12
IRS
2023 12

2011

2015

2017

2017

2017

2013 2024 IRS
IRS
2011 2018
2019 2021
IRS 2011 2021
2022

2015 2018 2021
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2023 12 2022 12 2021 12

$ 29,254 $ 30,042 $ 34,079
742 2,445 2,655

29,996 32,487 36,734

401 468 171)

18,040 17,851 19,542

$ 11,555 $ 14,168  $ 17,363
$ 9,163 $ 11,830 $ 13,890
$ 8,703 $ 11,458  $ 13,535
$ 71,863 $ 69,951 $ 60,064
12.1 16.4 22.5

$ 10,790 $ 9,843 $ 18,922
3,090 3,533 3,043

13,880 13,376 21,965

(508) 519 (169)

13,029 11,550 11,406

$ 1,359 $ 1,307 $ 10,728
$ 1,078 $ 1,02 % 8,582
$ 952 $ 979  $ 8,459
$ 30,078 $ 31,762 $ 29,988
3.2 3.1 28.2

$ (141) $ 198) $ (132)
2,519 1,700 772

2,378 1,502 640

1,135 1,728 697

3,418 1,763 990

/( $ (2,175) $ (1,989) $ (1,047)

/C ) $ (1,725) $ (1,661) $ (837)

/( $ (1,748) $ (1,673) $ (843)
$ 3,863 $ 3,574 $ 1,777
(45.2) (46.8) (47.4)

$ 39,903 $ 39,687 $ 52,869
6,351 7,678 6,470

46,254 47,365 59,339

1,028 2,715 357

34,487 31,164 31,938

$ 10,739 $ 13,486 $ 27,044
$ 8,516 $ 11,261 $ 21,635
$ 7,907 $ 10,764  $ 21,151
$ 105,804 $ 105,287  $ 91,829
7.5 10.2 23.0
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) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 1,109 $ 1,033 $ 934
2,425 1,212 1,003
1,322 210 78
$ 4,856 $ 2,455 $ 2,015
2023 CIE 14.6
2023 506
2023 504
) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 1,381,247 $ 1,169,539
191,863 214,970
68,484 57,290
$ 1,641,594 $ 1,441,799
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FICC FICC

( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 29,335 64 $ 28,669 61 $ 37,217 63
EMEA 11,744 25 12,860 27 14,474 24
5,175 11 5,836 12 7,648 13
$ 46,254 100 $ 47,365 100 $ 59,339 100
$ 6,038 56 $ 7,016 52 $ 17,314 64
EMEA 4,033 38 5,260 39 7,164 27
668 6 1,210 9 2,566 9
$ 10,739 100 $ 13,486 100 $ 27,044 100
$ 4,849 57 $ 6,067 54 $ 13,796 64
EMEA 3,137 37 4,164 37 5,778 27
530 6 1,030 9 2,061 9
$ 8,516 100 $ 11,261 100 $ 21,635 100

2023 CIE
FDIC
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 260,531 $ 205,935
15.9 14.3
$ 90,681 $ 40,334
5.5 2.8
2023 12 2022 12
2,060.7 2,085.3 1,056.6 1,657.7
2023 12 2022 12
11
( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 154,056 $ 164,897
$ 92,833 $ 76,456
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27

ASC450

2023 12

21

MDB
2012 2013 65 MDB

2018 11 DOJ

2018 28
FCPA
FCPA
2022

2020 18
MDB
14
18
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2020 10

QPAN
2018 12

2010

2011

20

2019

GS Co.

18

2014 12

22

20

2023

25

25

2021

2015

GSI
S.A.
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MDB DOJ SEC FRB NYDFS
DOJ
FCPA
2023 10 22
GS FCPA 2021
2021
MDB
2019 10 28
2021 28
2023
29
10 b
2020 2018 14
2021 21
2021 26
2021 12
2022
2023 10
2023 11 16
2020 29 17
GS
2020 11 23
2021 14
2022
2023
2023
S.A.
2015 12 BoP 835
S_A. BES GSI
S_A.

BES

2015 12 BoP GSIB 2015
BoP 2018

4721626
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GSI BoP
GSI 2018 BES
BES GSI GSI
GSI 54
50 GSI 2018 10  GSI
104
BES 222
2023 11 GSI BoP BoP 2015
2015 12
GS Co. 2021 CBS CBS
17 10 2021 13
CBS
GS Co. 55 646,154
32 323,077
GS Co.
CBS LP
2021 12 21
2022
2023 CBS GS Co.
2023 15
2023 10 CBS
2023 12
2023 11
2024
2021 10
GSX iQIYI iQIYI
CBS
i1Vl CBS
10 b 20A 20 a
2022 13 2023 31
2023
2023 18
2022 24
220
GS Co. SVB SVBFG
2023
2024 25

2021 500 750
473/626



2021 12 2021
500 2021 13
800 SVBFG
GS Co. 831 831,250
727
2023 17 SVBFG
11 2024 16
SVBFG SVB
SVB
2023 SVB
GS Co.
GS Co. 16 35,864,408
2020 11
2020
25 2020 12
2021 25
2021 10
2023
GS Co. 2020
11,540,550 2021 25
2022 23
GS Co.
GS Co.
2020 10 12
2021 993 2021
GS Co.
877 31,912,213 2021 12
19
GS Co.
GS Co. 388 16,169,000

474/626
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10
2022
18 3,266,108
SVB
2019 81
2019
2020 11 16
2020 12 16
2020
2021 14
2022 26
27
914
2020 21
GS Co. 242
2022
2024 21
2020 12 13
14
2023
2023
2023
2020 12 11
2021 17
2022 15



2023 10
2023 10
2021
ADS
2021 22
2022
10 b
GS Co.
2021 12 20
GS Co.
5,750,345 2022
11
GS
ADS15,300,000
GS
2021 29
GS 26
15
2023 15
2023 28
2023

44

2022

2023 12 22
2024

GS

2020
2021 10

GS Co.

2021

2023 10
11

ADS

21
2024 16

ADS8,222,500

GS Co.

GS Co.

2023 30

475/626
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15
GS
2021
15 ADS104,554,000
2022
589
212 3,886,819
575
2021
Co. 178
2022 11 29
11 2023
2021 360
2021 14
GS 184
2023
2021 40 ADS
2022 11 2022 17
2022
2022
2023 15
2023 11 20
2021 11 137
2022
35 44,733,050
2023



GS Co.

GS Co.

18,039,706
2023

ON24 GS Co.

GS Co.

181
2023

12,760,633

2021
2022 25

2020 12
173
3,013,065

11

21

141

24
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2023 2023 12
2021 585
2022 10 2022 10
164 1,449,000 2022 15
2023
GS Co. 2021 22
2021 12 17
GS Co.
2023 10
2024 24
2021 492 ON24
2021 11
ON24
3,616,785 2022 18
2023 10 16
GS Co. 2021 14
2022 12
GS Co. 498
2022 12 2023
GS Co.
2020 377 2020 12
691 2021 747
GS Co. 2020 87
69 1,503,944 2021
3,083,098 2021
2023 10
12 a 2021
2023 12
GS Co. 2020 12
1,000,000 2022
2023 11 27 GS Co.
GS Co. 2021 924
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686

ON24

GS Co.

2023

298

4,157,103

187

15

282
2022

GS Co.

2022



GS

17
331

2022

Co.
2023

2022

2023

23

14

10 20

2022 11

275
30
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Co. 203 11,297,000 2022 10 12
GS 2020 12
17 ADS
2022 19 2022 11
17 GS 132
ADS12,604,000 2023 31 2023 11
GS Co. 2021 828
10
GS
190 10,580,000 2022 12 19
10 2023
2024 30 GS Co.
GS 2020 10 656
ADS
17 2022 11 18
GS 328 ADS16,408,093
2023 24 2023 23
GS Co. 2021 46
2022 26
GS Co. 15 42,900,000
24 2023 28
GS 2020 11 617
ADS 2022
GS 241
ADS22,912,500 2023 10 2023 12
GS Co. 2021 10 357
2022 11
GS Co.
110 5,254,304 2023 2023
GS Co. 2021 886
22
GS Co.
10,173,401 2023 17 2023
GS Co. 2021
668 2021 413 2022 12
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GS Co. 2021
210 9,545,073 2021
128 3,179,047 2023 10 2024
17
GS Co. 2023
19 2023 11
2021 288 2021
300 2021 200
2021 12 552
GS Co. 2021 108 1,711,313 2021
300
2021 40 1,600,000
2021 12 199 1,375,397 2023 10
GS Co. 2021 380
ADS
2023 10
GS Co. 121 ADS6,072,000 2023
iQIYI GS 2018 24 iQIYI ADS
2021
iQIYI
GS 13 ADS69,751,212 2022 11 30
F45 GS Co. 2021 350
F45 F45 2023
19
F45
GS Co. 133 8,303,744
2023 2024 25
GS Co. 2021 18
2023 28
GS Co. 408 19,419,420 2023 22
2023 19

GS Co. 2017
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2018 26 2018
27 2019
2021 30 2019

2023 24 2022 30
2022 15 2023

GS Co. VRDO 2019

2019 31 VRDO
2019 2020 11
GS Co.
GS Co. 2021
2019 31
VRDO
2021 2019 31
2021 2019 31 2021 14
2021 2022 28
GS Co.
2023 21
2023 10
GS Co. GSI GS USA
2015 11
2016 2018
2013 2016 2018 11 20
2019 13
2008 2012
2013 2016
2019 22 2023 12 15
2023 12 28

GSI 2014 11

25 2017 15
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2020 29
2023 27
2023 12
2023 21
GS Co. GSI J. 2014
2013
2016 12 2019 27
2020
23 2020 12 16
2021 17
2023 11
2022 31
GS Co.
2015
GS Co. 2017 25
2017 12 29
GS Co.
2021 31 2021 14

2022 31 2024

GS Co. 2020
21 2020

10 29
2021 10 25
2021 11 23
2022 11 10
GS Co. GSI 2021 30
2021 11 15

2022
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2023
GS Co. GSI 2024
2023 11 2015
2024
26 2014
30
2010 15
GS Co.
2002
GS Co.
2023 11 215
2023 2024 2025
GS USA
CFPB

FCPA
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28
2008
31
2003 11
2004 11
337
2023 377
29
RSU
RSU
2021 SIP
2021 29 2021 SIP

2023 12

111

2022

2021
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2016
93
449 2022 12
378 2021 274
RSU

2021 SIP
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1999 30
2023 12 58.4 2021 SIP 2021 SIP
2021 SIP
2021 SIP 2021 SIP
2021 SIP 2025
RSU RSU RSU
RSU
RSU
150
RSU 2023
RSU
RSU
5,288,222 17,326,792 $ 298.14 $ 281.78
3,000,465 3,874,660 $ 332.02 $ 327.07
(441,127) (344,788)  $ 315.63 $ 305.62
- (9,018,166)  $ - 3 272.79
(3,468,419) 3,468,419 $ 309.85 $ 309.85
4,379,141 15,306,921 $ 310.31 $ 304.37
RSU 2023 329.23 2022 316.98
2021 264 .57 RSU 2023
2022 2021
2023 4.5 2022 6.0 2021 10.2
2023 24.7 2022 39.1 2021
26.4
RSU 2023 12 347,240 2022 12
357,367
RSU RSU 2023 12
617,655 2022 12 618,248 RSU
2023 12 913,551 2022 12 914,441
RSU RSU 2023 12 1,620,470
2022 12 1,457,702 RSU
2023 12 2,430,705 2022 12 2,186,553
2023 2024 6.4 RSU 2.1
RSU RSU

RSU
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2023 12 642
1.79
487
1.41
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 2,098 $ 4,07 $ 2,553
$ 198 $ 324 196
RSU
800
2023 407
2022 493 2021 547
30
( ) 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 58 $ 01§ 16,990
11,499 6,243 15,562
(1,965) (3,590) 529
9,592 2,754 33,081
18,839 8,367 3,695
21,479 9,428 4,570
(2,640) (1,061) (875)
6,952 1,693 32,206
287 328 750
219 685 1,005
506 1,013 1,755
6,446 680 30,451
(1,070) (1,398) (551)
/C ) 1,000 9,183 (9,367)
8,516 11,261 21,635
609 497 484
$ 7,907 $ 10,764  $ 21,151
2023 58 2022 97 2021
169.9
2023 114.9 2022
61.4 2021 151.4
2023 (892) 2022 (33.4) 2021
(10.1)
2023 168.2 2022 74.7 2021 33.9
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2023

2023

(634)

99.4

105

2022

2022

2023
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38.0 2021 12.4
116 2021 113
92 2022 (942)
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( ) 2023 12 2022 12
$ 35 $ 35
7 46
1,833 3,545
(4,813 4,825 ( ) 286,688 259,402
55,164 49,533
78,591 85,058
3,197 5,431
(22,443 23,894 ( ) 79,300 69,483
7.408 6,576
$ 512,223 $ 479,109
( ) $ 78,776 $ 66,839
19,233 16,749
568 510
( ) 898 2,544
4,721 5,002 ( D)) 31,833 23,823
5,710 4,328
(28,966 22,422 ( ) 175,335 185,972
79,316 57,565
3,649 3,590
395,318 361,920
11,203 10,703
9 9
5,121 5,696
60,247 59,050
143,688 139,372
(2,918) (3,010)
( ) (100, 445) (94,631)
116,905 117,189
$ 512,223 $ 479,109
2023 12 155 2022 12 21.7
2023 12 898 2022 12 25.4
2023 12 2025 775.3 2026
228 2027 119 2028 202 2029 12.3
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( 2023 12 2022 12 2021 12
$ 8,516 $ 11,261 $ 21,635
C ) (1,000) (9,183) 9,367
13 9 9
(380) (1,523) (241)
Qan 378 335
( C ) ) 11,937 66,839 -
7,620 (23,451) (10,273)
(1,646) 1,428 796
(GD) (221) 5,933 (5,213)
24,828 51,691 16,415
(48) (64) (13)
/¢ )C ) 3,145 2,210 (9,951)
(25,473) (1,859) (37.260)
921 2,311 10,059
(25,904) (47,247) (16,964)
/ 17,801 3,162 10,896
/( ) (GID) 1,205 (5,665) (23,978)
(28,353) (47,152) (67,211)
« ) 3,810 (36,389) 12,346
)
87 13 (683)
19,314 27,803 7,007
127,728 78,803 73,164
(136,618) (65,960) (31,588)
(1,000) - (2,675)
(5,796) (3,500) (5,200)
(1,345) (1,595) (985)
(4,189) (3.682) (2,725)
) 1,496 - 2,172
) (€)) - (€D))
/( ) 3,486 (4,507) 50,819
C ) C ) @39 32 23
81 49 26
$ 42 $ 81 $ 49
2023 205.3 2022 85.4
2021 47.2 2023 94.0 2022
35.5 2021 13.3
/ 2023 671 2022 25.9
2021 37.4
2023 12
14.2
2022 12
17.5
GS USA
2021 12
948
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2013
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, MC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Yiest Ended Decambes

i NS, axcHET Py Shirs STIOUNLE boib] 2022 1
Revenues

Irvesiment banking § 6218 5 7360 § 14736
IFvstrmisnt Mmanagemant 9,532 9,006 BT
Commissions and fees 3.789 4034 3,580
Markat making 18,238 18634 16,3567
Oihiar principal transactions 213 65 11615
Total Aaf-Tarast fEvanues 33,903 IO EET 52 8G9
Intarast mcoma 68,515 Fa0ee 12,120
IFLifis] aopinsn 62184 21,345 5,660
Nat intarast mooma 6,351 a7 6470
Torad nal revenuas 46,254 47,365 59,339
Presvision for cradit losses 1024 2715 357
Operating expenses

Compensation and benadits 15,494 15 148 17,719
Transacton based 5,688 5312 4,710
hiarkat denvalopmant Lixs] 812 563
Cormmunicatons and technoiogy 1,919 1,808 1.573
Dapracsyinon and amoricaion 4, B56 T 455 2015
Ocoupancy 1,053 1026 981
Professional fees 1,623 1,887 1,648
Dihier axpanses 3210 2716 2734
Total oparating expansag 34,487 31,164 31,938
Pre-tax sarnings 10,739 13485 0 27.044
Pravigion [oF Lhxed 2,223 1215 5,400
Met sarrngs 8.516 11,2461 21,635
Prafarrad stock drodands B09 497 dBd
MNet earnings applicable to common sharcholders 5 7007 %G § 20950
Earnings per common share

Basic § 33058 5 1042 § BDIE
Dulutad § 2287 % 306 £ B94E
Avarage cemmon shares

Bagic 340.8 3521 3605
Diluted 345.8 A58 355.8

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Yiear Endod Decembar

£ oA Aitibaeid 0 2022 2021
et garrngs & 8518 3.6 § 20636
Crher compranansive incomaiioss) adiustrnents, nat of tax:
Currancy translation 162] 147} 1421
Dietut vatuatnon achusirmant [1.015] 1,443 322
Prrsign and postratsament kabiites {?ﬁl [ rd] 41
Awaitable-for-sals sacurites 1245 (2, 1260 19561
Ckhar comprahansig moomanloss) 92 ] 16341
ﬂ_udmmhﬂruluinmme 8 B60E 3 10,319 £ 21007

Th BECOMERnyING Roied B0 M MIsgral Bar: oF Tress cormokannd Ansfal Fasemend

128 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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THE GOLDMAMN SACHS GROUP, MNC. AND SUBSIDHARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Ad @t Desarmbed

£ i mlagnas 2023 Hx:
Assets
Cash and cash squivalonis § 241577 § 241825
Collataralized agressmants:

Securites purchasad under agreemants 16 resall (includes 5223 543 and £325,117 a1 far value) 223 B0E 226,117

Securiies borrowad (includes §44,930 and 538,578 at far valual 199,420 185.041
Custamist and other recanvablas lincludes $28 and 525 a1 Tair valea) 132,495 136,448
Trading assats 81 fair valee and includes §110,567T and 540,143 pledged as collaterall 477,510 301,245
Irnvastrments includes 876,787 and 78,200 at fair wakss) 146,839 130,620
Loans (mat of allpwance of 85080 and 35,543, and includes 6,506 and 57 655 at fair valuel 183,358 175,266
ihar assars fincludes S366 and S145 a1 far valua) 38,590 30,208
Total assets 51,641,594 § 1241 705
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Deposds incudas 529,460 and 315,746 a1 Tair valus) & 428417 § 3BL.GGE
Callataralized finansings:

Securies soid under agreemants 1o repurchase (a1 fair value) 249,887 110,349

Secunes loaned includes 8,934 and 34,372 at fair value) 60,483 30,727

Crhar securad hinancings includes §12,554 and $12.756 at fae valual 12,194 13,946
Custarmer and other payablas 30,728 262,045
Trivng hakilitins (g fanr valya) 200355 191,324
Unsecured short-term borrowings (inclisdas $46,127 and 339,731 at fair value) 75,945 60,961
Unsscured long-taim bomgwngs lincludes S86,410 and 573,147 at et valua) 241,877 247,138
(ihar liabilites tncludes $266 and $158 at fair value 23803 21,456
Totad kabdtiag 1,524,888 1,324,610
Commitments, contingencies and guarantess
Shareholders” equity
Prefarred siock; appragata bquidation prafarence of §11,203 and 10,703 11,203 10,703
Commaon stock: 8895080 and 917,816,080 shares (ssuad, and 323,376,354 and 334,918,639 shares autstanding ] a
Share-based awands 8121 5,606
Henvoting commen stock; ng shares issued and outstanding - -
Additsansl paickin captal 60,247 50,050
Ratained eamings 143,688 138,372
Assumulatad ather comprahansne loss {2.918) (3,010
Steck hald in fraasury. at cost: 599,518,678 and 582 556, 393 shares [109.445] 194 631
Total sharaholiders” squty 116,905 117,189
Total Habilitles and shareholdars’ equity §1.641,594 § 1447 705

Tha scocimapmying noieds e an misgral pirl o Shese consobdyied Sruencsl 35%emants

Goldman Sachs 2023 Feem 10K 129
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THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders” Equity

Yoar Ended Decemnber

5 i mwhons 073 2022 2021
Preferred stock
Beginning talance $ 10,703 5 0702 § @03
lsswed 1.500 = 2175
Redeamad (1.000] = (2,675
Exide Balares 11,203 10703 10,703
Comman stock
Baginming batance 9 b ] a
|5 5und = -
Endng balaros 9 il g
Share-based awards
Beqinrung balance 5636 421 3468
lssimncd and afdrbzaton of share-based swadds 2058 4110 2527
Delrvary of commen steck undarling share-based awards (2.504] 12468 (1,626|
Foretute of share-based awaids [169] 1157 (158}
Encirg balarce 5,121 5498 4,211
Additional paid-in capital
Beginning balance 59,050 56,398 55,679
Dalreary of Gorminen sieck unidarong share-based svands 2549 2.516 1,678
Carcellation of share-based swards in satisfaction of withholding tax teguiremanis £1.345) 11,5510 ()
Pealeried siock SauaNce costs 5 - 4
Issupencn of comman stock i connection with acquistion - 1. 730 -
Cirhet {12] i (4]
Ending balarce 60247 55 050 B 308
Retained earnings
Beginning batance 139,372 131811 112,947
Wat parings B516 11381 *1,635
Drndends and dendand agurealents declared on comman S1ock and hars-basad mvands [3.5a1) 1203 2, ZET|
Dwidands daciared on pratemad stock [599] (LR (443
Prelanad stock iedemplion pramium 18] - a1}
Endng calarce 143688 135372 1E1.811
& lated other perak el incomaefloss]
Begnning balence (3.000) 12,068 17,4341
Oithet comprehensve incomaiiossl a2 L] 634
Endng balarcoe (2918] 12010 2, 0eE)
Stock hald in tressury, at cost
Beginning batance (84,621} 91 138 |55, 5404
Repischased (5.796] I3.500 5. 2001
Ressusd 29 20 11
Cithar 147] (15 7
_E-ndnp Balarcs (100, 448] 348315 (57,1360
Total shareholders’ squity 5116906 5117183 £109.926

Tl B gbivyiieg Retes B B tagral SE of el cahielanled Snbssl LENEAATE

1230 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K

491/626



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)
oOoOooodn

THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, MC, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Endad Dacemibar

& i misgns 2023 piz ] 2
Cash flows from operating activities
et sarmings & 8516 § 260§ 21635
Adjusireats to raconsile nal aarmings 1o nat cash provided bylused fof oparaing scinines

Depracaton and amortgaton 44856 2455 2015

Delerrad incoms [@was 11,2680) 12413 5

Share-based compansaton 2085 4 e 2,348

Provision for credit losses 14028 105 a7
Changes moparating assats and labilises:

Custamer and ather recaivales and payables, net l2a.213) 35,074 2187

Collatarahzod transactions teccluding other sacurad financingsh, nat 160,227 100,996 (70,0581

Tradng assets [163.807) 45,278 16,232

Trading Ebuliting 5,781 E.OE2 26,616

Loans held for safe, net 1,635 3,167 15,556]
Drhat, nat 13,293) BY 18,267
et cash provided byflused ford oparating actvatias 112,587) B.70EB 6. 288
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchasa of property, laasahold smprovamants and egupmant {2316) 13,748 (4,867
Preceads from salas of property, leasahold improvamens and equiprmant 3278 2,706 3,933
et cash recanad from/iusad for business dispositions or acquisitions 487 [FARL -
Purchass of swastmants {40,258) |60,536) 139,912
Proceads from salas and paydowns of immsiments 26,848 12,961 45,701
Loans fexcluding inans hiesd for sala), net 15,3531 26,258 [35,5201
Mit cash used fof imvasting Sctvting (17312} 76,9601 1304651
Cash flows from financing activities
Uniscurid short-team bormanngs, ndt 2,050 P | 2137
(Orher sacured financings (short-tarm), nat 673 12283 n.3za
Procends from msuance of othar Secunid lmancings Tong-tenm) 3,047 1,800 4,785
Rapaymant of other sacured financings fong-tamil, including the curant portion {3.570) 13,407 {6,580
Proceasds from ssuance of unsecured long-term borowings 47,163 B4, 522 92,17
Rapaymant of unsacured long-tesm borrowings, ncluding the current poriion {54,066) (2,606 152,608
Derrvative contracts with a financing alament, net 3280 1.767 1181
Dagosas, nat 39,723 28,074 103,538
Prafarrad stock redarmphon {1.000) - 12,6781
Comman stock mpurchased {5, 796) {3500 1,200
Setilarnen of share-based awards in sansfactan of withholging tax fequiremants {1.345) {1,585 19851
Dividands and dradand aguedalents paid on common stock, prafered stock and share-based awands {a,188) 13,6821 12,7258
Precesads from ssuance of prefarmad stock. nat of Issuance costs 1,496 - 212
hat fII'IﬂI'II:II'lE nak A44 i a6
et cash provided by financing activities 27,800 55,602 134,738
Effact of axchangs rate changas on cash and cash equnalants 1,851 11.661) {6,377
et increasafidecreasel in cash and cash equivalanis [2a8) REFAL 106,194
Cash and cash pqunalents, beginning balance 241 825 261,036 166,842
Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance § 241577 5 341826 % 261.036

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paymants far mtarest, nat of capitalized intarast
Cash paymants 1ot mcomes 1axes, H

See Moes 9, 12 ard 18 dor erinimanon Mhow non-oish BT,

60026 5 1902 5 551
2383 3 4555 § G195

Ty BOCONTEANTYING NOTE B0 50 iegral par of Thee bkt financisl 528

Goldman Sachs 2083 Form 16K 131
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THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, BNC, AND SUBSHHARIES
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mota 1.
Description of Business

The Goldman Sachs CGrosp, Inc. {Group Inc or parent
company}, a Delaware corporation, together with s
consalidared subsidiarics {collecively, the firm), is a leading
global fimancial institurion thar delivers a broad range of
fimancial services to a large and diversified client base that
includes corporaions, financial instimions, povernments
and mdividuals. Founded in 1869, the firm is headguanensd
in New York and maimains offices in all major Gnancial
centers around the world.

The firm manages and reports its activings i the following
three business segments:

Global Banking & Markets

The fiem provides a broad range of services 1o a diverse
group of corporations, [inancal instiuions, invesomet
funds and povernments, Services include strategic advisory
assignments  with respect to mergers and  acquisitions,
divestivares, corporite defense acrivities, restructurings and
spin-offs, and cquity and dett underwriting of public
offerimgs and private placements. The fiem facilitates client
rramsacrions and makes markers in fixed income, equity,
currency and commodiny producs. In addivon, the firm
makes markets in and clears instinional client transaicions
on major stock, options and fumres exchanges wordwide
and provides prime Toanang (including secunoes lending,
margin lending and swaps). porfolio financing and orther
types of equity financing (ncluding seconties-hased loans 1o
individuals), The firm also provides lending 1o corporate
clients,  incleding  throngh  relationship  fending  and
acquisiion  fimancing, and  secured  lending,  through
serctured credit and asset-backed lending. In addition, the
firm provides commodity financing 1o dienis  through
strwctured transactions and also provides linancing through
secunities  purchased under apreemems o resell {resale
agreementsh. The fiem also makes equity and  debe
investments relared o Global Banking & Markers acuiviries,

132  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Asset & Wealth Management

The firm manages assets and offers investment products
acrass all major asset chasses 10 @ diverse ser of clients, both
institutional and individuals, including through a network of
third-party  distrbutors aronnd the world, The firm also
provides investing and wealth advisory solutions, including
fmancial plinimg and counseling, and executing brokerige
rransactions for wealth managemens cliems, During 2023, the
firm sold its Personal Financaal Management (PFM) bosiness,
The firm issues loans 1o wealth management clients, accepis
deposits through s consumer banking digital plarfarm,
Marens by Goldanan Sachs {Marcus), and through is privae
bank, and provides investing services through Marcis Tneest
1o LIS, custamers, The firm has also issued onsecured loans
1o consumers through Marcus, During 2023, the firm
completed the sale of substantially all of this portfolic. The
firm makes equity mvestments, which imclude mvesting
activities relared 1o public and private cquity investmenis in
corporate, real estate and infrastructure assets, as well as
investments through consolidated investment emtiries (CIEs),
substantially all of which are enpaped in real esiaie
ivestment activitics, The fiem also  imvesis in deln
instruments and engages in lending activities 1o middle-
marker dhiems, and provides [imancng for real estae amd
other assets,

Platform Solutions

The fiem  fssues  credit  cards  through  pannership
arrangements and provides. point-af-sale hinancing through
Greensky Holdings, LLC (GreenSky) 1o consumers. The firm
also accepts deposits [rom Apple Card awstomers. In
acdition, the firm provides transaction hanking and other
services, including cash  management services, such as
deposit=taking and pavment solutions for corporate and
institytional dienis. In the fourh quarer af 2023, the firm
entered into an agreement to sell GreenSky, which i
expected 1o close in the first quaner of 2024, and also
completed the sale of a majority of the GreenSky instal lment
loan porfolio, In the fourth quarter of 2023, the firm also
entered into an agreement with General Moors (GM)
regarding a process to transiton their credit card program 1o
another ssuer 10 be selecied by M,

493/626
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2.
Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statemens are prepared in
accondance with acconming prinaples generally accepred in
the Unired Stares ({U15. GAAP) and include the accouns of
Group Inc. and all other entities in which the fiem has a
conteolling financial interest, Intercompany ransactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Al references 1o 2023, 2022 and 20210 refer 1o the liem's years
ended, or the dares. as the contexa requires, December 31,
323, December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively. Any reference 1o a fumare vear refers 1o a vear
ending on December 31 of thar vear, Certain reclassifications
have been made o previously reported amounts to conform
tar thee current presentation,
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Mote 3.
Significant Accounting Policies

The firm’s significant accounting policies include when and
how 10 measure the fair valoe of assets and liabibites,
measurng the allowance for ceedit losses on loans and
Femching commitments accounted for at amorteed cost, and
when 1o consalickate an entity. See Note 4 for palicies on fair
value measuremients, Note % for policics on the allowance for
crecit losses, and below and Nowe 17 for policies on
consolidation accounsing. All other sipnificant accounting
policies are cither desenbed bedow or included in the
following fooinanes:

Fanr Walue Measurenments Mol 4
Fair Walie Hierarchy Note §
Trading Assets and Liabilities Note &
Drerivatives amdd Hedging Activities Note 7
Invesiments None §
Loans None 9
Fair Walue Opion Mote 10
Collmeralized Agreements and Financings Mo 11
Cither Assels MNore 12
Drepostiis MNote 13
Unsecured Borrowings Mote 14
Other Liabilities Mote 15
Securigization Activities Mote 16
Variable Intercst Enrities Nowel7
Compitments, Contingencies and Guaraniees Mote 18
Sharcholders’ Equity Note 19
Kegulation and Capital Adequacy Mote 20
Earnings Per Commaon Share Mote 21
T ransacrions with Alliliared Funds Nore 22
Imterest Ingome and Interest Expense Mote 23
Income Taxes Nore 24
Business Segments Mote 2§
Credit Concentrations Note 24
Legal Proceedings Note 27
Employee Benelit Plans Mote 28
Employes Incentive Plans Moo 29
Parent Company Mote S0
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidation

The firm consolidates entities in which the firm has a
controlling financial interest. The firm determines whether it
has a comrolling fimancial imerest in an entity by firse
evaluating whether the entity is a voting interest entity or @
variable interest entity (VIE),

Voting Interest Entities. Voting interest entities are entities
in which (1) the total equity investment at nisk is sufficient o
cimable the entity 1o finange s activities independestly and
i) the equity holders have the power to direot the activitics
of the entty thar maost significantly impact s econonic
performance, the obligation wo absorb the losses of the entity
and the night to receive the residoal retums of the entity. The
usual condition for a contralling finandal interest in @ voting
interest entity is ownership of a majority votng interest, 15
the firm has a controlling majoriny voring interest in i voting
interest entity, the emity is consolidaned.

Variable Interest Entities. A VIE is an entity thar lacks one
ar more of the charcenstics of 2 vorng inerest entity, The
firm has a controlling financial interest in a VIE when the
firm has a varble interest or interests that provide iwowith (i)
the power 1o direcn the aciivities of the VIE thar mast
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and (i)
the obigaion 1o absorb losses of the VIE or the right o
receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be
significamt to the VIE, See Note 17 for further information
about VIEs,

Equity-Method Investments. When the firm does nor have
a vontrolling fnancal interest o an entity but can exert
significamt influence aver the entity’s operating and financial
pabicies, the mvestment is generally accounted for o far
value by electing the fair value opiion available wnder LS,
GAAP. Sipnificant influence generally exists when the firm
owis 20% 1o 0% of the entiny™s common stock or in-
substance common siock,

In certaim cases, the frm applis the equity method of
JCCOUNTING 10 Bew Investments 1hat ane sSIriegic in natre or
dosely related 1o the firm's principal business activitics,
when the fiom has a sigmficant degree of involvement in the
cash flows or operations of the investee or when cost-benefic
considerations are less significant. See MNoie 8 for furiher
information abour cquity-method investments,

134 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)
oOoOooodn

Investment Funds. The fiem has formed invesimem funds

with  third-party
organized

investors, These funds are  vpically
as limited parnerships or  limited  liabalicy

companies for which the firm acis as general pariner or
manager, Generally, the Grm does not hold a majority of the
cconemic interests in these funds. These funds are usually
voling interest entities and generlly are fot consolidated
because  third-party  investors  oypically  have rights 1w
rerminaie thee funds or o remove the firm as general parmer
or manager. Invesimenis in these funds are generally
messored a1 ner asser value (NAY) and are incloded in
investments, See Notes 8, 18 and 22 for further information

about investmens i funds,

Use of Estimates

Preparation of these consolidated financal  statemenis

FEQUITES  IRELAREent

make erain estmates  and

assumptions, the most importam of which relate o faie value
measurements, the allowanee for credin losses on leans and
lendisip  commitments accounted [or b amoriesd cosi,
acconnting for goodwill and idemiliable inangible assets,
provisions for losses thar may arise from litigmion and

regulatory

(ingluding governmental

investipations), and accounting for imcome taxes. These
catimates and assumptions are based on the best available
informaion, but acnl resulis could be marerially different.

Revenus Recognition

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value. Trading
assets and liabilites and cenaim imvestments are carried ar
fair value either under the Fair value option or in accordange
with other L5, GAAP. In addition, the firm has elecred 1o
aceount for certain of its loans and other financial assers and
liabilities ar fair value by electing the fair valoe option. The
fair value of a financial mstrament 5 the amouni that would
be received 1o sell an asser or paid ro rransfer a liability inan
orderly transaction beoween market panicipanis ar the
measurament date, Financial assers are marked 1o bid prices
and financial liabilities are marked 1o offer prices. Fair value
mieksurements de mol include transichon costs, Fair value
gains or losses are generally included in marker making or

other  pringipal

transactions. See Note 4 for  further

information about fir value measurements,
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenus from Contracts with Clients. The firm
recognizes revenue eamed from contraces with clients for
serviges, such  as  investment  banking,  invesiment
mamigement, and execution and cleanng (contracts with
cliens), when the performance obligations relared 1o the
underlying tramsaction are completed.

Revenues  from  contracts  with  clienis  represent
approximately 45% of ol non-interest revenues for 2023
jincluding  approximately  83% of investment  banking
revenues, approximately $5% ol investient management
revenues and all commissions and (ees), approximately 0%
of  total  pos-nterest  revenoes  for 2022 Gincluding
approximarely  85%  of  investment  Danking  revenus,
approximately 93% of investment management revenues and
all commissions and fees), and approximately 45% of ol
nan-interest revenues for 2021 {incuding approximately 90%.
of both mvestment bankimg  revenues and  invesoment
management revenues, and all commissions and fees). See
Note 15 for information abownt net revenues by business
SCRITEn,

lnvestment Banking

Advisory. Fees (rom financial advisory assipnments are
recopnized in revenues when the services related o the
underlying ransaction are complered under the rerms of the
assignment.  Non-refundable  deposis and  milestone
paymensis in caonnection with linancal advisory assignments
are  recognized in revenues wpon  completion of the
underlying transaction or when the assipnnient 15 otherwise
conghuded,

Expenses associtted with financial advisory assignments are
recognized when incurred and are included 0 transaction
based expenses. Chient reimbursements for such expenses are
included in invesument banking revenines.

Undarwriting. Feos (rom underwriling assignments are
recopnized in revenues upon completion of the underlying
transaction based on the werms of the assignment.

Expenses sssoaated with underwnting assignments e
generally defereed until the related revenue is recopnized or
thee assigmment s otherwise concluded. Such expenses are
included in rransaction based  expenses  for  complered
ASSIEIITIENTS.
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Investment Management

The frm eams management fees and incentive fees for
investment management services, which are included in
mvestinent management revenues, The finm makes pavmenis
1o brakers and advisors relared 10 the plagement of the firm's
investment funds (distribution fees), which are included in
pranspetion hased expenses,

Management Fees. Management fees for muomal funds are
calenlated as a percentiage of daily ner asser value and are
received maonthly, Managemem fees for hedge funds and
separatcly managed accounts are caloulated as a percentage
of month-end net asset value and are generally received
quamerly. Management fees for privare equity funds ane
caleulared as a percentage of monthly invested capial or
commirted capital and are received quarterly, semi-anmally
or annually, depending on the fund. Management fecs arc
recogeinieed over time i the period the services are provided,

Distribaion fees paid by the firm are calcolared based on
cither a percentage of the management fee, the investnient
fund’s ner asset value or the comminted capital, Such fees ane
included in transaction based expenses,

Incentive Fees. Incentive fees are calcolated as a percentage
of a fund's or separately managed A0COUNTS PEIIR, OF CXCES5
retum above a specified benchmark or other performance
target. Incentive fees are penerally based on investsent
performance over a twelve-maonth period or over the life of a
fund. Fees that are based on performance over a twelve-
month period are subject 1o adiustment prioe to the end of
the measurcment penod. For fees thar are based on
investient perlormance over the lfe of the fund, future
investment  underperformance may require fees previously
distributed 1o the firm 1o be returned 1o the fund.

Ingentive fees carned feom a fund or separarely managed
account are recognized when it is probable that a significant
reversal of such fees will not occur, which is generally when
such fees are no longer subject 1o Mucananons in the market
value of imvestments held by the fund or separately managed
aceount, Therefore, ingentive fees recognized durng the
period may relate w performance obligations satisfied in
previous percds,

Goldman Sachs 2023 Feem 10K 135
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Commissions and Feas

The firm carms substantially all commissions and fees from
exccuting and ¢leanng dient transactions on stock, opriens
and Tutores markess, as well as oversthe-counter (OTC)
transacrions, Commissions and fees are recognized on the
day the rrade is exccnred. The firm also provides third-party
rescarch services to clients in conmection with certain sofi-
dollar arrangements. Third-party research costs incurred by
thee firm in conmection with such arrangements are presented
net within commissions and fees,

Remaining Performance Obligations

Remaining performance obligarions are services thar the firm
has commutted ta perform in the futwee in connection with s
contrcrs with clients. The firm's remaining perfarmance
obligations are generally related o its fnancial advisory
assignments and certun investment mMAanagement acivilcs,
Revenues assoaated with remaiming performance oblipaiions
refaomg 1o fOnancial  advisory  assigements cannot be
determined wmil the outcome of the wansaction. For the
firm's investment managenwent activites, where [ees are
caleubared based on the mer asser value of the fumnd or
separately managed account, future revenies assodared with
such  remaining  performance  obligations  cmnet  be
determined as such fees are subject w0 Aucuamons in the
market value of imvestments held by the fund or separately
maﬂilﬁﬂ! Ageanint,

The firm is able 10 determine the futnre revenues associated
with management fees calculated based on commired
capital. As of December 2023, subsiamially all future net
revenues associated  with such  remaiming  performance
obligaions will be recognized theough 2032 Annual
revenues  associated  with such performance  obligarions
average less than S300 million through 2032,

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of Gnangial assets are accounted for as sales when
thie fierm has rehinguished control over the assers transferned.
For transfers of linancial assets accounted for as sales, any
gains or losses are recognized in mer revenues. Assels or
liabilities. that arise from the firm's continmng involvemene
with teansferred fimancial assets are initially recopnized at
fair valwe. For transfers of financial asseis that are not
aceonnted for as sales, the assers are generally included in
trading asscts and the transfer is accouwmed for as a
collateralized fnancing, with the related interest expense
recopnized over the life of the transaction, See Nowe 11 for
further informavon about transflers of hGnancial  asseis
accounted Tor as collaeralized Gnancings and Note 16 for
further information abour transfers of financial  asseis
aceonnted for as sales,

1238 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The firm defines cash equivalents as highly liquid overnight
deposits held in the ordinary course of bosiness. Cash and
cash equivalents included cash and doe from banks of 57.93
billion as of December 2023 and 5787 billion as of December
2022, Cash and cash equivalems also included imeresa-
bearing deposits with banks of 523365 billion as of
December 2023 and 823396 balliods as of Deceimber 2022,

The firm segregates cash for regulatory and other purposes
related to cliemt acivity. Cash and cash  equivalents
segregated for regulatory and other purposes were S17.08
billion as of December 2023 and S16.94 hillion a5 of
December 2022, In addition, the finm segregates secunines (or
regalatery and orher purposes related 1o dien activiry, See
Note 11 for lumher information about sepregared securitios.

Customer and Other Receivablas

Customer and other receivables included  receivables from
customers and  conmerparics of $9L16 billion as of
December 2023 and 567,88 billion as of December 2022, and
recevables from brokers, dealers and dering organizations
of 542,33 billion as of December 2023 and 567.57 billion as of
December 2022, Such  recavables  pnmanly  consist of
customer margin loans, collateral posted in connection with
certain dervative transactions, and receivables resulting from
unsettled transacrions,

Substantially all of these receivables ase accounted for a
amartized cost net of any allowance for credir losses, which
peneeally approximates Gaie valoe, As these receivables are
not accoumted for at Gor value, they are not incuded in the
firm's fair value hierarchy in Notes 4 and 5. Had these
receivables been included in the firm's fair value hierarchy,
substantially all would have been classified in level 2 as of
both December 2023 and December 2022, See Note 10 for
further information about customer and other receivables
accounted for at fair valee wnder the Eair valie option
Interest on custommer and other receivables is recognized over
the life of the transaction and included in fnterest income,

Customer and other receivables includes receivables from
contracts with clients and conmtract assets. Contewet assets
represent the firm's right to receive consideration for services
provided in connection with its contracts with cliens for
which collection is conditional and not merely subject to the
passage of time, The firm’s receivables from contracts with
clients were 53.59 billion as of December 3123 and 5301
billion as of Degember 2022, As of both December 2023 and
December 2022, conteact 355615 were niol mdcerial.
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Customer and Other Payables

Castonver amd other payables included payables o customens
and counterparties of $220071 billion as of December 2023
and 523812 billion as of December 2022, and pavables o
brokers, dealers and dearing organizations of 510,02 billion
as of December 2023 and $23.93 hillion as of December 2022,
Such pavables primarily ¢onsist of customer <redit balanges
relared to the firm's prime brokerage acuvities. Customer
and ather payables are accounted for ar cost plus accroed
interest, which generally approximanes fair value, As these
pavables are wot accounted for at fair value, they are not
ingluded i the Gnm's Gir valoe hierarchy in Notes 4 and 5,
Had these pavables been included in the firm’s fair value
herarchy, substanvally all would have boeen chissilied 1o level
2 as of both December 2023 and December 2022, Interest on
customer and other payables s recognized over the life of the
erassaction amd included in inerest expense,

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

To reduce credit exposures on derivarives and securitics
fimancing transaciions, the firm may enter into master netting
apreements or similar arrangements :mllcclin.-l}-, nerring
agreements) with counterpanies that permit it to offser
receivables and pavables with such counterparties, A netting
apreement is @ conract with a connterparty thar permins ne
settlement aof multiple transactions with that coomterparty,
mcluding upon the exerdse of rermination rights by a non-
defauling party. Upon exercse of such termination rights,
all transaictions governed by the netimg agreement are
rerminated and a net sertlement amownt s calenlated. In
addinon, the firm receives and posts cash and secuntes
collateral with respecr w s derivatives and  securities
financing transactions, subject to the terms of the relared
credit  support  agreements  or similar arcangements
{oollecrively, credit suppon agreements). An enforceable
credit support agreement grams the non=defaulung party
exercising termination rights the rght 1o lquidare the
collateral and apply the proceeds o any amounts owed. In
ordir 1o assess enforceability of the fiem®s right of seofl
under netting and credic suppon agreemenis, the  firm
evaluates vanous factors, induding applicable bank rupicy
laws, local siammes and regulatory  provisions i the
junsdiction of the partics to the agreement.
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Derivarives are reported on a net-by-coumerparty basis {i.e.,
the net pavable or receivable for derivative assets amd
liabiliies for a given counterparty) in the consolidated
balance sheets when a begal nght of setoffl exists under an
enforceable  newing  agreemem,  Resale agreementss  and
securites sobd under agreements o repurchase {repurchase
agreements) and secunties borrowed and loaned transacoons
with the same sertlement dare are presented on a net-by-
counterparty basis i the consolidared balance sheets when
such tramsacrions meet certain senlement criteria and are
subfect (o et Ling Rprecments,

Iiv the consalidated Balance sheets, denvabives dre reported
net of cash collateral received and posted under enforceable
credit support agrecments, when  transacted under an
enforceable netting agreement, In the consolidated bakance
shects, resale and repurchase agreements, and securitics
borrowed and loaned, are not reported net of the related cash
and securitics received or posted as collareral, See Note 11 for
further information about collateral received and pledged,
including rights 1o deliver or repledge collateral. See Notes 7
and 11 for further information abour offsering assers and
liabalitees.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets amnd liabilines denoaminared i non=LLS, currences are
rranslated at rates of exchange prevailing on the dare of the
consolidated bakance sheets and revenoes and expenses are
eranslated ar aveeage rares of exchange for the period,
Foreign  currency  remeasurement  pains  or  losses  on
trmsaetions in nonfunctional cerrencies are recognized in
carmings, Gains or losses on rranslation of the (inancial
statements of a non-lLS, operation, when the functional
currency is other than the US, dollar, are included, net of
hedpes  and  taxes, in the consolidated  sttements  of
comprehensive income,
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THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INE, AND SUBSIDIMRIES
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Recent Accounting Developments

Fagilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on
Financial Reporting [(ASC 848). In March 2020, the FASE
ssned ASU No. 2020-04, “Reference Rare Reform
Facilitition of the Effects of Reference Rae Reform on
Financial Reporing.™ This ASUL as amended in 2022,
provides optional relid from applying generally  accepted
seeonting pranciples 1o comincs, hedping velationships and
other transacuons affected by reference rate reform, In
addivon, in Jamoary 2021 the FASE issued ASL No, 202101,
“Reference Rate Reform — Scope,” which clarified the scope
of ASC 848 relating w0 contract medifications. The firm
adopred these ASUs upon sssuance and decied 1o apply the
redicl available to certain modified denivanives. The adoption
of these ASUs did not have 2 material impact on the firm's
consolidated financial satemenrs.

Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures
(ASC 326). In March 2022, the FASH issued ASL No.
202202, “Financial Instruments — Croedit Losses {Topic 226}

Trowbled Debt Restructurings and Vintge Disclosures.™
This ASU eliminates the recopnition and  measurcment
puidance for roubled debt eestrucionngs (TDRs) and
requires enhanced disclosures about loan medifications for
borrowers experiencing financial difficalty. This ASL alse
requires enhanced  disclosure for loans thar have been
charped ofl. This ASU became effective in Janoary 2023
under @ prospective appeoach, Adoption of this ASU did nor
have a matenial impact on the finm®s consolidaied financal
SLATEMENLS,

Accounting for Obligations to Safeguard Crypto-
Assets an Entity Holds for Platform Users (SAB 121).
In March 2022, the SEC staff issued SAB 121 (SAE 121)
“Accounting for abligavons to safepuard crypro=issets an
entiy holds for plafform users.™ SAB 121 adds interprenive
puidance requiring an enioty to recognize 3 hability on s
balance sheet 1o reflect the obligation o safeguard the
crypi-asseis held for s platform vsers, along with a
corresponding wsset, The fiem adopred SAB 121 i June 2022
under a madified rerospective approach and adoprion did
not have a materal impact on the finn's consolidated
fimancial siaements,

Fair Value Measurement of Equity Securities Subject
to Contractual Sale Restrictions (ASC 820]. In June
021, the FASBE issped ASU Moo 202203, “Fair Valoe
Measurement of Equity Securities Subject te Contracrual Sale
Restrictions.”  This ASU clarifies thar a  contraciual
restriction on the sale of an equity security should non be
considered in measuring its Fair value. In addition, the ASU
requires specific disclosures velared 1o equity securities that
are subject o conreactual sale restrictions. This ASL became
effective in January 2024 umder a prospective approach.
Adoprion of this ASU did not have a material impact on the
firm’s consolidated financial statements.

128 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit Structures
Using the Proportional Amortization Method (ASC
323). In March 2023, the FASE issued ASU No, 2023.02,

“lvestments

Equity Method and Joind Ventures (Topic

323 — Accounning for Investnients in Tax Credit Structures
Using the Proportional Amortization Method.” This ASLI
expands the propornonal amorizaton methed dection
currently associated with low-income housing tax credits o
other qualifving ax credits and  requires  incremental

disclosiees

programs  in  which the propomional

amortization method is elecred. This ASU became effective in
Janwary 2024 under a modified retrospective approach,
Adogprion of this ASU did nor have a marerial impact on the
Dirin's consolidated financial statemenis,

Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures
(ASC 280). In November 2023, the FASE issued ASL Na,

202307,

“Improvements o Reportable  Segment

Disclosures.”  This  ASLL requires enhanced  disclosures

primrily

sipmiflicant  sepment  expenses thar are

regularly provided w the chiel operating decision maker,
This ASL! s effective for annual penods beginnming afier
December 15, 2023, and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2024 under a2 retrospective approach. Early
adoption s perminted. Smce this ASU only  requins
addirional disclosures, adoption of this ASU will not have an
impect on the fiom's fimancial condition, resulis of operations

o cash Mows.

Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures [ASC 740).
In December 3023, the FASE issued ASU Mo, Hi23.od,
“lmprovements 10 Income Tax Disclosures,” This ASL
requires incremental disclosures primanly related w0 the
recoiciliation of the statutory ingome Lix rite to the effective
income s rag, a5 well as income taxes paid. This ASU is
elfective for annual periods beginning after December 13,
2024 under a prospective approach with the epion 1o apply
it retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. Since this ASU
only sequires additional disclosores, adoption of this ASL
will nor have an impact on the firm’s fnancial condition,
results af operations or cash Mows,
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Nota 4.
Fair Value Measurements

The Fair value of a financial instrament is the amownt that
would be received to sell an asser or paid 1w transler o
liability in an  ordedy eansaction  beween  marker
participants at the measurement date. Fiancial assets are
marked to bid prices and linangal Gabiliies are marked 1w
offer prices. Fair value measurements. do not  include
rransaction costs, The fiom measures certain financial assers
and liabilitics as a portfolio (i.c., based on its net exposure 10
market andfor credit risks).

The best evidence of fair value is & quoted price in an active
market, If quoted prices in active markets are not available,
fair value is determined by reference 1o prices for similar
ST FUENERLS, qu::ud prices OF recent [ransaclions in less
active markets, or imternally developed models that primarily
use market-based or independently sourced inpats, ingluding,
but not bimited to, mnterest rates, volathiies, ecquity or debi
prices, foregn exchange rates, commodity prices, credit
spreads and funding spreads (e, the spread or difference
between the interest rate at which a borrower could finance a
wiven financial instrwment relaive 1o a benchimark inmerest
riate).

LLS. GAAP has a three-level hicrrchy for disclosure of fair
value measurements. This higearchy priositizes inpurs o the
vitlmation technigques used o measure Gair value, giving the
highest priority to level 1 npats and the lowest paority to
level 3 inpuis. A financial instrument’s level in this hicrarchy
is based on the lowest level of inpat that is sigmificant 1o its
fair value measurement. In evaluaing the significance of a
valuation input, the firm considers, among other facors, a
portfalio’s net eisk exposure 1o that input, The fir value
hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1. Inputs are unadpsted quoted prices m actve
markes wo which the firm had access ar the measurement
date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilites.

Level 2. [nparts 1o valuation techmigues are observable, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3, One ar more inputs te valuation technigues are
significant and unobservible,

The fair values for substamially all of the fiem’s limancial
assets and labadlioes are based on observable pnices and
inputs amd are classified in levels 1 and 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. Certain level 2 and level 3 financial asscrs and
liabilities may require valuavon adjustments that a market
participant would require to arrive ar fair value for factors,
such as counterparty and the finm's credin quality, funding
risk, reansfer resrriciions, liquidiy and bidfoffer spreads.
Valuation adjustments are gencrally based on market
evidence,
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The mable below presents fimancial assets and liabilities
carried ar fair value,

s 0 Dwonrmber

£ in milions 2023 i
Toty' eve! 1 fnanca assets $ 2548 T 104 600
Tots wvel 2 Pnancia’ assabs 518,130 486 1324
Tots! il 3 fnancs’ assats 5,100 26, R
IvbEbments 7 lurdd a1 R 2,000 2 08
Cwm"m;l‘.rmd E!h olatanal Feting [51,134] {57, 8551
Tatal Fi wahus § EERBMS G 650 O6E
Tots sssels F1841.004 50 44l 7o
Tatal kevel 3 financial sssats dividod by:

Totyx astals 15% 1.6%

Tt Drandial saans 81184 villua 0% 4.0%
Totd e | Tndness [aies $ 1XMME 5 10578
Tots level 2 Fnancy |sbiites 3,70 353,060
Tota val 3 Fnanciy) akiiTes 8,704 22,630
C pArTy b Siih Col | eI (44, 1351 1A Eadi
Tostal finarsdal Habilides ot Ll valis i EE E 447 ﬂ
Total Fabws §1.524,680 S0 304610
Tatal keval 3 financial Nabdlitios divided by

Toty fabiiies 10% 1.7%

Tots 1narc ol Cabas ot e vaus 4 5% B 1%

Tis the tible above:

* Coumerparty netting among positions classilied in the
sami level is included in that level.

= Conmerparty and cash collateral setting represents the
impact on derivatives of nering across levels.

The mable below presents a summary of level 3 financial
HELTHEN

Pl o | DisCaraisee

5 in rvlions 2023 el
Trad ng asseis:
Tradrg cash Fistnemisnts 5 18 1,7k
Derivatvas 8,161 b B
IrvasIranTS 17,138 96,342
L L] 1 EET
Critiess gt saks 187 ia
-1l 2 2000 5 _FAMA,

Level 3 financial assets as of December 2023 decreased
compared with Degember 3022, primarily  reflecring a
decrease in level 3 foans and derivatives, partially offset by an
increase in level 3 investments, See Note § for further
information  about  level 3 financial  assets  (including
wnformation about unrealized gaims and losses related to level
3 financial assers and vransfers into and o of level 33,
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The valwarion techniques and narore of significant inputs
used 1o determine the fair value of the frm's Gnancal
insteuments are desceibed below, See Nore 5 for furiher
informateon about significant unobservable mputs vsed 10
witlue level 3 financial instruments,

Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs for
Trading Cash Instruments, Investments and Loans
Laval 1. Level 1 instrumemts incliude LS, povermment
obligitions, most nen-LL5. government obligations, certain
dgency  obligations, certain corporate  debt  insiruments,
certain money market imstruments and acuively traded listed
cquities. These instruments are valued using quoted prices for
identical unrestricred instruments in active markets, The fiem
defines active markets for equity instruments based on the
average daily rrading volume both in absslue verms and
refanive 1o the marker capitalization for the instrument. The
firm delines active markets for debt instroments based on
both the average daily rrading volume and the number of
days with rrading actviy,

Level 2. Level I oinstroments include <ertain non-ULS,
government  obligations, most apency  obligations, muost
mortgage-hacked loans and secuntics, most corporate debt
instruments, most state and mumicipal abligations, maost
money metrket instruments, most other debt obligations,
restrigted or bess liguid lsved equities, cerain priviite equitics,
commaoditics and cervain lending commitments.

Valuations of level 2 instruments can be verilied 1o queted
prices, recent teading  activity for identical or similar
instruments, broker or dealer quotations or alwrnative
pricing sources with ressomable levels of price transparency.
Considerarion is given o the nature of the quotations (eg..
mdicative or exccanablel and the relavonship of recemt
market activity to the prices provided from aliernanive
Pricing sources.

Valuavon  adpsuments are ovpically made 1o Jevel 2
instruments (i} if the instrument is subject 1o transfer
restrictions andfor () for other premivms and  Dhiguidiny
disonnts that a marker parricipant would require 1o arrive an
fair value, Valoation adjustments are generally based on
market evidence.

Lavel 3. Level 3 instruments have one or more significant
valuation mputs that are not observable, Absent evidence o
the comriry, level 3 insrrsmients are is:ili:ullg.- valwed m
rransaction price, which is considered 1o be the best ingrial
etimate of fwie value, Subsequemly, the firm uses other
methodologies 1o determine fair value, which vary based on
the type of instrument. Valuation inpois and assumptions are
changed  when  corroborated by substamive  observable
evidence, including values realized on sales.
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Valuation techniques of level 3 instrumems  vary by
wnstruament, but are generally based on discounted cish fow
technigques. The valumion techniques and the namre of
sigmificant mputs used 1w determing the fair values of each
wype of level 3 instrument are described below:

Loans and Securities Backed by Commercial Real

Estate

Loans and securities backed by commercizl real estare are
directly or indirectly collateralized by a single property or a
ponfolio of propertics, and may inclisde ranches of varving
levels of subordinanen. Significam inputs are generally
determined based on relanive value analyses and include:

* Marker yields implied by transacrions of similar or related
assets andfor current levels and changes in miarket indices,
sach as the CMBX (an index thar reacks the performance
of commercial mortgage bonds);

* Transacton prices m both the onderlyng collateral amd
ansteuments with the same or similar underlying collateral;

* A measure of expected fuire cash flows in a defaole
scerano (recovery rates) smplied by the value of the
underlving collareral, which is mainly deiven by current
perfommance of the underlying collateral and capitalization
rates. Becovery rates are expressed as a percentapge of
notiomal or face value of the instrument and refllect the
benefivof credit enhancements an certain instruments: and

* Timing of expecred lure cash Mows (duraion) which, in
cettain cases, may incorporate the impact of any loan

forbearances
prepayment speeds).

and  other  uncbservable  pots {eg.,

Loans and Securities Backed by Residentizl Real

Estate

Loans and securitics backed by residential real estate are
direaly or indireatly collateralized by portfolios of residenial
real estate and may include reanches of varving levels of
subordination. Significant imputs are generally determimed

based om

anzlyses,  which  incorperate

comparisons o instruments with similar collaveral and risk
profles, Sigmficant impats iclude:

* Marker yiclds implied by transacoions of similar or relaed

ASECLsE

* Transaction prices in both the underlying collateral and
insteuments with the same or similar underlying collateral;

* Cumuolative loss expectations, doven by default rates,
home price projections, residential propeny liquidaion
timelines, related costs and subsequent recoveries; and

* Duration, driven by underlying loan prepaviment speeds
amd residendial properry liguidation dmelines.
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Corporate Debt Instruments

Corporate debr instruments inclides corporate loans, debr

secunties and convertible debentures, Significant inputs for

corparaie debt instruments are generally determined based
on relative wvalue analyses, which incorporate compansons
bath o prices of credit defanlt swaps thar reference the same
or similar underlyving instrument o entity and 1o other debt
mstruments for the same or similar ssuer for which
olservable prices or broker quotations are available,

Significant impats include:

* Market vields mmphed by transactions of similar ar related
asscis andfor current levels and irends of marker indices,
such as the COX (an index that tracks the performance of
corparane credi);

Current performance and recovery assumptions and, where
the firm wses crediv default swaps w0 value the related
instrumentl, the cost of boreowing the underlving reference
obligation;

Druration; and

Marker and rransaction multiples for corporate debr
instriments with convertibility or participation options.
Equity Securities

Equity securities consists of private equities. Recent third-
party  complered or pending  rransactions  {e.p. merger
proposals, debq restroctunngs, tender offers) are considerad
the best evidence for any change in fair value, When these are
not available, the following valuation methodologies are
used, as appropriate

* Indusery  muliiples  {primarily EBITDA  and  revenne
multiples) and public comparables;

* Tramsactions in simalar instramenes;
* Discounted cash flow rechniques; and
* Third-party appraisals.

The firm also considers changes i the outlook (or the
relevant indusery and financial performance of the issuer as
compared 10 projected  performance.  Significant - inpats
inglude:

* Marker and transacrion muliples:
* Discount rates and capitalization rates; and

* For equity securities with deba-like Featores, market vields
implicd by transactions of similar or related assets. current
performance and recovery assumptions, and duration,
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Other Trading Cash Instruments, Investments and

Loans

The significant inputs to the valuation of other instmuments,
such as pon-LLS. government and agency obligations, stite
amd  municipal  obligations, and other loans and  dele
obligations are generally determined based on relative value
amalyses, which incorporate comparisons both o prices of
credit defanlt swaps that reference the same or similar
underlving mstrument or ety amd 1o other debt instruments
for the same issoer for which observable prices or broker
guotations are available, Significant imputs include:

® Marker yields imphied by iransacuons of sinilar or relared
assets andfor current levels and rrends of market indices;

* Current performance and recovery assumiptions and, where
the firm uses credit default swaps o value the reled
instrumeent, the cost of borrowing the underlying reference

abligarion; and
* Dimiration,

Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs for

Derivatives

The firm's level 2 and level 3 derivatives are valued vsing
denvatve prang models {e.g.. discoumed cash fow models,
corrclation models and madels thar incorporate oprion
pricing methodologies, such as Monte Carlo simulations),

Price  wransparency

derivatives  can generally  be

characterized by product tvpe, as described below.

# Interest Rate. In general, the key mputs wsed 1o value
interest rate derivatives are transparent, even for most
long-dated contracts, Interest rate swaps and oprons
denoaminaied in the correncies of leading insdustrialized
naticns are charactenized by high trading volumes and vghe
bidfoffer spreads. Interest rate dernvatives that relerence
indices, such as an inflation index. or the shape of the yield
curve {eg., ll-year swap rae vs. 2-year swap raie} are
maore complex, bur the key inpuns are generally observable,

* Credit. Price transparency for credic defanh swaps,
mcluding both single names and baskets of credits, vans
by marker and underlying reference entity or obligation,

Credit

that reference  indices,  larpge

corporates and magor sovereigns generally exbabin the most
price transparency. For credit defanh swaps with other
underhiers, price transparency varies based on credit rating,
the cost of borrowing the underlving reference obligaions,
and the availability of the underlyving reference obligatons
for delivery upon the defanl of the issuer, Credit defanle
swaps that reference loans, asser-backed sequrities and
cmerging market debt instroments tend o have less price
teimsparency than those that seference corporate bonds, In
addivon, more complex credit denvanives, such as those

Sensitve

the  correlation  between two or more

underlving reference obligatons, generally have less price

TFANSPArency.
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* Currency. Prices for currency derivatives based on the
exchange mites of leading mdustralized navons, ncluding
those with longer enors, are geneeally wensparent, The
primiwry  difference between the price tramsparency  of
developed and emerging market corrency derivarives is that
emerging markets end 1o be only observable for contraces
with shorter tenors,

* Commodity. Commaodity derivarives inclsde reansactions
referenced to energy {e.g-. oil, namral gas and dectricity),
metals (e, precioms and based and soft commodinies (eg.,
agriculwral). Price mransparency varics based on the
winderlving  commodity, delivery  locapon, tenor  and
product quatity {ege., diesel fuel compared 10 wnleaded
gasolinel, In general, price transparency for commodity
denivatives s greater for contracts with shorter tenors and
contracts that are more closely aligned with major andfor
benchmark commodity indices,

* Equity. Price transparency for equity derivanives varies by
marketr and underdier. Oprions on indices and the common
stock of gorporates included in major equity indices exhibit
the most price transparency. Equity derivatives generally
have observable market prices, except for contracts with
long tenars or reference prices thar differ significantly from
current market prices. More complex equity derivatives,
such as those sensitive 1o the corvelation between two or
more  individual  stocks,  generally  have  less price
Fransparensy.

Liquidiny is essemial 1o the observability of all product types.
Il teansaction volumes decling, previously transparent prices
and ather mputs may become unobservable, Conversely, even
highly strucnered products may ar imes have trading
volumes large enough to provide observability of prices and
other impats,

Lavel 1. Level | derivatives include short-term contracts for
futwre delivery of secarities when the imderdying security 15 a
level 1 insteument, and exchange-traded derivaiives if they
are actively raded and are valued ar their guoted market
price.

Lavel 2. Level 2 derivatives include OTC dervatives for
which all significant valuation mputs are corroborated by
market evidence and exchange-traded derivatives that are not
actively traded andior that are valued using models that
calibrate to market-clearng levels of OTC derivatives.,

The sclection of a particular model 10 value a derivative
depends on the contractual terms of and specific risks
inkerent i the instrument, as well as the availabilivy of
pricing information in the marker. For denivarives thar rrade
in haunad markets, medel selecton does ot imvolve signilcant
management jodgment becavse onrputs of models can be
calibrated to market-clearing levels,
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Valuation models require a variery of inputs, such as
contractual terms, marker poces, vicld corves, discount mtes
{inclisding those derived from interest rares on collateral
received and posted as specilied in credit support agreements
for collueralized derivatives), credit curves, measures of
volatlity, prepayment  rates, loss  severity  rates  and
correlations of such  mpats. Significant mpuots w0 the
valuations of level 2 derivatives can be verified o market
transactions, broker or dealer quotations or other alternative
pricing sources with reasonable levels of price rransparency,
Consideration is piven 1o the natnre of the quotnions {eg.,
indicative or exccotablel and the reladonship of recent
marker activity o the prices provided from  alemnative
PrICHNE SOUrees,

Level 3. Loevel 3 denvatives are valued using models which
uiilize observable level 1 andlor level 2 inpuis, as well as
unobservable level 3 inpoms. The sipnificant uncbservable
inputs wsed 1o value the firm’s level 3 derivatives are
described below.

* For level 3 interest rane and curreney derivatives, significant
unobseevable  inpars  include  correlations  of  certain
currengies sind imterest ranes (g, the correlation between
Furo inflavion and Euro interest rates) and specific inierest
rate and corrency volatlities.

For level 3 credit denvatives, sigmificant unobservable
inputs include illiquid credic spreads and upfrone credic
poants, which are unique 1w spedfic reference obligations
anl reference entitics, and recovery rates,

For level 3 commodity denivanves, significant unobservable
mpats inchude velatilines for options with sinke prces that
differ significantly from cureent marker prices and prices or
spricacks for certain producis for which the product guality
or physacal location of the commodity s not abigned with
benchmark indices.

For level 3 equity derivatives, significant unobservable
inpats generally inclade squity velmility inpurs for options
thar are long-dated andfor have strike prices thar differ
signilicantly from corrent market prices, In addition, the
valuation of cerrain strocred trades requires the use of
level 3 correlation inputs, such as the corrdlation of the
price performance of two ar more individual stocks or the
correlation of the price performance for a basket of stocks
o another asser class, such as commodines,
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Subsequent 1o the iniisl valuation of a level 3 derivative, the
fiem updates the level 1 and level 2 inputs 1o reflect
observable marker changes and any resuling gains and losses
are classified i level 30 Level 3 inputs are changed when
corroborated by evidence, such  as  similar marker
transactions, third-pany pricing services andor broker or
dealer quotations or  other empingal  market data. In
circumstances where the fiem cannor verify the model value
by reference to marker transactions, it s possible thar a
differem  waluarion model conld  produce a  marerially
different estimate of [air value. See Note 5 for further
information about significant unobservable inputs used in the
valizanion of level 3 derivarives,

Valuation Adjustments. Valuaion  adjosoments  are
integral 1o determining the fair value of derivative portfolios
and are vsed o adjust the mid-marker valvations produced
by dervative pricing models wo the exit price valuation, These
adjustments  incorporate  bidfoffer spreads, the cost of
hgquidity, and credit and funding valuagion adjustments,
which accoum for the credin and funding risk inherent in the
uncollateralized portion of denvative pordolios, The firm
algn makes funding valuation adjustments 10 collaeralized
derivatives where the terms of the agreement do nor permit
the firm o deliver or repladpe collateral received. Market-
based inputs are generally wsed when calibmng valwition
adjustments o market-clearing levels.

In  addition, for denvatves that  clude  significant
unobservable inpus, the fiem makes mode or exir price
adjustments 1o acconm for the valuadon uncertaingy present
in the transaction,

Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs for Other
Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value

In addition w0 wading cash instromems, derivatives, and
certain investments and loans, the firm accounis for cerain
of its other linancial assers and liabilities at fair valoe under
the fair value option. Such inspruments include repurchase
apreemienis and sobstanteilly all resale gpreements; certin
securitics  borrowed  and  loaned  weansactions;  cenain
custemer and other receivables, including certain margin
loans; certain time deposits, including structured cerificates
of deposit, which are hybnd financal instruments;
substanially all other secured fnancings, including transfers
of assets accounted for as financings; certain unsecured shor-
and long-term borrowings, substaniially all of which are
hybrid financial instrwments; and certain other assers and
liabilitics. These instruments are pencrally valued based on
discouned cash Dow echmigues, which incorporate inpats
with reasonable levels of price rransparency, and are
generally  classified i level X becamse the mputs are
olservable, Valwon adjustiments may be made for lguidiny
and for counterpariy and the hiom's credit qualiny. The
sigmibicant mputs vsed w0 vilue the hrm's other hnanaal
assets andd Habilitics are described below.
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Resale and Repurchase Agresments and Securities
Borrowed and Loaned. The significint inpas 1o the
valuation of resale and repurchase agrecments and secunitis
borrowed and loaned are funding spreads, the amount and
siming of expected future cash flows and interest rates.

Customer and Other Receivables, 1he significant inpars
1o the valwamon of receivables are interest res, the amount
and viming of expected Totwre cash flows and funding
spreads,

Daposits. The significant inputs 1o the valwation of time
deposits are interest rates and the amount and tming of
future cash Mows, The inputs used 1o valoe the embedded
derivative component of hybnd finangal instruments are
consistent with the mputs wsed 1o valoe the firm’s other
derivative instrumemts described  above, See Note 7 for
further infonmation about derivatives and Note 13 for further
information abow deposits,

Other Secured Financings. The significant inpurs 1w the
viliation of other secured Dinanangs are the amount amd
riming of expected lunire cash flows, interest rates, funding
spreads and the fair value of the collateral delivered by the
firm {determined using the amoum and dming of expected
furure cash flows, market prices, marker yields and recovery
assumptions). See Note 11 for further information about
other secured financings.

Unsecured Short- and Long-Term Borrowings. 1he
significant inputs to the valnation of onsecured shor- and
long-term borrowings are the amoant and timing of expected
Future cish Aows, mterest rates, the credit spreads of the fiem
amdd commadity prices for prepaid commadity transactions,
The inputs used 1o value the embedded denvative componen
of hybred Dmancial instruments are consistent with the inputs
wsedd 10 value the firm's other denvanive instnuments
described above. See Note 7 for further information about
derivatives and Nowe 14 for funher information about
borrowings.

Other Assets and Liabilities. The signilcant mputs 1o the
valiarion of other assers and liabilities are the amount and
oming of expected future cash Dows, mterest rates, market
vields, volariliny and correlation inputs, The inputs used 10
value the embedded derivanve component of hivbrid financial
instruients are consistent with the inpuis used e value the
firm's other derivative instrumenis described above, See Note
7 [or further information about denivatives.
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Mote 5.
Fair Value Hierarchy

Finmancial asseis and liabilities ar fair value includes trading
cash insrrments, derivatives, and ¢erain vestments, loans
and other financial assers and liabilivies a0 fair value.

Trading Cash Instruments
Fair Value by Level, The wmble below presenis trading cash

instraments by level within the Gair value hierarchy.

5 o3 mdigng L 1 Lol 2 Lail 3 T
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Assets
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O by il irosirueminn 1 177 IT8Ex 1416 TATE
Sene aned o o cbigatens - m = am
Onhar el ol gaons 80 2,088 7 1.203
Erpd ty SBourTEs 135,002 1,739 103 136874
Cowrned s - 5,640 1 5,641
_w 1421 1,791
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CronnrTiTIATY ITMT AgEnTyY D g N
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ata 5143807 S SRR 5 1/34 S 24108U0
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LLS. S {1333 S 36 8 - 8 23,376
Nor-LES. {28,637} @2.072k = 30,700
Loans and sacurtas backed by
COmmsics rad 8508 = 30k = [}
Rasdanty bl S81akd - 18k - (L]
Conpnnta delil rainsmanis waE (143 Ll 14, 87
Crihar dedit obiigdlions - 354 (3] 37
B Y SR TS 167 5811 [Lhil i EA.0e
ﬁ' Gi1 1531 [T 41 S 056 RES)

144  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

Trading cash mstrmments consists of nstruments held
connection  with the firm's market-making  or  risk
management activities. These instrments are carried ar far
vilue and the relaed fair wvalue gains and losses are
regognized in the consolidated statements of earmings,

In the table above:

* Assots are shown as positive amounts and habihities are
shown as negative amotins,

* Corporate debr instruments includes corporate loans, deln
securities, convertible  debestures, prepaid  commediny
transactions and transfers of assets accounted for as
securded loans sither than purchases,

* Other  debr oblignions  includes  other  asser-backed
securitics and money market insiruments.

® Lquity securitbes includes public equities and exchange-

raded funds.

Sce Note 4 for an overview of the fiem's [air value
measurement policies, valwation techniques and sipnificant
inputs wsed 10 dewermine the fair value of trading cash
INSLTLTEILS,

Significant Unobservable Inputs. The mble below
presents the amount of level 3 assess, amd ranpes and
weighted averages of significant unobservable inpans used 1o
value level 3 rrading cash instrument assets.

i of Dascambar 2023 din ol Descember 200

Amagnl o Walghied e
5 on el g Rangs Avarage Rasnges Mt g
Loans and securities backed by real estate
Lo 3 assin 3 Tdd s 1hd
i A% w0 281% 128% A0 e d80E  140%
Rnoovery e AN TN  MB% 3HEW o PETE BLTR
Camifative loss rate A MR 300 200%  104%
Duration {waisl 03 to 16.3 6.2 0810123 it
Comp debt i
L & asznee ;1 1415 g 1,238
Vil 20% 10 40.0% 3% RmIdan 89%
Recoany mne TI3%wE50N  FA%N  115WmIT0E 480w
Dusatan fyamrs) bate 113 34 0312 203 A4
Othar
Lowed 3 assats 5 732 s 342
Y 3.6% 10 31.3% T4.6% 2EB% 4T a% 100
Mustpas 0Tt 4.5% 3.9 foiic LR N0 R
Duration {yesrs) 231064 4.1 1.2 10 14.4 6.1
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Ini the rabie above:

* (hvher includes government and agency obligations, state
amd mumicipal obligitions, other debr obligaions, equity
securities and commoditics,

* Ranges represent the ssgnificam anobservable mputs that
were used in the valuation of each type of rrading cash
Instrument.

¢ Weighted averages are caleulated by weighting each input
by the relarive (zir value of the teading cash instremenis,

* The ranges and weighted averages of these inpuis are not
representative of the appropriate inpars 1o use when
calculating the fair valwe of any one trading cash
mstrument. For example, the highest recovery rate for
corporate debr instruments i appropriate for valoing a
specific corporaie  debt  imstrment, bui may not be
appropriate  for  valuing any  other  corporate  debr
instrument. Accordingly, the ranges of inpus do not
represent unoertaingy in, or possible ranges of, Gair value
maessrements of level 3 rrading cash instruments,

Increases in vield, doration or comulative loss rate used in
the valuation of Tevel 3 trading cash instruments would
have resulied in a lower fair value measurement, while
ingreases in recovery rte or muliples would have resulted
in a higher fair value measurement as of both December
2123 and December 2022, Due to the distincrive nature of
each level 3 rrading cash instrument, the interrelationship
of inpus is not necessanily uniform within each product
ype.

Trading cash imsteuments are vialoed ssing discounted cash
flows,

Curmubative loss rate was not significant 1o the valuaton of
level 3 leans and securities backed by real estate as of
[recember 2023,
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Lavel 3 Roliforward. The table below presents a summary
of the changes in fir value for level 3 rrading cash

INSLELITHENES.

it Erediad Dpoarrbar
£ evllona 023 032
Asseis
Bng nning naanrcs 8 174 5 e

Mot rap’pad gansiosansi
Mot uremal zod gainaN ok
Purchasas

Snias

Sait emante

Traresdirs irdo love 3
Trarlars out of eve 5

154 167
32 feEh
a25 1.

[515] (K2l

[284] {Adh)
157 1,680

(2546 i)

Ending balance

£ 1000 5 1 7R

Liabilities

Hag nning halanos

Wat raa Beil GinalbELad]
H& ureeal ad gainal oetnad
Purchasas

e

Sattemants

Trareiars mio a3
Trarcdares out of ewal 3

5 184) 5 foa)

X 18
L] &6
a0 137
i {1l

1 5
i3l L]

wblw

g
R TR

In the table above:

* Changes in fair value are presented for all rading cash
nstruments thar are classified in level 3 as of the end of the

perod,

* Ne

wnrealized  gamsilosses) relates o tradimg  cash

mstruneents that were stll held at period-cend.

* Teansfers berween levels of the faie value hiesarchy are
reparted at the beginming of the reporting period in which
they occur, I reading cash instrument was translerred 1o
level 3 during a reporting perind. its entive gain or loss for
the pericd is assified in level 3.

* For level 3 rrading cash instrument assels, inereases are
shown as positive amounts, while decreases are shown as
negative amoums, For Jevel 3 wadimg cash amstrument
liakilities, increases are shown as negative amounts, while
dicreases are shown as positive amounts.

® Level 3

trading  cash

INSIFUIMEnts  dre

frequently

economically hedped with bevel 1 and level 2 reading cash
mnstrniments andfor level 1, level 2 or level 3 denvanves,
Accordingly, gains or losses that are classified inlevel 3 can
be parnally offset by gams or losses attnbutable o level |
or leve 2 urading cash instroments andfor level 1, level 2 or
level 3 derivatives. As @ result, gains or losses included in
the level 3 rollforward below do ot necessanly represent
the overall impact on the firm's resulis of operations,
Ticquidity or capital resonrces.
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The rable below presents information, by product tyvpe, for
assets ineluded in the summary able abave,

Vil Erafid Dusisrmbagt

5 oo endiang 2023 2033
Loans and securities backed by real gstaty

Epginning baance 5 154 5 269
ol raxined gansfiiossas] i [1] 1]
Hnt unrnalzod gy nauioases) s [L3H]
Purchasas 28 -1
Coms 57 nEn
Satrarman (4 15] [Fl
lrarabers nio ol 3 al 19
__!:g“nﬁf-nmwl al s 3 P11} [l
Ending balance s o
Corporate debt instmiments

Beagnning Batants § 1238 & 138
Han reained gansfiosses] 58 a4
a1 unvaal z2ed gy naNssseal (28] 1181
Purchasas 656 Lir
Snas 2 ]
Laitemanis [201) 247
lranstars inde lmm' 3 a8 28
lmnaters cut of s 3 [129] =)
LEnting balance B 1415 5 1938
Criher

Engnning ha'ance E a2 S5 v
ot reaioed gansfossas) B 127
Mol wrnalded ganai casns! [§ 1 }] {1,080
Purchasos 141 Lk
Saws [181) f20m
Sattemeniis [ 5] (FFal
Transfars nto el 3 aa 1,363
Tennaters oul of s 3 [116) ]
Enuding balance § 232 % A4

In the table above, other ndudes government and agency
obligations, seare and municipal obligadons, other debr
obligations, equity securnitics and commaoditics.

Laval 3 Rollforward Commentary for the Year Ended
December 2023, The net realized and onrealized gains on
level 3 trading cash instrument assets of 5122 million
(rellecting 5154 million of net vealized gains and 532 million
of net unrcalized losses) for 2023 imcluded gains of 560
million reported in marker making and 562 million reporied
i interesd incoine,

The drivers of mer unrealized losses on level 3 rrading cash
instrument assets for 2023 were not matenal.

The drvers of transiers into level 3 triding cash instrument
assets during 2023 were not marerial.

Transfers out of level 3 rrading cash instrument assets during
}0x3 primarily reflected transfers of ¢ermin corporate debr
instruments and other debt obligations {included in other
cash tistrumeints) to level 2 On each case, pancpally due 1o
incresased price teansparency as 4 result of marken evidence,
including market rransactions in these instruments).
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Level 3 Rollforward Commaentary for the Year Ended
December 2022, The net realized and unrealized losses on
level 3 trading cash instrument assets of SL72 billion
{reflecting S167 million of net realized gains and 51,39 billion
of net unrealized losses) for 2022 included gaine!{losses) of
S(L.77} billion reported in market making and 554 million
r|:|mr1:d 1M ATIEresD ENCOne.

The ner wnrealized losses on level 3 trading cash instroment
assets (o 2022 primarily reflecred losses on certain equity
securities (included in other cash instruments), principally
driven by broad macroeconomic and geopolingl concerns.

Transfers into level 3 trading cash instroment assers during
2022 prmarily reflected transfers of certain equity securitics
{included i other cash mstruments) and corporate delbe
instruments from both level | and bevel 2 (in cach case,
princapally due o reduced price transparency as a result of a
back of marker evidence, including fewer marker rransacrions
in these instriments),

Tramsfers out of level 5 trading Gash mstrioment assets duning
2022 primarily reflected reansfers of cermin corporate debe
instruments o level 2 (principally doe to increased price
rransparency s a result of marker evidence, including markes
rransactions in these instremenis).
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Derivatives
Fair Value by Leval. The rable below presenss derivanives

oit o pross basis by level and product tvpe, as well as the
impact of neting.
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In the table above:

* Gross e vahees exclode the effecs of both connterparty
netting and  collateral neiting, and thercfore are not
representetive af the firm's exposore,

J.n mitons Lot Lwveld  Leveld L= * Counrerparty nenting is reflected ineach level 1o the extem
e that receivable and payvable balances are netted within the
[ p— 5 15 241,880 5 TSE & 22623 same level and is included in counterparty newming in levels,
Crodit - 9864 ZBE1 12828 Where the connterpany netting is across levels, the neming
Curtanios - Emgsd 210 ERood T R AR

il S HRmE Ak ke 15 imclwced in cross-level connterparty netting.

é?;;:li_ — ; *::'-%‘1’ 816 80.038 e Agsers are shown @ positive amounts and labilities ane

) 1l W Ty - Ty

bR e 5 i _ gmeas) 1933 mﬂ'! mﬂi shown as negative amounis,

SN ¥R NNN - 00F TR See Mote 4 for an overview of the fin's fair value
Ceoas-lavel COURIAMATY NRTTNg 11.411] B liciss. valats e il GEnife
Ciasih cotiem navGng 1497231 measurement palicies, valuation |¢1,J1n|thﬁ. and significant
Mot fair vl §_ 51,170 inputs nsed 1o determine the fair value of derivarives.
Linkilitigs ey i
i ke & UH) B B R B Significant Unobservable |I'Ip'll.lti.-. The ln11!r bch.w.
Crady - (a2 (10.134) presents the amount of level 3 derivinive assers {liabilites),
Carancies. = [97438]  [168] (37.604 amd ranges, averapes and medians of significant unobservable
Cormaad g = 17122] [|B21)  (97.943) E ed ralue level 3 derivariv

ponskinion (8 (7a222) (1887 (80114 inpuis used o value level 3 denivarives.

Groms fa'r waun [19) (415.564] (5.284)] (420,867|

Counmparty noting n ieves - aages  ga aeene ""“'“*": '“‘:m’ Aot D";‘""‘iﬁ r
Subiota £ (18] & (36,519] 5 {4,351) £(100,684] ) Ao gt T Amputt .
Citea-lavi couURAIpanY natrng 1411 £ in i, C0opl gl Range Posdian Rasnige Pledun
Camh enaléeni natting T34 Interest rofes, ned & [EETT) 5 [T

Fiot Tl valin z 1!&""—!,“] Comwaton [10]% to 75%  BONMBEY (10 o BIn GNESIn
T Vol ity ibpsd I te 101 S6/49 a1 e 107 BVE?
s ol Degembae 3092 Cradit, nat § 1650 3 1,d60

Arnots Cradd apraais [bas) B to 1750 1085 Swaxs  4ama
Iritestamd ratas g B84 RE0E0D S5 0 & 300,350 Updran e cradt pains 0 Ee 100 2BS 111 800 pe 1o F: |
Craddd = 620 FR T 12,287 Racimany mhas 051070 AINM0% 0% e E0R  SDNMOW
Curencias = 10350 4 1030 Curranciis, net 5 4z 3 ez
Comramadiiag - 383N 1808 E5e0 Comaaton 0% 1o B0%  A1NMI%N 0% TIR  A0WNGAW
bopites n3 5,481 ae7 50,581 At sy 5% te 0%  TENS1EYN PO0W e 2N 2O0%NG0W
Gross tnr value (1T ) 6347 45000 Commoditbes, net % o & g
Countarparty natting n eves = [ESA517) IBE) g RO Vgt 29% 46 98%  ATWS30%  D0% o 11E% G0N AT
Subiican S 182 S 111.E2h § 5481 § 117,268 i

Circas-lmenl courdnrpanty nattng {1,008 Haney gas spraod 1 oz = ']rfl ko 2'}'{
Camh colabésal nafing MIHBI 52.08 #0.35} 5835 027
Ml R wacun 5 58413 O sprand 0539 e S16.387 1268 v Il
Usbilities e §103s a0z £20.38
Infana] rtas £ 30 S AN E 1,880 & a0 0ED) Elnchiiciy prics b arr ] B 5T 3.0 0 Brw
et - LEEN @ dn2em ] §1,08800 535.16 Sheka £M6
Canrandcios = 111 B {35 (12,572 Eqquities, Bl ] 1.o71) g 5B
Comemodiias - 32,436) W 33,026 Comwaren (T01% 10 100%  B5% T1% (759% o 100%  BBALTSS,
Erutins (=R VL - T ) Wi aeny 1% 0o 106%  T4%S13% 79 o T4 13%7%
Ghoss ¥ whud [CETIE T v TR L

CenpviBmmany natlng s - 358917 BES 350,503 In the table above:

Subota * 47 3 B3 5 GAH0) 502,813

Croms-avel COUrNApany nattng 1,07 ® Assers are shown s positive amowms and liabilities are
Cash co“nhém| naiting 45,55 shown as negative amounis,

bhad Fa'r waliss 5 it L)
—_— —

® Ranges represent the sigpmficant unobservable inputs that
were used in the valuation of each type of derivative.
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* Averapes represent the arithmetic average of the inputs and
are not weighted by the relative fair value or netional
amaunt of the respecrive imancial instrments. An average
greater than the median indicates that the majority of
inputs are below the average, Por example, the difference
between the average and the median for credit spreads
ingdicates that the majority of the mpats @l m the lower
end of the ramge.

The ranges, averages and medians of these inpuis are not
representative of the appropriate inpars o use when
calcularing the fair valwe of any one derivative. For
example, the hipghest carrelation for inferest rate dervatives
is appropraate for valoing a specific interest rate derivative
but may not be appropriate for valuing any other interest
rate denvative, Accordingly, the ranges of mputs do not
represent unceriaingy in, or possible ranges of, fair value
measurements of level 3 dervatives,

Interesa rates, carrencies and equities derivarives are valued
using oprion pricing models, credic derivatives are valoed
using option pricing, correlion and discounted cish flow
madels, and commiodities derivarives are valued using
optian pricing and discounted cash Tow models,

The Fair value of any one mserument may be detenmined
using mulriple valuation rechnigues, For example, option
prcing models and  discounted cash flow models e
ypically vsed topether o derermine fair value. Therefore,
the level 3 balance encompasses both of these techniques.

Correlation within currencies and equities inchides ¢ross-
praduct type correlation.

Matural gas spread represents the spread per million British
thermal units of matoral gas.

il spread represents the spread per bareel of ol and
refimed producs.

Fleciricity price represents the price per megawan howr of
eleciricity.

Range of Significant Unobservable Inputs. The
following  provides  information  abour the ranpes  of
significant unobservable inputs vsed 10 valoe the firm's level
3 derivative instrumenis:

* Correlation. Ranges for correlation cover a variety of
underliers both within one produc type (eg.. equity index
and equity single stock pamees) and across product tvpes
(.., correlation of an interest rare and a currency), as well
as across regions. Generally, cross-produce type correlation
inpuits are used o valwe more complex instruments and are
lower than correlation inpms on assets within the same
dervative product tvpe.
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* Vaolatility. Ranges for valatility cover numerous underiers
across a varely of markets, maturities and sarike prices,
For example, volarility of equity indices is generally lower
than volanlity of single stocks.

* Credit spreads, upfront eredit pointa and recovery
rates. The ranges for credit spreads, upfrom credit poins
and recovery rates cover a vanety of undediers (index and
single names), repions, sectors, maturites and credit
qualiies (high-vield and investment-grade). The broad
range of this population gives rise 1o the width of the
ranges of significant unobservable inpurs,

* Commeodity prices and spreads. The mnpes for
comimoddiny  prices and  spreads  gover  vamabaliny  in
products, muturities and delivery locations.

Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurement to Changes in
Significant Unobgervable Inputs. The (ollowing s a
description of the directional sensitivity of the firm's level 3
fair  wvalue  measurements o changes  in significan
unabservable inputs, in isolation, as of each period-end:

* Correlation. In general, for contracts where the holder
benefits from the comvergence of the underlving asser or
ndex prices (eg. interest rates, oredit spreads, forogn
exchange rares, inflation raes and equity pricesh. an
increase in correlation resulis inoa higher fair value
MRS UREIERL.

* Yolatility. In general, for parchased opions, an increase in
velatility resulis in a higher Fair value measorement.

* Credit spreads, upfront credit points and recovery
rates. In peneral, the fair value of purchased credit
profection merescs aso credit spreads or wpiront credi
points ingrease or recovery rates decrease. Credin spreads,
upfromt credit points and recovery rates are strongly related
w distinctive risk faoors of the underlying reference
obligations, which incliede reference entity-specific factors,
such as leverage, volatliny and mdustry, market-based nsk
facrors, such as borrowing costs o liguidity of the
underlying  referemce  obligation, and  macrosconomic
condations,

* Commeodity prices and spreads. In  gencral, lor
contracts where the holder is receiving a commedity, an
ingrezse in the spread (price difference from a benchmark
index due to differences in quality or delivery location) or
price results in 2 higher Bar value measurement,

Due 1o the distingiive namre of each of the firm's level 3
denvatives, the interrelationship of inpus s not necessarily
wniform within each produc rvpe,
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Lavel 3 Rolforward. The table below presenis 3 summary
ol the changes in fair valoe for level 3 derivanives,
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The table below presents information, by pradoct type, for
denvatives mgluded 1n the summary mable above,

Yo Ersdad December it Erviind Dibepirbar
5w miligng 2023 202 £ o erilland 2023 2002
Total kevel 2 derivatives, met Interest rates, nel
Baginning baanes $ 151 & a0 Baginning talance 5 [MBM5
Mot reaized ganafiosses) 3 ] Nat raa’zad ga'nafiassns) 9 B4
Bt e 2o GO N casasl [32m LELT Wt uremalzod gareN cssash 78] 137
Purchasas 366 580 Purchasas 85 &0
Saias nA200 01598 Sals (408} B8]
Sairamants ABR 100 a1y aeran 15 423 L]}
Iranafars n ave 3 [5:14] ARR Traresdars imo evel 3 L1 3 0] (LE]
Tranabars eal of lewe 3 739 i Trarestirs out of lewei 3 Eit 1250
Ending halance §_ 810 5 1571 Ending balance L4595 1450
Credit, met
In the tible above: Beginang balascs $ 1480 5 1654
. s L e roazed gonafioases] 158 ny
E]’I.Il'l.;ﬂd.‘ﬁ. in fair value arc prlcss;,m:::l for all derivative asseis it i gl nafiat iy poisr
and habilities that are classified in level 3 as of the end of Purchasas a3 107
the p.ui;nll_l_ faina s0] Lo
Sait pmanis [133] 9
* Mot unrcalized paine/{losses) relates to instruments that Traretars info e 3 {20 @1
were 1l held at penod-ead, Trarsinrs out of ‘eve: 3 a3 Fer
Ending balsnes E 1860 § 1aE0
# Transfers berween levels of the far value hierarchy are
: e ; e Currencies, nat
reparted at the beginning of the reporting period in which Beginning balance & w2t (14
they oceur, IF a derivative was transferred imo level 3 Het ra’zed gainsilossns) a0 o4
durimg a reporting perind, its entire gain or foss for the Het ursaized gansd ossost (182] &
riod 35 classified in level 3 Purchasas z &1
period 15 classified in level 3, Sals ) il
* Positive amounts for transfers inte level 3 and negarive SarEadihnte (58] 19
: i f £ level ; : k i Traresdars mio e 3 4 LX)
amounts for transfers out of level 3 represent net transfers s ot of lsvald 33 1
of derivative assets. Negative amounts lor transfers ima Ending bakines $ 42 5 167
level 3 and positive amonnts I‘q_'ur r:::mf.r_ufﬁ ol of level 3 Cammodities, nat
represent net transfers of denvative habalies, Eag.nning baanoe £ 919 3 43
S ; ; ; i M rencred ginaiosses 13 &
* A derivative with lr.'n:l 1 amalfor level 2 inputs is classified in Nl urenay zod 9o e cesnsy a7 41
level 3 in its entirety if it has at least one significant level 3 Purchasss 4 31
input, Sales {171 0)
Caitamasnts [ [ddn)
* If there is one significant level 3 inpur, the entire pain or :f-“'ﬂ:ﬂ"- Fﬂﬂ;ﬂ‘ 3 A 'lﬁ li:
R D 2 . raresfirs out of Il 1130
loss [m_ln .'Ldnlr_s.unp. -n_nly n_hm.n.lhl-s. inpuis {i.e, level 1oand T T T
!ln.'u| _! ||'||'!l|_|l._\} 1% {l;jsa.ll"ind 1 |('\.'4.'] ._1. i =
Equities, not
* (rains or losses that have been dassified in level 3 resuliing Baginning halanca $ (B8] 5 {1,E=E
fram changes in level 1 or level 2 inpuss are frequently Hat roaized gainsfiosses! a7 454
- =iy ot hariat S Mot uremadzod gaireN cana) kF 1,002
offsgt by gains or losses ancibutable o level 1 or level 2 Piarchessi 18 81
denivatives andlor level 1, level 2 and level 2 trading cash Snina [844] —
instriments, As a resolt, gams{losses) mcluded i the level Salvements 169 373
3 rollforward below do not necessarily represem the overall Traeetlars imo ievet 3 L) EL7
> bie: Firm® 1 i weriomic. linisdine Trarrlaek out of level 3 15 531
impact on the firm's resnlis of operations, liquidity or Ending batnce CR T

capiral resourges,
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Level 3 Rollforward Commaentary for the Year Ended
December 2023. The net realized and unrealized losses on
level 3 denvatives of 5262 million {reflecting $65 mallion of
net reliced gains and 5327 million of ner unrealized losses)
for 2023 included losses of 5251 million reporied in market
making and S million  meported i other  princpal
TRARSACTIONS,

The net unrealized losses on level 3 dervatives for 2023
primarily reflecied losses on cenain commodity derivatives
iprincipatly due 1o the impact of changes in commodity
prices), losses on certain currency derivanives (principally due
ta the impact of a decrease in inferest ranes), parrially offse
by pains on certain credic derivatives {principally due 1a the
impact of changes in forepn exchange rates and a decrease in
HIETESL FAes),

Translers inte level 3 dervatives during 2023 pramanly
reflected transfers of certain equity  derivative Habulites
iprincipally due w0 reduced  transparency of  certun
unobservable valaulity inputs used 10 value these denvatives)
and transfers of certain interest rate denivatve liabilites from
level 2 (poncipally due to ceriain unobservable volatshity
inputs  becoming significant to the valvaton of these
desivatives), pamially offser by  tramsflers  of  cerain
commaodity derivative assets feom level 2 {principally duc 1o
certain unobservable volaiility inpuis becoming sipnificant 1o
thie valuanion of these derivatives),

The drivers of reansiers our of level 3 desivarives during 2023
were nol malerial,

Level 3 Rollforward Commentary for the Year Ended
December 2022, The net realized and unrealized gains on
level 3 derivarives of 8266 hillion (reffecting 3839 million of
net realized gains and 51.82 ballion of net unrealized pains)
far 2022 imcluded gains of 5265 hillien reported i market
making and 53 million reported in other  principal
transictions,

The net unrealized gans on level 3 denvatives lor 2022
reflected gains on certan equity dervatives (prinapally due
ten the impact of a decrease i equity prices), gins on certin
commaodity denvatives {principally due to the impact of an
ingrease i commodity prices), gains on cortain Currendy
derivatives (principatly due 1o the impact of changes in
foreign exchange rates and an increase in interest rates), and
ERins on certzin interest rate derivatives (principally due o
the impact of an increase i interest rates), partially offser by
losses on cerrain credit derivatives (principally die 1o the
impact of an increase in interest ranes).

Transfers into level 3 defvanives during 2022 primaraly
reflected rransfers of cenain equity derivarive liabilities from
level 2 (principally due 1o reduced rransparency of cerain
wobservable  volmiliy  dnpurs wsed 1o value  rhese
derivanves), pamtially  offser by transiers  of  certin
commodity derivative assets from level 2 (principally duoe o
certain amobservable  decincity  price  npuis becoming
significant 1o the valuation of these derivatives).
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Transfers our of level 3 derivatives during 2022 primarily
reflected transfers of certain interest rate derivative assets to
level 2 (principally due 1o certain unobservable volariliy
inputs ne longer being significam 1o the valuation of these
derivarives), cerain credit derivative assas 1o level 2
{principally due 10 certain unobservable credit spread inpus
mo longer being significant w0 the et sk of cerain
portfodicsd, and cerain commaodity derivarive assers 1o level 2
{pringipally due 1o certin anobservable natoral gas spread
and electnaty price nputs mo longer bang sipmificant to the
valuiation of these denvatives), partially offset by transfers of
certamn equity derivatve halaline o level 2 (ponapally due
to ceriain unobservable volaulity inputs no lenger being
significant to the valuation of these denivanves).

Investments
Fair Value by Level. The able below presents invesuments

accounted for at fair value by level within the fair value
hierarchy.

5 = iliend Livid 1 Level? Lol Taied
As of Decembar 2023
Dorvarnmin] and sgancy GBIgaLons,

(155 546,711 & - % - 546,731

Me-LLS, 2399 144 - 2543
Conporae deb securiles 180 2299 6533 8992
Secuntes bcked By e eatne - z EBT7 ]
hionay markat insenements 52 933 = L8
ithear et b igat-on a 14 244 2687
EquiTy SRCURTHE 721 2099 9574 12484
Suhinta 550,072 § 5557 5 17,138 & T2,767
Imastmants n funds a1 MY 3,000
Total investments 5 TS 767
s of Oncombae 2052
Gonaenenant and agency chogaraons;

us, 5 47055 & -3 - & 47055

Hon-lLS FAL =] = 2,435
Conporyin dahi Seount e |- 2.550 003 100ss
Sacuntas backad by ray Resaie = 1S fq2I7 1,
ey arkat insensmenis | G = 1,0
Cithwr deiht obd'gations - 3 N b
Equity socurtes [ 333 Aan 13604
St S EDOR0 £ 1AM § [R042 £ 7E 26D
Irens bmen B n Bunce a3 KA 2841
Toia rvesSmants & PE 2

See MNote 4 for an overview of the fiem's [air value
memsurement pabicics, valwaton wehmgues amd sigmilicine
inputs used to desermine the fair value of investments,
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Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Unobservable Inputs. The table below
presents the amount of level 3 invesoments, and rnges and
weighted averapes of signiflicant unobscervable inputs used 1o
witliae such investinens,

Jis o Dacamber 2023 An ot Dsoaniter 2002

Amout or Waelghted Ao o Weghied
F o rnaliging HIWI A‘w H.I.I"gl‘ “"fm
Carporate cobt secusition
Lyl 3 si48t ] 511 L T.003
Yasld B.0% 1o 31.0% 121% S0% 214N 17.8%
Ry 1470 7.3% io 41.2% 2E% 00% 1 TA 0 55.5%
Durwion fymers) 0dta53 a0 13mET 33
Hudrigies 0.8 to 533N T 1B 30 B34 23
Securities backed by real estats
Ll 3 amsacy 1 (] 5 B2
Yield 7.4% to 158% W% B0% o 202% a8
Depaion dymars) 0.4 to 4.1 28 o o d. 2 a.1
Crthar debt obligations
Level 3 ansats § 24 H 256
Nk it to B.E% Bi% 5% mBdN T 4%
Equity sacuritias
Levvnl 3 asants 5 BETE i BESE
Nidiiplas 0.5k to ¥ Fx B3 0,55 5% 343 83
Discouns Dy 6.0% 1o 35N 12.3%  S4% 385N 146%
Caprakepsnn ring 4.5% 1o &0 5%  40% ns DA 54%
In the table above;

* Ranges represent the significant unobservable inpuors thar
were used in the valuwation of cach type of investment,

* Weighted averages are calculaged by werghting each input
by the relative fair value of the investment.

* The ranges and weighted averages of these inpms are not
representative of the appropriate nputs 10 use when
caleulating the fair value of any one investment. For
example, the highest multiple for private equity secunities is
appropriate (or valuing a specific prvate equity securiy
but may not be appropriate for valuing any other privae
couity security, Accordingly, the rmnges of inpuis o not
FCPrCsent uncereingy in, or possible ranges of, fair value
measurements of level 3 invesuments,

Ingreases in vield, discount rate, capimlization e or
duration used in the valuaiton of level 3 invesimenis wounld
have resulted in 2 lower fair value measurement, while
increases in recovery e or moliiples would have resulied
in 2 higher [asr value measurement as of both December
2023 and December 2022, Duse to the distinetive mature of
each level 3 investment, the intereclationship of inpuis is
nat pecessianly wnaform within cach produst tvpe,
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* Corporare debt securities. securities backed by real esiate
and other debr obligations are valued vsing discoumed cash
Nows, and equity securities are valwed wsing  marker
comparables and discounted cash Nows,

® The Farr vilue of any ode nstrument may be determned
using muliiple valuation techniques. For example, marker
comparables and discounted cash flows may be used
wogether 1o determine fair value, Therelore, the level 3
balance encompasses bath of these technigues.

Level 3 Roliforward. The table below presents a summary

of the changes in fair value for leve 3 invesuments,

Fear Ersded December

& o Frillageta Hod a0a2
Biginning Da'anos $ 16842 5 13,802
K ran zed gainafinasast 463 e
He1 el e g ird ceessal [r22] .64
Purchasas 1,651 2w
Salas 11,188] q1.504]
Saitamants (L7821 41,554
Trareinrs mo e 3 2918 6 3y
Traresdnrs ouf of (awn! 3 -H_E 41,I:I."2_I
Ending batance S 15,038 § iaa

In the 1able above:

* Changes in Fair value are presened for all invesoments thar
are classified in level 3 as of the end of the period.

* Ner pnrealized gains/{losses) relates 1o investments that
were shill held at period-ciad,

* Transfers between bevels of the Gir value hierarchy are
reported at the beginning of the reporting period in which
they occur. IF an investment was transferred o level 3
during a reporting period, its entire gain or loss for the
period is classified in level 30

* For level 3 ivestments, incecases e shown as pesitive
amouns, while decreases are shown as negarive amounts.

Goldman Sachs 2083 Ferm 16K 151
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The rable below presents information, by product tyvpe, for
ivestments included o the summary tible above,

Yaar Ervciiad Dussambead
5 in rullions 2023 2023
Corporate debt securities
Eaginning haancs 5 7003 5 4827
Hat reained gamsfiossasi ABh 352
el unrnalizod gansfossesh 1 el
Purchasis 80 1.007
Saas (A5H) {1281
Setements (19960 LR R F]
Teanatem ine lave' 3 755 2,780
Tranaters oul of o 3 LS {2581
Ending balsnce T B
Securities backed by real evtate
Baginring baance % 82y 5 1078
KA1 rad i ped gansilinsas] L} ai
N8 W aaiZed g A esses) i168] A3
Furchaaes 53 166
Baes i14g] =211
Saitaranis [{:%d] (i beiu ]
lmnsters into imd 3 M 344
Transtars out af e 3 (L] =1
Ending balance ] [T BT
(fher debi obligations
Engnning balance 5 268 £ ki=r]
[t ooy (3] ganaf ioases] 4 LF
Mol uricndl2ed gy naNoesas) - =
Purchases 2 il
Saas = 1]
Setrarnants 118 11an
Tennabisrd cul af ewe 3 - 151
LEnding balence P35 3
Exjuity securitios
Engnivng biance £ EBA858 5 815
Wl ey e gansfassas) a7 167
ead unaa lzed QrnafoRassh {5571 1,133
Purchasas 1.000 113
Sams i580] 214
Lot amarnis 572) LR
Transfars nio v 3 1,952 3.0
Imnstars out of e 3 ]
Ending balance s S848% 5  ARSS

Level 3 Rollforward Commentary for the Year Ended
December 2023, The net realized and unrealized losses on
level 3 investmenis of 3259 million (reflecting 3463 million of
ner realized gains and $722 million of mer unrealized fosses)
fioe 2023 included pains/(lossesh of SIS0 million reported in
other prncipal transacoons and 5561 milhon reported o
interest income,

The net unrealized losses on level 3 investments for 2023
prmanly reflecied losses an certain equity securities and
securitics backed by real cstae (in each case, principally
driven by ongoing weakness in the commercial real estaie
market).

152  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Transfers imto level 3 invesiments during 2023 primarily
reflected transfers of certain equity securities and corporane
debi securities (rom level 2 (in each case, prncipally doe 10
reduced price transparency as a rosult of a lack of market
evidence, including fewer marker transactions in these
instrumeents, and certain unobservable vield inputs becoming
sigmificant 1o the vilduanon of these nstroments),

Transfers our of level 3 investmems during 2023 primarily
refbected rransfers of certain corporate debt secunties 1o level
2 ipeincipally due 1o increased price transparency a5 a resolt
of marker evidence, including marker rransactions in these
sistruinents, and cerlam upobservable vield imputs becoming
less significant to the valuation of these instruments), and
transfers of certain equity secunties 1o level 2 {principally due
0 inereased price transparency as a result of market
evidence, including market transactions in these instruments).

Level 3 Rollforward Commentary for the Year Ended
Decembar 2022. The net realized and wnrealized losses on
fevel 3 investments of 51,04 hillion (reflecting 3563 million of
net reabized gains and S1.65 billion of net uneealized losses)
for 2002 included gaine(fosses) of 5{1.52) billion reported in
cther principal rransactions and 5433 million reperted in
Inicrest imoome.

The net wnrealized losses on level 3 investments for 2022
primarily reflecred losses on cemain equity securitics and
corporate debt securities (in cach case, principally drven by
broad  macroeconomic and  geopolitical  concerns)  and
securities backed by real estare (primcipally driven by an
INCresse in anterest rales),

Tramsfers into level 3 investments during 2022 primarily
reflected transfers of certain equity securitics and corporate
clebt secumties from level 2 {in each cse, pancipally due 1w
reduced price ransparency as a rosult of o lack of market
evidence, including fewer market transactions in these
insteuments), and eansfers of cenain corporare  dele
securties from level 2 (due to ceriain unobservable vield amd
duration inpats becoming significant te the valumion of these
INSIFLIELS),

Tramsfers out of level 3 mvestments donng 2022 prmarly
reflecred rransfers of cermin equity securities and corporine
debt securities w level 2 (in each case, principally due w
inereased price tansparency as a result of markes evidence,
including marker reansactions in these inscrumems  and
certain unobservable vield and duration inputs no longer
Iveing sigmificant toothe valuaion of these insteuments),
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Loans

Fair Value by Level. The uible below presents loans held
foor imvestment accounted for at fair value onder the fair value
option by level within the fair value hicearchy,

3w milignp = Lol 1 Ll 7 Lol 3 Tl
Loan Typs
Coanpeang b - 8 415 S5 M4 5 758
Fsal asita
COTaRGa = A62 203 563
Rasdenty - £,087 58 4,145
Orthaar codaianeized - 775 138 an
Onhae = 48 az 128
Total 5 -5 spa3s mes s esos
&5 of Decambar J022
Loan Type
[ = -5 350 B &3 3 ol
Febal axiate:
Commmasiciy - i3h i 1,148
Rasdant = 4437 74 4,511
Cnhae e anarei zed - 574 140 118
Crhar - " bl 286
ots 5 -5 LEIR S B3 S 7L

The gains/(losses) as a result of changes in the fir valee of
loans held for investment for which the fair valoe oprion was
clected were 5(53) million for 2023 and 5367) millien for
322, These pains/(losses) were included in ather principal
Eransiciions,

Significant Unobservable Inputs. The table below
presents the amount of level 3 loans, and ranges and weighied
averages of significant unobservable inpus nsed 1o value such
loans,

An ol Decambar His Al o Decenninee 2032

Amount cr  Welghtad Armount or - Yeeighiad
5 in meligns Rengs  Average Aenge  Average
Corporate
Leval Jaszars 8 4 3 &r
Yiaid 2.0% to 171% 105%  40% ndEaN 9.6%
Bncnny rahs 20% to 95.0% 0% 1% wOn BL05
Duration iymarst ] 1.7 16033 48
FReal sstate
Lmew! Jassats & 251 - Mg
Yl 5.0% to 21.4% 1BT% 0% w20 0% 181%
Feotryny rith 5.3% 1o #9.3% Mf% A6%iobEiv 64
Duration tydacs) 0580 6.2 1.6 OBt 2.5
Othar collaterslized
Lirva! 3 astors 8 116 s 140
hE L 56% 10 8T BN LEW w2 R 1.7%
Druranion dyarsi WA WA 2518 &7
Drtyar
Level 3 assars 8 B2 L FrL]
e 7.3% 10 13.5% 8% 9d% e 100% %
Crirantn (yeaesi ELA R 4.2 M ]
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lis the table above:

* Ranges represent the significant unobservable inpuis that
were used in the valuation of each type of loan.

Weighted averiges are caleulaved by weighting each mnpar
by the relative Eair value of the loan,

The ranges and weghted averages of these inputs are not
representitive of the appropriate inputs to wse when
caloulating the fair value of any one loan. For example, the
highest vield for real estate loans is appropriate for valuing
a specific real estate loan but may noa be appropriate for
valuwing any other real esiaie loan. Accordingly, the rang=
of inputs do not represent anceriainty in, or possible cnges
of, Tair valise measurements of level 3 loans.

Inereases i vield or duration used in the valvation of level
3 loans would have resulted inoa lower fair value
measurement, while increases in recovery rate would have
resulied in a higher fair value measurement as of borth
December 2023 and December 2022, Dhe ta the distincrive
nature of exch level 3 loan, the interrelationship of inputs is
ol necessarly uniform within each product 1vpe.

* Loans are valued vsing discounted cash (lows.

The significant unobservable mpats for duraton related 1o
other collateralized loans as of Pecember 2023 did not have
a range (and there was no weighted averape) as it related o
a single position, Therefore, such unobservalde mputs are
not included in the rable above.

* The significant unobservable inpats for duration related 10
other loans as of December 2022 did nor have a range (and
there was no weighred average) as i relared 1o a purchased
portfolio of revalving ledns with a single durabon,
Therefore, such unobservable inpurs are not incleded in the
table above.

Goldman Sachs 2023 Feem 10K 153
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Level 3 Rollforward. The tible below presents a summary
ol the changes in Gair value for level 3 boans,

Yaae Eraiad Decpmber

$ in miligns T T
Eagnning baance 5 'IEE = 2,3?
Hd nodined ganstosses) Fial B2
Mol unraalzmd gynaNoases) [169) 1xn
Purchitas 53 143
Sa'as a0 icvi]
S1E srmanls 18 a0
Tranakars e lavel 3 z 238
lenrabers cul ol b’ 3 ] 3340
Ending balance s_® S i
Iy the vable above:

* Changes in fair value are presented for loans thar aee
classified in level 3 as of the end of the penod.

+ Ner unrealized gans/{losses) relates 1o loans thar were sill

held ar period-end.
# Purchases includes onginations and secondary purchases.

* Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are
reported ar the beginning of the reporting period in which
they occor. IF a loan was transferred to level 3 during a
reporting period, s entire wiin or loss for the perind is
classified in level 3.

184 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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The rable below presems informartion, by loan tvpe, for loans
mngluded 1 the summary tible above,

wear Ended Decermbes
k] N ey FOEE 022
Cosporate
Eng'nning haanoe £ B8 £ &n
Nt raa‘zed gainsflossmsi 1 sl
Hat urimalized garal cssnsh [124) i
Furchasas it Fa
Sa'es LH] iral
Sar amante [RREH @)
Trarrdars (mio e 3 F (F3
Traraders dul af fwel 3 131 i
Ending batersy £ 3 5 B
Roal oetato

Baginning balanos

§ TS E 1 lE8

Hat ran"zad ga'nafiosans] " ah
e ureaad zad gainay s 142) ]
Puarchasas T =1
Salns 272y 1]
Cait semanis [k -1 233
Irarestnrs nio e 3 - [[vr]
| areines out of el 3 [Pii]
Ending balance [ T
Other collateralized
Eag'nning balance 8 140 5 25
Nl rea“oed insfosseal 1 3
Mol uresa B ga sl cettael (] {21
Purchazas b 3
Salas i2) -
Sl aeeEnle 2} b
Trarelare imo s 3 = 13
Trarctiars out of fewal 3 =) &1l
LEnding balence 38 5 il
Other
Baginnng Gaanga § IM F 16
Wt ran pad prnaioRse] 4 &
Mt urenadznd ga i cesash 3 |
Purchasas n LE]
Sales [F3E:H] -
Salt pmanis 5411 [r2i]
Trardars oul of el 3 ()] (L)
ZEnding batsnce s _®m T
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THE GOLOMAMN SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
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Level 3 Rollforward Commaentary for the Year Ended
Decembar 2023, The net realized and unrealized losses on
level 3 loans of 5143 million (reflecting 526 million of ner
realized pains and S16% million of net unrealized losses) for
2023 included gaans/(losses) of S(152) millica reported i
other princapal transactions and %% million reported in
interEs income,

The net unrealized losses on level 3 loans for 2023 primanly
reflected losses on corpormte loans (principally driven by
company-spedfic events).

The drivers of both transfers into and teansfers out of level 3
loans during 2023 were ot material,

Level 3 Rollforward Commentary for the Year Ended
December 2022. The net realized and vorealized losses on
level 3 loans of 547 million (reflecting 582 million of net
realived gaans and $1249 million of ner uneealized losses) for
2022 included gains/{fosses) of 5(78) million reporied in other
privcapal ransacoons and 331 mullion reported o interest
income.

The net unrealized losses on level 3 loans for 2022 primanly
reflected losses on cerain loans backed by real estane
{prmcipally due wo the impact of an increase m interest rates).

Translers inta fevel 3 loans during 2022 primanly rellecred
tramsfers of certain corporate loans and lowis backed by real
estate from level 2 (in each case, principally due 1o reduced
price transparency a5 a result of a lack of marker evidenoe,
including fewer market transactions in these instruments).

Translers out of level 3 toans during 2022 primarily rellected
transfers of certain loans backed by real estate 10 level 2
{principally due 10 increased price trnsparency a5 a result of
market evidence, including  marker transactions in these
instrments).
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Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Walue by Level. The mble below presents, by level
within the fair value hierarchy, other hnancal assets and
ligbalities s Fair wvalue, substanvially all of which are
aceounted for at Bair valoe under the Fair value oprion.

5 i raliona Lovend 1 Ll 7 Lével 3 Tomd
As of Deeembar 2023
Ansgls
Hasa'e agheaments § = 5 2I543 5 = B2EI5A3
Securt o bomowesd - 44,930 - 44,930
Custoemasr and athnr recavabins - .z} - =
Chitasr annats - 173 187 366
Tatal 5 - 5 BEEATS 5 1BT 5 268 HG2
Liabilithes
Depasis & - § [26,7E3) § (2.737) § (E9.400]
Eapirchate agradmmms - | 240 887} = |48, 8ET)
Saturitios leaned - (8,534 = (8,934
Onhad Sacucnd Tnansngs - [10,5%2} {2022] (12.554)
Ursacurad bomewngs:
Bhiir-taem = |40.5¥8 (55880 (46127
Lorsy-tasrn - [T2,582) {13.848] (86.410|
Oothae [lpii5r8s = &7 [79) {2686)
Jotal 5 s
450! December 072
Assaln
Hesa'n sgresmants g =5 3N 8 - SNy
Loon s bomaassd - 3B LA = ABLTE
Cumtosmeer and othar moayibias = 25 - h
Oither assats = il i 146
ot & =& M 5 14 £ MEIBAL
Linbilities
Daposis - = 5 13003 & 2.04% & {1k raf)
Bapurchase ograsmants = {1T10,34% = (110,349
Securitns nansd - {8,352 - 1,372
Ditht: sncirad nancngs - {10914 B3 12 e8|
Ursecumed bonmorarings:
Shon-tism - {3 6a1p EO080 @87
Lows-tesmn = 83081 (00066 PR3 047
Oilhad Laliras - fFdk B5) i 154}
| 3an 5 — & @37 a3 EI!H EEI ingﬁ ﬂi
| —

In the table above, assets are shown as positive amounts and
liabilities are shown as negarive amounes.

Sc¢ Note 4 for an overview of the firm's fair value
mezsurement policies, valwuion wchniques and significant
inpits wsed 1o derermine the fair valee of other financial
assets and liabilites,
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THE GOLOMAMN SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Unobservable Inputs. Sce below  for
information abour the significant unolbservable inputs wsed 10
value level 3 other financial assets and labilities ar fair value
a5 af bath December 2023 and Degcember 2022,

Other Secured Financings. The mnges and weighted
averages of sipnifican unobservable inpats used o value level
3 mther secured flnancings are presented below. These ranges
and weighted averages exclude unebservable inputs thar are
only relevamt o a single instrument, and therefore are not
meaningiul.

As of December 2023

* Yigld: 6.7% 1o 11.3% (weighted average: 8.5%)

* Duration: (L1 1o 4.5 years {weighted average: 0.% yvears)
As af December 2022:

* Vigld: 4.5% 1o 9.4% (weighted average: 5.9%)

* Duration; (b6 1o 5.1 vears (weighted average: 2.2 years)

Cemerally, nereases i vield or duration, i solation, would
have resulied in a lower fair value measarement as of period-
end. Due 1o the distinctive natore of cach of level 3 other
seeured  finanangs, the inerrelationship of impats s not
necessarily uniform across such financings. See Note 11 for
further infarmation about other secured linancings,

Deposits, Unsecured Borrowings and Other Assets
and Liabilities, Substantially all of the firms deposits,
wnsecired shoet and long-term borrowings, and other assers
and labalitees that are classified i level 3 are by brd Gnancal
instruments. As the significant unobservable inputs used 10
value hybrid finangal instruments primarily relawe o the
embedded derivanive component of these deposits, unsecured
borrowings  and  other  asseis  and  liabaliies,  these
unobservable imputs are incorporated in the finm's derivative
disclosiires. See Note 12 for lunher information abour other
assers, Note 13 for further information abowr deposits, Mote
14 for further information abour wnsecured borrowings and
Note 15 for further information abom other liabilities.

188 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Lavel 3 Roliforward. The table below presents a stmmary
of the changes in Fair value for level 3 other financal asscis
amd liabilities accounted for at fair valee,

Yioant Eredind Dacnrbons

5 1 eillagitd 033 2022
Assols

Bag'nning balance -] 2 -
Hat rea’zed grnaTnssRal 12 -
Wi uremad izodl gaine gesnsh 95 1]
Purchasas 20 4
Ending baksnoe ] 187 3 rd
Liabilities

Bagnning halanos 5 (10828] & 23057
Hat rea’zed gansiossasi 212 Fxi1)
Wt urdea’zin QAL oises 11.667) o459
LTt ] (53 (10.C301
Salr amants 8208 W, 255
Trarcadarg iro s 3 14.542] 11.651]
Trarradars dnil of il 3 ’27 4.8
Tining batancy S A28 5 (o

I the table above:

* Changes in fair valoe are presented (oe all other (inangial
assets and liabilities thar are dassified in level 3 as of the

end af the period,

et unrealized pains/{losses) relates 1o other financial
assets and liabilivies thar were sull held at period-end.

Transfers berween levels of the fair value hierrchy are
reported at the beginning of the reporting period in which
they occur, I a financal instrument was transferred 1o
level 3 during o reporting period, its entire gain o loss for
the period s classified in level 3.

For level 3 other financial assets, mcreases are shown as
positive amounts, while decreases are shown as negative
amounts, For level 3 other Bnancial labilities, increases are
shown as negative amoums, while decreases are shown as
positive amounis.

* Level 3 other finangal assets and liabilities are frequently
economically hedged with reading assers and liabilivies,
Accordingly, gams or losses that are cassafied i level 3 can
b partially offset by gains or losses anributable 1o leve 1,
2 or 3 trading asscts and liabilities. As a result, gains or
losses included 0 the level 3 rollforward below do not
necessarily represent the overall impact on the finm's
resulis of operations, liquidity or capital resonrces,
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THE GOLOMAM SACHS GROUP, ME, AND SUBSIDMRIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The table below presents information, by the consolidated
balance sheet line items, for labilides included in the
stmmary table above,

“Yamw Eraid Decsmber
£ a padipng za»g 2002
Doposits
Begnning baance § (L7435 GET
a1 e ipad ganaioanas] 12 (L]
a1 undaalzed gindiosasal (1409 391
LT [506) man
LaTtamants 773 1,764
Imnstars nio laved 3 [153) L]
1 hars exil ol lews 3 34 10
Enclig hatanos E NS aran
rher sequred financings
Engnning ha'ance 5 (1,843 5 i hEh
a1 reaized gainsfessas] 19 (]
Mol wrsalzed ganai casns! [£:714] 2
EEATS e 375 W
SaEarnants 1479 50
Tfanstam nio el 3 [841) 18
Transbars out af v 3 ] hEE
Lnding balance 3 (B0EN 5 N AID
LUinsacured dhart-1eem barmowings
Bagnning baancs § (40800 B 7 AE
Wt e i ganEfioesac [38) R Fil
Ha1 unraal zed gy naioasas) [563] 130
tRSLIIFRCE 4318) @a8n
SEITarnants FAT8 .20
Tmnafers nio o 3 [ZB1) 2
Transbars ourt of lowe 3 ] Lized
Lnding balsnos B _ESEN S _Wonon
Unsecured long-1em borrowings
Engnning baancs & (100088) £ Aok
Kot eacized gansfosses) [155) {1EH
M wrirsa fized g oasesh [aia) 3,248
R ArcEs {2678 #5035
Serrernents 2H22 1940
Teanabara inig lave' 3 13987 {1 AE3
Tranatars oul of s 3 s07 il L)
Ending balance § (13848) § (00066
Dhar Hobilities
ERginning Daance ] B8 3 (148
Ha1 unaal 2ed ginadeaaadl = B
Satrarmanis ] -
Ending balsnce E_ ws

Laval 3 Roliforward Commentary for the Year Ended
December 2023, 1he net realized and wnrealized losses on
level 3 wiher financial liabalities of $1.88 billion (refleciing
5212 million of ner realized losses and 51.67 billion of net
unrealived losses) for 2023 included losses of $1.41 billion
reporied in marker making, 323 million repored in other
prmcapal transacions and 322 million reported moinenest
expense in the consolidated statements of earnings, and $427
million reported o delt valunaton  adjustment m the
consalidated siatements of comprehensive ingome,

The net unrealized losses on level 3 other finandal liabilities
foar 2023 pramanly reflecied losses on certaim hybnd hnancal
insteaments  included in wnscowred long- and shom-term
borrowings {principally due 10 an increase in global equity
prices),

Tramsfers into level 3 other Gnancial liabilities during 2023
primarily reflected transfers of certain hybrid fnancial
insteveents included in unsecured long-term borrowings
from level 2 {prmcipally due to reduced price transparency of
certain credit spread and volanility inputs used 1w value these
instrummeents) and wransfers of certain other secured financings
frovm level 2 (prmcipally due to reduced price transparency of
cerrain yield and doration inputs used o value these
INSIFLITCTES).

Transfers out of level 3 other financial labilities during 2023
primarily reflected ransfers of certain hybrid  financial
wistruiments cluded i wnsecured loag- and short-term
borrowings o level 2 {pringipally due 1o increased price
transparency of certain volaulity inpuis used 1o value these
R T TER

Level 3 Rollforward Commaentary for the Year Ended
December 2022, The net realized and unrealized gains on
level 3 other financial lizbilivies of 5415 billion (reflecting
SET million of ner realized losses and 3446 billion of ne
unrealized  gains)  for 2022 incleded  gains/{losses) of
S3.60 billion reported n market making, 564 milhon reported
in other princpal trnsactions and 3210 million reported in
micrest expense in the consolidated seatements of earmngs,
aned 5503 mllion reported i debt valuanon adjostment in the
consolidared statemenis of comprehensive income,

The ner wnrealized gains on level 3 other fimancial liabilites
for 2022 primarily reflecied gains on cervain hybrid financial
instruments included in wnsecored long- and shor-rerm
boarrowings (principally due 10 a decrease in global equiry
prives and an inceese in interst rtes),

Transfers into level 3 other financial labilities during 2022
prinurily  reflected tramsfers of certan bybrd [inancial
instruments included in wnsecured long- and shori-term
borrowings  from  level 2 (prancipally doe o redwced
rransparency of cerain volaility and coreelation inpuis nsed
o value these instramenis).

Tramsfers out of level 3 other financial liabilities during 2022
primarily reflected teansfers of cerrain hybrid  (inancial
instruments  ingluded in o wnsecored  fong- and  short-werm
borrowings 1o level 2 (principally due 1o increased price
transparency of certain volaulicy and correlation inpais nsed
to value these instruoments) and mansfers of cemain other
secured fimancings to level 2 (principally due 1o cerain
uncbservable vield and duration inputs no longer being
significant ro the valuation of these insteumens).
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Nata 6.
Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assers and liabilities include trading cash instruments
and derivatives held in connection with the firm's marker-
making or risk managemenm activities. These asseis and
liabilities are carried at fair value either under the fair value
option o in accordance with ather ULS. GAAP, and the
refared Fair value gains and losses are generally recognized in
the consolidated statements of earnings,

The table below presems a summary of rading assets and
lizabilities.

Trading Tiwshng
3 in miligng Al Liabdriars

TapEng CaAsh N eSS 5 426,350 § 143,601

_Dariatives 51,120 56, 754
_Total 54775105 200,355
4z ol Decamber 023

Tading cash rasnemens S 241837 5 136,580
Dar Wt vad 25413 54, T34
Tote 5300245 5 NS 534

See Wote 5 for further information abour trading cash
instruments and Note 7 for (erther information  about
denivatives,

Gains and Losses from Market Making

The table below presents market making revennes by major
prodict Type.

W Encled Deecambar
5 i mdhons FirE] FIiFF] 201
intarasd ratas 5 4437 £ {apad) £ 28k
il 1,141 1,095 1,739
Canrinding ZRIT 11,862 &827
Equtias TA38 7054 488
Ot ing 1895 203 2156
Tatal $ 18238 3 IRFRL S IS AGT

188 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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In the table above:

* Cains/{losses) include both realized and wnrealized pains
aned bosses, Gains/(losses) exclude relared interest ingome
and interest expense. See Note 23 for further informarion
abour inferest income amd ineresn expense,

* Goang{losses) mcluded o market making are primarily
related o the firm's trading assets and labilines, including
both derivatve and non=derivative Baancial instruments,

# Gains/(losses) are nod representagive of the manner in
which the firm manages its business activities because
many of the firm's markei-making and cient faalitation
steategics  utilize  financial  instruments  across  varnious
product tvpes. Accordingly, gains or losses in one produce
1y pe frequemly offser gains or losses in other product types.
For example, mast of the firm's longer-ierm derivatives
across product types are sensitive 1o changes in interest
rates and may be econamically hedped with imerest rie
swips, Similarly, a significant porion of the frm's mading
cash instruments and derivatives across produc tvpes has
exposure o foregn correncies and may be econamically
hedged with foreign carrency contrcs,
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Neta 7.
Derivatives and Hedging Activities
Derivative Activities

Derivatives are instruments that derive thar value from
underlying asser prives, indices, reflerence raves and other
inputs, or & combination of these factors. Derivarives may be
traded on an exchange (exchanpe-traded) or they iy be
privately negotiated comecs, which are uswally relerred 10
as OTC derivatives. Certain of the firm®s OT'C dernvatives
are  cleared  and  seutbed  throogh cemtral  Cdearing
counterpanics (7 Cocleared), while others are bilateral
contracts between two counterparties (bilateral OTC).

Market Making. As o marker maker, the finm enters inte
derivanive transactions o provide liguidicty o clients and 10
facilitare the transfer and hedging of their risks, In this rale,
the fiem rypically acts as principal and is required 1o commit
capital to provide execotion, and mantans market-making
positions in response 1o, or in anicpation of, client demand,

Risk Management. The firm also enters imto denvanives 1o
actvely manage risk exposures that amse from s markei-
making and investing and financing activities, The firm’'s
haldings and exposures are hedged, in many cases, on cither a
portfolio or rigk-specific basis, a5 opposed 1o an instrament-
by-instrument basis. The olfscring impac of rthis economic
hedgnng 15 rellected in the same business sepment as the
redared revenues. In additon, the firm may emier ingo
denvatives designated as hedges under LS. GAAP, These
derivitives are used 10 manage interest e exposure of
certain fixed-rate unsecured borrowings and deposits and
certain UL, and non=lLS, povernment securities classified as
available-for-sale, forcign exchange risk of certain available-
fosr-sale secunities and the net investment i certain non-LES.
Opertinnms,
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The firm enters into vanous types of derivanives, including:

* Futures and Forwards, Contracts  that  commit
counterpartics 1o purchase or sell finangal instraments,
commodities or currencies im the future.

* Swaps. Contracts that require connterparties oo exchange
cish flows, such as currency oF ENTerest payment s1rcams,
The amounts exchanged are based on the spedfic werms of
the comreact with reference 1o specified res, financial
instrmeenes, commadities, currencies or indices.

* Options, Coniraces in which the opiion purchaser has the
right, but not the obligaton, to purchase from or sell 10 the
option writer financial instruments, commodities or
currencies withim a defined mme period Tor a specified
price,

Denivatves are reported on a net-by-counterparty basis (i.c.,
the net pavable or receivable for dedvative asses and
libilities for a given counterpany) when a lepal ripht of
setofl  exists under an enforceable  netting  agreement
feonnterparmy netting). Derivatives are accoumed for ar fair
vidue, net of caish collateral received or posted under
enforceable  credit suppon  agreements  {cash  collateral
nerting). Derivative assets are included in trading assets and
derivative liabilities are induded i rrading  Habalines,
Realized and unreealized gains and losses on derivatives not
designated as hedges are included in market making {for
derivatives  incliwded in Fixed Income, Cuoreency  and
Commaodities (FICC) and Equities within Global Banking &
Markets), and other princpal wamactions (lor derivanves
included in Imvesiment banking fees and Other within Global
Banking & Markets, as well as derivatives in Asser & Wealih
Management) in the consalidated statements of earnings, For
borh 2023 and 2022, substantally all of the frm’s derivanves
were imcduded in Global Banking & Markets,
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The rables below present the gross fair value and the notonal
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Hotonal Amtants ae o Decamber

amounts of denvative contracts by amajor produst type, the E ol s iz
amounts of counterparty and cash collateral nening in the ?::'_::;T"dh'"m § RLESASE S 4740537
consolidated balance sheets, as well as cash and securities O bkl IOITAIE 17104602
collateral  posted and  received under enforceable  credin Braera O1C 1 595 11,937,137
suppart agreements thar do not meet the criteria for netting I";"“"‘r:;;:‘“ sz-;: 23-‘“‘*;;;
. a :
under LS, GAAL, chl‘.-*.?;ud 458720 S04
A of December 2623 45 of Docernber 2022 _?_ "':;ﬂ': ; ::"‘E : ‘1";::3
Dertvnitvs - Dochirctin . Dartviive  Deenaries I;::mngn-lmm. ' 11,,;.": BT

% i rndigng fnpstn  Liabilities Aszeis  Liabdiies ' ki
“Peot sccounted for as hedges IR el st 160,881
i Eanral O C B, 363,700 &, 504, Oy
Exchange-traded £ 3401 &8 102 £ Gi& 5 1,305 Totnl ou : 643579 T
OTC-taarsd 67815 4,480 ey 12,070 Eonercaetadeg aé'iLm .m
Bistaen! OTC 171,100 188444 105057 174587 bt bl A
Tatal iny 1 rales 242325 215,063 2024 Faf0h1 Blabers CI:IC 158 5RO
OTC-sarad 121 1,513 1.&18 1.EQ? Toial sommodities 503,380 B8 023
Beataeal OTC 11,554 /801 10,761 B.478 m 1,564,541 107 B0
Tatal eradit 12,825 10,134 13,287 11,250 OTCciassas 1,487 ! |Iﬁ3'9-
Exschonge-iraded o6 1% hoal # Blatern OTC 1,208,140 1026, 750
OTC-caared 1,033 1632 B30 589 Totel equlies 2 769,968 AL
Biater| Q1L BEISE  S5T4Z @AM 111204 ﬁ R i
Tatal currencies 89,539 57,389 103 EEE 111887 = ted Tor s | e S
Exchange-trodoed 5458 5,998 F T T O e 241,180 257 73
O1Ccearnd (i T (5t B Elaraeal OTC 2914 3156
B iaternl O1C 10,739 11, 254 ooy 23 TR Total interest rates 074 0
Total conmodities 1 K 17,843 I9.950 33,125 OCcamnd 1227 IIU-TI-.H
Exchange-tradid G 38,24 28,302 26,807 g .1'.\&;.1 are 8120 .'..I'I.'II
DIC-ciaarnd 122 LFal Gk 19 Tﬂl.ﬂ ey ] : 1-1!:3:!? W:J':H
Elatesal OO0 28801 40,558 2360 30,157 Sobtotal _..E_"_.;E-‘ 2.-';}.64?
Tatal mlllﬂ. B, ORE B0, 114 B 561 4, 153 m T 3 485571 5 ) a2
Sutiots) 2129 dz0ls  Lnend  asign  -ainotionslamounts i —
Accounted for as bedges : B

it i s _— it In the tables above:

;‘:?L:::" L ﬁ?_ : sg ;_; * Gross fair values exclude the effects of both counterparty
Eiataenl QIC 5 208 e P, netting and collateral, and therefore are nor representative
Tatal currencies 5 215 2 FED of the firm’s exposnre.

203 F= ] 417 P2

Total gross fair vales S F=F BE] 5 47700 5 aE3 Az

Orfset in the consolidated balance sheets

Exchanga-traded S [32.722) 8 [32.722) 5 (IFFN S @3.2E
OTC-clearad (B3272) (62,272 {18380 (76,240
B atwsal OTC P ] 26, i) b 3040
Cou ekt 21 321,388 OO EE2) OO R
OTC-taared 11,335) 14&6) {1, 5ER] (1]
Eiatden OTC XER A6 THE] 48 3001
Caxh callaters| netting (49.723]  [42. T2} iGE. TIEl (4RO
Tatal amounts abfast  § [(371,112) § [364,113) 5 (41686 5 W07 FA7
Included i the e L ek

Exchangs-iracded 5 B170 5 13687 5 6014 5 6337
OIC-£iaarad 2,268 TE6 1,008 B0
Einteeai O1C ADERTY 42,301 52.30 47,507
Tatal § 51,120 B SETSM S G411 S GLd g3
Feat et in the lidated kel hairt

Cash colabem -] [BTH 8 2732 5 s LEEN
SACLET RS ool iane [13,425) 6,516} |14 20 i, 3
_Tatal § 36818 E 47508 G5 A43i5AE & ARLig

16¢  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K

Where the firm has received or posted collareral wnder
cridit support agreements, but has not ver determined such
agreements are enforceable, the related collareral has net
Been e,

Motional amounts, which represent the sum of pross long
and short derivative contracts, provide an mdication of the
volume of the fiem’s derivative activity and do not
represent anticipared losses,

Total gross Tair value of derivatives included derivanve
assers of 58,98 billion 25 of December 2023 and 51008
bilhon as of December 2022, and derivative liabilivies of
1603 Billion as of December 2023 and 512,71 billion as of
December 2022, which are not subject 1o an enforceable
melting agreenment or are subject to a netting agreement that
the firm has not ver determined 1o be enforceable.
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OTC Derivatives
The table below presents O7 C derivative assers and liahilities
by tenar and major product tvpe

Loz then 1-5 Greated than

 in rilions 1 ar Vears  rears Total
As of Decembar 2023

Assats

Fitarest fatas 5 8511 S12978 § 49045 5 VO.734
el 1814 3283 1,981 T.088
Caprnains 4iiF T8 84T 24T
Comimad 188 2,983 2574 1451 7018
Erpatins 6625 3955 1655 11435
Conmisinarty falling n lanom [3.048) |2.705] ia 1
Sadiienn S I7.004 EXEO04 $ 55943 5108981
Croms mnor CouniMpary reling |16.288)
Cash coatern| naging |49, 723)]
Total OTC derivative saets 542950
Linbilities

Inieest mins £ 11,952 815872 & 17540 5 45484
Ot a2 2508 1,067 4,367
Canranga 15335 7.934 7293 30,568
G s 2,526 2543 1419 7.588
Egaiins 183 10,042 1340 28N
Countanmafty natling it Innam i 7

Subilota S 3742 S3T.MM0 5 27017 5102089
(Crorise DRGE COL IR PAITY Ml TR {18,288
Cadh e alédal nallng 1427241
Tatal OTC de Habilities 5 43,087
Az of Decamber 2022

LTI

Initfeat ftas % 6502 516863 5 BAO4T B ME415
Ciraady a7t 2622 2147 5,685
LETL 12,284 1518 085 21158
Commenflias 0526 2813 A8 20812
Erpates B34E 4007 LIEZ 1,134
EaianparTy Haflng n 1anos iFEELY 354 48300 {11,450
Subioin 531924 34%aE 5 ELANE SIF0E0
Crgsstenor CounjMparny naiing {18,427
Cash cotatern| natting [l
Tats OTC dafvatve assabs £ 5325
Liabilitles

Fnherest mtas £ o3 S23REH % Msly £ Ba.400
Cirady §hr 263 .04 4,50
Caunrancias IBSRY 8735 8T 36435
Cormmod s E200 & 135 L1 13,480
Erpitias 128 7.0 21l 1202
Countarparty nelting in tenocs (26611 {3,842 48300 (11,433
Tudilenn 5 ADADD BL4d07 5 TA539 5104640
TS Dare (oLr M panTy raTling 19,427
Conh conatedn| nasting e, BOs

Tt Eill.“.‘dannrva 1 1A

5 £H. 408
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In the rable above:
= Tenor is based on remaining contractual mararity,

* Connterparty netting withn the same product tvpe amd
temor category is included within such product type and
1ERNOT CAEROTY,

* Counrerparty nenting across product types within the same
tenor category is included in coumerparty netting in tenors,
Where the counterparty netring is ACross [enor CHREones,
the netring is inclided in cross-tenor conmenpary netting.

See Note 4 for an overview of the firm's [air value
mezsurement palicies, valwation rechnigues and significant
wputs vsed to determime the far value of denvanves, amd
MNote 5 for informarion about derivatives within the fair value
hierarchy.

Credit Derivatives

The firm enters into 3 broad array of credit derivarives w
facilitate cient transactions and o manage the credic nsk
associated with market-making and investing and financing
activities, Credit denvarives are actively manaped based on
the firm’s net risk position, Credie derivatives are generally
indivicdually negotiated conteacrs and cam have various
settlement and pavment conventions, Credit evenes inglode
failore 1o pay, bankeuptcy, accelesation of indeblediness,
restructuring, repudiation and dissolution of the reference
ey,

The firm enters into the following 1y pes of oredin derivarives:

* Credit Default Swaps. Single-name credic default swaps
protect the buver against the foss of principal on one or
more bomds, loans or mongages (reference obligations) in
the event the issuer of the reference obligatons soffers a
credit event. The buyer of protection pays an inimal or
pencdic premiom to the seller and receives protection for
the period of the conteact, I there s no credin event, as
defined in the contrect, the seller of proweaion makes no
payments to the buver, IF a credit event occurs, the seller of
protection is required 1o make a payment o the buyer,
calewlated according 1o the terms of the contrac.

¢ Credit Options. In 3 credit oprion, the option wreiler
assumes the obligation 1w purchase or sell a reference
obligation at a speched prnce or credit pread. The apion
purchaser buys the nght, bt does not assume the
obligation, to sell the reference obligation 10, or purchase it
from, the option writer, The payments on credit options
depend cither on a panicular credin spread or the price of
the reference obligaon.

Goldman Sachs 2083 Form 16K 1651
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* Credit Indices, Baskets and Tranches. Credit
derivitives iy reference a baskert of single-name credit
default swaps or 2 broad-based index. 1§ a credit evemt
oceurs i one of the underlying reference obligations, the
pratection seller pays the pratection buver, The payvment is
typically a pro-rata portion of the transaction’s roral
notional  amownt based on the underlying  defanlied
refergnce abligation. In cortain transacrions, the credin risk
of a basket or mdex 35 separated into various porticns
{teanches), each having different levels of subordination.
The most junior tranches cover inital defanlts and once
losses excoed the notiomal amount of these jumior tranches,
any excess loss is coverad by the next most senior ieanche,

= Total Return Swaps. A 1ol retorn swap transfers the
risks relating o economic perfermance of a2 reference
obligation from the protection buyer 10 the proteciion
seller, Twvpically, the protection buver receives a [loating
rite af imerest and protection against any reduction in Gir
value of the relerende obligation, and the proteciion seller
receives the cash flows associared with the reference
obligation, plus any increase in the fair value of the
reference obligation,

The firm economically hedies its exposure 1o written credit
derivatives primanly by entering into offsetiing purchased
credin derivanves with adentical underliers, Substangially all
of the firm®s purchased credit derivative rransacions are with
fimancial mstitutons and are subject 1o stnngent collateral
theesholds. In addition, upon the ocoorrence of a specified
trgger event, the firm may take possession of the reference
obligations underlying o panicular written credit derivative,
and consequently may, mpon lignidation of the reference
obligations, recover amounts on the underlying reference
obligations in the event of defaul,

182  (Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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The rable bdow presemts  information  abowt  credit
derivatives,

Crecks Soraad on Underer (Sasis points|

Graane
- Bl - than
§ in milliana - 250 =00 1000 1,000 Tals

A of December 2023
Macimam Payoat/Notions! Amownt of Written Credit Decfvatives by Tanor

Liess than 1 yaar S1M6G67 51258 5 BOZ 5 3611 5143764

1-6yans AJETT  MATE 5613 5802 347363
Graotes than 5 years 30406 1318 &1 249 k2642
Tatal 5481 26281 § 7178 % riil

Mazimum Payout/Notions! Amount of Purchased Credit Derivatives.
Oilteaing S396.984 S11.857 § 6241 § 26 S421I2R
Oithar 155,462 12887 2 14948 1.81% 171897
Fair Valug of Wiitten Credit Dedvatives

Anpai EMM4T 8 854 5 221§ 65 B 1187
Linrdiny 1.723 a7 201 1,034 3,005
Net assei/{llabity] & 9424 &8 807 & 20 £ ([BA3I & 9182
Az af Decambar 293

Maxs Payout/Notionsl &mount of Written Credit Derivatives by Tenor
Less than | year SI08, 703 S120686 8 1,BTD § 4,136 5126883
1- & vaues SELE4  JEIBE 13734 D00 367488
Graaber than & plars 330 86 ] 305 A3.9%0
Tian Sdid dF0 S4537270 550009 8 1367 S5ZR X0
Maximurm Paycut/hari | & t of Puarch d Cradil Darbrativen
Qlisang 372,350 533,149 S14.B17 5 11,7657 5432083
Oither VZREZE 13311 2618 2407 147,081
T SE01 IEHR SUA3E0 17437 8 141684 5605 144
Fair Value of Wiitten Credit Derivatives

Anpai 5 4404 § 805 13§ B4 5 B0
Liskding Bl 08l 1,027 2673 5867

Nt azsatd b e £ 47 £ HINES |BSe S a3 £ 619

In the table above:

® Fair values exclude the effects of both nenting of receivable
balances with payable balances under enforgeable nerting
agrecments, and neiting of cash received or posted under
enforceable credit support agreements, and therefore ane
not representative of the firm's eredit exposure.

Tenor is based on remaming contractual matoricy.

The credir spread on the underdier, wopether with the 1enor
of the contracr, are indicators of paymeny/performance
risk, The firm s less hkely 1o pay or otherwise be required
1o perform where the eredit spread and the renor are lower.

Offsetting  purchased  credit  derivatives  represent  the
notiomal amoum of purchased . credit  derivatives thae
economically hedge written credii derivanves with identical
underliers.

nher piiechased credin desivatives represeint the motional
amount of all other purchased credit derivatives not
ncluded in offseting.

Wranten and purchased crediv dervatives primarly ¢onsist
of credit default swaps.
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Impact of Credit and Funding Spreads on Derivatives

The finm realizes gains or losses on its denivanve contracs.
These gains or losses include credit valwanon adjostiments
(CVAs) relaing 1o wncollateralized derivative asses and
liabilities, which represent the gains or losses (incloding
hedges) auriburable o the impect of changes in credin
exposure, conmerparty  credit spreads, liabiliey  funding
spresds (which include the Giom's own credit), probability of
defanle and asswmed recovery, These gains or losses also
include funding valuation adjustmenss (FVA} relating 1o
wicallatentlized dervative sssers, which represent the gins
or losses [including hedges) attributable 1o the impact of
chianges i expected funding exposures and funding spreads,

The table below presents information about CVA and FYA,

‘Taar Ended Doecemie

£ in milignz o S e 2021
CVA, nat of hadgas FNAE 30 5 0
Fya, niad of h ) 131 11531 B0
Total E m: 15 s &

Bifurcated Embedded Derivatives

The rable below presents the fair value and the notonal
amount of derivatives thar have been bifurcated from cheir
related barrowings,

A o Desmnber
§ in malione 2023 022
Far vaiue of aRsa1E H 450 5 ¥
Hrmmg__l__rm":ns EEH {3971
Het asset/{liability] E__143 5 0w

MNationsl amaunt § BOB2 5 8892

In the table above, derivarives thar have been bifurcited from
their related borrowings are recorded at fair value and
primarily consist of imerest rate, equity and commodity
products. These derivatives are included in unsecured shor-
and  long-term borrowings, az well as other secured
financings, with the related borrowings,

Derivatives with Credit-Related Contingent Features
Cerrain of the firm's deriviitives have been transacred under
bilareral agrecments with coumterparties who may require the
firm 1o post collateral or terminate the ransacions based on
changes in the firm's credit eatings. The firm assesses the
impact of these bilateral agreements by determining the
collateral  or wermimation  paymems  that would  occur
assuming a dewngrade by all rating agencies. A downgrade
by any one cating agency, depending on the agencys relative
ratings of the firm an the time of the downgrade, may have an
iipact which is comparable to ihe impact of a downgrade by
all raming agencies.
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The able below presents informarion abour net derivative
liabilities under bilaeral agreements (excluding callateral
posted), the fair value of collmeral posted and addivional
collateral or wrnmavon payvments that could have been
cilled by comnterparties in the event of a one- or two-notch
downgrade in the firm's credit ranings.

A o December

§ in rilions FLFE] FarrFl
et deeivative Tabii s uncer beanets agreements § 300H 5 35050
Covatery’ potiad § M58 5 Inam7
AdiE TR colIBe of 18I nen paymanty
Dina-ra el donmgracs L] M = sl
| weknich dowmoradin B 1584 5 101%
Hedge Accounting

The firm applies hedpe acconming for (i) interest Fe sw aps
wsed o manage the imerest rate exposure of cerain fixed-
rate unseoured longs and shor-term borrowings, certain
fixed-rare certificates of deposit and cerain LS. and non-
LLS. government securities chssified as available-for-ale, (@)
forcign currency forward comracs vsed 1o manage the
forcign exchange risk of certain securities  classified as
available-for-sale and (i1} fercign currency forward coniracis
aml foreign currency-denominated debt used 10 manage
foreign exchange risk on the frm’s ner investmens in cerrain
non-LL%. operations.

To qualiiy for hedpe accounting, the hedging instroment
must be highly effective ar reducing the nsk from the
exposuire being hedped. Addivionally, the firm must formally
cogument the hedging relatonshp at inception and assess the
hedging reladonship ar least on 2 quanerly basis o ensire the
hedging mstrument continees o be highly effective over the
lifie of the hedging relaionship,

Fair Value Hedges

The firm designares interest eate swaps as Gair value hedges of
certain fixed-rate unsecured long- and shon-term debt and
fixed-rare cermficanes of deposit and of certaim LLS. and non-
LLS. governmem securities classified as availableforsale,
These interest rate swaps hedge chanpes in fair valoe
attributable 1o the designated benchmark interest rane {e.g.,
Secured Overmight Fimancing Rate (SOFR), Overmight Index
Swap Rate or Sterling Overnight Index Average), effectively
converting a substamial pomion of these fixed-rare financial
instruments into floatng-rate financal instruments.

The fiom applies a stavstical method that onlizes regression
amalysis when assessing the effectivencss of these hedging
relationships in achieving offsening changes in the fair values
of the hedging mstromend and the nsk bang hedged (.0,
imterest rate risk). An interest rare swap is considered highly
clffective in offsetting changes in fair value attnibutable w
changes in the hedped risk when the regression analysis
results in a coefficiemt of determinanon of 80% or greater
anl 4 slope berween 80% and 1259,
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For qualifving inverest rate fair value hedges, gains or losses
o dervatives are included in imerest incomelexpense, The
change in fair value of the hedged items apribmable o the
risk being hedged is reported as an adjustment to itz carrying
value (hedging adjustmenty and is also incladed in interest
incomeexpense. When a derivative is no longer designated as
a hedge, any reniimang difference between the carrying value
and par valie of the hedged item is amomized in interese
income/expense over the remaining life of the hedged stem
using the effecrive interest method, See Note 23 for further
informatkom abou interest income and interest expense,

The table below presents the guns/{losses) [roin interest rate
derivatives accommied for as hedges and the related hedged
iteis,

Viear Engdad Qochrmbes
£ in mdiigne o] 2002 2021
Inwestmants
Inibadas] e hedgas g (WE)ls 388 2 -
Hadgail invassmen m 2 o
sina/fiosses] R S —
Borrowings and depasits

Inberest min hadges § 3,859 SiF2 &3l 5 MA3E
Hodged borrowings ard doposits [#,344) 21 02 K=
GainsS|losses) 5 [MBS|S mall 5 jukE

Thee 1able below presents the carrving value of invesuments,
deposits and unsecured borrowings that are designated in an
interest rate hedging relaionship and the relaed comulaive
hedging adjustment {increase/{decrease)) from corrent and
prior hedging relationships mcladed in such Guirrving values,

Cumulyzv
Carnying Hipdging

§ in mdiipng iy Askuireae]

As of Docembar 2023

AEruts

Irvmstmanits § 16523 5 [104)

Liabilities

Dpas s &  R4I5 % 1123

Unsacurid shar-harm b rgs § 14440 £ 84

Linsacirad lorg-tamn bormaw rgs $ 1992 5 (10.810)

Ax ol Decambse F023

AEnuts

Fastrmants 5 10604 S 3sm

Liabilities

Dot s § 8301 % {26

Unsacurad shon-bamn bomwings § 1795 % 147

Linancirad jong-bam barowings 5 MS1215 5 (05,154

In the rable above:

* Cumubative hedging adjusimen included 505.63) billion as
of December 2023 and 35.09 billion as of December 2022 of
hedging adjustments from prior hedging relationships thar
were de-desipnated and substantally all were related 1o
unsecured long-term borrowings,

* The amorized cost of investments was 517,33 allion as of
December 2023 and 511,49 ballion as of December 2022,

154 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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In addivion, cumulative hedging adjusuments for items no
lomger designated inoa hedgng relatonship were nog matenal
as of December 2023 and were $111 million as of December
20022, primarily related to unsecured long-tenm borrowings.

The fiem designates Foreign currency forward contriets as
fair value hedges of the foreign exchange risk of non-115,
government secunibics classilicd as avallable-for-sale. See
Note § for information about the amonized cost amnd fair
value of such securitics, The effectivencss of such hedpes is
assessed based on changes in spot sies, The gains/{losses) on
the hedges (relating 1o both spot and forward poims) and the
fareipn exchange gains{losses) on the related available-for-
satle securities are included in marker making. The ner losses
on hedges and the related hedged available-for-sale securitics
were 52 million {reflecting a loss of 5127 million relaed
hedges and a gain of 3125 million on the related hedged
available-for-sale securities) for 2023 and were 530 million
{reflecring & gain of 5286 million related 1o hedges and a loss
of 5296 million on the related hedped available-for-sale
securitiesy for 2022, The gross and net gins/{losses) were not
material for 2021,

Net Investment Hedges

The firm secks 1o reduce the impac of fucwanions in forcign
exchange rtes on its nel nvestments i certain non=LLS,
operations through the vse of fordgn corrency forward
contracts and  forcign  corrency-denominated  debr.  For
foregn currency forward contracts designated a5 hedges, the
cifectiveness of the hedge is assessed based on the overall
changes in the faie value of the forward conrecs (ie, based
on changes in forward raws). For foreign  currency-
denominated debt desipnared as 3 hedge, the effectivencss af
the hedge is assessed based on changes in spor rates. For
qualifying net investment hedges, all gaing or losses on the
hedging inseruments are included in currency teanslaton.

The able beow presents the gains/{losses) from  ner
investiment hedging,

oar Ercled Descomber

¥ in rvllons 2023 fryimr) 2031
Hadges:
Foraign curmency forwand contract § M) 51,13 & Iab
Faningh durisndy-decdrrinalid debt ] Eﬂ S {25 5 384
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Ceains or losses on individoal net investments in non-U15.
operations are  reclissified  from accumulated  other
comprehensive income/{loss) o other principal transactions
in the consolidated statements of camings when such net
investments are sofd or substantally liquidated, The ner
losses  reclassified o earmings [rom  accumulated other
comprehensive income’(loss) were 549 million (reflecting a
grin of 590 million relaed wo hedpes and 3 loss of
5132 million on the related net invesiments in non-LLS.
operations)  for 2023, The gross and ner gains/{losses)
reclassified 10 earnings from  accumulated  other
comprehensive income/(loss) were not material for both 2022
and 2021,

The firm had designated $27.52 hillion as of December 2023
and 521,46 billion as of December 2022 of foreipn currency-
denominated debr, included in unsecured long- and shor-
term borrowings, as hedpes of net investments i non-LLS,
sitbsidiarics.

Note 8.
Investments

Investmenis includes debr instruments and equity securities
that are accounted for at faie value and are generally held by
the fivnm in comnection with irs leng-term investang activitics.
I adidition, mvestments includes debr securties classified as
available-lor-sale and held-to-manuriey thar are generally held
in connection wiith the finn's assei-liability managemeni
actvities. lovestments also consists of cquity secunties that
are accounted for under the equity method.

The table below presents information about investments.

As o December
i miians Forx 2083
Ecpd Ty Securtas, ¥ M viue $ BT 3 V4R
Deba insrrumans, At 1n7 vaue 12,879 14,075
Aev abve-foran's spourtes, o Earve ue 49,141 0034
fvasimans, ot lae value 75,767 J8, 301
Ha'd 1o mah ey SeciLriTas 70310 5,657
Eqp) ty-rmanthod nvnstmants FER T
Tatal nvestmaents 5 146839 5 15067

See Mowe 4 for an averview of the finm™s fir value
measurement policies, valuation techmgues and significant
inputs used o determing the Gair valve of investments, and
Note § for informanon abour investments within the fair
vitlne hierarchy.

Equity Securities and Debt Instruments, at Fair Value
Equity securities and debq instroments, at fair value are
accounted for an fair value either under the fir value oprion
or in accordance with other LS. GAAP, and the related fair
vithie gains and losses are recognived in the consolidared
starements of eamings.
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Equity Securities, at Fair Value. Equity securitics, o lair
value consists of the firm's poblic and private equity
investimenis in corporte and real estate entities,

The table below presents infornation abost equity securinies,
ar fair valie.

hg o Dacember

§ w1 miligns 2023 a2
Equity securities, at fakr value 5 13747 5 140
Equsity Type

P ' ety 5% 13%
Priwain mou fy 51% B
Tatal 100% 10
Assot Class

Corporain % it
Ria astats % 205
Tatal 1000 10805
In the table above:

® Equaty  securities, at fae value included invesiments
accounted for an fair valee under the faie value oprion
where the finm would otherwise apply the equity method of
accounting of 5518 hillion as of December 2023 and 55,35
hillizn as of December 2022, Gains/{losses) recognized as a
resull of changes in the For valee of equity secunties for
which the fair value option was elocied were 5(638) million
for 2023 and $(86} million for 2022, These gains/{losses) are
included in ather principal teansaciions,

& Eouiiy securiiies, at fair value included $1.27 billion as of

Drecember 2023 and $1.30 billion as of December 2022 of
investments in finds thar are measured ar NAV,

Debt Instruments, at Fair Value, Debr instromenis, ar fair
value prmarily incudes mezzanine, sensor and  disiressed

dlebr.

The iable below presemits  information  abour  debi
instruments, an faire value,

As of Decernbar
5 o0 rmallons FOER 027
Cotporain dohi Seour T as s 85 5 100
Sacurtes backad by nay setals (5] 1,003
Monery markel ins&nsments 1,651 1,00
Cittanr 2,147 (=i
Total $ 128 5 14,07

In the table above:

* Substanually all of the firm’s money market instruments
consist of ime deposits,

& (ither incleded $1.73 hillion as of December 2023 and $1.64
Billion as of December 2022 af investments in credit funds
thar are measureed ar NAY,
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lnvestmaents in Funds at Net Asset Valua Per Share.
Ecquity securines and debt mstruments, at for value inglude
investments in funds thar are measured a1 NAV of 1the
investment fund. The lirm uses NAY o0 measure the Eair
value of fund investmems when (i) the fund investment does
not have a readily determinable Frie value and (i) the NAY of
the investment fund is caleubated in a manner consistent with
the measurement  principles  of  investment  company
aceonnting, including measurement of the investments at fair
vitlue,

Substanally all of the fiom’s investmens in funds ar NAY
conust ol vestments 1 foi-spossored  povate equity,
credin, real estare and hedge funds where the fiem co-invests
with third-party investors.

Povate equity [unds prmarnly wvest in a browd range of
industries  worldwide, including  leveraged  buyours,
recapitalizations,  prowth  investments  and  distressed
investments, Credit funds generally invest in loans and other
fixed imcome instruments and are (oossed on providing
private highevield capiral for leveraged and management
by o TEANSACTIONS, recapitaliziions, finzancings,
refimanangs, acquisitions and  restructunings for provate
equity [irms, private Bamily companics and corporate issuers.,
Feal estare funds invest globally, primanly in real estane
companies, loan  ponfolios, debr  recapitalizations  and
property. Sabsanmially all privare equiry, credit and real
estate funds are closed-end funds in which the firm's
investments are generally notr eligible for  redemprion.
[Mstribwons. will be received from these funds as the
underlying assers are liquidiaved or distributed, the iming of
which is uncerzain,

The fiom also wvesis 10 hedge funds, prmanly  mulii-
disciplinary hedge funds thar employ a fundamental borom-
up investmient approach across varons asset classes and
strategies. The fiem’s investments in hedge funds pomanly
include inerests where the underlying assets are illiquid in
nature, and proceeds from redemptions will not be received
intil the underlying assers are liquidated or disteibued, the
pming of which is unceriain,

The table below presents the Gor value of mvestmens in
fusnes ar NAV and the rebuted unfunded commirments.

Far Vilus of Unhundad
$ 24 eradbgng Iwestmatecs  Commitmeencs
s of Dacambar 2023
Frovinn agu Ty hands H a7 § 484
Cracld hunda 1. 733 FL
Hadkga fuhoh 48 -
Reaa! astnne fundis 348 B5

Tota s _Sews 7w
s ol Decambes JOTT

Frumte pouty funds 4 21k % gar
Lty fusicls |52k 3m
Hadga funds L -
Fna | msinte funds 413 138
Jata £ P 1088
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Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-for-sale securitics are accounted for at fair value,
amd the related wnrealized fair value gains and losses are
included in accumulated other comprehensive ingome(loss)
unless designated ina fair value hedging relationship, See
Naote 7 for information abour available-for-sale securities
thar are designared in a hedging relationship.

The table below presems imformation about available-for-
sale securinies by wenor,

Waaghtad
Amaortized Far  Acerage
§ in millong Cost Wl Wi
As o December 2023
Lasa than 1 year § 20,027 § 19,687 e
1 yaar o & yaam 27557 26,500 1.83%
4 ymars 1o 10 ynars 586 544 2.05%
Tatal US it o fons 731 1.255%
Lass than 1 year 1 1 0018
1 yaar 1o & paas 1,635 1,420 010
5 yRars 1o 10 yaars 1,150 974 OLB%
Tatal non-U.S. govemmsnt 2796 2410 oL
Tatal svallsbbe-lor-sake securities 5 51001 549141 L
A of Decambar FIET
Less than 1 yoar £ B0a 5 ram 0.37%
1 yoar 1o & yaars 4147e A D 0,74t
& ymars 1o 110y : 58 JEE 1%%
Tota U5 gowvernmant ob gatons EO120  d7065 .68 %
1 waar io & yaars 1] 11+] 037
4 yoars io 10 ynams 2615 2108 i0.40%
I oéa ml!.ﬁ.mn‘uﬂnm obr gatons ?.ﬁ_gﬁ 2118 0. 40%
Tota” v abio-dor-asa securil B 3 bi."..r-lﬁ 39 20 i

In the table above:

* The weighted average vield for available-for-sale securinies
is presemted on a pre-tax basis and computed wsing the
effective interest rate of cwch secunty a1 the end of the
pered, weighted based on the fair value of each securiny.

* The gross unrcalized gains included in accumuolaced other
comprehensive income/iloss) were not materal and the
gross pnrealized losses included 0 accumulated other
comprehensive inomel(loss)  were 5133 bBillion as ol
December 2023 and primarily redated 1o LS. government
obligations 1n a continuous unrealized loss position for
mare than a year, The gross onrealized gains included in
accumulated other comprehensive income/{loss) were not
material and the gross worealized losses included in
accumulated  other comprehensive  income{loss)  were
53.52 hillion as of December 2022 and pomanly related o
LS, government obligitions in 4 continuons uneealived
loss position for more than a year. Nev unrealized gains’
(losses) ncluded in ather comprehensive income{lossh were
51,65 billion (51,25 hillion, net of w@x) for 2023 and
A(2.85 hillion (3(2,13) billion, net of wax) for 20022,

* Substantially all available-for-sale securities were Jassified
in level | of the fair value hicrarchy as of boath December
2023 and Decermnber 2022,
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* 0f the fair value of available-for-sale securitics is less than
amartized cost, such secortes are considered wpaired, [
the fiem has the intem 1o sell the debr secury, or if it is
maore likely than not that the firm will be required 1o séll
the debr security before recovery of its amonised cost, the
difference berween the amorized cost {net of allowance, if
any) amd the fair value of the secontics 15 recognized as an
impairment loss in earnings. The firm did not record any
such impairment losses duning  either 2023 or 2022,
Impaired available-for-sale debr secorities thar the firm has
the intent and abilicy to hold are reviewed o determine if
an allowance for credit losses should be recorded, The firm
considers vanious factors in such derermination, including
market conditions, changes i issuer credit ratngs and
severily of the nnvealized losses, The finm did not recornd
any provision for credit losses on such secunties during
gither 2023 or 2023,

The table below presems cash inflows/fourflows) and

realized gains/{losses) related 1o available-for-sale securities.

Yot Enclid Ducirnibad
3w miigng plare ] 00T 2021
Purchaios £ B8R F 3753 F ER20E
Frocaads from S5as $ 318 3 i & M4BER
¥ i from At h £ 8130 % 2 5 &0
Gaoms fod 2ed gard £ B X - & 208

Coss raazed ases = = 1]
Mt gaing/floesan] O e
In the rable above, the specific identficanon method is used
oy determine realized gains on available-for-sale securinies,

Held-to-Maturity Securities
Held-to-marurity securitics are accounted for st amorized
caast,

Tl vable below presents information about held-to-maturity
seenrinies by type and wenor.
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In the table above:

* Substannially all of the government obligations consist of
L4, government obligations.

& Substanually all of the securiiies backed by real estaie
consist of securities backed by residential real estare,

® A these securitics ave not accounted for an Bair value, they
are not included m the firm's Gair valoe erarchy in Notes
4 and 3, Had these securities been included in the firm’s fair
value hierarchy, government obligations would have been
classified in level 1 and securities backed by real estane
would have been primarily dassified in level 2 of the fair
value hicrarchy as of bath December 2023 and December
2022,

The weighted average vield for held-io-marrity securitics
15 presented on a pre-tax basis and computed wsing the
eifective interest rate of each security o the end of the
penod, weghted based on the amorbized cost of each
ARCUINY,

® The pgross wnrealized gains were 5383 million a5 of
December 2023 and were not material as of December
2022, The gross unrealized losses were 3801 million as of
December 2023 and 51 .44 billion as of December 2022

Held-to-maturity secunties are réviewed to determme if an
allowance for credin losses shoubd be recorded in the
consolidated statements of camings. The finm considers
vanous factors in soch determination, including market
conditions, changes in issuer credit ranings, historical credi
losses and sovercign poarantees, Provision for credit losses
on such securities was not material during cither 2023 or
2002,

The table below presents cash inflows'{outflows) related 10
held -po-maturity securities,

Yoot Ercled Decambar

5 in rvlkons 2023 2022 2021
W pd 3
2 v f:mﬂ‘*m Purchases $(26,230) & BO.0%00 5 (H
§in mdions Coat Value Yiekd Procends from prydesms and maiiies 8 Be0d & 4871 5 B
Lozs than 1 yoar £ 13475 § 13382 2.90%
1 ymar 1o S yaars 54,789 54,352 1.58%
4 yoars ta B0 yoars 1848 1861 3.04%
Total government ohigations 0,112 69,595 3.46%
1 yoaf io & paes k] 2 7.9%
Grostar than 10 years 198 195 5.90%
Tital securities backed by real estate 158 197 .G
Total held-1o-man securities £ TOA10 § 6972 A AT
da of Decambar J027
Ln=s than 1 yoar € L3195 58D A%
1 yoar 10 S e ah, 154 43,852 200%
b ynas o II:I'.ME I,@ 'BLB 2RO
M\ml oy gatons !ﬂ.-@& 50.111} T 09%
& yairs b 50 yes 2 2 BELE
Graater than 10 years 161 15 3188
Tata securtas hacked by real astate [[5] 160 3249
Ttk Io-ram Ry secuites § hipes & boono  2oow
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Note 9.
Loans

Loans  includes (1) loans held  for imvestment that are
aceonnted Tor ot amorticed cost net of allowance for loan
losses or at fair value under the fur value option and (i)
loans held for sale that are accounted for at the lower of oost
or fair value. Interest on loans is secopnized over the life of
the loan and is recorded on an accrual basis.

The table below presents information about loans,

Aot Fait Higld Fos
§ i rndliang _ Carlt Vi Silg Teral
s of Docambar T02F
Loan Type
O e § 31868 § § 1249 § 3587
Commadcis redi esmbs 25,085 BEF 440 26,028
Rasidental real asiate LI 45 - 5388
Lacirtas-hasad 14,821 - - 14,621
Crhar cosiaiars ed 61,105 11 209 E2.235
Consumnr;
sty mant 50 - 2,048 3,298
Cradt caris 17,432 - 1929 19,361
Drher 1,333 128 152 1,613
Tatal lpans, groas 174,875 [ 7027 188408
Adowancs foe isan ioases 6, ) = - {5058
Total boane § G085 § GRO0E 5 T0IT S181358
Loan Type
Canpacabis § MER 5 0 S 2397 § 40,134
Commadcal radl el Fiidrrr g 1, i 1,611 28,678
Rt idantal nd: ae1ale 1B&S23 451 ! 23,035
Setirtind-based tear - - 16,671
Orther cod@are e a3 Ll =13 51,002
AT
nsmmant 326 - - 6,328
Cirpd i cards 16 EM - - 1520
{xthar 1,033 284 P 2,261
Iotal \pans, gFoss 113560 PGk 4,594 184.E39
Mipvance {or loan ipases [T ] = = ih Bt

Tat ipans € /037 € 7eh € AEAa €170.088
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In the table above:

* Loans held for investment that are accounted for ot
amonized cost include net deferred foes and costs, and
unamortized premipms and discounes, which are amorized
over the life of the loan, These amowms were less than 1%
of loans accoumed for ar amonized cost as of both

December 2023 and December 3022,

* During 2023, rhe firm complered the sale of substanially
all of the Marcus installment loans portfolio. As a resul,
the firm recognized net revenues of 3(367) million, which
was more than offset by a related reduction in reserves of
5442 roalliom an provisson for credin losses,

* Dwring 2023, in connection with the planned sale of
Greensky, the firm  transferred  the conire GreenSky
installment loan portfolio af approximatey $6.0 billion 1o
held for sale. Sec Nowe 18 for information about relaved
commitments thar were classified as held for sale. As a
result, the firm recopnized net revenoes of S2000 million,
which were more than offset by a related reduction in
reserves of 5637 million in provision for credit losses,
During the fourth quarter of 2023, the firm completed the
sale of approsmately 540 kallion of this portfolio and the
remaining portfolio is expected 10 be sold in the first
quarter of 2024,

* During 2023, the  firm  ransferred  approsimately
5200 billion of the GM co-branded credit card ponfolio 1w
held for sale, As a result, the iem recognized o reductoon in
reserves of S160 million in provision for credin losses,

* During 2023, the fiom purchased a ponfolio of
approximately $15.0 billion of prvate equity capaal call
credit facilivies (including approximarely $9.0 billion of
funded leans) from the FINC's avciion of Signature Bank's
loans, As of December 2023, the autstanding balance of
siech loans was approximately 56.0 billion and the related
retuing  lending  comminments  were  approximately
5480 billion. See Nowe 18 for fumher informarion abour
lending commitments,

* Substantially all loans had Deaing interest mes as of both
December 2023 and December 2022,
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The following is a description of the loan types in the rable
abave;

* Corporate. Corporate loans inclades weem loans, revalving
lines of credit, letter of credic faclivies and bridge loans,
and are poncapally wsed for operatng and  peneral
COTpOTale PUFPOsEs, or in connection wirth acouisitions.
Corporate loans are secured {iypically by a senier lien on
the assets of the borrower) or unsecured, depending on the
loan purpose, the nsk profile of the borrawer and other
factors,

* Commercial Real Estate. Commercial real cstae loans
ncludes orgimated foans that are directly ot imdirccely
secured by horels, renail  stores, mulsifamily  howsing
complexes and commercial and  industrial propertics.
Commercial real estate loans also mcludes loans extended
w clients who warchouse assets that are direaly or
indircctly backed by commercial real atare. In addioon,
commercial real estare includes loans parchased by the
firm.

* Residential Real Estate. Hesidennal real estare loans
primarily includes loans extended o wealth management
clients and to clients whe warchouse assets that are dircaly
or imdirectly secured by ressdential real ssate, In addivion,
residential real estare includes loans purchased by the firm.

* Securities-Based. Sccunties-based loans mdudes loans
thar are secured by stocks, bomds, mual funds, and
exchange-traded (unds. These loans are primarily extended
e the firm’s wealth management clients and osed for
purposes ather than porchasing, carrving or irading margin
stocks, Securites-based loans require bormowers 1o post
addivional collareral based on changes in the underlving
collateral's Eair value.

* Other Collateralized, Other collateralized loans mcludes
loans thar are backed by specific collateral (other than
secunities and real estatel. Such loans are extended w
cliems who warchouse assers thar are direcely ar indirectly
secured by corporate loans, consnmer loans and other
assets, (hher colliteralized loams also includes loans 1o
investment funds {managed by thied parrics) thar are
collaterabized by capial commitments of the funds'
investors or assets held by the fumd, as well as other
secured loans extended 1o the fiem®s wealth management
clients,

* Installment. Ilnstallment loans are wnsecured  loans
originated by the firm.

# Cradit Cards. Credit card loans are loans made pursuan
o revolving lines of credin issued o consumers by the finm,

* Other. Other loans includes unsecorad loans extended 1o
wealth management chients and wnsecored consumer and
credit card loans purchased by the firm.
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Sec Note 4 for an overview of the fiem’s [air value
memsurement palicies, valwaton wehmgues and sigmificine
inputs wsed 10 determine the fair value of loans, and Nowe 5
for information abowt loans within the Far value hiesrchy.

Cradit Quality

Risk Assessment. The firm's risk assessmem process
includes evaluating the eredie quialicy of 1 loans by the finn's
independent  risk  oversight and  control  function.  For
corporate loans and a majority of securities-based, real
estate, other collateralized and other loans, the firm performs
credin analyses  which  incorporate initial and  ongoing
evilmtions of the cipacity and willingness of a borrower 1o
meet s financial obligatons, These credit evaluations are
performed on an annual basis or more frequently il deemed
necessary s 3 result of events or changes in arcumsiances,
The firm determines an intermnal credit rating for the
borrower by considerimg the resulis of the credit evaluations
and assumptions with respect to the natre of and omlook
for the borrower's industry and the economic environmeni.
Beginning in the first quarter of 2023, the finm also akes ino
consideration collareral received or other credic suppon
arrangements when determuning oo internal credin sing on
collaeralized  loans, as  management  belipves  that  this
methodolopy  better  reflects  the ersdit quality of  the
underdying loams, In the tble below, prior period amounts
have been conformed 1o reflect the current methodology. The
pmpsict 1o December 2022 was an merease in loans classified
as investment-geade and a decrease in loans classified as non-
investment-grade of 5250 hillion in real estte (warchowse
Hoans) and other collaeralized loans, For consumer loans and
for loans that are not assigned an internal crediv rating, the
firm reviews ceriain key metrics, including, but nov limired
o, the Fair Isaac Corporation (FICOY credit scores,
delinquency statns, colliteral value and other risk factors,
Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023, the finm began o
assess the credit qualiey of all LS. residential monigapge loans
extemded to wealth management Jdiems using FICO rada
scores, loan-to-value ratios and delinguency, instead of an
intermal eredic raung, as the fiom believes thar these metncs
bener reflecr the credit quality of such loans, In the mble
below, prior period amoums have been conformed 1o reflect
the corrent methodology, The impact 1o residential real
estate loans as of December 2022 was a decrease in loans
classafied as mvestment-grade of 52,3 billion, a decrease in
loans classified as non-investment-geade of 52,7 billion and
am imerease i other metrics of 5.2 billion,
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The 1able below presents pross loans by an inernally
determmined public ranng agency equivalent ar other credit
metrics and the concentemion of seoured and unsecured
loans.

Irvastmant:  Mondmssirant:  CHher Mabnca)

5 v oy Giitades irada Urearad Testal
As ol Dpcpmbae 2023
Acoounting Method
emawrt o oot £ 9134 § 4200 & 29351 5§ 174875
Farwaiue 1212 1213 4,081 B.506
Hoid fo sa'a mo__ ves 6144 702
Total 5 82791 § 57041 5 385TH 5 THEA08
Loan Type
Coiporata & 9408 § 26328 & 128 § 3580
Fnal esinbe:
Commasnla 12087 13,574 %7 26028
Fnsdontia 10,771 3217 11,400 26,388
Securitns-hased 10,581 51 1,069 14,621
Orther coddtars i ned 4B S35 13207 482 G225
Congumar:
iy manl = - 3,288 3208
Cradit cht - - 18,361 19361
Oothae SR 154 471 1613
Jota SRS Sjon 3 Sesie s seos
Sacirod 1% el A% 8%
Unascursd i) % B0% 1%
Tatal 100% 100 1007 et
Aapl Decambar JUZZ
Aooounting Method
Mot zod oot € BLOID § B3hE0 £ 32000 S 172580
Fae vl 1Lz 1844 + 600 rA66
Hird for 28'e BBF 3000 a6 hi]
Te¥ 5 FERGRE & [ JE a6 5 IBL RIS
Loan Type
Carporata 5 L0 § s 5 -5 40138
Fih| da1abi!
Commasia 11,622 VEBXE 135 A
Bnsdenia = 3 2,904 10,535 300
Socuritins-basad 12800 M 4006 AN
Crthaee codanaraged 43090 i ] alE 81,708
M AR
WELE - - 6326 6328
Cradi cands - - 162D 16830
Crthar 1,080 584 i) 228
ata 5 _Efges S . 30§ 36, 1a8 5 184 839
Secired % ab 3 9%
Unaacursd 1% 10% B3 21%
o 10 [0 T .
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In the table above:

= Substantially all residential real estate loans included in the
other metricshmerted citegory consisis of loans extended
1o wealth managememt clients. As of both December 2023
and December 2022, substantially afl of such loans had a
Ipan-ro-value rario of less than §% and were performing
i accordance with the contractual werms, Additionally, as
of both December 2023 and December 2022, the vast
majority of such loans had a FICO credit score of greater
than 740,

Substamially all securities-based loans included in the other
metncsiunrated citepory had a loan-to-value ratio of les
than 80% and were performing in accordance with the
contractel terms as of both December 2023 and December
2022,

* For instalimem and credit card loans included in the ather
metnicsunrated category, the evaluation of credin quality
agorponites the borrower™s FICO credin seore. FICO) eradit
seores are pernodically refreshed by the firm 1o assess the
updated credimwaorthiness of the borrower. See “Vintage”
below for information abour snseallmens and credin card
loans by FICO credin scores.

The fiem also assigns a regolatory sk saong o s loans
based on the definitions provided by the LS. federal bank
regubatory agencies. Total loans included 92% of loans as of
December 2023 and 93% of loans as of December 2022 tha
were rated passinon-criticized.
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Vintage. The tables below present gross loans accounted for A o4 Duoarmibes 2032
at amorized cost (excludiog mstallment and credit cand e n......-:‘:; o
loans) by an inteenally derermined public rating agency £ in mlfons [y Gaoe  Urak Tots
ciuivalent or other credit metrics and ongimation vear for Wz 3 2EGT B 4047 § I3 555
term loans, ) 1669 4173 - B
2020 e 7,588 - 3279
Ao of Dorambar 2027 213 200 2779 - zges
[re— mx mﬁ 018 i o = 160
$inmlinns Grads Grade  Unraed Totsl 2017 of sarkar e 138 - zgr
03 $ zam 8 1z s % 5 440 %:’: :: :ﬁ 2:«;:.: - ;:‘T
02T 1223 3784 - @507 P —_— =1L
0 s 40 3 e ] B0 3,500 T 4
00 TR - zam o i 3460 - 4
e 3 1,509 = 1,954 o 407 ] = 2047
Z01E or wartier m FRL- - 2473 Eolb] 1 1,255 - 1,560
Ritvodarg 2857 .30 20 13232 218 2 462 - 681
“Comporate 175 24705 6 33806 21T o earkal 118 kL " 2,048
2003 51 1547 T FETTR Recvabrg TEED 3.000 - 1088l
Fist) 1381 2,608 = 4088 Revrbring conveited 10 teim 145 12 - 157
o 1134 261 = 17 o | toil SR 1.573 14.638 13 26222
o m 1284 = 1,508 2022 EEL 4 1835 363
o e 1 -3 1081 N 17 143 2848 3508
TOE o ardier oz Te4 - 1576 ;’21?‘; : 8 : m
Ripodbang FREL] ERL - iy 10,650 - n
Ravahang comuarnd to Wem F2) - = 231 21 i s 138 e
Commardal raal astate TLER Vg T man it a 4 1= ta
2073 613 54 TET 2300 L £0%2 2387 13 woie
v g o 41 2687 2836 Memdenaal resl osiee LR 2,663 6172 18520
00 k> M8 2T 2mes e ] ] . §
0 3 F= £ w07 218 1 = - !
2018 [ - B 5 2017 e earker = Ee] = 20
S or parkier - 0 Tl 74 Revwhing 12,805 v 008 16474
Ravoberg a8 2EEE i 12,636 Seturtd-hited 1250 TE 3005 16,671
Rasidantial real sstate [ 3210 7462 21343 222 4.550 5 Mz a4
FE T B - = ] ekl 3,189 1,078 148 4,513
frin vy ] - - 5 ek LETY 701 38 2608
B o sartiee - 203 - B0 g 260 ki ] 1z 351
Revoterg 10578 Fa] = 14 305 ama L B & (]
Baourities-based 10881 561 lg 14,621 2017 of earket p-c 10E = A
L] BA1Z 276 % BA24 Rrvahieg 086 5383 7 3sm
prinr.rg 1,840 243 [ ] 2,302 Pmmmnmm Aoy [53 = SEIL
Ho 1883 B e 20 Oches collaserslized 47,960 B ing i B0.473
o 1756 Er 2 1,757 e 44 165 - 148
g 1 ™ # 260 2021 7 182 - 178
NG o sardige A% L n £33 iz - n 262 Fac
Foavobong 8605 ez 1 A i 2019 3 1] - 10
Rivebarg comveriad b bem 1,161 - - 1,161 17 or varker - - L] 5
Othar call lizaed 41870 12,758 4T 61,105 Revobrg 0 58 L) 1,089
i ] &0 n = &1 Dt Lot 365 T 1,723
Fros g &7 ] = T8 Tertsl i 709§ 21580 % LRSS g iondas
i b : ;; ; Fercentage of wal B 3% % T
prnl-] - - 'l i PR : = 1 =
SO o sardier _ B b 3 Beginming i the founh quarter of 2023, revolving loans that
Roustung BO3 B0 = BE3 were converted 1o term Inans are presented in 2 separate line
_Othar (1] 121 ] 1233 in the rable above, Prior to the fourth quaner of 2023, such
Total OIS S4T00 § 11669 § VELIEE loans were presemied within the mble by the vear of
Parcartags of total 4% 5% b 166% origination and the ol amount of revolving loans which

converted 10 term loams was disclosed separately, Prior
perind amounts  have been  conformed 10 the cureent
preseniation,
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The rable below presents gross installinent loans accounted
for an amorized cost by relreshed FICO credin scores and
origination vear and pross credit card loans by refreshed
FICC credin scores,

GEBeNEr Than or

§ = rdiigng gl Y G50 Leds. than 680 T
s of Decembar 2021
W23 ] o§ i % i
oy 112 L] 50
S0 of ek 11 = 1"
Installmans 22 L =0
Crodin eards 1,818 £.313 T AR
Total & 11,341 § £341 % 17882
Parcamtage of total:
e irren; S 1% L= e
Crock: ceerds [ 36% 100
Tutal B 36% 1%
— - — —
Aa o Decernber 2022
ey 5 4348 § M 5 a8m
20 1,080 1 1,1E9
;s ] P 23 M
)] 18 n 183
e i) 13 Bl
20T or parlier -] 1 &
realiment I 411 6,324
Credt cards 18 T2 058 15.820
Tarsl i 16,677 % S455 § 11148
Parcesvibge of w65l
b ] W &% e
Creds coeds BEN 3% 100
M FEE i I{! 5

I the rable above, credin cand loans consist of revolving lines
of credit.

Credit Concentrations. The table below presents the
concentration of gross loans by region,
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In the table above:
= EMEA represemts Europe, Middle Ease and Afnca,

* The op five industry concentrations for corporaie loans s
of December 2023 were 23% for technology, media &
telecommumications, 17% for diversified indostrials, 13%
for real estare, 11% for consumer & retail and 9% for
healtheare.

* The op five indostry concentrations for corporate loans as
of December 2022 were 28% for echnology, media &
telecommunicitions, 18% for diversified indostrials, 11%
for real estate, 10% for healtheare and 10% [or consuiner
& retail,

Nonaccrual, Past Due and Modified Loans. Loans
accounted for at amortized cost {other than credin card loans)
are placed on nonaceroal status when it is probable that the
firm will nov collecr all principal and inrerest due under the
contractual terms, regardless of the delingquency status or if a
foan is past due for 90 davs or more, unless the loan is both
well collmeralized and in the process of collection, Ar tha
timis, all accrued but wncollecred mterest 15 reversed against
iterest  ancome  and interest  subsequently  collecred s
recopmized on a cash basis o the extent the loan balance 15
decmed collectible, Otherwise, all cash received 15 used 1o
reduce the oustanding loan balance. A loan is considered
past due when a princpal or interest pavment has not been
made according o irs comractual terms, Credit card loans
are not placed on nongcerual stas and accroe interest wnail
thee boaun is paid in Cull or is charged off,

The mable below presents informarion about past dog loans.

B0 days
Caamyireg & in milions Hf days o mone Tatal
5§ i millons Walss Amences  EMEA  Asa Toaal As of Deoember 2023
A ol Dcwmn Bspr 2023 Comarate 5 4% 5 a5 s
':nm-ui:u § 35874 B3% % B% 100 % Commascal raal astatn 37 ase 489
o cal rasl 85780 28,008 B0 7% W 100% Fnsdantay sl eslabe 12 4 1]
Resdenal real ea237e 25,388 5% a 1% 100% Saburiliea-baded 2 - 2
Secundes-based 14,621 TEY Tt 1% 100% Dithaet o'l aea 2o a 7 16
(e collaterabzed B2.275 B 104 % 1% Comauries
Consumar Ingratrmsnt & 13
Irvszabrreen 1208 100% - - 1% Craadil cands A2 486 4
Credis cands W 100% - - 100% Oithaaer 7 11 18
Db LB T A - toe%  Tatal § B3 § 0§ 1621
e O ol iviged By gres KRS BT ATROTLNG cont 0.5%
Az o Dacember 2000
Corporste $40135  ETH 3aW 0% 100% &s.0f Decomnier 2032
Commencal retl exaie AT MW W &% 100% Comanxta 5 - & s a2
Rassenfarryss] rpl rgnn s FA0EE 9% 3% 14% 100% Comimenic’al real astate a3 1 408
Seoundes-tesed 168671 BY% 15% % 100% Ras'dantal real axlabe 4 & L]
hbar cotlaterabned 51,702 B 2% % 100 Sacurt re-tosed i - 1
ki Ot oy s ernzad 10 B 15
inssalimens s 10078 - - 100 Consurma
Cred cada 1HEN 100 - - 100 Instairrant 48 17 63
[t 7381 L 1% - 100% el conds 1 265 B4
Teval $184E0 Gl% 150, L5 1005 Cribae 17 ) 22
Toay 5 A8 § 753 & 1 1EA
loan: dwidad by Gross ourd a1 B ized oos 0,7%
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The mable below presemis information about nonsccrual
loans,
Al of Disannb=s

5 in mullions DOEE 002
Corpomtn 5 1,778 5 1,433
Commaecia’ roal natate 1,465 1,004
Fasdanta redl estate 149 a3
Orthar cofiatara’zed B50 &k
Crthar 7 =
st mant - 21
Tirtal £ 4141 & 3ha
Tatal divided by gross loans at amontized cost 24% 1.6%
I the table above:

* Nonaccrual loans incleded S600 million as of December
2023 and S48% million as of Decermber 2022 of loans that
wiere 30 davs or more past due.

Loans that were 90 days or more past due and still accring
were not matenial as of both December 2023 and December
2022,

Allowance for loan loses a5 a percentage of ol
nomacerual foans was 122.0% as of December 2023 and
Nk 5% as of Decerber 2022,

Commercial real estate, residential real estare and other
collareealized loans are collateeal dependem loans and the
repayment of such loans is generally expecied o be
provided by the operation ar sale of the underlying
collateral, The allowance for credit losses for such
nonaccrual loans is determined by considenng the fair
value of the collateral less estimared cost o sell, if
appficable,

In cerain circumstances, the fiem may modify the original
werms of 2 loan agreement by granting a concession 1o a
borrower experiencing financial difficuliy, rvpically in the
form of a modiiciion of loan covenants, but may also
include forbearance of inerest or  principal,  payment
extensions or interest rate reductions. These modifications, 1o
the extent significant, were considered TDRs as of December
2022 In January 2023, the fiem adopred ASL No. 3202200,
which eliminated the recogmition and measuremen goidance
for TDRs and requires enhanced disclosures for cerain loan
maodifications. As of December 2022, loans modified in a
TR were 5231 million and commitments related 1o such
foans were not material. Substantally all of sech loans
mmaohified i a TDR were relited w corporate and commercal
real estate loans, During 2023, the firm provided loan
madifications (in the form of erm extensions) o borrowers.
experiencing finangal difficulty, As of December 2023, the
carrving value of loans modified during 2023 was
5846 million. Lending commitments related 1o such loans
were nor maerial and such  loan  modificuions were
primarily related to corporate and commercial real csiate
Toans, The impact of thee modilications was not matersal for
2023 During 2023, the firm charged-off approximarely
S million of loans that had delfalied after being modified,
Substzimrially all of the remaining modified loans were
performing in accordance with the medified conrractual
terms s of December 2023,

Allowanee for Credit Losses

The firm's allowance for credit losses consists of the
allowance for losses on loans and lending comminments
accounted for at amorized cost. Loans amd  lending
commitments accounted for at fair valve or accounted for ar
the lower of cost or Gair value are not subjedt 1o an allowance
for credin losses.

To determine the allowance for ceedin losses, the firm
classifies i1s loans and lending commitments accounted for at
amorrized cost into wholesale and consumer pordolios,
These portfolios represent the level at which the firm has
developed and docomented its methodology 1o determine the
allowance for credit losses. The allowance for credit losses is
mepsured on o collective basis for loans that exhibir similar
risk characieristics wsing @ modeled approach and on an
asset=specific basis for loans that do not share similar nsk
characieristics,
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The allowance for credit losses eakes into accoumt the
weighted average of @ range of lorecsts of fuwre economic
conditions over the expeced life of the loan and lending
commitments, The expected hfe of each loan or lending
commitment is determined based on the comracmal term
adjusted for extension opuons or demand features, or is
madeled 1 the case of revolving credit card loans, The
forecasts include baseling, favorable and adverse econoimic
scenanos over a three-vear period, For loans with expected
lives beyomd three vears, the model revers o historical loss
informatton based on a non-lincar modeled approach. The
forecasted economic scemarios consider 3 number of risk
factors relevant 1o the wholesale and consumer portfolios
descnbed below, The finm apphes judgment in weighing
individuwal scenarios each quarer based on a2 variely of
factors, including the finm's intermally denved economic
outlook,  markel  consensus,  recenl  ImdCroecOINIC
conditions and industry trends,

The allowance for credit losses also includes gualiative
components which allow management 1o eeflect the uncernin
nawre  of cconomic  forecasting,  capture  uncerainty
regarding model mputs, and account for medel imprecision
and concentration risk.

Management’s estumate of credit losses entails judgment
about the expected Hife of the loan and loan collecrabality ar
the reporting dates, and there are uncertainties inherent in
those judgments, The allowance for credhin losses is subject o
a4 povernance proces thar invalves review and approval by
semior  management within the firm®s  independent risk
oversight and conteal functions, Personnel within the firm’s
independem  risk oversight and  comtrol  functions  are
responsible for forecasting the  economic varables  that
underlie the cconomic scenarios thar are used in the madeling
of expected credit losses. While management uses the best
information available 1o determine this cstimate, future
adjustments o the allowance may be necessary based on,
among other things, changes in the cconomic environment or
variances berween acal resulis and the origingl assumprions
used.

174 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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The table below presemis pross  loans  amd  lending
commitments accounted for a1 amonized cost by portfalio,

A3 ol Deceribe
3 piserd
Landing Lardeg
& mdlons Lisanis Commimenis Loars  Corrimans
Whaolesals
Corporats § 33856 § MLETE £ 3687 & 137149
Corrmarciad real es%atn 26,075 amn 2822 3002
Rgbafaril resl matate 21,242 1AM 18623 080
Sacuntes-based 482 L1 18671 508
Orhar collatarshzed B1,108 23,020 SATA 13,200
Thar 1433 HER 1.783 944
Cansumuar
Inginfirpnt 50 i 8.338 LB
CF aahT cangs 17,452 S6,478 15820 826
M ‘w 5 EJE § 172520 i 222,689

In the table above, whaolesale loans incladed 54,14 ballion as
of December 2023 and 52,67 billion as of Decerber 2022 of
nonaccrual loans for which the allowance for cradit losses
wits measired on an asset-specific basis. The allowance for
credin losses on these loans was 5778 million as of December
2023 and S535 mullion az of December 2022, These loans
included 3625 million as of December 2023 and 5384 million
as of December 2022 of loans which did not require a reserve
a5 the loan wias deemed o be recoverable,

See MNote 18 for [writher information aboui  lending
COm s,

The following is a description of the methodology used 10
calenlare the allowance for credit losses:

Wholesale. The allowance for credin losses for wholesale
loans and lending commirments. thar exhibit similar risk
charactenstics i meisored vsing a modeled approach. These
models determine the probability of defauli and loss given
default based on vanows risk factors, induding internal credie
ratngs, industry  default and  loss data, expected  life,
macroeconomic indicators, the borrower’s CAPACY L0 mect
its financial obligations, the borrower's country of risk and
industrey, loan semiorty and collweral vpe. For lending
commiimenis, the meithodology  also  considers  the
prabability of drawdewns or funding, In addition, for loans
backed by real estate, visk factors include the loan-ta-value
ratiey, debt service ratio and home poce mdex, The maost
significant inputs to the forecast model for wholesale loans
and lending commitments include unemplovient rates, GDP,
credhit spreads, commeraal and industrial delinguency rates,
short- and long-term interest rates, and oil prices.
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The allowance for loan losses for whalesale loans that des not
share siilar nsk charaaensoc, such s nonacermal loans, 15
calcubared nsing the presemt value of expecred fure cash
flows discounted at the loan's effective rate, the observable
marker price of the loam, or, in the cise of collueral
dependent loans, the Eair value of the collateral less esumated
costs 1o sell, iF apphaible, Wholesale loans are charged off
against the allowance for loan losses when deemed 1w be
uncallectible.

Consumer. The allowance for crediv loses for consuimer
loans than exhibit similar risk characreristics is caloulated
usirie 4 modeled approach which casalies consumer loans
into pools based on borrower-reloted and exposure-related
charactenstics that differentiate a pool's risk characteristics
from other pools, The factors considered in determining a
pool are generally consistent with the risk characteristics used
far internal credit msk measwrement and management and
include key metrics, such as FICO credin scores, delinguency
status, loan vintage and macroeconomic indicators. The most
significamt inputs 1o the forecast maodel for consumer loans
include unemployment rates and delinguency  rates. The
expected life of revolving credit card loans s determined by
maodeling expecred funre deaws and rhe timing and amoon
of repayments allocatd w the funded balance. The firm also
recognizes an allowance for credit losses on commitments 1o
acquite loans. However, no allowance for credit losses s
recognized on credie card lending commitments as they e
cancellable by the firm,

Installment loans are charged off when they are 120 days past
due, Credir card loans are changed of§ when they are 180 days
past due.
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Allowanecs for Credit Losses Rollforward
The rable below presens information abour the allowance

for credit losses,

F » rvliona

Wholesais  Concsumar Vol

Year Ended Decembar 2003
Allowance for losn [osses

Begeinng baiance § 2B&2 5§ 2981 § 5543
Crasgectts M55 (1248 (1701)
Rpcovers 55 o8 5%
Ho dchargosof bt s [ELC]] 11.148) i1, 545]
Provasion A0 (4] 1,1
Crhar [126] -
Ending balance 5 257 § 2474 § 6,080

Allwenoe retie
mmnummu

16% 14.0% 28%
0.3% 5.5% 0.8%

Allowance Tor loases on lending commitmants

Beginning batanca 5 m § 61 § T

Pravision L] 63y 1183]
DOthar (il = 11
Ending balance [ -5 030

1

Allovesncn Tor losn o

BEagrning balance 32 213 5 14m 5 28T

TR gie-r'T3 @18 1555 @7
Ronomt iy &5 B2 147

Hat dehange-ot Al sty Lrs]] L) Pl
Framson L] 2,048 .75

Qrthar 114 - {1
Endcing balscy § 2567 % 10961 % 5543

Alleowance ratic (L 13.6% 3%

et charge-off ratéo

0% L% 05%

Allowanos for losses on lending commitments

Begening hatanca 5 i 187 % ma
Prandssm 124 14 -
Drthar L2 = iz
EndﬂE bllul.E 3 711 S E g 774

i the table above:

* The allowance ratio 15 caleubated by dividing the allowance
for loan losses by gross loans accounted for ar amorieed

0st,

& The net charge-ofl raito s calculared by dividing net
(charge-offs)frecovenics by average gross loans accounted

for s amortized cost.
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Forecast Model Inputs as of December 2023

When modeling expecied credin Insses, the fiem employs a
weighted, multi-scenario [orecast, which includes baseling,
aclverse and favoralle economic seenarios. As of December
223, this mulii-scenano forecast was weiphied towards the
bascline and adverse economic scenanios.

The rable below presents the forecasted LS, unemploviment
and LS. GDP growth rates wsed in the baseline economic
scemario of the forecast model,

Ha ol D i 023

ULS. snemiphoymeent rate

Foracast for the quanier anded:

June 20324 4.2%
Docambar 224 4.3%
Juma Jr2h 4.2%
Growth in U5 GOP

Fonscast o ths yisar;

vl 1.7%
226 1.7%
2026 1.7

The adverse economic scemrio of the forecast modd reflecs
a global recession in the first quarier of 2024 dieough the firs
quarter of 2025, resulting in an econamic contraction and
rsing  anemplovment  rates, Ino this soenano, the LLS,
inemployment rate peabs ar approximarely 7.1% during the
first gquarer of 2025 and the maxsimom  decline i the
quarterly LLS, G relative o the founh gquarer of 2023 is
approximately 2.7 %, which occurs during the fourth quaner
of 2024,

I the 1able above;

* LLS. unemploy ment rate represents the rare forecasted as of
the respective quarter-cnd,

# Growth in 115, GDP represenis the year-over-year growth
rate forecasted for the respective years,

* Whale the LLS. unemplovinent and LS, GDP growth rates
are significant inputs 1o the forecast model, the model
contemplates a variety of other inpuis across a range of
scenanios 10 provide a forecast of future  economic
conditions. Given the complex nature of the forecasting
process, no sngle economic vamable can be viewed in
isolarion and independently of ather inpas,

176 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Allowanes for Credit Losses Commantary

Year Ended December 2023. The allowance for credic
losses decreased by S647 milhion during 2023, reflecting a net
release related 1o the GreenSky installment loan porifolio
{including a reserve reduction of 53637 million related to the
paaetial sale and rransler of the porfolio to held for sale), a
reserve reduction of 5442 million assocdated with the sale of
Marcus loans, a reserve reduction of SE60 million related o
the transfer of the GM co-branded credin card porifolio 1o
held for sale, a reserve release in the consumer portiolio
based on actual repayment experence aud lower balanges in
corporate loans due to sales and paydowns, pamially offset
by asser-specific provisions and ratings downgrades in the
whalsale porfolio and  seasoning of the credit card
porifalio,

Charge-offs for 2023 for wholesale foans (principally relaed
o term loans orginated in 2021 and revolving loans) were
prininly related 1o corporate loans and charge-offs (or
consumer loans were primarily relaed 1o credin cards,

Year Ended December 2022, The allowance for credic
losses dncreased by S1.97 badlon durnng 2022, refleciing
growth in the firm's consumer lending ponfolio (principally
in credit cards) and higher modeled expected losses due 10
broad macroeconomic and geopolitical concerns, Tn additian,
the allowance for credit losses for whalesale loans was
pmpacted by asset-specilic provisioms o eatings downgrades
primarily relared 1o borrowers in the technology, media &
telecommunicaitions, real estate, and consumer & retail
inglustrics,

Charge-offs for 2022 for wholesale loans were primarily
related 1o corporate laans and charge-offs for consumer loans
were primrily related 1o credin cards.

Estimated Fair Value

The rable below presents the estimated fair value of loans
thar are not accounted (or a0 fair valoe and in what level of
the fair valise hicrarchy they would have been classified il
they had been imcluded in the fien®s Gaie value lierarchy,

Carryng Eramated Fae Vakod

5 in malign Value  LewH2  Lewel 3 Ta
As of Dgeamber 2023

Amenized cost 5 169,825 5 B3.485 5BIZBE 5 1TLITZ
Held lor e 5 70T 5 34892 § 3038 5§ T.000
diz of Docambe I

Arventizend Coml SIEA0ET 5 BLOTT EELIZD S 188043
Held for sae L 4LG8 § POy 5 I0I4 & 4608

S Note 4 for an overview of the flen's faie value
measurement policies, valuation technigques and significant
inputs wied 1o determine the Gair value of loans, and Note §
for information abowt loans within the fair value hieearchy.
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Neta 10,
Fair Value Option

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value

In additon o trading asscts and liabilities, and certain
mvestinents aind loans, the firm accounts for certain of s
other financial assers and liabilities ar fair value, substanially
all wnder the fair value option. The primary reasons for
clecring the fair value option aee to:

# Reflecr economic evenis in carmings on 3 timely basis;

Mitigate volanlity wm carmings from  using  different
metsurement attrbuates (eg. teansfers of fnancial assets
acconnted for as financngs are recorded ar fair value,
whereas the related secured finanang would be recorded
on an accrual basis absent ¢lecing the fair value option);
and

Address simplification and cost-benelit  considerations
{ege., accounting for hybrid financial instrumenis a0 fair
value in their entirety versus bifurcation of embedded
derivarives and hedge accounting for debr hosis),

Hybrid [inancial instrements are instroments thar contain
bifurcatable embedded derivatives and do not  require
settlement by physical delivery of nonfinancial assets (eg.,
physical commodities), IF the finm elects to bifurcane the
cmbedded dervanive from the associared deba, the derivanive
is accounted for ar fair valoe and the host comtract is
acconnted for a1 amortized cost, adjusted for the effective
portion of any fair value hedges, If the firm does not elect 1o
bifurcate, the entire hybrid Ginancial instrument is accounted
far an Faire value nnder the faie value opion,

Oiher financial asseis and liabilioes accounted for an fair
vilone under the fair value opgion include:

* Repurchase  agreemems  and  subsmansially  all  resale
ARFCLINCALS;

* Cortam secunlies borrowed and lodined tramsactions;

* Certan qustamer and other receivables and certain other
assers and liabalities:

* Certain time depesits {deposits with no stated matunty are
nor eligible for a fair value oprion elecion), including
structured  certificates of deposit, which  are  hybrid
fimancial insiriients;

* Sgbstamially  all other secured  financings, including
transfers of assets accounted for as financings; and

¢ Certain unsecured  short- amd  long-term  borrowings,
substanmally all of which are hybrid financial instruments.
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Se¢ Mo 4 for an overview of the firms fair value
measurement policies, valmton echniques and significant
inputs wsed o determine the fair valee of orher financial
assets and liabilities, and MNote 5 for information aboue other
fimancial assets and labilities within the Faie value hicrarchy,

Gains and Losses on Other Financial Assets and
Liabilities Accounted for at Fair Value Under the Fair
Value Option

The table below presents the pains and losses recognized in
carnings a5 a4 result of the dection o apply the fair value
option o cerrain financial assets and liabilities.

Yeat Enmwrw
3 v rilleng 20ed FIFF 2021
Lindacisa £ae1-1a0rn Baromw rge 5 [4.31) 5 a085  E {1006
Ursastiraad iarg-1an Borow ngh 4837 8506 12,353

Cithas 513 o {435
Tatal F] 1] 511633 3,544

I the table above:

* Gains/(losses) were substanially all included in marker
making.

Gans(losses)  exclude  contractoal  merest,  which s
included in interest income and intercst expense, for all
wstrumenis other than hybrd Gnancial mstrumems, See
Note 23 for fuether information abour interest ingome and
Interest expense,

Gana(losses) incloded i wnsecured short- and long-term
borrowings were substancially all related 1o the embedded
denvative component of hybrid finandal instrumenis.
These gaing and losses wonld have been recognized under
ather LS. GAAPF even if the firm had not elected o
account for the entire hybeid Ginancial instroment an fair
value,

Gaing(losses} included in other were pimarily related 1o
remale amd repurchase agrecments, deposats and  other
secured fimancings.

Other financial assers and labilines ar fair value are
frequently economically hedged with reading assers and
liabilitics.  Accordingly, gains or losses on such other
assets and Habilities can be partially offser by
gains or losses on rading assets and liakalites, As o resolr,
gans or losses en other financial assets and habilines do
o necessarily represemt the overall impact on the firm's
resulis of operations, liguidity or capial resonrces,

ﬁ:l!l;]l
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Crains/{losses) on teading assets and liabiliies accounted for
at fair value nunder the fair value opion are induded in
marker making. See Nowe 6 for further informaion about
gains{losses)  fromm  market making, See Note § for
information abour gins/losses) on equity securities and
Note 9 for information abowt pains/{losses) on foans which
are avcconnted Tor at faer value under the Bur value option.

Long-Term Debt Instruments

Thee apgregate contractual pringipal amount of long-teem
other secured linancings, for which the fair value option was
elected, exceeded the related fair value by S147 million as of
December 2023, The relased amouni was mod mimerial as of
[december 2022,

The agpregate conteactual principal amonnt of unsecurad
lonpg-term borrowings, for which the fair value option was
clected, exceeded the relared fair value by 5337 billion as of
December 2023 and 55,03 ballion as of December 2022,

These debt instruments include bath prncpal-protecied and
nan=princpalprotected long-term borrowings.

Dabt Valuation Adjustment

The firm calenlaes the fair value of fnancial liabilities for
which the faie value option is clecied by discounting funre
cash flows a1 a rue which incorporates the lirm's credit
spreads.

The table below presents information abowt the net debt
valvation  adjustment  (DVA)  gmonsf{losses) on [inancal
labalities for whach the Bor value option was elected.

Yaar Ended Decembar
% in milkons FLrE] 2‘0_2. 2021
Pro B DIV S (1.¥86) 5 18y £ 433
Albartins VA OB E 1408 £ a3
Im the vable above:

* Aferstax DVA s included v debt valuation adjostment in
the consolidated siatements of comprehensive ingome,

The pains'(losses) reclassificd o market making i the
consolidated  statements of earmings. from  accummlated
other comprehensive income'(loss) upon extinguishment of
such financial liabilitics were not matenal for 2023, 2022 or
221,
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Loans and Lending Commitments
The wmable below presemis the  difference between  the
aggregate Lair value and the aggregate contractual princpal
amount for loans (ncluded in erading assets and loans in the
consolidated balance sheets) for which the fair value oprion
was elected.

As o Decenir
% in miliona Farrr]

Ferforming loans
Mggregate contraciusld principal m dcess of fsr valug B 1893 5 2Eeh

Loans on onaccrusl staius snd/or more than 90 days past due
Aggregate coniractual principal i ccess of far valun 8 2,308 5 Iam

&Bﬁﬂ"' B vaium & LI-! 5 2.6&_

In the mable above, the apgrepate contracnual principal
amount of loans on nonacerual stamus andfor more than 940
chays past due (which excludes loans carried ar zero fair value
aned conssdered uncollectible) exceeds the related Far value
primarily becwse the fGirm regulady purchases loans, such as
distressied loans, ar values sipnilicantly below the contraciual
principal amounts,

The fair valee of unfunded lending commitmens for which
the fair value oprion was clected was a liability of 53 million
as of December 2023 and 822 million as of December 2022,
and the related toral contractual amount of these lending
commitments was 5878 milhon as of December 2023 and
5307 million as of December 2022, See Note 18 for further
informatien about lending commirments,

Impact of Credit Spreads onm Loams and Lending
Commitments

The csrimated ner gain/{loss) anributable o changes in
instrument-specific credit spreads on loans and  lending
commitments for which the fair value opion was elecied was
5125} wmllion for 2023, S{281) million for 2022 and 5277
million for 2021, The firm generally caleulates the Gair value
of loans and lending comminments for which the fair value
opuon is elected by discounting luture cash flows ar a e
which incorporates the instrument-specific credit spreads,
For floanng-rate  loans and  lending  commitments,
subsiantially all chanpes in fxir value are anabuable w
changes in instrument-specific credit spreads, whereas for
“:n;ﬁ!-l'.,]lf h_;;m;. and |1_'r|.l.1ir|.1; i.!vl'_l-l!lll'l:"lilhlﬂ']“s.‘ I.:.I'I;jl'l.j,"l_'g in f;rir
value are also annbuorable to changes in inerest ranes.
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Neots 11.
Collateralized Agreements and Financings

Collateralized agreoments are  nsale  agreements  and
securities borrowed, Collateralized fnancings are repurchase
apreements, securities loaned and orher secured financings.
The firm enters into these transactions in order 1o, among
other things, Cacilizaie client activities, invest excess csh,
acauite secunities 1o cover short positions and fimmce certain
firm activities,

Collateralized agreements and linancings with the same
seitlement daie are presentd on a net-by-counterpariy basis
when such transactions meet cerain senlement criteria and
are subject 1o netting agreements. Interest on collateralized
agreements, which is included 0 interest income, and
collateralized  financings, which is included in imerest
expense, 15 recognized over the life of the transacton, See
Nete 23 for further informagion abou imerest inceme and
Interest expense,

Resale and Repurchase Agreements

A resale agreement is a transaciion in which the fiem
purchases financial instruments from s seller, typically in
exchange far cash, and simultmeously eners into an
agreemient to resell the same or swbstangally the same
fimangial amstrpments 1o the seller at o stated prce plus
acerued interest at a Quore dane.

A repurchase agreement is a transaction in which the firm
sells fimancial insrraments 1o bover, typically in exchange
for cash, and simulneously enters inte an agreement 1o
repurchase the same of substantally the same linancal
instroments from the buver ar a stared price plis accrued
mterest a1 a futwre dave.

Even though repurchase and resale agreements (including
“repos- and reverses-to-marurity™) involve the legal iransfer
of ownership of linancal instroments, they are accounted for
as financing arrangements because they require the financial
instruments 1o be repurchased or resold before or at the
ATy of  the agreement,  The fimancial  insteuments
purchased or szold in resale and repurchase agrecments
tvprcally mglude LLS, government and agency obliganons,
and investment-grade sovereign obliganons,

The firm receives financial instroments purchased wnder
resale agreements amd makes delivery of Gnancil mstruments
sold under repurchase agreemenis. To  mitgate  oredic
exposure, the firm monitors the market value of these
fimancial insresements on @ daily basis, and delivers or obains
additional collateral duse 1o changes in the market value of the
financial insrroments, as appropriate, Far resale agreements,
the firm typically requires collateral with a fair value
approsgiately equal to the Girving value of the relevant
assets in the consolidared balanee sheets,
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Repurchase  agreements  and  substantally  all  resale
apreements are recorded ar fair value under the fair value
option, See Note 5 for further informaton about repurchase
amnd resale apreemems,

Securities Borrowed and Loaned Transactions

In o secwritics borrowed tansaction, the finm borrows
securities [rom a counterpany in exchange for cash or
securities. When the firm returns the  secorities, the
connterparty  fetumms the cash or seowrics, Intercst s
generally paid penodically over the life of the transaction,

Inn a securities loaned rrnsaction, the finm lends securities 1o
a counterparty in exchange for cash or secunitics. When the
counterparty returms the secunmes, the firm returns the cash
or securitics posted as collateral, Interest is generally paid
periodically aver the life of the ransaction.

Inn o transacoon where the firm lends securities and receives
securities thar can be delivered or pledged as collareral, the
firm recopnizes the securties reccived within securitics
barrowed and the obligation to retum those securitics within
securitics loaned in the consolidated balance sheets.

The firm receives secunties borrowed and makes delivery of
securities loaned, Too mitgae credit exposure, the firm
manitors the market value of these seconues on a daily basis,
il delivers or obrans addinional collageral due 1o changes in
the market value of the securities, as appropriate. For
securities borrowed tramnsacnons, the firm typically requires
collateral with 2 fair valee approximarely equal w the
carrying value of the securities borrowed transaction,

Securities borrowed and loaned within FICC financing are
recorded an fair value under the fair value opion, See Nomwe 3
for further mformation about secunties borrowed and loaned
aceoumted for an fair value,

Substantially all of the secunvies borrowed and loaned within
Equities fimancing are recorded based on the amount of cash
collueral advanced or received plus acorued interest. The
firm also reviews such securities borrowed 1o detenmine if an
allowance for credin losses should be recarded by taking intg
consideration the fair value of collareral received. As these
agreements generally can be terminated on demand, they
exhibit linde, if any, sensitivity o changes in interest rares,
Therefore, the caryving  value of such  agreements
approximates fair value, As these agreenments are not
aceounted for at Fair value, they are not induded in the firm's
fair value hierarchy in Motes 4 and 5, Had these agreements
been included in the firm’s Gair value hierarchy, they would
have been classified an level 2 as of both Drecember 2023 and
December 2022,
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Offzetting Arrangements

The table below presems resale and repurchase agreemens
and securines borrowed and loaned transacions included in
the consolidared balance sheeis, as well as the amouns nor
offset in the consolidated balance sheets.

] Liskikses
Fesale  Ssounoes Hepurchass  Seowmnes
5 in millons ogresmanis  borowed | agresmens kanad

As of Dacember 2023

Included in the consalidated balance shests

Gross cargng vaue B 315,112 § 199,753 5 341,194 5 60816
Countamarty natting 91,307) {333} (81,307} [333]

Tatal EIBOL 199 420 244 pET BO483
Amants not affset

Counterparty natling (28, 126) (8.373) [28,135) 18,273
Calabis 189,358 (182 978 217

Tatal 5 5311 § 7938 5 3753 8 303
A8 ol Decamber JO2Z

Included in the consalidated balsnce sheats
Gross carneng waue 5 334047 5 100823 5 Z192M 5 41300
Cenmtmparty nalling 1089260 (10USR2E 108,926 (10,582

Ty 225,117 1BSLOH] 110548 30,727
Amaisnis not affsel

Cauntenparty nailing 15,3500 [, 588 115,350 44,578
Cocarery e (17E980 e i35 5AE
'Ienl.i s 4824 5 I?‘ﬂ 5 2 w 5 1]

I the table above:

Subspantially all of the pross careving values of these
arrangements  are  subjeat o enforceable nening
ARrecments,

Where the firm has received or posted collateral wnder
crechit support agreements, but has nor vet determined such
agreements are enflorgeable, the related collateral has not
been nemed.

Amounts not offsct includes counterparty netting that does
nor mee the crreria for nening under LS, GAAP and the
fair valwe of collmeral received or posted suhject 1o
enforceable credit support agreemenes,

Resale agreements included in the consolidmed alance
sheets of 522354 hilhon as of December 2023 and
522512 billion as of December 202X and all repurchase
agreements included in the consolidated balance sheets are
carmed ar fair value under the fair value option. See Note +
foor further informarion abour the valuarion rechnigues and
significant inpaits used vo devermine fair value,

Securities borrowed included i the consobidated balance
sheets of 54493 billion as of December 2023 and
53858 ballion as of December 2022, and secanties loaned
included in the consolidared balance sheets of 58,93 billion
as of December 2023 and 5437 billion as of December 2022
were at [ value under the for value opion. See Nowe 8
foor fumher information abowm securtics borrowed and
secunities loaned accounied lor ae fair value,

180  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Gross Carrying Value of Repurchase Agreements and
Securities Loaned

The wable below presenis the gross carrving value of
repurchase agreements and securities loaned by class of
collateral pledged,

Pegurchase Secunties

5w prvllang agieamETiS boanasd
s of December 2023

oy PAFkal Nt TS & 1% =
LS. povesirmasnt ard agency ol igat ons 2R, T8 216
Nor-LULS. govemenant and Bgercy ol g ongs 5,230 ans
Saoarives backad Dy Commedcial raal 881358 135 =
Sacirives backad by retdenial feg datma B41 -
Corporain dabi seciries 10,525 230
Stahe and munic el o gItions 57 -
Crthant cheint b gatona AL -
kgjﬂ saourias 1-!.91 g
Tatal B 341154 §  SOB16
A af Decambar FITT

Monary market inssnamaents 1 5 -
U5, povmmant and agenoy obiigat ons 113835 ik
Non-U S gowsmemssnt and aganoy obigations B EIE B0
Saourtes backed by consmescla real astate 172 -
Securifns backed Eny res dential rea’ mstals Ll -
Cofporae dabi Sacnr e 11,308 205
Fiole and munic pal ahigatons 143z -
Db cleltit ol 'garona ne =
Emquity sacur1an B34 ADRER
Ty 571837 5 41300

The mable below presents the gross carrving value of
repiirchase agreements and securitics loamed by manrity.

fin of Discember 2023

Repurchass Gacuri thes
5 rellpna agfaarmants kanned
iz 21808 FETU Ty B EneTEi & MM7M5 5 37750
2 - 30 daye 101,837 754
A - 90 days 33,323 454
91 clays - 1 yanr 46,597 11,703
Liranter than | year 11,692 10,155
Tatal 5 341154 5 SOB1E

In the table above:

# Repurchase agreemenis and secunites loaned thai are
repavable prior 1o maturily at the option of the firm ane
reflected ar their conrractual maturity dages.

* Repurchase agreements and  secunties loaned that are
redeemable prior to marry ar the option of the holder are
refllected ar the earlicst dates such opiions  become
exercisable.
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Other Secured Financings

In addition o repurchase apreements and securities loaned
transactions, the finm fonds certain assets through the use of
other secured financings and pledges financial instnumenis
and other assets as collateral in these transactions. These
other secured financings include:

# Liabilities of ClFs and consolidated VIEs;

* Transfers of assets aocounted for as linanangs rather than
siles (e, pledged commadities, bank loans and mongage
whole loans); and

# Oiher struciured financing arrangemenis,

her  secured  financings  included  nonrecourse
arrngements, Nonreecouese other secured linancings were
8557 billion as of December 2023 and 5794 billion as of
December 3022,

The firm has clected o apply the fair value option o
substantially all other secured hnancngs becimse the use of
fair value climinares non-economic volatility in earnings that
would anse from wsing different measurement atributes. See
Note 10 for further information about other secured
financings that are accounted for at fair value.

Chher secured linancings that are not recorded @ Gir value
are recorded based on the amount of cash received plus
acerued mterest, which generally approximanes fair value. As
these finandings ire not acvounted for an Gir value, they are
not included in the firm's fxie value hierarchy in Nowes 4 and
5. Had these financings been mcluded v the Diem®s fair value
hierarchy, substntially all would have been classified in level
3 as of both December 2023 and December 2022,
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The tble below presents informanan abour ather secured
fimancings.

US  HonlS
5o mdlona Excitar Dot Tod
Aa of Dpcsmber 2023
Qi sacurad Tinancings [Shorr-1eemi;
At vae § 3385 § 3451 § 6838
Af amori zad cost - 38 388
Oihar sacumd financings long-temnl
At farwnun 1,872 3,845 5N
At amort zed oost Fard - Fir
Total ather secured financings 5 G629 5§ 7865 5 13194
Other d financings colk lized by:
Flrandia' nsrurments $ 31X § 5758 § 4ETT
Dibsbi aasam $§ 2407 8 80 § 3317
Az 0l Decarnber 2043
Dihear sacirad Tnancngs [shorr-jeemi|
A g 3 3478 3 1,983 3 G0
A SerTBe obal 08 - il
Cnihar sacirad Tnancngs [ang-aeml;
Ay v 3,783 2,522 315
AL Ao TR oRal F5 L fiir]
Téa mm:-cundhmnc& 5 B_D_G-I 5 LELM 3 13_5-!&

Oithar sacurid Tinanc ngs oo @teny (ned by
Financiy instrurmasnts
Ditter ansnts

In the table above:

Imy % agas § oBN2

g
£ d42ar 8 B8 B3

& Shori-term other secured lnanongs incudes Bmanangs
matring within one year of the finangal statement dare
and financings that are redeemable within one year of the
fimancial suarement dave ar the oprion of the holder,

.5 dollar-denominated  short-teem other  secured
financings at amortized cost had a weighted average
interest rate of 3.56% as of December 2022, This rare
includes the eflfect of hedping activites.

Non-LLS, dollar-denoninated shor-term other secured

financings ar amorized cost had 2 weighted averape

inicrest rate of 0.47% as af December 2023, This raie
includes the effect of hedping activines,

« U5 dollar-denominared  long-teen other  secured
fimancings at amortzed cost had a weghted average
interest site of 3,49% as of December 2023 and 3.54% as of
December 2022, These rates include the effect of hedging
ACHVILICS,

* Non-1L%,  dollar-denominated long-term other  secured

financings at amortzed cost had a weghted average

anterest eate of 0.43% as of December 2022, This rare
includes the effect of hedging activitics.
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* Towal other secured financings included $2.34 billion as of
December 2023 and 5162 billion as of December 20122
relaved 1o iransfers of Guancial assers accounted for as
fimancings  rather than sales, Swch  finanangs  were
collateralized by financial assers, primanly included in
trading assets, of 5236 billion as of December 2023 and
S1.64 hillion as of December 2022,

Other  secured  financings  collueralized by (inancial
instruments included 5838 billion as of December 2023 and
5749 billion as of Degcember 2022 of other secured
fimancings collateralized by rrading assets, investments and
Joans, amd induded 51,49 ballion as of Deceimber 2023 and
50.22 hillion as of December 2022 of other securcd
fimancings collateralized by financial mstruments received
as collateral aovd repledzed.

The mble below presemis other secured  financings by
matunty.

EDINETOOOO
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In many cases, the firm is permitted 1o deliver or repledge
Dmancial wstruments received as collateral when entening
into repurchase  agreemens  and  securnies loaned
transactions, primarily in commection with secured  dient
fimancing acrivities, The finm is also permined o deliver or
repledpe these financial instruments in connection with other
secured Bmanangs, collateralized denvative transascoons and
firm or customer settlement requiremnents.

The firm also pledges certain trading asscis in connection
with repurchase agreements, securitics loaned transactions
and other secured financings, and other assers (substanially
all real estate and cash) i connection with other secured
fimgncings 1o ¢counterpanies wha may or may not have the
right to deliver or repledge them.

The tible below presents financial mstruments at Gur value
received as collateral that were available 1o be delivered or

repledped and were delivered or repledged.

A of A5 o Dacsordet
§ i malligng Decarnber 2023 § i rllony Ford e
Crthar sacurad {nancngs (shor1-1ammi g T.204 Coiasara avaraten i be daivered or epeadged . B1,002.891 5 971,659
Onhae gacirad Tnomcrgs (\ongtami; Cooatary that v da' werad of rep adgen 5 SE29BR 5 919
5 1,830
ﬁﬁ :: The table below presents informarion about sassets pledged,

'3

2028 1.504 A ot Decsmiber
025 « e ber 1,665 5 inmilions 2023 iy
Total othar sacursd §inanc rgs long-somi 5,890 Pledged to coumterparties that had the right to deliver or repledge
Total ather mmm [ 'I!.'IN- Tad ng assats 5 110567 £ ap 4l

In the table above:

* Long=term other secored financings that are repayvable
price 10 manirry st the option of the G are rellecied o
thar contractoal maturity dates,

* Long-term other secured fnancings that are redeemalile
priar to maturity at the option of the holder are reflected at
the earliest dates such opiions become exercisable,

Collateral Received and Pledged

The firm receives cish and securities (eg., LLS, government
and apency obligations, other sovercign and  corporate
obligations, as well as equity securives) as  collateral,
primarily in connection with resale agreements, securities
borrowed, derivative transactions and customer margin
loans, The fiem obiains cash and secorities as collateral on an
upfrant or comingent basis for derivative instruments and
collateralized . agreements to reduce ms credit exposure 1o
individual connerparties.

182  Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K

PMedged to counterparties that did not hive the right to deliver or repledge

Irad ng assets 5 138404 % ez
s imaents 5§ 23288 % 2552
Lizans £ B85S = BE00
Cither psnuts § 3824 % LE2S

In the table above, the firm revised the amouni previously
reported as investments pledged 1o counerparties (than had
the right to deliver or eepledge) as of December 2022 from
59,82 ballion 1o 30, As a result. that hne was removed from
the table and from the parenthetical disclosure on the
consolidated babance sheets. In addition, in the table above,
the firm revised  the amount  previowsly  reported  as
investments pledged to counterpartics (that did not have the
right to deliver or repledpe) as of December 2022 from
51.73 billion 1w 5293 hillion, These revisions were not
material 1o the firm's consolidated financial statements, only
impicted the lines noted above and had no impag on the
firm’s results of operations or cash fows.

The fiem alse segregates secunitics. for regulatory and other
purposes  relwed 1o client actvity, Swch secunties are
scgregated from trading assets and investments, as well as
Fron secunbics received as callateral under resale aprecients
and securities borrowed transactions. Securitics scgregarcd by
the firm were 54926 billion as of December 2023 and
54960 billion as of December 2022,
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Mote 12,
Other Assets

The table below presents other assets by tyvpe.

]
4 i millgng 2023 2022
Proparty, 'saashall mpdcvemants and equpment § 11,264 5 17074
Gonatw 5916 6374

dantilabie niang bia rems 1177 2004
Cpnratng mase righl-olcms pses 2171 2172
Incoma Bocraaied assais B,157 Tz
W scalannous recaivakias and cthar 1,925 & LT
Total £ 36880 5 09008

Property, Leasehold Improvements and Equipment
Property, leaschold improvernenss and esquipment is ner of
accumulated depreciation and amortization of 513.64 billion
as of December 2023 and 512,19 billion as of Degember 2022,
Property, leaschold improvements and equipment included
56,63 hillion as of December 2023 and 5717 billion as of
December 2022 that the finm wses in connection with s
operations, and 5124 million as of December 2023 and
589 million as of December 2022 of foreclosed real estate,
The remainder is held by investment entities, including VIEs,
consolidated by the firm. Substanvally all property and
equipment is depreciated on a steaight-line basis aver the
useful life of the asset. Leaschold improvements  are
amortized on o seaight-line basis over the shorter of the
useful life of the improvement or the eem of the leasc.
Capitalized costs of software developed or obrained for
internal use are amomized on a steaight-line basis over three
VTS,

The firm  wests property, leaschold  improvements - and
cquipment for impairment when cvents or changes in
arcuinstandes suggest that an asset’s or asset group’s carrving
value may not be fully recoverable, To the extent the careying
value of an asset or asset prowp excecds the projected
undiscounted cash Mows expecred 1o resalt from the use and
eveniual disposal of the asser or asser group, the fiem
determmines the asset or assel group s impaired and recerds
an impairment equal 1o the difference berween the estimated
fasr value and the carrying value of the asset or asset group.
I addition, the firm will recognize an impairment prior 10
thie sale of an asset or asser group if the carrving value of the
asset or asset group exceeds its estmated fair value Any
impairments recogmized are incleded in depreciation and
AMOrEation.
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The fiem had impairments of SL46 billion: during 2023,
relared 1o commercial real estare included in CIEs within
Asset & Wealth Mamaepement. In addition, the firm had
impaiements of 3118 mllon duwring 2023, related 1o
capitalized  sofrware  substamially  all within Platform
Solutions and Asset & Wealth Management, The firm had
impaiements of 5314 million during 2022 and S143 million
durning 2021 primarily relared 1o CIEs within Asser & Wealth
Management.

Goodwill

Gioodwill is the cost of acquired companies in excess of the
fair value of mer assers, including identifiable intangible
assets, at the acquisition date.

The table below presents the cairmving value of goodwill by
FEPHRCTIE LTNIE,

s ot Dwoemibar

£ in millons zoz3 2083
Globa! Bankng & Marksis:

Irvistrmant bankng ] 267 5 FL

HCC il i

Equitas 2,647 2E47
Astar & Wea th Maragemant

As st manageeTsnt 1410 1,385

VRN Th Man emant 1,308 1310
Fattorm Seaitans:

Consirmnes patiorms = 4832

Irarsacton banking and othar 14 14
Total 5 65918 & 63rd

In the able above, the decrease in goodwill from December
2122 to December 20231 was primanly attributable o the
impairment of gosdwill associared with Consuneer plaforms
described below,
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Goodwill is assessed for impairment annually in the fonrth
dquiarter or mere frequently il events sccur oF Circumstances
change thar indicate an impairment may  exist, When
assessing  goodwill for impairment, i, a  qualicative
assessment can be made 1o determine whether it is more
likely than not that the esomated faiv value of a reponting
unit 85 less than s carrving value, 0 the results of the
qualititive assessment are not conclusive. 8 gquantitative
goodwill test s performed. Altermatively, a quantitative
poodwill test can be performed withow  performing o
qualitative asscssment,

The gquantitative goodwill test compares the estimated Fair
vatlue of each reporting umit with its carrying value (including
goodwill and identifiable intangible assets). Il the reponing
unit’s  estimated  fair value exceeds s carrying value,
goodwill is not impaired. An impairment is recognized if the
cstmated [or value of a reporting unit iz less than its
carrving value and any sech impairment is included in
deprecation and amortization,

When performing a quantitaive goodwill rese, the estmared
fair value of each reporming unit is based on valuation
technigques the birm believes market parbapants would vse 1o
vitlue these reporting units, Estimated  [air values are
generally denived from milizing a relative value technigque,
which applies observable price-to-eamings multiples or price-
to-book multiples of comparable competitors 1o the reponing
units’ net cammings or net book value, or a disconnted cish
flow valiation approach, for reporting units with businesses
in early stages of development. The carrving value of each
reporting unit reflects an allocation of ol sharcholders’
cquity and represents the estimared  amount of  poral
shareholders’ equity required 1o suppon the acuvieies of the
reporting unit under currently applicable regulatory capiral
FETUITENENTs,

During the first quarter of 2023, goodwill for Consumer
plarforms increased by S22 million as a result of an updared
purchase price allocaton related 1o the Greendky acquisiiian,
During the second quarer of 2023, in connection with the
exploration of a potenial sale of GreenSky, the firm
performed a quantitaive goodwill test and determined that
the poodwill associated with Consumer platforms  was
impaired,  and  accordingly, recorded o S804 million
TR EThEnL.

184 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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In the foumh quarter of 2023, rhe firm performed is anmual
assessment of goodwill Tor impairment, for each of s
reporting wnits with goodwill, by performing 2 qualitgve
assezsment. Muluple facors were assessed with respect o
cich of these reporting wnits 10 determine whether it was
maore likely than not chat the stmaeed Eair value of each of
those reporting nnits was less than s carryimg value, The
guatitative  assessment also comsidered  changes since a
quantitative test across all of the frm's reporting unis was

Fast performed in 2022,

During the fournth quarter of 2023, the firm considered the
fallowing factors in the qualitative annual assessment:

* Performance Indicators, For 2003, the finm generaned
higher net revennes net of provision for credit losses and

wreased

per  share,  although  overall

perdormance declined compared with 2022, This decline
reflected the firm's continued excecution on the mrrowing
of is straegic focus, which had a negarive impact on net
carnings. Within the reporting units with goodwill, there
continued 1w be solid fundamentals  underlying our
businesses, where the Grm continued to mainin indusry
leadership positicns and execuie on strategic goals,

* Macrosconomic

Indicators, Despate Broaud

macroeconomic and  geopolitical  concerns,  the  global
economy contimed to grow 1 2023,

* Firm and Industry Events. There were no events, entity-
speciflic or otherwise, that would have had a significant
negative impaet on the valuation of the frm's reporing

unirs with goodwill,

* Fair Value Indicators, Smce the 2002 quanitetive test,
changes in the faie value indicarors in the marker did not
have a significant negative impact on the valvanon of the
firm's reporting units with goodwill,

As a result of the qualitative assessment, the firm determined
that it was more likely than not that the estimaned Fair valee
of @ich reporting umit with goodwill excesded its sespective
carryving valuwe, Therefore, the firm determined that poodwill
for each reporting unit was nol impaired and thar a
cuantirative goedwill test was not nequired,
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Identifiable Intangible Assets
The wable below presents wdennfiable imtangible assets by
ype.
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The rables below present information about the amorizarion
of idenifiable intangible assets,

wear Endad Discannibes
) Ak cf Do § i onllens 2033 2022 2021
5 mdbang 20ED 2032 Arar] 2aLon g 21 & 14 5 i)
Customer fists.
i’;“;ﬂ';'}“"?wm ¥ IEE‘ ﬁ';:?l In the wable above, amorization for 2023 included the
{ T PHEH e e i ¥ s i 3
NCEU i 1047 e 5'5{h‘u ||111_Itrm W r|_11;-f.in'.'.n n:1.1n:s]_ ] Greendky, which is
mncluded i depreciation and amorticabion,
Crihar
Gions camying wus 256 11 Asol
Aocumuannd amrEacon | TE6) (EEE] § o et D Bt 2005
et camying vaus 10 Gl Eatignated lutune amartization
E 0de 5 01
Tatal geeas earvying valie 3,205 am il r 44
Total sccumulated a atlon !2 m! 1, 10 b
Total net walue e oo oo . i
208 5 o]
In the ble above: T o

* hher includes acquired leases and merchant relaionships
related 1o GreenSky, Previously, merchant relatonships
were included in customer lists and meechan relationships
but were reclassified to other in comjunction with the
planned sale of GreenSky, Prior penod amounts have been
conformed to the current presentation.

The decrease in the net carrying value of identfiable
intangible assers from December 2022 10 December 2023
was primarily artriburable te the $506 million write-down
related 10 GreenSky, These idemtifiable intangble assets,
which are included within Platform  Solutions, were
classified as held for sale in connection with the planned
sale of CoreenSky and had 2 nev careving value of
S110 million as of December 2023,

Punng 2023, the amount of idenofiable imangible assets
acqguired by the firm was not material, The firm acquired
approsimately 51,79 ballion of identifiable intangible asscrs
{with a weghted average amonization period of 13 years)
during 2022, substantially all i connection with  the
acquisitions of GreenSky and NN Investmen Pariners.
Subseantially all of these idemifiable inangible asses
consisted of customer lists and merchant refaionships.

Substantially all of the firm's identifiable intangible assers
have fimite useful lives and are amortized over their
catimated  vseful lives penerally wsing the straight-line
method.

The firm ests idenrifiable inangible assets for inpaiement
when events or changes in arcumstances suggest that an
asset’s OF assel proup’s carrving value may not be fully
recoverable. T'o the extent the carrying value of an asset or
assel group exceeds the projecied undiscounted cish Mlows
expected to result from the use and evenmal disposal of the
asset or asset group, the firm determines the asser or asset
proup is impaired and records an impairment equal o the
difference between the cstimated fair value and the carrying
value of the asser or asset proup. Tn addition, the fiem will
recognize an impairment prior 1o the sale of an asset or asser
group if the carrvng value of the aset or asset proup exceeds
its estimated Gaie valoe, Other than a5 noted above, there
were no material impairments or write-downs during 2023,

2022 or 2021,

Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets

The firm enrers im0 operating leases for real estate, office
equipment and other asses, substanrially all of which are
used i connection with its aperations, For leases longer than
one year, the firm FeCOERize a tighr-::f—usn: AR MEPrESening
the right 1o use the undedving asset for the lease term, and a
lease liabality representing the liability 1w make payments,
The lease ierm 15 generally deternmined based on the
contractual maturity of the lease, For leases where the firm
has the aprion 1o werminate or extend the lease, an assessment
of the likelihood of exercising the option s incorporated into
the determination of the lease eem, Such assessment s
initially performed at the inception of the lease and is
updated i§ events ogeur that impagt the original assessmen,

An operating lease right-of-use asser is initially determined
based on the operating lease hability, adjusted for initial
divect costs, lekse incentives and amounts pand at oF pror 1o
lease commencement. This amount is then amortized over
the lease wermi. Right-ol-use assets and operating  leise
liabilities recognized (in mon-cash rransactions for leascs
entered into or assumed) by the finm were 3333 million for
223, 5256 million for 2022 amd S305 million for 2020, See
Note 13 for informarion about operating lease liabilitics.
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For leases where the fiem will derive no economic benelit
from leased space that it has vacned or where the Tirm has
shortened the verm of a lease when space is no longer needed,
the  firm will record  an impairment or  acoelerated
amortization of right-of-use asses, There were no material
impairments or aceelerated amonizanons during ather 2023
or 20221,

Miscallaneous Receivables and Other

Miscellaneous receivables and other indluded:

* Funded iovestments  in qualified  affordable  homsing
projects of 51,13 billion as of December 2023 and 5793
million as of December 2022, These projects are penerally
organized as limived parnerships or similar entities and o
third-party is typically the general partner or the managing
merber, The Birm mvests i the entty as a hmited pariner
and receives tax credits for soch invesimenis, The fiem
acconnts for these anvestments using  the proporgonal
amartization method such thar the investment is amorized
in proportion to the income ax credits received on such
investments, The amortiztion of investments and the
relared income tax credit are recorded as @ component of
the provision (or taxes, During 2023, the fiom recognized
amartization of S301 million and income 1ax credies and
related tax benedits of 5370 million, dunng 2022, the firm
recognized amortization of $127 million and income rax
credits and related tax benefits of 3151 million and during
20210, the firm recognized amortiziton of S130 million and
imcome tax credits and relaved rax beneflits of S176 million.
Miscellancous receivables and other also induded accroed
unfunded commitmems relaved o investments in gualified
affordable honsing projeas of 5226 billion as of December
Jix3, See Note 18 for further mlormation about the firm's
commitments 1o invest in gualified affordable howsing
projects.

* Assets classified as held for sale were 5518 million as of
December 2023 and 5285 million as of December 2022, Sec
below for further informaion,

188 Goldman Sachs 2023 Farm 106K
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Assats Hald for Sale. During the third quarter of 2023, in
connection with the planned sale of GreenSky, the firm
classified GreenSky (within Platform Solwrions) as held for
sale. After a reserve release of 5837 million in provision for
credit losses and a markdown of 3123 million w rellect the
foan portfolio at the lower of its carrving value or fair value
bess cost o sell, the firm wrote down 5506 million of ne
assets relared o GreenSky (incloded in depreciaion  and
amoriization). As of December 2023, the assess related o
GreenSky were approximarely 53,4 billion and consisted of
foans of approximately $3.0 billion (included in loans),
segregited cash of approximarely S110 million fncluded in
cash and cash equivalens), idemifiable intangible assets of
approximately  S1100 million  (nceded i ddentfiable
intangible assets within other assets) and other asseis of
approximately 5190 million  (included in miscellaneous
receavables and other within other assets), See Nowe 9 lor
further information abom loans classified as held for sale,
above for further information abouwt idemifiable intangible
assers, and Nove 15 for information abost liabilities classified
as held for sale.

Assers held for sale also included %327 million 2z of
December 2023 and 5285 million as of December 2022 aof
assets  redated o certain of the firm's  comsolidated
mvestments withm Asset & Wealth  Mamgement,
Substanually all of these asscis consisted of properiy amd
cquipment and were mcleded i miscellaneons receivables
and other within other assets.
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MNaota 13,
Deposits
The table below presents the types and sonrces of deposits,
Savings and
3w miigng Darvaind e Teaal
Consummar £ 120211 § 5803 § 1ETIM
Prayvate bank B 46T &EGE 83312
Berokaradd oot {camnn of dagsin - 48,560 ELE
Dapsces ! St DOGRAME. naie - Faka
Tmnsaction bankng BRATT 3843 71820
Orthaae 1.568 25837 27395
T 3 308339 3 30063 s 4AV,
s of December 30232
Congmmir §F SGhH0 B 31330 F 11980
Frivane bank 94,153 1718 O Bas
Hardeiariaad Saer fizatng o dapan - Erd Ao ek ived
Dot | Sk [HOgIamL Lot - 44819
lmnsaction banking =R &0 234
Crthae B 12,451 13,23
Totx $ SOJ40E € ER170 § ShAgAR

I the table above;
* Substanially all deposits are interesi-bearing.

* Savings and demand accoums consist of meney market
deposit acoonms, negotiable order of withdrawal accounts
and demand deposie accounts that have no stated matuniey
or expiration date,

Time deposits included 52945 billion as of December 2023
and 51375 billion as of December 2022 of deposits
aceounted for an Gir value under the fair value oprion. See
MNote 10 for further information about deposits accounted
fear ar fair value,

Time deposits had a2 weighted average mawmeity  of
approximately 0.6 years as of December 2023 and 0.9 years
as of December 2022

Consumer deposits consist of deposiis from borth Marcus
and Apple Card customers.

* Dreposin sweep programs include comracial agreemenis
with 115, broker-dealers who sweep cliem cash 1o FIDIC-
insured deposins,

Transaerion banking deposits consist of deposits that the
firm raised throngh its cash management services business
foar corporate and other institutional cliens,

Chher deposits are substangially all from  insiosional
clients,

® Deposins insured by the FDIC were 22132 billion as of
December 2023 and $184.88 billion as of December 2022,

* Deposits insured by non-LLS. insurance programs were
52600 billion as of December 2023 and 531.74 billion as of
December 2022, The dedimse in inswred deposits from
December 2022 reflecred a change in an insurance program
that became cffective in January 2023, which reduced the
population of deposit accounts eligible for inswerance
coverage and lowered the applicable insurance limis,

The rable below presems the locasion of deposits,

Ag o Docarnbed
5 in milions Fr ] 097
U5, oifcas 53316 5 303,550
Hon-US. offcas 5,301 Fa067
Total B 42T S So e

In the table above, 115, deposits were held ar Goldman Sachs
Bank USA (GS Bank USA) and substantially all non-LLS
deposits were held ar Goldman Sachs Internanonal Bank
{GSIB) and Goldman Sachs Bank Evrope SE (GSBE).

The able below presents marurities of tme deposits held in
LLS, and non-10.5. offices.

Az ol Decson bes 2023
5 in rmaliond LS.  Mon-LL5. Total
2024 5 7660z & 30318 § 106,920
2095 BS54 ToE 6330
2026 2408 284 3102
2z 1262 M 1408
2038 768 198 a6
2063 - thireal e 100 236 1304
L Bl s ol FI00ER,

As of December 2023, deposits in LLS, oflices included $14.47
billion and deposits in non-LL5, offices included 531,12
billion of time deposits i denonunations that met or
exceeded the applicable msurance lmis, or were otherwise
not covered by insurance,

The firm"s savings and demand deposits are recorded based
on the amount of cash received plus accreed interest, which
approximares fair value. In addition, the firm designates
certaum derivatives as Gr value hedges to conven a portion of
its time deposits not accounted for ar laxie value from fixed-
rate obligations o foatng-rate obligations, The carrving
value of tme depodits not accounted for at fair value
approximated fair value as of both December 2023 and
December 2022, As these savings and demand deposits and
time deposits are not accounted for at fair valoe, they are not
included in the firm®s fair value hierarchy in Notes 4 and 3.
Had these deposits been included in the firm’s fair value
hierarchy, they would have been cassified in level 2 as of
bath December 2023 and December 2022,
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Neta 14.
Unsecured Borrowings

The table below presents information about unsccored
bardowangs,

AL 0 DSl

5.0 milons farsl 2
Unzaournd shartbem bomow!ngs & TE A48 5 0008
Linsnournd <t baroay H1LEFY  Mdra3E
Tital 5 317832 206 000

Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings

Unsecured short-teem borrowings includes the pomion of
unseenred leng-term berrowings maturng within one year of
the  fimangial staement dae and  wnsecored  long-teem
borrowings that are redeemable within ane vear of the
fimangial stavement date at the option of the halder,

The firm accoums for certain hybrid financial instruments at
fair value under the fair value option. See Note 10 for further
information abour unsecured short-tesm boerowings thar are
accoumed lor at fair value. In addition, the fiem designanes
certain derivatives as fair valoe hedges to convert a porian of
its unsecured short-term borrowings not accounted for ar fair
vialue  from  fixed-rate  obligatons im0 floading-rate
obligatons, The crrying value of unsecured shor-term
borrowings that are not recorded at fair value penerally
approsamates Gor value due to the short-term nature of the
obligations. As these unsecured shor-teem borrowings are
not accounted for at fair value, they are not included in the
firm's Fair value hierarchy in Nows 4 and 5 Had these
borrowings been included in the firn®s fair value hierarchy,
substantially all would have been classified in level 2 as of
both December 2023 and December 2022,

The able bedow presents informanon about unsecured short-
terim barrowings,

s o Dsoaris

5 in mions mas___z0i
Curant porton of unsscuend iong-Bam borowings . B 48,381 5 3580
Hyter'd fnanc'al instrumaernis 23073 18,383
Commertia paper 1,213 1,018
Orther Enmmd EhorT-1em Brow nas !IBI 2235
Total uneecured short-tarm bﬂtmwlﬂ £ TEO4S S 80050

‘Webghted sversge interest rate I64% 3.71%

In the table above:

* The current porion of unsecured long-term borrowings
ingluded 32967 hillion as of December 2023 and
521,75 hillion as of December 2022 issued by Gronp Inc.

The weighted average interest rates for these borrowings
inclucde the effect of hedging activities and  exclude
unsecured shor-term borrowings accounted for an fair
valae under the fair value option. See Note 7 for further
information about hedging activities.
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Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings
The able below presents information abour wnsecured long-
term borrowings.

Ml S
5 in mnilions . L1 Doitar Doilar Tatal
As of December 2023
Fimadh-rate obigitons:
Girog Ind SMEEXT § 3023 5 143844
Subs e 1,992 3,739 5m
Flioaringrane b gatons:
Giraiam Ina, 18,938 12,555 A
St darde 38,117 22684 80,811
Tatal S17T1866 § 70011 8 241877
&s.0f Docarnber R
Flgsd-raim obgaiions:
Giroug ing, S NA08e 5 =B S 152.E1
Subsdares 1584 i 4.8
Floatingrote obdgatons:
Group Inc, 19,508 14,002 333s0
Suts dares BEIM 1GESE MBI
_Tosa S1vafin § r24Bd § 247088

In the iable above:

* Unsecured long-tesm borrowings consists prncipally of
senior  borrowings, which  have maturities  extending
through i1,

* Floaung-rate abligations cludes equity-linked, credit-
linked and mdexed instruments, Floanng mterest mies are
generally based on SOFR and Euro Interbank Offered
Rate. In comnnection with the cessation of USD London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), as of July 1, 2023, the
firm replaced the USD LIBOR rate with term SOFR plus
the statutorily prescribed tenor spread.

LS. dollar-denominated deba had interest rates ranging
from 0.86% to 6.75% (with a weighted averape rate of
3.73%) as of Degember 2023 and (L66% 1o 6.75% (with a
weighted average rate of 3.51%) as of December 2022,
These rarves exclude unsecured long-term borrowings
accointed for at Gir value nnder the Gair valoe optian,

Mon-lL5,  dollar-denominated  debt had  interest e
ranging from 0.253% 1o 7.25% (with a2 weighted average
rate of L11%) as of December 2023 and 0.13% to 7.25%
(with a weighted averape rate of 1.85%) as of December
20122, These rates exclude unsecured long-term berrowings
accounted for ar fair value nnder the fair valoe oprion.
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The table below presents unseoured long-term borrowings by
matunity.
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The rable below presents unsecured long-term borrowings,
alter giving effect to such hedging activities,

A of December 2023  in miliona Group Ing.  Subsidaries Total
£ in milons I, Subsldiaries Total As of Decernber 2023
2025 5 aa 5 g iRl & AT BI2

Frosd-ratn obl galions:

2026 anan 1T A6,147
027 B::N :'1“ 1::“2 At farwaun 5 108&3F 5 1,884 & 12217
R 19,390 &m R0 AL arnorired Hoar 4,597 3,758 155
2025 - thanaatiar 78,091 21887 25,778 *2‘:'1:?;‘;"’? ki 140z S5T9Y AR
i 5 5 241 -
jLL Ui EASIE S LE AL srnoeT ed oear 141,473 5,530 147312
I“ 1|'|¢l |"|_|_'||q :lbﬂ'\'{'l .-Tﬂ'." E ] 1‘5& "' W

* Unsecured long-term barrowings mansring within one year
ol the financal statemem date and wnsecured Tong-term
borrowings thar are redeemable within one year of the
financial statemem dare ar the option of the halder are
excluded as they are included i onsecured short-teem
borrowings,

Unsecured long-term borrowings thar are repavable prior
o matunty at the opion af the firm are rellected at thar
contractual matunty dates.

Unsecured long-term borrowings that are redeemable prior
te mattnrity a1 the eption of the holder are reflected av the
carlicsi dares such options become exercisable.

Unsecured long-term borrowings included S(10.71) billon
of adjustments 1w the carmang value of certain unsecured
long-tenm borrowings resulting from the applicaiion of
hedge accounting by vear of maturity as Tollows: ${685)
million in 2025, S(300) million in 2026, 3(1.15) billion in
2T, S{1.11) bitlian in 2028 and 5(7.26) billion in 2029 and
thereafier.

The firm desipnates cersain derivatives as fair value hedpes 1o
convert a4 portion of fixed-rate  wnsecured  Jong-term
borrowings nor accounted for ar fair valwe into floaing-rae
obligations, See Note 7 for further information abou hedging
AClivities.

A5 of Dacarmber JITT
Fimad-rane o gatians:
A e vae & B0 5 B 5 &7
At prnoet phd cosT TE47 238 L% o]
Floatingrate obl gatons:
At larvaun A al ¥ 62,000
At armort ped oost 'I'E__I:I‘E'.B-ﬂ J i3 1 ¥ Brdi
oaa 5 1Bn6y1 5 @10ak E Fa0

In the table above, the apgregate amownis of unsecured long-
term borrowings had weighted average interest rates of
6.13% (3.44% related 1o fixed-rate oblignions and 6.27%
related o fMoating-rate obligations) as of December 2023 and
4.97% (4.08% relaed o fixed-rate obliganions and S.00%
related 1o floating-rate obligations) as of December 2022,
Thae rates exddude wnsecured  long-term  borrowings
acconnted for an fair value under the Gair value oprion,

The carrving value of unsecured long-term borrowings (or
which the firm did not ebect the Gor value aption was 515547
billion as of December 223 and 517399 hillion as of
December 2022, The estimated fair value of such nnsecured
long-term borrowings was S157.75 billion as of December
2023 and 517370 billion as of December 2022 As these
borrowings are not aceounted for ar fair valoe, they are not
included in the fivm's Gair value hierarchy in Notes 4 and 5.
Had these borrowings beenw included in the firm's fair value
hierarchy, substamially all would have been classified in level
2 as of both December 2023 and December 2022,
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Subordinated Borrowings

Unsecured long-term borrowings includes subordinared debe
and  jumior  subordinated  debt. Subordinated debe  that
matures within one year is ingluded in unsecured shori-rerm
borrowings. Junior subordinated debt is junior in right of
pavient to other subordinated borrowings, which are junior
1o senior borrowings, Long-term subordinated debr had
maturities ranging from 2005 10 2045 as of both December
2023 and December 2022,

The table below presents information about subordinared
borrow ings,

Por  Caerypng
5 in mdipns Arve Vi ]
As of December 2023
Subord runed debl 5 12215 § 1.858 T.7%%
Jigmar s ranad debt 68 1,053 8.30%
Tatal § 13183 § 12951 TEES
dis of Decambe R
Subord rutnag dabl 5 12281 5 1hERd Ealrs
Jurvor subord rand dobd o] ] 4 5%
Tatal 5 13939 5 13900 B

I the 1able above:

* The par amount of subordinated debe issued by Group Inc.
was 512,22 billion as of December 2023 and 512,26 billon
as of December 3022, and the carrving value of
subordinated debe issued by Group Inc. was 51190 billion
as of December 2023 amd 51188 billion as of December

2022,

* The e is the weighted average mterest rate for these
borrowings {excluding borrowings acconnted for an fair
vilue under the fair value option}, including the effect of
fair vaalue hedges wsed 10 convent fixed-rate obligaions imo
floating-rate  oblipations.  Sce MNote 7 for  further
information about bedging activitics.
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Junior Subordinated Debt

In 2004, Group Inc. wssued 5284 billion of junior
subordinated debt 1o Goldman Sachs Capial [, a Delaware
staory trust, Coldnan Sachs Capinal [ issued 52,75 billion
of guaramesd preferred beneficial imerests (Trost Preferred
segurities) 1o thied partics and 585 million of ¢ommon
beneficial interests 10 Group Inc. As of both December 2023
amdl December 2022, the oustanding par amount of junior
subordinated deba held by Goldman Sachs Capital [ was S968
million and the outstanding par amount of Trost Preferred
securities  and  commaon  beneficial  imerests issoed by
Goldman Sachs Capital 1 was 5939 million and 529 million,
respectively, Goldman Sachs Capital 1 s a whollyv-owned
finance subsidiary of the firm for regolavory and legal
purposes but is not consolidated for accounting purposcs.

The firm  pays  interest  semi-annually  on the  junior
stthordinared debr ar an anmial race of 6.345% and the deln
matures on February 15, 2034, The coupon rite and the
payment daes applicable w the beneficial intereats are the
same as the infersst rate and payment dates for the junior
subordinated debt, The firm has the right, from time 1o timne,
o defer payment of intercst on the junior subordinated debi,
and therefore canse payvment on Goldman Sachs Capital 1's
preferred beneficial interests 1o be deferved, in cach case up 1o
ten  consecutive semi-annual pertods. Dunng any  such
deferril period, the firm will not be permined o, among
other things, pay dividends om ar make cerain repurchases of
s common stock, Goldman Sachs Capital 1 s not permitted
1 ey sy disteibutions an the common beneficial interests
held by Group Inc. unlbess all dividends pavable on the
preferred benelicial interests have been paid in full,

MNote 15.
Other Liahilities
The wble below presemts other liabalities by vpe.

A o Dot

5 in milions z0zd 2023
Compansal on and benalis 5 7B 5 ¥
Income Bx-ratabed FabMias 2,847 2,650
Oparating lmase labiiles 2,52 2,154
Honconrol ng nbeedts il G0
Empoye milsmars 0 consoldated fends 1 Ih
At ] dcirii s Snd oihar 10,428 A r
Total S zas s gl
Operating Lease Liabilities

For leases longer than ane year, the lirm recognizes a right-
ol-use asger representing the aght to wse the anderdying asser
for the lease term, and a lease lability representing the
fiability o make payments. See Note 12 for information
about operating lease right-of-use asseis,
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The table below presents informarion abom operating lease
habulities.

Operaang
50 pdiipng laarsa |ubsliturs
A of Docambar 2023
2024 ] 325
0es 325
el 288
ST 256
2008 2n
28 « thmreatter 1,462
lota urd soounbed \nass payminnts 2887
Inbsresd — A4
Taotal o lease Nabliities 5 2233
Wekghted average g lease term 12 years
'ﬂ'ﬂm g i 1 rats 4.13%
s of Decembas JOFI
a3 - i
2024 k=t
2028 283
2026 238
2027 )
2026 - {Frisiii b 1,424
J-'".E Lt A b laase payimanis 2, B0
SErnad infenasy 511
Toityl epeat e inane | gk 1ias 3 FARC]
Wirightnd mverage remanng leasn tamm 13 yoars
'-'ul'l-'-uhlndm_::_qrdmnrrg_gn__ 3B

In the table above, the weighted average discount rae
represcits the firm's incremental borrowing rate as of
January 2019 for operating leases existing on the dawe of
adoption of ASU No, 200602, “Leases (Topic 3421, and at
the lease inceprion date for lemses entered ino subsequent
the o prion of this ASLL

Operating  lease  costs were 88 milhon  for 3023,
462 million for 2022 and 3463 million fee 2021, Vanable
lease costs, which are induded in operating lease costs, were
not material for 2023, 2022 and 2021, Towl eccupancy
expenses for space held in excess of the firm's current
requirenients wene not iterial for 2023, 2023 and 2021,

Lease pavients relating o operatng lease arrangements that
were signed but had not vet commenced were 31,18 billion as
of December 2013,

Accrued Expenses and Other
Accrued expenses and arher included:

* Liahilities classified as held for sale were approximately
5257 million as of December 2023, substantially all of
which related 1o GreenSky within Pladform Solutions and
consisted  primarily of costomer and other  pavables,
Liabilities classified as held for sale were non marerial as of
December 2022, Se¢ Note 12 for further infonmation about
assers held for sale.

* Contract liabilities, which represent consideration received
by the firm in conmection with s contracts with chenis
prior 1o providing the service, were 576 million as of
December 2023 and $113 million a5 of December 2022,

Aceroed unfunded commitmems related 1o investments in
qualified affordable howsing projecs werne 52,26 billion as
of December 2023, See Note 18 for further informtion
about the firm's commitments 1o invest in gualified
affordable housing projects.

Note 16.
Securitization Activities

The firm securitizes residential and commercial mortgages,
corparate bonds, loans and other 1vpes of financial asseis by
sclling these assets (o scouritization vehicles {eg., trusis,
corporate ginties and limied labality companies) of through
a resecuritiznion. The firm acs as underwriter of the
beneficial interests thar are sold o imvestors. The finn's
residdentiol - morgage  securitizations  are  primarly o
connection with government agency securitizations,

The firm accounts for a sccuritization as 2 sale when it has
relinguished control over the ransferred financial assers,
Prior to secunitization, the firm generally accounts for assets
pending teansfer ar fair value and therelore does not typically
recognize significant gains or losses upon the ransfer of
assels, Met revenues from  underwriting  activities  are
recopnized in connection with the sales of the underdying
beneficial interests to investors,
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The firm generally receives cash in exchange for the
rranslerred assets bot may also have continuing invalvement
with the teansferred (inancial assers, including ownership of
beneficial interests in securitized financal assets, primanly in
the form of debt instruments, The firm may also purchase
senior or subordinated secunties issoed by securitization
vehicles (which are wvpcally VIES) in conmection with
seoondary market-making acuvities.

The primary risks included in beneficial interests and other
imerests from the  firm's continuing  invalvemem  with
secuntization vehicles are the performance of the nnderlying
collateral, the position of the fom's investment in the capiral
strectre of the secorineation vehicle and the marker vield for
the security. Interests accounted for at Bar value are
primarily classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Interests not accounted for at fair value are carvied
amaounts that approximate Gur value, See Note 4 for further
information abou fair valie measirements,

The mble below presents the amount of financial assets
secumtized and the cish Mows received on retained mteresis
in securitization entitics in which the firm had comntinuing
invalvement ds of the end of the penad.

Yot Erced Exsonmmber

£ ia mdlignz HED 202 2021
FRas dental morigages S202TE 26007 SF0 (48
Commsreia mortgages A 4EE 130 18 355
Oithar Prsndal assels ﬂﬂ 3817 4377
Tatal financial assets socurilined $30.673 SLa060  SRUAT
FRataimed intareats caeh flows $ M3 5§ 588 § &I3

The fiem securitized assets of 5369 million dunng 2023, §792
million during 2022 and $886 million duning 2021, in a non-
cash exchange for loans and investimems,

The table below presents information about nonconsolidated
securnieion entities o which the firm sold assets and had
continuing involvement as of the end of the periad.

Crnprpeding
Principsl  Recandd  Punchased

£ in millons Amount  Wtsesis Infarests

As of Docamber 2023
U5, governmant opancy-ssued Chi0s § 31,140 § 2,260 65

Orher residantal modigage-hacind 28 TET 1,162 m
Orthar comimantial margage-backed 01,548 1,152 3]
i ekl arsd ovar Bl -Eackad 1 RS 58

Tetal % 1 5 5 185

&zl Decamber J002

U5, goveeninent agency-asusd CMOs 5 38817 5 1835 § -

Crthar rosdanta’ mongge-hacied 27005 1.461 1

Ohar commancal roengage-iscked S085H 1349 H2

Coipornta dalt ardd pthar assai-backed 8,750 iae 44

ots S SN E son s Je
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In the table above:
® CMOs represents collateralized morgage obhigations,

* The owsmanding principal amount is presemted for ohe
purpose of providing information abour the sive of the
securitizaton entities and is not representative of the finm's
risk of loss,

* The flirm’s risk of loss from retained or purchased interests.
i linited 1o the corrving value of these interests,

# Purchased interests represent semior and  subordinared
mterests, purchased in conmection with secondary market-
making activities, in securitzaion entities in which the
firm also holds retained interests.

Substanually all of the woral oustanding principal amount
and votal retained imercsts relate o securitizitions doring
2119 and therealter.

* The fair value of retained interests was 55,26 billion as of
December 2023 and $5.03 billion as of December 2022,

In addition w the intercsts in the mble above, the frm had
other continuing invalvement in the form of derivative
transactions and commiuments with certain nonconsolidated
VIEs. The carrving value of these denvagives and
commitments was 4 net asset of 5120 million a5 of December
2023 and 572 million as of December 2022, and the notional
amonnt of these dedivatives and commitments was 51,95
billion as of December 2023 and 5190 billion as of December
2022, The novonal amowns of these  derivatives  and
commimments are included in masdmum exposure o loss in
the nonconsclidated VIE gable in Nowe 170 Addidonally,
during 3023, the firm provided seller fnancing  of
approximately 5.7 billion in connection with the sale of
5324 balloa of Marcus loans and recerved SLO ballion in
principal and interest repayments from this financing. As of
December 2023, the total owstanding principal amouwnt of
such seller financing wis 5181 billion,
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The rable below presents information about the weighted
average key econonig assumptions used in measuring the fair
vithie of morgape-backed retained interesis,

A of Diecenriber
£ in ridiians ea 2002
Far varue of relanied inetass E 4590 & 4 84
Waighned svecage (e (yaars) 87 6.8
CONam peapmTiant rte 12.5% T.i%
Fnpsct of 1 03 advarsd changs & {501 5 @
Fnpsct of 205 atverss chings k- 194] & )
DHscowunt e T.6% a5%
npset of 103, pivres chings £ nn s 1k}
Irnpet of 20%: adverse changs ] 1226 5 [Pl

In the table above:

# Amounms do not eeflecr the benefic of other linangial
instroments that are held to mitgate nsks inherent in these
retained innerests,

* Changes in fair value based on an adverse varaton in
assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the
relationship of the change in asswmptions 1o the change in
fair value 1s not nseally linear.

The impact of a2 change in a paricular asomplion is
calculaved  independently  of changes in any  other
assumption,  [n practee,  simultancous  changes  in
assumptions. might magnily or cownteract the sensitivities
disclosed above.

* The constam  prepayment rate s mcleded only for
positions. for which it is a key assumption in the
determination of fair value,

The discount rate for retained interests that refate 1o LS,
povernment agency-isswed CMOs does not incliude any
credin loss, Expected credit loss assumptions are reflected in
the disgonnt rane for the remainder of recined ineress,

The fivm has other retained interests nat reflected in the able
above with a Gur value of $674 milion and a weighted
average life of 5.0 years as of December 2023, and a fair value
of 5384 million and a weighied average life of 6.4 vears as of
December 2022, Due to the nature and fair value of certain of
these retained interests, the weighted average assumpions for
constant prepayment and discount rates and the relared
semsitivity 1o adverse changes are nol meaninglul as of both
December 20023 and December 2022, The firm's maxinmm
exposure 10 adverse changes in the valoe of these interests is
the carrving value of 5683 million as of December 2023 and
S398 million as of December 2022,

Note 17.
Variable Interest Entities

A variable interest in a VIE is an investment (e.g., debr or
equity) or other interest {e.g., derivatives or loans and lending
commitments) that will absarb porions of the VIE's expeced
losses andfor receive partions of the VIE's expected residual
FClurns,

The firm's vanable interests in VIEs include senior and
subordinated debt; foans and lending commmtments; limited
and peneral parmership inerests; preferred and commaon
cquity; denvatives that may incdwde foreign currency, cquity
andfor credin risk; guarantees; and cerrain of the fees the firm
receives from investment funds, Cenzain interest rate, foreign
currency and credin derivatives the firm enters into with VIEs
are not vanable interests because they create, rather than
absorb, risk.

VIEs generally finance the porchase of assets by issuing debt
and equity securitics that are either collaeralized by or
wndexed to the asseis held by the VIE. The debt and equity
securities issued by a VIE may include tranches of varving
levels of subordination. The finn's involvement with ViEs
includes securitization of financial asses, a5 described in
Mot 16, and invesoments in and foans 1o other types of VIEs,
as deseribed below, See Nate 3 for the firm's consalidation
policies, including the definition of a VIE.

VIE Consolidation Analysis

The enterprise with i conteolling finangial interest in a VIE is
known as the pnmary beneficiary and consolidaves the VIE.
The firm determines whether it @ the primary beneliciary of a
VIE by performing an analysis thar principally considers:

* Which vanable interest holder has the power o direct the

activities of the VIE thar most sigmificantly impact the
VIE's cconomic performance;

Which vanable mterest halder has the obligation o absorb
losses or the night 1o receive benefits from the VIE tha
could potentially be significant to the VIE;

* The VIE's purpose and design, imscluding the risks the VIE
was designed 10 creare and pass through 1o s variable
mterest habders:

The VIEs capital structure;

* The terms berween the VIE and s variable interest holders
and other parties involved with the VIE; and

* Relared-party relationships,

The fiem reassesses s evalisiion of whether an entity 15 3
VIE when certain reconsideration events occur. The firm
reassesses s determimation of whether o ois the pramary
bencficiary of a VIE on an ongoing basis based on current
facts and circumstances,
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VIE Activities
The figm is principally involved with VIEs throwgh the
fuallowing business activitics:

Mortgage-Backed VIEs., The firm sells residental and
commercial mongige loans and securities 1o morgage-
backed V1Es and may retzun benelical interests in the asseis
sold 1 these VIEs, The firm purchases and sells beneficial
interests issued by mongage-backed VIEs in connection with
market-making activities, In addition, the firm may enter into
derivatives with certain of these VIEs, primarily imeresi rae
swaps, which are tepically not variable interests. The firm
generally enters inwo dervatives with other counterparties o
mitigate its nisk,

Real Estate, Credit- and Power-Related and Other
Investing VIEs. The firm purchases oquity and debt
segurities issued by and makes loans w VIEs that hold real
estate  (including qualified affordable  housing  projects),
performing and nonperforming debt, distressed Ioans, powers
reloted assets and equity securities, The firm generally does
not sell assets 1o, or enter into denvatives with, these ViEs,

Corporate Debt and Other Asset-Backed VIEs. The firm
structures WIEs thar issue nores o clients, purchases and sells
beneficial merests issued by corporate debt and other asse-
backed VIEs in conmection with market-making activities,
and makes loans o VIEs that warchouse corporate debr.
Certain of these VIEs synthetically create the exposure for the
beneficial interests  they  dssue by emering into credit
derivatives with the lirm, rather than purchasing the
underlying assers. In addition, the fiem may enter imo
derivatives, such as total return swaps, with certain corporaie
debi and other asser-backed VIEs, under which the finm pays
the VIE a return due to the beneficial interest holders and
receives the return on the collateral owned by the VIE. The
collateral owned by these YVIEs s primanly other asset-
backed loans and securitics. The firm may be removed as the
total perurn swap conmerparty and may enter into derivatives
with other conmerpartics to mitigate its sk related 10 these
swatps, The firm may sell assets o the corporate delt and
other asset-backed VIEs it strucnares.
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Principal-Protected Note VIEs. The lirm siructures VIEs
that 1zsue poncpal-protected  notes to cients, These VIEs
own portfolios of assers, principally with exposure 1o hedge
funds. Substantially all of the prnncipal protection on the
notes isswed by these VIES is provided by the asset porifolio
rebalancing that is required under the terms of the notes. The
firm enters into total retuen swaps with these VIEs under
which the firm pays the VIE the return due 1o the principal-
protecied note holders and receives the reiurn on the asseis
owned by the VIE. The firm may enter imo derivatives with
other counterpartics 1o mitigare its risk. The firm akso
obtins funding through these VIEs,

Investments in Funds. The firm makes equity investments
in certan imvestment fund VIEs it manages and 15 entitded 10
receive fees from these VIEs, The firm has generally nor sold
assels 1o, or entered into derivatives with, these VIEs,

Nonconsolidated VIEs

The table below presents a smmmary of the nonconsclidated
WIEs in which the firm holds variable interesis,

5 in milicna

A o Discennbes
2EF il

Total nonconsalidated WIEs

Ansats n VIEs & 19395234 & 1418480
Carying va'ua af warabis inlsresls — assabs 5 154TR & 12705
Cu‘g;m\'.:mulmrahu Alirasts — [ ilins 5 2750 £ (5]
A acchomwm axposure bo ko
Retyngd niehests § 5.2 & B 043
Purchased merests 02 i1
Comm Wit 30 GLlrnnraes A58 &8
Dieivanioas B.E3E B0z
Detit ardl sy 8927 B0
T!Ill g Em 5 2.1 H1%

In the table above:

* The nature of the fem’s vanable interesis is described in
the rews wnder nuaximum exposure to loss,

* The firm's exposure 1o the obligations of VIEs is generally
limited o iis interests in these enuities, In ceriain instances,

the firm

provides  puaraniees,

including  derivative

piaranices, to YIEs or holders af variable ineresis in VIEs.

* The maximam exposure o loss excludes the benefit of
offserting financial instruments thar are held 1w mitigate the
risks associated with these variable interesis,

# The maximum exposure to loss from reboned inieresis,
purchased mterests, and debt and equity 15 the carrving

value of these interesis.

* The maximum cxposure to loss from commitments and
puarantees, and derivatives is the notional amount, which
does not represent anticipated losses and has not been
reduced by unrealized losses. As a result, the maximum

exposure 1o loss

exgeeds

liabilities  revorded  for

commmtments and guarantess, and derivatives,
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The rable below presents information, by principal business
activity, for nongansolidated VIEs included in the summary
table above.

A of Decomber

§ in miligng 2023 2022
Morgage-backed
Adad1s i VIER § 123,908 5 127290
't-’r'p"nﬂ wus ol Wirabie nIAresIa — RSN 5 4887 5 48570
Maximum expodure 10 ok
Ratmmad nisreace § 4814 5 485
Purchaned infarasts 53 3w
Crmm Hents are guaraniass 35 1]
Darwag s F 2
Tatal 5 4904 5 403

Real estate, crodit- and power-relrted and othwer investing
Arzads in ViEs 5 43038 £ 29153
Carrying vaius of warabio niarests — assets 5 BEEE & 4.41%

{‘.xr_tng'.u-ueuh.mma nnras s = lahkiies 5 2,2!;0 g )
Maximum exposure 1o loss:

Comim trrante ard guarsntsss 5 Jea1 £ 2@
Dbt and ooty 4,723 4,414
Tatal 5 8&24 5 /o090

Corporate debt and other asset-backed

Aaasn in VIES § E1EBE 5 19478
Carrying vadus al wak ali'a niresis — atiais £ 368 5 2EYF
Carrying valus of waralye nisresls — fabinies ] 8%0 £ B57
Maximurm sepoduar 10 loes
Fatomad nisraans - B85 5 i)
Purchased inenasis 4l BF
Comimy trssnts e QUaranEas 31 150
DA wis BEZY B.E00
Ot and ogui by 2,103 1,458
Tatnl 5 TEE € 11413
Ivvestmants in funds
desads n Viks ] 4,803 5 b 788
Carmying waiue of war'abia inderasts — assais 5 a1 5 114
Maximum exposure 1o loss
Commitmsnts and guaranises 5 28 5
Dkl and ovou By a1 118
Total 5 [ 2 )

As of both December 2023 and December 2022, the carrving
vitlues of the firm's vanable intersts in nonconsolidated ViEs
are included in the consolidated balance shees as Follows:

* Morigage-backed: Assets primarily included in trading
assets and loans,

Real estae, credit- and power-relaed and other investing:
Assets prmarily included i invesoments and other assets,
amd liabilies included in eading labilivies and  other
liabilitics, See Note 18 for further information about the
firm's commitments 1o invest in gqualified  affordable
housing projecis.

Corporate debt and other assei-backed: Assets included in
loans and rrading assets, and liabilites included in trading
liabilitics.

* lnvestments in funds: Assets included ininvestments,
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Conscolidated VIEs

The table below presents a summary of the carrving value
amd balance sheer classification of assets and liabilivies in
consalidated VIEs.

45 of Decermnbat
5 mllans 20EE 202
Tatal consolhdated VIEs
ARERE
Cash and cash sguivaiends 5 439 5 A
Cusiomas ard othar moevablas 347 7
Iradng assats a5 k]
InvastTanTS B0 101
Loars 267 [ FF
Oithar assats 248 N
Tatal 5 14T 5 2003
Liabditins
b sacurnd Tinancings 5 850 5 o
Custormas and alfur payabies 2 1
Tradng fabiftes - 9
Ursecured shorl-fnim Bomowngs 14 &
Ursacured org-leim Bares'rgs 17 14
Dirhatet |1 " 112
Tatal ] 874 5 1 198

In the table above:

* Assets and labilivies are presented net of intercompany
climinanions and exclude the benefin of offseiting financial
instruimeents that are hedd te mitgate the nsks assocared
with the firm’s varable interests.

VIEs in which the firm holds a majority voiing interest are
excluded i () the VIE mects the definition of a business
aml (i) the VIE's assers can be used for purposes ather than
the settlement of its obhganons,

Sebstanually  all assets can only be used 10 seule
obligaions of the VIE.
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The rable below presents information, by principal business
activity, for comsolidated VIES mcluded i the sumimary tabile
above,
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Note 18.
Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

T . Commitments .
£ s vl ez oo The rable below presents commitments by type.
Feal estate, credit-related and other invesling
Assats i — D
Caah e e85 Bopvints § M75 3m il 023 bLE
Custoenar i ofbes recsivalies - 7 Commitment Typa
Teading siaets 0 4z Corvurasicia’ land nig:
Pl a0 1 Inieastenant-grade § TN 5 100438
Lesns 287 Rt/ Hon-rrensimani-grads 54,258 40
it daath 243 30 Warahousa fnancing ERETS 51148
Tatal s 1040 5 200 Conaumar 73004 64000
= It larding 247,758 FrrA k-]
Luptwiries Bk paricpalions 8167 5173
Crhar sacured fnoncings 5 143 = 1ra Coiatara imd agrepmant 100,508 108301
Custornar and athaer payah/es 2 a1 Calaten imd financing B4276 22,532
Imding ‘abiites - 9 Ivnstrant 4552 ¥, 04
Oither [abilites a1 (i Db B.258 9 500
Tatal 5 F- T B Tatal commitments 5 453554 3 31550
Corporate debt and other asset-backed . ! - " . . . T
el The table below presents commimments by expiration.
Cah ard cash aguynents 5 . 4 An ol bar 2023
g - g0, T S TT T B TR
Sreth) 5 L = § o ot 034 p6v6  30am Thersabas
L uakiktims Commitmant Typa
COrthar secured {nanc rygs ] Ira s A2 Commarcal ianding
Tatal [ T4 5 A2 Ivnstrnant-grada § 21672 § 37000 § 51918 8 612
L Hon-measimant-grade 5559 21,500 2872 4367
Principal-protected nates Waraheerse Francing 2744 5114 1,770 &8
Azsars Consurnar 13073 1 = =)
Custorner and ot recealiag 5 347 5 = Toty landing 102548 63,615 76,660 4,935
f:adngmu’.s- l_l £1 F=k partcpalions 2028 3820 2553 2%
Tatal 5 414 = &1 Cocateraimd sgreamsnt 98 BE0 1,191 - £52
Cor ey imd Tinancing B, 1300 - - 146
Epalic I trin] w3 30 3/ 2863
Onther secured Tnancngs 5 3 5 a0 Dithar 7801 >0 42 178
Linascyrid SFan-taim Bormawnel 14 = e = 2
Tatal cammitimanis L] 14 $ 5 5 TI64E § 99
Unssirad oog-badm Bomiw res 17 18 —————ld 23 LA 2510
il ’ . i
T z 695 G0 In the tables above, in 2023, the firm made certain changes o

I the pable above, creditors and benelicoal interest holders of
real estate, credit-relmted and ovher invesang VIEs do nor
have recourse to the general credit of the firm.

196 Goldman Sachs 2023 Form 10K

its methodology for determining internal credin ratings, See
Note # for furher informarion abour these changes. Prioe
period amounis have been conformed 1o reflect the currem
methodology. The impact to December 2022 was an increase
in commercial lending commitmens classified as investment-
prade and a decrease in commercial lending commirments
classified as non-investment-grade of $2.78 billion.
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Lending Commitments

The firm's commercial and warchouse f[inancing lending
commitments are agreements o lend with fBxed wermination
dates and depend on the satsfacnion of all conrciual
conditions 1 borrowing, These commitments are presented
net of amouns syndicated 1o third pamdes. The oral
commitment amount does not mecessanly reflect actual futare
cash Tlows because the firm may syndicae portions of these
commirments, In addition, commitments gm expire unused
or be reduced or cancelled ar the counterparty’s request. The
firm also provides credie to consumers by ssuing credit card
lines amd through commitments to provide unsecored
installment loans,

The table below  presemis  informartion  abow  lending
commitments,

___Ase Decerrde
£ o endigng el 2073
Ha'th dor ‘el § 227,885 § §i1659
Ha'd b s3'e 18,129 2355
At farvaue TE4 1,084
Totl CEL A R FIREN

In the tible above:

* Held for investment lending commitments are accounted
for at amortieed cost. The carrving value of lending
commitments was a liabiliny of 5845 million {including
allowance for credit bosses of 5620 million) as of December
3023 and S1.01 billion {including allowance for credin losses
of 5774 million) as of December 2022, The estimared fair
value of such lernding commitments was a halality of 55,29
billion s of December 2023 and $5.95 hillion as of
December 2022, Had these lending commitments been
carred ar fair value and included in the Tair value
hierarchy, 53.10 billion as of December 2023 and 53.11
Billion as of December 2022 would have been classilied in
level 2, and %219 billion as of December 2023 and 52,84
billion as of December 2022 would have been dassified in
tl.'.'l.'(!l .],

Held for sale lending commitmenis are accounted for ar the
lower of cost or fur value. The carrving vilue of lending
commitments held for sale was a labiliy of 570 mallion as
of December 2023 and S8R million as of December 2022,
The estimated Tair value of such lending commitinents
approximates the carrving value. Had these lending
commitments been included in the far value hierarchy,
they would have been primarily classified in level 3 as of
both December 2023 and December 2022,

Gains or losses related 1o lending comminments an fair
value, if any, are generally recorded net of any fees in other
principal transactions,
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Commercial Lending. The frn’s commercal  lending
commitments were primarily extended 1o investment-grade
corporate borrowers, Such commitments primarily included
S1AT01 billion as of Decernber 2023 and S127.60 hillion as of
December 2022, refated 1o relatonship lending activities
{principally  used for operating and  general  corporate
purposes), and 54.21 billion as of December 2023 and 57.71
billkon as of December 2022, related to other investment
banking acrivities  (gencrally  exmended  for  contingent
acquisition financing and are often intended o be short-term
in mature, a5 borrowers often seek o replace them with other
funding sources), The lirm also extends lending commirments.
in - connection  with other tvpes of corporate  lending,
commercial real estore financing and other collaeralized
lending. See MNote 9 for further mformation about funded
lowns,

To mitgse the credit risk associated with the firm's
commercial lending  activides, the finn obtains  credic
protection on certain loans and lending  commitments
throngh credit default swaps, both single-name and index-
based comreaces, and through the issuance of credit-linked
noles,

Warehouse Finaneing. The finn provides financng 1o
clignts who warehoose fnancial assets. These arrangements
are collateralized by the warchoused assers, primarily
consisting of residential real sstate, consumer and corporaie
fnans.

Consumer. The firm’s consumer lending commitments
ingludes:

* Credit card lines issoed by the firm 1o consumers were
S70L82 billion as of December 2023 and 562,22 billion as of
December 2023, As of December 3023, such credit card
lines included 514,35 billion of commitments classified as
held for sale in connection with the planned sale of the GM
co-branded credin card portfolio. These credin card lines are
cancellable by the flirm.

* Commitments 1o provide onsecored imstallment loans 1w
constmers were 52,25 hillion as of December 2023, As of
December 2023, such commitments were classiflicd as held
for zale in connection with the planned sale of GreenSky,
As of December 2022, commitments o provide unsecured
mnstallnent boans (o consumers were 31,88 ballon,
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Risk Participations

The firm alse risk particpates cenain of dis commercial
lemding commitments o other financial insttutons, In the
evet of a risk pamicipants defanl. the firm will be
responsible to fund the borrower.

Collateralized Agreement
Collateralized Financing Commitments
Collateralized agreement commitments includes  forward
starting resale and securities  borrowing  agreements, and
collateralized  Tmanang  commitments  includes  forward
staring repurchase and secured lending agreements that
seithe at a futwre dare, generally within three business days.
Collateralized  agreemem  commitments  also  includes
transactions where the firm has entered into comminments 1o
provide contingent financing 1o its clicnts and coumerparties
throngh resale apreements, The firm™s funding of these
commirments depends on the sausfaoion of all contracual
conditions o 1he resile Erecmeng and these comminments
can expire unnsed,

Investment Commitments

Investment commtments includes commitments e invest in
private equity, real estate and other assets direcily and
through funds that the firm raises and manages. Invesoment
commirments included $963 million as of December 2023 and
51.29 hillion as of December 2022, related to commitments o
invest in funds mamaged by the fiom, [F these commitments
are called, they would be funded a marker valie on the dare
of investment. Beginning in the fournth guarter of 2023,
commitmems 1o invest i qualified affordable  howsing
projects {acoounted for using the proparional amorizaion
method) that are contingent upon a future event thar is
prabable o occur, are recognized within other assers and
other liabalities m the consohdated balance sheet, Previously,
such  commimments  were  included 0 investment
commitments. The impact of recognizing these commitments
within other assets and other labalites as of December 2022,
would have been an increase in both other assers and other
hiabilities and a decrease 0 invesiment commitments of
51,13 hillion,

Commitments/

Contingencies
Lagal Proceedings. Sce Note 27 for informarion abour legal
procecdings,
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Guarantees

The table below presenis denvanives thar meen the definition
of a guarantee, secunities lending and clearing puarantecs amd
certain ather financial guaranees.

Secumies Crthay

bending and Sranoal
5 milions Dot Cheanng  QUSETCDES
A3 of December 2023
Carrying Valus of Net Lisbillty & 5240 8 -5 430
Mudmum PaycutiNotional Amgunt by Pericd of
2034 & 1TTEsS 5 AT 5 2335
200% - 0 98,843 - 3,708
200 . 2028 19,282 - 2,108
2023 - thavmaitr 000 - 231
Tatal § am050 5 Za7E7 § 1994
Aant Desamber 203
Carying Vaue af Ned Lishiiy 5 Ja8h 3 = & F05
Maxbmem Payoul/Notions| Amount by Period of Explation
2063 $ 05995 00970 5 LEM
2034 - J02h 133,000 = 3,308
2008 - Joz? 20,352 = ) a7
20GH - tharaaiter 21518 = a3
o S FNasD T 7000 5 B&ig
In the table above:

* The maximum pavour is hased on the notional amount of
the comeract and does not represemt anticipated losses.

* Amounts exclude certain commitmens o issue standby
lerers of eredit thar are included in lending commitmenis,
See the tables in “Commimments™ above lor a sumimary of
the firm's commitments,

* The carrving value for denvatives included derivative
assets of 5359 mllion as of Decomber 2023 and 5578
million as of December 2022, and derivative labilities of
55,60 billion as of December 2023 and 58.06 hillion as of
December 2022,
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Derivative Guarantees. The finm eniers imo varions
derivatives that meet the definition of a goarantes under U5,
GAAT, including wrinen equity and commaodity pur options,
written currency contracts and interest rate caps, floors and
swaptions, These derivatives are sk mamaged wogether with
denivatives that do not meet the delinition of a guarantee, and
therefore the amounts in the table above do not reflect the
firm's overall risk related 1o derivative acrivities, Disclosures
aboui dertvatives are not required if they may be cash seitled
and the firm has no basis 1w conclude it is probable thae the
connterpartics  held the wunderlying instramenis ar  the
inception of the conteact, The firm has concluded thar these
conditions have been mer for certain large, internationally
active commercial and  mvestment  bank  counterparties,
central clearing conmerpartics, hedie funds and certain other
counterpartics. Accordingly, the firm has not included such
contrcts in the rable above. See Nowe 7 for information
about crediv derivatives  that meer the definiion of a
guarantes, which are not included in the table above,

Derivatives are accounted for an fair value and therefore the
carrying value is considered the best indication of payment/
peformance risk for individual comracts. Flowever, the
carrving vilues in the mable above exclude the effect of
conmnterpanty and cash collateral netng,

Securities Lending and Clearing Guarantees, Scounies
lending and dearing guaranices include the indemnificarions
and guarantees thar the firm provides i its capacity as an
agency lender and in i1s capacity as a sponsoring member of
the Fixed Income Cleanng Corporanion.

As an agency lender, the fiom indemnifies most of s
securities lending customers apainst losses incuered in the
cvent that borrowers do not return secunties and  the
collareral held is insufficient 1o cover the marker value of the
secunities  borrowed.  The maximum  payout of such
indemnifications wis 514,19 hillion as of December 2023 and
512,23 billion as of December 2022, Collateral held by the
lemders in connection with securties lending indemnifications
wis 514,63 billion as of Degember 2023 and 512,62 billion as
of December 2022, Becavse the contraciual nature of these
arrangemens requires the firm o obain collaeral with a
marker value thar exceeds the value of the securities lent 1o
the borrower, there 15 minimal performance rsk associared
with these indemmnifications,
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As a sponsoring member of the Government Securitics
Divigion of the Fixed Income Clearng Corporation, the firm
prearanees the perfformance af i sponsored member clicns
to the Fixed Income Clearing Corporation in connection with
certain resale and repurchase agreements, To o minimize
potential losses on such guarantees, the firm obrains 2
security interest i the collateral that the sponsored dient
placed  with the Fixed Income Clearing Corporarion.
Therelore, the nsk of loss on such guarantees 1s mimmal, The
maximum pavout on this goaraniee was S1460 billion as of
December 2023 and 58.74 billion as of December 2022, The
relared collareral held was 514,69 billion as of December 2023
and 58,70 billion as of December 2022,

Other Financial Guarantees. In the ordinary course of
business, the fiem provides ather financial guaranmess of the
obligations of third paries (e.p., standby letters of credic and
other guarantees 1o enable chents 1o complete transactions
and fund-related guarantees). These guaranices represent
obligations 1w make paymemns w beneliciaries if the
puaraneed pany fails o (il Gis obligaion under o
contractual  arrangement  with  thar  beneficiary.  Other
fimancial goarantees also indude a goarantee thar the firm
has provided o the Government of Malaysia thar it will
receive, by Avgust 2025, at least 514 billion in assets amd
procecds (rom assets seteed by governmental authontic
around the world related o 1Malaysia Development Berhad,
a sovercign wealth lund i Malaysia (1MDB) In connecoon
with this guaramee, the fiom agreed o make a3 one-time
intenm payment of S250 million towards the 514 ballion i
the Government of Malavsia did nor receive a0 least
S50 million in asseis and proceeds by August 2022, The firm
does non believe that any interm payment 35 required, Any
amounts paid by the fiem would, in any event, be subject 10
reimbursement in the event the assets and proceeds received
by the Government of Malivsia through Avgust 18, 2028
exceod 514 billion.

O October 11, 2023, the firm fled a demand for arbitranion
alleging thar the Government of Malaysia had, as of August
2022, recovered asseis and proceeds well in excess of
5500 million; it had recovered substantial additional assers
and proceeds thar should be credited against the guarantes;
amd it had not used all reasonable effonts w recover ather
assers and proceeds thar could be credited against the
puaraniee. On November 8, 2023, the Government of
Malaysia filed a response to the firm's demand for arbitration
in which it staved that it intends o counterclaim for payment
of the interim payiment (plus interest) on the asis that ic had
recovered less than 5500 million as of Aupust 2022 The
arbitral progess 15 ongoing. See Note 27 for further
informanien abow marers relared 10 1MDE,
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Guarantees of Securities Issued by Trusts. The firm has
ctablished  trosts, wwleding Goldman  Sachs Capital 1,
Gaoldman Sachs Capital 1T and Goldman Sachs Capiral 111 (the
Trusts), and other enties, for the hmited purpose of issuing
securities po third parties, lending the proceeds 1o the fiem
and entering into contractual arrangements with the firm and
third partics related to this purpose. The Tiem does not
consolidate these emities. Sce Nowes 14 and 19 for further
informatton aboui the transaciions invalving the Trusis.

The fiem effectively provides for the full and unconditional
puarantee of the securities issued by these entities. Timely
payiment by the fiem of amounts due o these entities under
the puaramies, borrowing, preferred siock and  related
contractual arcangements will be sufficient wo cover pavments
due en the secunities issued by these enities. No subsidiary of
Ciroup Inc. guarantees the securities of the Trostis,

Management  believes  that it a5 wunlikely  thar  any
circumstances will occur, such as nonperformance on the part
of paying agents or other service providers, that would make
it mecessary for the fiom o make payments related 1o rhese
entities other than those required under the reems of the
pudraniee,  borrowmpe,  preferred  steck and  related
comractual arrangements and in connection with cerain
expenses incurred by these entities,

Indemnities and Guarantees of Service Providers. In
the ordimary course af busingss, the firm indemnifies and
guaraniecs certain service providers, such as cleanng and
custody agents, rrastees and adminisirators, againsy specified
porential losses in connection with their acting as an agent of,
or providing services 1o, the firm or its affiliawes,

The firm may also be liable 1o some clicnis or other paries
for losses ansing froa iis custedial rele or cansed by aces or
ormissions of third-party service providers, mcluding sub-
custodians and third-pany brokers. In certain cases, the firm
has the nght o seek idenmificaton rom these third-pariy
service providers for cerain relevant losses incuered by the
firm. In addition, the lirm is a member of payment, dearing
and settlement networks, as well s securities exchanpes
around the world that may require the firm 1o meer the
obligations of such networks aond exchanges in the event of
member defanlis and other loss scenarios.

In connection with the firm's prime brokerage and dearing
businesses, the finn agrees (o clear and settle trinsactions
emtered into by clients with ather brokerage fiems. The firm's
obligations in respect of such transactions are seoured by the
assers in the client’s acconm and proceeds received from the
rransactions cleared and setled by the finm on behalfl of the
client. Tn connection with joint venture investments, the firm
may issie loan guarantees under which it may be liable in the
event of frmd, nusappropriation, environmental liabilioes
and other manters involving the barrower,
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The firm is unable ro develop an estimare of the maximam
pavout  wider  these  puarantes and  ndemmlicinons,
Haowever, management believes thar it is anlikely the firm
will have te make any matenial payments under these
arrangements, and no matenial habilites related 1w these
guaranices and imdemmnifications have been recognized in the
consalicdated balance sheets as of bath December 2023 and
December 2022,

Other Representations, Warranties and
Indemnifications. The firm provides represeniations and
wilrrinlies o counterparties in connection with a varety of
cammercial ransactions and occasionally indemnifics them
against  potential losses caused by the breach of those
representations and warranties. The firm may also provide
indemnifications protecting apainst changes in or adverse
apphication of certain LS, wx laws in connection with
nrdimry-mnrﬁc rransactions, such as securitics isspances,
borrowings or derivatives,

In addition, the firm may provide indemnifications o some
counterpartics 1o protect them in the event additional mxes
are owed or payments are withheld, due ather 1w a change in
or an adverse application of certain mon-1.5, tax laws, These
indemnificatsions, as well as indemmifications provided by the
firm on other contractual er other obligatons, generally are
standard contraciual erms and are entered imo in the
ordinary course of business. Generally, there are no stated or
notional amouns included in these indemnifications, and the
contingencies triggering the obligation o indemnify are not
expected 1o ocair, The frm is unable 1o develop an estimate
of the madmum pavour under these gearantecs  and
indemnifications. However, management believes than i is
unlikely the firm will have o make any material paymens
under these arrangements, and no matenial liabilities related
to  these arrangements  have been  recopmized in the
consolidated batance sheets as of both Decernber 2023 and
December 2022,

Guaranteas of Subsidiaries. Crroup Ing, is the eminy that
fully and unconditionally puarantees the securitics issued by
G5 Finanee Corp,, 2 whollyv-owned (linance subsidiary of the
firm, Group Inc, has guaranieed the payment obligations of
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (G5&Co.), G5 Bank USA and
Goldman Sachs Paris Ing, e Cie, subject to cernain
exceptions. In addition, Group Inc. has provided puaranwes
1o Goldman Sachs Internatonal (GS1) and GSBE related 1o
apreements that each entity has entered into with cerain of
s counterpartics. Group  Ing. goaraniees many of the
oblipaions of s other consolidaed subsidianes on a
transaction-by-reansaction basis,  as  negotiaed  with
connterparties. Growp Inc. is unable to develop an estimate of
the maximum  payout under s subsidiaey  puaranies,
However, because these obligapons are also obligations of
consalidated subsidiaries, Group Ine,'s liabilities as guaranior
are not separately disclosed.
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MNote 19.
Shareholders’ Equity

Common Equity

As af both December 2023 and December 2022, the firm had
4.0 billion awthodzed shares of common stock and 200
million authorized shares of nonvoring comman stock, each
with a par value of 50,01 per share,

The firm's share repurchase program is intended 10 help
maintain the appropriate level of common equity, The share
repurchase program s effected primarily through regular
open-market purchases (which may imcdude repurchase plans
designed 1o comply with Rule 10b3-1 and accelerated share
repurchases), the amownss and  tming of which  are
derermined primarily by the firm’s coreent and projected
capital positiom, and capital deployment opponunitics, but
which may also be influenced by general marker conditions
and the prevailing price and reading volumes of the firm's
common stock,

The talle below presents information abowt common stock
repurchases,
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Preferred Equity

The ables below present information about the perpetaal
preferred stock issued and custanding as of December 2023,

o rmeilions, exoeod per shave m-:‘.i_?!s
Comemtn shars mgurcdiases i e 5.3
Avarngs Cae [ ahane

Tentiyl comt of comnemon Shas rapurchidad

Pursuant o the werms of certain share-based compensation
plans. employees may remir shares 1o the firm or the fiem
may cancel share-based awards wo savsly stamutory emploves
rax withholding requirements, Under these plans, 858 shares
in 2023, 11,644 shares in 2022 and 1,830 shares in 2021 were
remitted with a ol value of 30,3 million in 2023, 54 million
in 2022 and $0.5 million in 2020, and the fiem cancelled

Dupasitary

Shares Shares Shares Sihares

) 50.000 =0 12993 1000

C 26,000 8,000 B 000 1000

b 60,000 54,000 £3,099 1,000

E 17,500 TEET .88y HA

F 5.000 1515 1.EIE HA

K 3.2 T8.000 000 1,000

2] 26,000 E.000 8000 25

L 65,000 60,000 0,000 25

@ 20,000 20,000 3,000 28

R 24,000 24,000 24.000 25

-1 14,000 14,000 14.000 25

T 27,000 700 27000 5

u 30000 20,000 0000 25

v 30,000 30,000 000 25

W 60,000 B0.000 B0,000 28

ol Sesjo0  avozer  aaoze0

Liquidat] Redemption Vake

Yot Erwdend Decambar Serles  Earllest Redemption Date  Preference (% In milllions)
E.." ok pa=rl] A Cigrantly radenmabls 5 2h000 5 540
< Currantly rndesmpiia 5 25,000 200

S35, 87 5607 533081 o Cuerantly rackempbe 5 25000 1,350
§ 5788 S 3500 5 5700 E Claranty radsampns & 10 D 787
F Curanty recsamabs 5 100,00 161

£ May 10,2024 & 25,000 00

o Mevnmmibar 10, 2006 £ 25,000 650

P Ciemantly rodepmabls 5 25, Ol 1,500

L¢] Baigast 10,2004 5 15,000 500

R Februsery 10, 2035 & 26, DM L]

5 Fadtiuaery 10,2025 5 25,000 354

I May 10, 2008 & 25,000 LT

u Bagust 10, 2006 & 25,0000 750

W Meambar 10, 2006 5 25, D00 750
W Fabruey 102009 & 35000 1,500
Total ; 1203

19 million share-based awards in 2023, 4.6 million m 2022
and 3.4 million in 2021, with a ol valoe of 51,35 billion in
HIXE, 51.59 ballion i 2022 and 3984 million in 2021,

The table below presents common stock dividends declared.

Your Ended December
2023 22w 209
g 1050 5 900 5 A50

Divicdends cecanad pér comman sharn

O Jamuary 12, 3024, the Board of Directors of Group Inc.
{Board} declared a dividend of $2.73 per commaon share to be
paud om March 28, 2024 (0 commeon sharcholders of record
o February 29, 2004,

In the tables above:

# All shares have a par value of 3001 per share and, where
apphicable, cach share s represented by the speafied
number of depositary shares.

* The carliest redempuion date represents the daie on which
cach share of non-comularive preferred stock is redeemable
an the finm's oprion.

* Prior 1o redeeming preferred stock, the firm must receive
approvil from the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (FRE).

* In Awgust 2023, the Gom issoed 60,000 shares of Semes W
7.50% Fixed-Rage Reser Nen-Cumulative Preferred Stock
(Series W Preferred Stock).
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* The redempricn price per share for Serics A through F and
Serigs O through W Preferred Stock s the lguidation
preference plus dechred and  unpaid  dividends, The
redemption price per share for Series K through P Preferred
Stock is the ligquidation preference plus acerued and nopaid
dividends.

All series of preferred stock are part passun and have a
preference over the firm’s common stock on liguidation,

The frm's ability 10 declare or pay dividends on, or
purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire, 11s comimen stock 15
suthject 1o certain restrictions in the event that the firm fails
to pay or set aside il dividends on the preferred stock for
the bavest completed dividend period,

Series I and Series F Preferred Stock are held by Goldman
Sachs Capital 11 and Goldman  Sachs Caparal 11,
rﬁp@c:im:lg.-, These rrusts are Delaware SLAMLOTY  EPUsts
sponsored by the fiem  and  wholly-owned  finance
subsidiares of the Gem for regulitory and legal purposes
b are non consolidared for gccounting purposes.

I 2023, the firm redeemed all outstanding shares of 1s Series
J 5.50% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Comulative Preferrad
Stock (Series | Preferred Stock) with a redemption valee of
S1 billien (325000 per share), plus accrued and unpaid
dividends. The difference between the redemprion value and
net carrying value was 510 million, which was recorded as an

addition to preferred stock dividends in 2023,

In 2021, the firm redeemed all owsianding shares af s (i)
Series N 6.30% Non<Comulatve Preferred Stock with a
redemprion value of 3675 million (825,000 per share), plus
acerned and unpaid dividends and (i) Series M 5.375%
Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Comulative Preferred Siock with
a redemption value of 52 billion (825000 per share), plos
acerued and wnpaid dividends. The difference between the
redemprion value and ner carrying value an the time of these
redempuions was 541 million, which was recorded as an
addition o prefereed stock dividends in 2021,

The prefeered stock isswance costs in the  consolidared
statements of sharcholders” equity refllects reclassifications of
issuance ¢osts (o retained eamings on redemprions, ner of
ssuance costs relating 1o new issmnces.

M2 Goldman Sechs 2023 Form 10K
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The able below presemis the dividend rates of perpenial
preferred stock as of December 3023,

Par s Divigend Rase
3 il e SOER e 00 D B, el Bl 3PN eyt gty

Al b RO = 100 16N, wilhi Boas of 400N, payatss gaarinry

Horraonh by W DT, willh Roos of 4 DOVR., payshin nuariaily
3 ool b SOFA w8 0G0, wilh Bood of & 00, Dayalin ity
3 otk e SO = b0, vty B ool o O i (i sty

AP W, Bt oo, i 10, O
3 o denn SOFA o 081000 % Demeafiol, ayatdn gus torl

50, (et sy, o ismssnon foky W Sl aeckecen
Morreraram S0, SFNY; 3 ooesi e SOFA o 4 (f801 8, rurvando dusndily, daisalion

Bt B BOF A o 1R N, il (e il

BB, D0 B e el Froee tebelis G HD, S o ihamig
Al U0, FRIS, & el eaairy ki & 3BT N, vl iirramaaly, sl

4056, [eryailn b iy, VO iasesencn Ik W, 241 eenkatieg
Futuuary B0, RS 5 o Bosry ik o 379 %, myatln seviaonoaly, Bevsller

2.20%, riaysdie poer s iy, Drier | plake 18, 501 aecheing
Foosuay HL JO0%, 5 year treasony sdo « F 55%, povable sereamusty Bkl

TN, Crirgai du iy, Mo | sce 0% 10y Sl gk

Wy V0L AR B s Dossury iaie e 7 0% Dayanin soemianasly, tamalion
QS perit aorr el (o | ook 10, DUl anchee,

ALppad] VD, 0, B e Deasy b = 7005 %, Dayatin perkawaty, Dumatior
&%, pergaiin garr il Fonn s ok b, Sul ke

Bt 0 SO b h My il = 2 S0% Raganks seviasniialy. il

F I |m=nuan-|munb§

T, paryate sridnnly, o idesancs it 10, Sul guckasieg
Fetiuwy B0, PR, B yods BOasiry il = 30NN, aahin soTannily, Teoalier

In the table above, dividends on cach series af preferred stock
are parvabde inoareears for the periods speaified.

The table below presents preferred stock dividends declared.

maa sy A

Sin 5o )
Setlan pershare milWoml  pershae  mdicns  pershan  midlpng
Year Ended Decombaer
& 4 148427 § @ 5§ 0% f 23 0§ 9M% F o2
c § 1484327 2§ 106380 B % 1mam B
] 5 146389 78 £ 100380 % 101380 [
E § G.0rAE7 & 5§ 408565 5 405585 n
F § 60700 W 5 405565 & § 405558 7
4 § L0z 8 § 137500 55 % 13T 55
] £ 150076 Lo SR 45 % 15mm a4
H 5 - - % - - % TETS0 o]
o % 133500 M §F L3E00 HO§ 1AM &
P § L0IE64 121§ 1.15000 TS % 1.r5000 75
e % 1300 M 5 37500 B % 137500 n
R 5 123750 M § 113750 30 % 133750 £
s % 1,100.00 o 000y | 10000 ¥5
T 5 95000 26 § oA000 b A RE-T 14
u 5 o250 27 0§ d1o7 - - -
v £ 1,091.25 n_§ beain - - -
Total 35w $ a7 5 a4
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, IMC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

On Januwary 10, 2024, Group Inc declared dividends of
541652 per share of Seres A Preferred Stock, $416.52 per
share of Series O Preferred Stock, $411.30 per share of Series
I} Preferved Stock, 539844 per share of Series K Preferred
Stock, 8555107 per share of Series P Preferred Stock, S687,.50
per share of Serics @ Preferred Stock, $618.73 per share of
Series R Preferred Stock, 555000 per share of Senes S
Preferred Stock, $436.25 per share of Scries U Preferred Stock
and 589583 per share of Series W Preferred Stock thai were
pevicd o February 12, 2024 1o preferred shareholders of record
on Janwary 28, 2024, In addition, the firm declared dividends
of 51,819.35 per share of Seres E Preferred Stock and
51,619,98 per share of Serics F Preferred Stock 1o be paid on
March 1, 2023 1o preferred sharcholders of record on
Febroary 15, 2024,

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
The mable below presens changes in accumulared other
comprehensive meome/{loss, met of tax, by type,

Dithaar
cesiie hiniove
T El
Begrnang - adpusTients, Ereiing
5in milions talance ooty belance
Year Ended Decombar 2023
Curancy Banslaon 5 (TES) S (62} & [847]
Dbt vauation ad usSmeent -5 F {1,015) 123
Panson and postratinemend Cabd e ILE:: H [ T6) 575)
E by lof &0 i SBcunfas M 'I,!-l_ﬂ I'I,El
Tatal 5 (30105 32 5 (2018
Year Erdled Decembear HIE3
Caurrancy trara.ation 5 (Mas Hn e ek
Dttt v it s e st e {51 1) na0E Eaz
Pariion and postrabiement Lol fas a2 n LENF] [fiLe.1)
AV -0 R SROUE TR E I3 126 2B
Tty 5 068§ A7 & {3,000
Yoar Ended Decernber 2021
CHETRRGY RN Ao 3 e 5 WnE 3
Dbt v st aofiasysiht L =) a2z 511
Parson andd pOsinaliamant fahiiies {368 41 aEn
By gbve-for-an'e sRouUrTaE A6 i oz
.lsl'ﬂ- 5 0 JI-W 5 'ﬁ-u S i I:ﬁf'l_l.

MNote 20.
Regulation and Capital Adequacy

The FRE = the primary regulator of Group Ing, a bank
holding company under the LLS, Bank Holding Company Act
of 1956 and a financial holding company under amendmenis
1o this Act. The firm s subject 10 comsolidated  regulatory
capital requirements which are caleulared in accordance with
the regulations of the FRE (Capical Framework).

The capiral requirements are expressed as msk-based capiral
and leverapge ratios thar compare measures of regulatory
capital o msk-weghted assets (RWAs), average assets and
off-balance sheer exposures, Failure to comply with these
capital requirements would resalt in restrictions  being
pmpossd by the Grm's regulators and could Lmt the irm's
ability o repurchase shares, pay dividends and make certain
discretomary  compensation payments. The finn's capial
levels are also subject o qualitaive judgments by the
regulators about componenss of capital, nsk weightings and
other [acrors. Furthermare, certain of the firm's subsidiarie
are sithject to separate regulations and capial requirements.

Capital Framework

The regulations under the Capiral Framework are largely
based on the Basel Comminee on Banking Supervision's
{Basel Comminee) capital framework for sirengthening
intermatienal capival standards (Basel [11) and also implement
certain provisions of the 1.5 Dodd-Frank Wall Srect
Reform and Consumer Prosection Act. Under the Capaial
Framework, the firm is an “Advanced approachs™ banking
organization and has been designared as a global sysremically
pmpertant bank (G-51R).

The Capital Framework includes the mininuwm risk-based
capital and the capital conservation buffer requirements. The
buffer muost consist emirely of capital that qualifies a5
Common Equity Tier 1 {CET1) capiral.

The fiom calculates its CET1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total
capital matos in accordance with both the Standardized and
Advanced Capial RKules. Each of the ranos calcwlated under
the Sandardized and Advanced Capiial Rules must meet s
respective capital requirements,

Under the Capital Framework, the firm is also subject wo
leverage requirements which consist of o minimum Tier |
feverape ratio and a minimum sopplemenary leverage ratio
{SLRY, as well as the SLE boffer.
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Consolidated Regulatory Capital Requirements
Risk-Based Capital Ratios. The mble below presens the
risk-hased capital requirements,

Emndndaed At d

CEN capml b 13.0% 0%
Teer | Capia Fal 14.5% 11.5%
latal copital rat'a 155% 13.5%
dus of Decembar

CETY capitnl mto 13.2% &5%
Tiar | capisn’ Pt 14.6% 11.,0%
latal capml ralo 1665 13,05

In the rable above:

* As of both December 2023 and December 2022, under both
the Sundardized and Advanced Capital Rules, the CET1
capital raio requirement includes a mininm of 4,5%, the
Tier 1 capital ratio requirement includes a minimum . of
6.0% and the Towl capial rato regguirenient includes a
mimimum of 8:.0%. These requirements also inclode the
capital conservation buffer requirements, consisting of the
C:-51B surchange (Method 2} of 3.0% as of December 2023
and 23% as of December 2022 and the countercyclical
capital buffer, which the FRE has set w0 zero percent, In
addition, the capital conservarion buffer requircments
incluce the siress capital bulfer of 5.5% a2 of December
23 oand 6.3% as of December 2022 under the
Standardized Capsial Rules and a buffer of 2.5% as of both
Drecember 2023 and December 2022 under the Advanced
Capital Kuoles.

The G-5IEF surcharge 15 uvpdated annually  based on
financial dara from the prior year amd is penerally
applicable for the following year. The G-515 surcharge is
calculaned using two methodologies, the higher of which is
reflected in the fiem's risk-based capital requirements. The
first caleulavion {(Method 1) &5 based on the Basel
Committee’s methodology which, among other [rciors,
relies upon measures of the size, actvity and complexity of
each G-STR, The second cileulation (Method 2) uses similar
inputs but indudes a measore of reliance on shor-term
whaolesale funding.

4 Goldman Sechs 2023 Ferm 10K

The wable below presents fommaten about  rsk-based
capital eatins,

§ in mlions Srandsedied Actwanoed
CET1 capinl £ B4 5 90442
Tier 1 cagv1a & 110.2ER & 110288
T 2 capin & 45T 8 10684
Tty caapta & 125062 § 120872
FWas & ESRTIT § BES 4R
CET1 capial s 14.4% 148%
Tied | cagiinl rara 15.9% 16.8%
Toan' enpitsl o 18.1% 182%
o of Docarnber FIET

CETT caparal 5 86O 5 IE0H0
Timr 1 pagyin § 10ES5RI & 106552
Tier 3 copin 5 16958 & 1315
Teds capia S 124510 5 1200880
Hitlas § 683419 & 6rhasd
CET capinl mtg 15.0%, 14.4%
Tar 1 cagetal mtio 1E66% 16.0%
loas copital ratg 18.1% 17.5%

Laverage Ratios. The mable below presens the leverape
redquiTements.

Requirerments
Tenr 1 nvnags mia 0%
SLR 5.0%

In the table above, the SLR requirement of 3% mcludes a
minirmum of 3% and a 2% buffer applicable ro G-51Bs.

The table below presents informanon about leverage ratios.

Feet tha Thees Montha
Ensiod o 05 o Decamber

3 i millgnd 2071 0
Tier 1 capital $ 110288 5 106552
Avarig Tolh! Fiieta £ 1579237 5 1500325
Dhanchupctions drewr Tior 1 cagian 179671 iBZ5a
AvRige sl usted tofnl fesats 1572070 A0 554
O anca shmst and olhdr Expaminas 423, 686 dih 7
Totsllsvarage euposurs S1395758 5 10638
Ther 1 levarnge ratio 7.0% 13%
SLA 5.54% B3

T the 1able above:

* Average toral assers represents the average daily assers for
the quarter adjusted for the wnpac of Current Expected
Credit Losses (CECL) transition,

* Off-balamce sheet and other exposures primanly inclodes
the meonthly averape of off-balance sheet exposures,
consisting of derivatives, secuntics financing transactions,
commitments and guaranices,

* Tier 1 leverage ratio is calonlared as Tier | capiral divided
by average adjusted total assets.

SLR is calenlaned as Tier 1 capital divided by toral leverage
EXPOSURE,
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Risk-Based Capital. The uble below presents information
aboul msk-based ciparal,

A8 o Dot

5 o0 mdlons Firry 0I7
Comimon shanehoiders s Ty 8 105,702 5 10Gasd
impact of CECL transition 653 o]
Cmduction for goodwi 5,224 {5, 5r4)
Dnduction for 'danttab's ntangba asssis {954] {1,700
Crther adiustrmants MI [ E'LI'
CET ca 84402 . 00
Praferrad dmck 11203 10,703
Daduction for Fvasimants n oovensd hind 1354 [§=.11]
Oaher adfusimants 131 Lri]
Tiar 1 capital s TiogEs 5 i
Standardized Tier 2 and Totsl capital

et | cagies $ 110288 5 108552
Couavibying Suinord naind dakn 9,888 LERT
Adeewancs lof credi lossas 5012 5331
Oahae adusbtmants {24 (k1]
Smaradnrd zed Der 3 copita 14,874 14, 5858
Standard Totsl | £ 175 162 S 124510
Advanced Tier 2 and Total capital

Tar | copris & 110,288 £ 1087
Seandord zed Tar 2 cop'iy 14,874 T, BmE
Arpwarcs {or credt osses 5,002] {5,237
Orther adiustmants E_E .ﬂg
Mwmd‘nf!caeh "IU..E 12,115
Advanced Total caphal B _1x0872 5 120067
In the 1able above:

* Beginmng i Janvary 2022, the firm started 10 phase in the
estimated reduction o regulaory capital as a result of
adopting the CECL model. The el amount of reducion
tia be phased in from Jameary 1, 2022 through Janoary 1,
25 {ar 25% per vear) was 5111 billion, of which
S553 million had been phased in ax of December 2023, The
moral amount o be phased in indudes the impac of
adopting CECL as of January 1, 2020, as well as 25% of
the incresse in the allowance for credit losses from Janary
1, 2020 through December 31, 2021, The impact of CECL
ransition reffects the renaining amount of redocion o be
phased inas of both December 2023 and Decemiber 2022,

Deduction for goodwill was net of deferred tax labilities of
5692 million as of December 2023 and 5700 million as of
December 2022,

reduction for ddentifiable intangible assets was net of
defersed tax liabiliies of $227 million s of December 2023
and 523% million as of December 2022,

* Deduction for mvestments in covered funds represents the
firm's aggregare investments in applicable covered funds as
defined in the Volcker Rule
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* Other adjustments within CET1 capital and Tier 1 capigal
prmanly mclude CVAs on denvabve Inabahioes, the
overlunded pomion of the firm's defined benelit pension
plan ebligation net of associated deferred tax labilines,
disallowed deferred rax assets, debr valuation adjustments
and other required credit nisk-based deductions, Other
adjustments within Advanced Tier 2 capital indude eligible
credit reserves,

* (ualifving subordinated debr is subordinated debt issued
by Group Ing, with an original magority of five years or
greater, The oustnding amount of subordinated debe
quabiiving for Tier 2 capital 15 reduced upon reaching a
remaning matueny of five vears, See Note 14 for fuether
mformaticn about the firm’s subordinated debr.

The wmable below presents changes in CET1 capatal, Tier |
capital ind Tier 2 capiral.

§ i rmalons Srsrdarchaed Atymrcad
Your Ended December 2023
CET1
Enginning halaros 4 SR 080 £ 58 050
Changs
Covmmaon sharsho'des’ equity (784 [ra4]
Impact of CECL tramsifon [kl ] (278
Dasthuston 1o gt A58 A58
D foon 1of idant ifables intangd Bre aitals B2 H20
Qs TR 2 1982 1982
LEnding balance. 3_Haa s N4l
Tier 1 capital
Eaginiving haanea & I0ES52 § 108552
Lhanga
CETI capitg 1392 1392
Frafared siock 500 500
D tion lor s msnts o oowersd Tunds {165] [ 165)
Qi adustments 11 11
Ending bal 110,288 110,288
Ther 2 caplial
Engnning balance 15,958 12,115
Changs n:
Chm' bying subordinated dedt {751] i751]
Alowance for oed | iosses i31%) -
CIthat st mssn e ﬂﬂ
Errding barancs BT ACETCN
Tatal capital 5 1r56: 5§ 108
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RWAs., RWAs arc caloulated in aocordance with both the
Stamdardized and Advanced Capital Rules,

Credit Risk

Credit RW As are calculated based on measures of exposure,

which are then risk weighted onder the Standardized and
Advanced Caparal Rules:

* The Standardized Capital Ruoles apply prescribed risk-
weights, which depend largely on the type of counterpary.,
The exposure measurs for derivanives and  securities
fimancing transactions are based on specific formulas which
take cerain facrors into consideration.

Under the Advanced Capital Roles, the finm computes nisk-
weights for wholesale and retl credit exposures in
accordance with the Advanced Internal Ratings-Based
approach, The exposure measures for dervatives and
SECLIFITCs :I'in:un;in;; IFANSECLIONS A1 cmnpumd u1i|'i:l.i11g
internal models.

Far both Standardized and Advanced credin RWAs, the
tisk-weights for securitizations and equities are based on
speaific required [ommuolaic approaches,

Market Risk

RWAs for market risk in accordance with the Standardized
and Advanced Capital Rules are generally consistent. Market
RWAs are calculated based on measures of exposure which
inglude the following:

* Value-at-Risk (VaR} is the potential loss in value of trading
assets and liabilities, as well as cemain imvestments, loans,
and ather financial assers and abilives accounted for at
fair value, due o sdverse marker movements over a defined
time harizon with a specified confidence level.

6 Goldman Sechs 2023 Form 10K

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)
oOoOooodn

Far both risk management purpeses and regufatery capical
cilenlations, the Grm uses 3 sngle VaR model which capiurs
risks, including vhose relared 1o interest rates, equity prices,
currency raies and commaodity prices, However, VaR used
for risk management purposes differs from VaR osed for
regulatory  capital requirements (regulatory VaB) due 1o
differences i time horizons, confidence levels and the scope
of positions on which VaR is caloalared.  For  risk
mamagement purposes, a 95% one-day Vall is wsed, whereas
for regulatory capital requirements, & 99% 10-day VaR is
wsed to determine Marker RW As and a 99% one-day VaR is
wseed 10 determine regulatory Val exceptions, In addition,
the daily mer revennes wsed 1o determine risk management
Val exceptions (Le., comparing the daily net revenues to the
Vak measure calculated as of the end of the prior business

dayy  include

activity, whereas  the  Capital

Framework requires that intraday activity be excluded from

daily  mne

revennes  when  calewlating  regulziory  Valtl

exceptions. Intraday acovity includes badfoffer net revennoes,
which are more likely than not 1o be positive by their narore,
As a result, there may be differences in the number of Valt
exceprions and the amount of daily ner revenues caloulaed
for repulatory Val compared 1o the amounis caleulaed for

risk managanent Yak,

The fim's posttional losses observed on a single day
exceeded s 9% one-day regulatory VaR on one occasion
during both 2023 and 202X There was no change in the
firm's VaR multiplier used ro calcolare Marker RW As;

# Siressed Vak is the potennal loss in value of trading asscis
anl Kabilities, a5 well a5 cermin investments, loans, and
other financial assers and liabilivies accoumed for ar fair
value, during a persod of sigmiicant market stress;

& Incremental risk s the potential loss in value of non.
securitized positions due 1o the default or credie migration
of issuers of linancial instruments over a onesyear tme

homzon;

* Comprehenstve risk is the potential loss in valuwe, due 1o
price risk and defaulis, within the firm's credin correlarion

positions; and

* Specific nsk s the nsk of loss on a position that could
resubt from faciors orher than broad marcker movermens,
including event sk, defanlt risk and idiosyncranc sk, The
standardized measurement method is used o determine
speaific nisk BWAs, by applying supervisory defined risk-
weighting factors after applicible netting is performed.
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THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUR, NG, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Operational Risk The rable below presents changes in KW A=,
Operational RWAs are only required o be included under :
s . i : 5 in mallions Sandiardned Adyerosd
the Advanced Capital Rules, The firm vnilizes an internal “Your Ended Dieagmbes 2023
risk-based model o quantily Operational RW As, VA
By e 1) b e § 653413 5 6THA50
The table below presents informaton abour RWAs. Crodit RWAs
Changs
£ i pdiang Smndidmd  Adnced Db 2661 —
An of Dacgmber 2023 Coomm tmmnts, guianiess and sans 13.932) 4272
Credit AWAs Saourites {nancng Eansacinns 0515 1478
DHaf At & 146357 § 96322 Ecpety imvastmanis 3324 3463
Comamibmants, GRIBTIMASS And DS TAZ0M 194736 Oithar 148 404
Seciitien Franc g Iransacions WEIM 23,637 Change In Gredit RWAS 3714 (134431
B Ty FrEstmans 34,223 38,820 Market Ridins
.?ﬂm' A Tl!.-;:; “;; Changs n:
grba) Craclt B, a5 Finguiatory VaRl [2524) [2524]
Market Bivas Sarasseed Vati 10662 10,603
Fenguatony Wal 16,457 8457 InGrements Fak 11,438 11,438
Soroesad VaH 48 494 A8 496 Comprahars e fak 23 (a2
incrarnaritl £ak 5002 5,032 __Speetie sk [174) (1741
Corrprabanava rsk 218 e Change in Marke RWAs 5B 5604
Spacfc rak 16,178 18,178 Change in Operational AWAS - 16,2631
e ey Safmbins E8IT s Smaw
Tatal | W ihe - 128,600
Jobel RiNAs 5 _B37a7 5 RS RWAs Rollforward Commentary
Az of Dacamber 2023 Year Ended December 2023, Sundardived Credin KW As
mrm“ S IREEE 1 as of December 2023 increased by 53371 billion compared
s siram * tss  With Decomber 2000, primarly relecting an increase in
Shcurition Erancng franeseions 73 180 21 B securilics financing transactions (principally due o increase
£ty rvestmants 30,65 43,451 funding exposures). Standardized Market BRWAs as of
Orihae fl-Ree ] 2,351 December 2023 increased by 3560 billion compared with
Tty Cradt Eitdis HI0 IS5 461,313 Drecember 2022, primarily rellecting an increase in siresed
“.ll'lﬂl: m:: - - VaR {principally due o increased exposures 1o interest rates),
Sm:?mﬁ. 17,61 2.5 partially offset by a decrease in rn.l'g_ulamr'_-' VaRk (poncipally
st risk AT 8,470 doe o lower bevels of marker volatilivg,
_'gpec-.'r. r_:“ e 1:2,; 1:i;':,; Advanced Credin RWAs as of December 2023 decreased by
TTata harket FvAS B3.274 B1.274 51344 billion compared with December 2022, primarily
Tatal Oporational RWAs - 134 B3 reflecting a decrease in derivativis {principally doe to reduced
Lot FiAAS E SR all 2 _B/dnd counterparty credit skl Advanced Marker RWAs a5 of

I the table above:

* Securities financing (ransactions represents resale and
repurchase agreements and securities borrowed and loaned
ransachions,

* (hher includes receivables, ¢erain debt seconnes, cash and
cash equivalents, and other assets.

December 2023 increased by 5560 billion compared with
December 2022, prmanly reflecing an increase in siressad
Vak {principally due 1o increased exposures 1o interest rates),
partially offser by a decrease in regnlatory VaR iponcipally
due 1o lower levels of marker wvoluiling., Advanced
Operational KW As as of December 2023 decreased by 36.26
billion compared with December 2022, reflecting decreased
frequency of loss events estimated by the firm's risk-based
maded,
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GS Bank USA

G5 Bank USA is the firm's primary LLS, bank subsidiary. G5
Bank L15A is a New York State-chartered bank and a member
of the Federal Keserve System, 15 supervised and regulared by
the FRE, the FDIC, the New York Smare Deparmment of
Financial Services {(NYDEFS) and the Consumer Financial
Pratection Burean (CFPR), and s subject 10 regulatory capital
requirements thar  are  calcolared  under  the  Capiral
Framework. G5 Bank USA s an Advanced approaches
banking organization under the Capital Framework. The
deposits of GS Bank USA are insured by the FINC 1o the
extent provided by law,

The Capital Framework includes the minimum risk-based
capital and the capital conservation buffer requirements
{eomsisting of 2 2.3% baffer and the covmercyclical capinal
buifer). The buffer must consist emtirely of capital that
qualific a3 CETI cpial, In addidon, the Capiral
Framework inclides the leverage ratio requirement,

G5 Bank USA is required to caloulate the CET1 capatal, Tier
1 capital and Total capital ratios in accordance with both the
Standardized and Advanced Capial Kules. The lower of each
risk-based capital rato under the Standardized and Advanced
Capital Rules is the rato apainst which G5 Hank USA's
compliance with its nsk-based capital  requiremens s
assessed. I addition, under the reguliorny framework for
prompt corrective action applicable o G5 Bank USA, in
order 1o meel the quantitative requirements for a “well-
capitalized™ depository instituion, GS Bank USA must also
meet the “well<apitalized” requirements in the mable below.
GS Bank USA™s capital levels and prompt corrective action
classification are also subject to qualitarive judgments by the
reguliators about components of capital, risk weightings and
other  factors. Failure 1w comply with the  capiral
respuirements, including a breach of the bufiers deseribed
below, would result in restrictions beng imposed by the
regulators.
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The table below presents G5 Bank USA% rsk-based capaal,
leverage and “well-capitalized ™ requirements,

“Wall-capltalizad”
Hacgui Requirsments

Risk-based capital reguirements
CET1 captal rafo % B8
T 1 comital ratio BE% 0%
Toay capityl ratia 10.5% 100%

Leverage requirernents

linr 1 wnnrage afa a.0% %%
SLR A B0%

In the table above:

® The CET1 capital ratia requirement includes a namimm of
4.5%, the Tier 1 capital ratio requirement includes a
minimum of 5.0% and the Total capital ratio requircment

ncludes 2 minimum of

£.0%, These requirements also

include the capital comservation  buffer requirements
consisting of a L5% bufler and the conntercvelical capital
buffer, which the FRB has set 1o zero percenr,

* The “well-capitalized™
requirements for leverage

requirements are  the  binding
ratias.

The rable below presenis information abour GS Bank USA's

risk-based capital ratios.

£ i rvlions Standsdued  Advanced
CET1 en1n £  s3TMY 8 s
Tiar 1 copitn % 53R 8 s
Tiar 2 capiin 5 6314 § 2,951
Toan: cap'ty 5 BOOES § 2 SETAR
Fuvas S 380774 § FERO3R
CET1 cap'tal mia 1% M6
Tor 1 capital ratia 14.1% MEEY
loaa capita ratia 15.8% 18.6%
A f Decamier 3022

CET1 capita £ 4B 845 & 46845
Tier 1 cogyta 5 46845 & 4BB45
Tier 2 capital £ BOaZ & b, 22
lEay capny ] BLBRF & LH2.II7
Fwas £ A5L112 § 27545
CET1 eaginl rata 13.1% 17.0%
Tiar 1 cagital ratia 13.1% 17.0%
loda capita ratin 15 4% 15.0%
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Ini the tabie above:

* The lower of the Standardized or Advanced rapo s the
ratio agaist which GS Bank USA’s compliance with the
capital reqinrements §s assessed  under the  risk-based
Capital Rules, and therefore, the Standardized ratos
applied to G5 Bank USA as of both December 2023 and
December 2022,

Beginndng in Januaey 2022, GS Bank USA staeed to phase
in the estimated reduction 1o regulatory capatal as a result
of adopting the CECL model at 25% per vear through
January 2025, The toal amount to be phased i ingludes
the impact of adopiing CECL as of January 1, 2030, as well
as 25% of the increase in the allowance for credit losses
from Janoary 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021,

The Standardized and Advanced risk-based capital ratios
increased  from December 2022 0 December 2023,
refllecting an increase in capital, principally due 1o net
earnings, partially offser by an increase in Credin RWAs,
The table below presents informarion abour G5 Bank USA's
leverage ratios.

Fiod this Thtipa MAaafitha
Endied o B4 of Dacambar
§ in milions pacred 2032
Tar | ipta § S3MM1 5 S
Avamgs sdisind oA assets £ RZIGAE 5 459108
Tty lmversgn miposting § TradRE & Ei1,0%

Ther 1 lewerage ratio 10.3% 4%
5LA T4% 0%
I the vable above;

* Average adjusted total assets represents the average daily
assets for the quarter adjusted for deductions from Tier 1
capital and the impac of CECL transition.

* Tier 1 leverage rano is calculated as Tier 1 capital divided
by average adiusted ol assers,

* SLR is caleulaned as Tier ©capital divided by ol leverage
EXPHISUEE

The FRBE requices thar G5 Bank USA maintain cash reserves
with the Federal Reserve. As of both December 2023 and
December 2022, the reserve requirement ratio was . rero
percent, See Mote 26 for fumher information abour cash
deposits held by the firm at the Federal Reserve.

GS Bank USA iz a registered swap dealer with the CFTC and
a registered security-based swap dealer wirth the SEC. As of
both December 2023 and December 2022, GS Bank USA was
subject o and in compliance with applicable capiral
reguirements for swap dealers amd secony-based swap
dealers.
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Restrictions on Payments

Croup Inc. may be limited in s ability 1o access capital held
at certain subsidiaries as a result of regulatory, tix or other
consteaimis,  These  limitadons  inclode  provisions  of
applicable law and  repulations  and  other  repulatory
restrigiions thar limie the abiliny of thoss subsidiares 1o
declare and pay dividends without prioe regulatory approval,
For example, the amount of dividends thar may be pand by
GS Bank USA are limited 10 the lesser of the amounms
calenlated wnder a recent camings st and an undivided
profits test,

In addition, subsidiarics nor subjec 1o separare regulatory
capital requirements may hold capital vo sanisly local tax and
Ll goidelines, rning agency requircmenis (for entities with
assigned credit ratings) or internal policies, incheding polices
cancerning the minimum amount of capital a subssdiary
should held based om s underying level of risk.

Group Inc's equity investment in subsidiaries was 513375
billion as of December 2023 and $134.59 billion as of
December 2022, of which Group Inc. was reguired 1o
maintn 39580 billion as of December 2023 and 582,52
billion as of December 2022, of mintmum equity capital in is
regulated subsidiaries m order o satsly the regulaory
requirements of such subsidiaries,

Grronp Inc.s capital invested in cemain non-LL5. dollar
functional currency  subsidiaries is  exposed o foreign
exchange risk, substantially all of which is managed through
a combination of non-1LS. dollar-denominated debt and
derivatives, See Mote T for information about the firm's net
investment hedges used o hedge this risk.

Goidman Sachs 2023 Form 10K 20%
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Note 21.
Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) s caleobared by
dividing net carmings o common by the weighted average
number of common shares oustanding and restricied stock
units  (R5Us) for which the delivery of the underlving
common stock 15 not subject to satisfaction of futwre service,
performance or market conditions (Collectively, basic shares).
Diluted EPS includes the determinans of bagic EPS and, in
addition, reflecrs the dilutive cffect of the commaon stock
deliverable for B5Us for which the delivery of the underlying
common stock 15 subject 1o satisfaction of luore service,
performuance or market conditions,

The table below presents informartion abour basic and dilwred
EP5.

Yaubt Ersind Dacinribar

o andians, antRal Pie SR STLE il 2023 200
et parmings 1o $ 7.997 310764 531,151
Winighiad Foarnge DAL shafet 3408 £Lrhl 1805
Eftect of d uive HSLs 5.0 B0 53
Wi & il aha 3468 ko 455 5
Basle EPS § 2305 5 3042 5 8035
Difuted EPS B Z2E] 5 3004 5 5945
I the table above;

* MNet carnings 1o comnion represents net camings applicable
o common sharcholders, which s caleulated as net
carnings less preferred stock dividends,

* Unvested share-based awards that have non-forfeitable
rights te dividends or dividend equivalents are treated s a
separate class of securities mnder the two-class merhod.
stributed carnings allocated 1o these securiies reduce net
earnings 10 common o caloulae EP'S under this merhed,
The impact of applving this methodology was a reduction
in basic EPS of 30,15 for both 2023 and 2022 and S0L10 for
021

Iriluted EPS doss not include antidiluonive RSUs, including
those thart are subject 1o marker or performance conditions,
of 04 million for 2023, 0.5 million for 2022 and 0.3 million
foar 2021,
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Note 22.
Transactions with Affiliated Funds

The fiem has formed nonconsolidated investmeent funds with
third-party investors, As the fiem generlly acis as the
investment manager (or these funds, it is entitled o receive
msuwagenent fees and, 1 certiin ises, advisory les or
ingenrive fees from these funds, Additionally. the firm invesis
alongside the third-party investors in certain funds.

The rables below present nformanion about affiliated funds,

Yaar Ened O

£ i miligna Fors] oy 202
Fras sarnad from funos E 4726 5 4.&3 S 3, s

Ag of Dadamber
5 i melligaa 20T 2022
Feas recevaiia from funs 5 1,536 5 1,174
Sggregate coeryng veise of ‘rsrests n furds B A2 £ 3R

The fiem has waived, and may wiive in the funure, cerain
management fees on selecred money market funds to enhance
the yield for investors i such funds. Management fees
witived were 533 million for 2023, 5123 million for 2022 and
5595 million for 2021,

Iin acoordance with the Volcker Rule, the firm does naot
provide financal support o covered funds. However, in the
ordinary course of business, the firm may choose 1o provide
volntary financial suppart o funds thar are not subject 1o
the Velcker Rule, although any such support is not expecred
ta be marerial 1o the results of operations of the fiem. Except
for the fee waivers noted above, the finm did no provide any
addivienal financial support 1o s affiliaed funds during
cither 2023 or 2022,

In addition, in the ordiniry course of business, the finm may
alse engage in other acrivities with s affiliared Tunds,
including, among others, secuniies lending, irade execution,
market-making,  custady, and  acquisiion  and  brdge
financing. %ee Note 18 for information abowm the firm's
investment commitments related 1o these funds.
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nota 23.
Interest Income and Interest Expense

Interest iz recorded over the life of the instrument on an
acerual basas based on conmtractual interest res,

The able below presents sources of interest income and
Inferest expense.

Yt Enchid Do it

¥ i endligng 0rE ST 2021
D B weith Esbnkn S10% 5 3233 § (@4
Conaany 2ad dgramants 16,405 4,468 e
lrding assats B 460 LR 4,116
FTeREIMANTS 1,856 09 1,568
Loans 14,505 L] 5,319
Orihar intonsst 13,940 4908 1,600
Tatal bnterest income 68518 29024 12,120
Dopos i 17 a1 5 HIY 1,303
Co‘aberdznd financngs 12,705 20808 a
Teading bl v 2451 1,923 1.662
Short-taim boricrnngs 1.k22 Bt 627
Lomg1arm bormmw ngs 11,084 BB 3230
Oriher inBanes] 17,590 ahidh L35
82184 71346 5850

] ﬁ'l S THIE 5 8470

I the table above;

* Collateralized apreements  includes  rebates paid  and
interest imoome on securities borrowed.

Loans excludes interest on loans. held for sale that are
acconnted for m the lower of cost or fair value. Such
inierest is mcluded within other imteresi.

Chher interest ingome ingludes interest ingome on customer
debit balances, other interest-carming assets and loans held
foar sale than are accounted for ar the lower of cost or Gair
value.

Collateralized financings consists of repurchase agrecments
and secunities loanead.

Shorr- and long-term borrow ings include both secured and
unsecured borrowings.

Chher imterest expense mcludes rebates received on other
interest-besring liabilities and interest expense on customer
credit balances.

Note 24.
Income Taxes

Provision for Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for using the asset and liabiliey
method under which defereed tax assets and Labahites are
recopnized for remporary differences berween the financial
repirting and tax bases of assets and habilitis. The firm
reports interest expense related o income ax maners in
provision for taxes and income tax penalics in other
EXPENLE,

The eable below presents informarion about the provision for
TN,

it Eitvdied Doibivid

5 in Frillacers 2023 a2 St
Cumrent taxes

U_S. tndera 51230 5 2356 52004
Camia and loos el ] v} LY}
Hoeell 5 1,864 668 1508
Tatal current fax enpense 2,583 a4 6% hald
Defemed laxes

LLE. tndera (954) {2079 ez
Srae and lock = | {36 T2
Hor-lLS 1501 {frs] [Pzl
Tatal deferred tax [Banofitlfesponss [1.368] 2,492 f
Prowision for taxes $2.223 50705 5 am

The wable below presents a reconciliation of the U5, federal
statiinory INCOIme (A% rate 1o [hl..‘ fffﬂclil.'ﬂ incame X e,

Yirar Ended Dacembn
el Forr i

LLS, Badaeral £18Tery Do B rals 210% 210% Z21.0%
Srate and locs mes, ne of LS. fadersl banalt -1 1 1.3 19
Saitemant al empioyes shaie-based pwards 18 24y
NerULS, eparations Z4r 3 E
GILT a4 1L.E 03
lox crmdns {1.8) 56 X5
Teni-preipt rcoame; neiuding dvidands ok i s
Hon-dachict Tin g B panLRs oz (1151 -
Oithasr 1.3 [ 0.4
EMfective income tax rate 0I% 1GL% 00

In the table above:

* Non-1L5. operations inchedes the impact of the Base
Erosion and Ant-Abuse Tax,

* The firm recognizes ingome Ly expense associated with
Global Intangible Low Taxed Income (GILTT in the
perod i which it s incarred,

* Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023, GILTT is presenred
as @ separate reconciliation item. Previoosly, GILT] was
ingluded in non-L15, operations, Pror period amounts have
been conformed 1o the current presentation.
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572/626



THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, IMC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effecs of temporary
differences between the fimancial reporting and tax bases of
assets and Dabilines, Thee temporary diflerences resull in
taxitble or dedoctible amoums in {utere vears and are
measured using the tax raves and laws thar will be i effea
when such differences are expected o reverse. Valuation
allowances are established vo reduce deferred tax assets o the
amonnt thar more likely than nor will be realized and
primarily relare w the ability o uilize losses in various ax
jurisdictions. Tax assets are included n other assets and mx
liabilitics are included in other liabilities,

The table below presents information about deferred tax
assers e Tiabsilinies, excluding rthe impagy of nerting within
tax jurisdictions.

A4 o Dagwrbar

£ i cdigng 2033 2022
Daforrad thx asiels

Compansation and banal 15 81773 § 188
ABC 740 assel meabed 1o unescognzed 1 henafis 31 b3 17
Herell 5, cpanatons 1278 123
Unrnalzed iosses 2,100 ey
Hni operatng insns i ] i
Cotupssrcy-ritated ag 123
Orther comprahens v noomes! omss bretabed 1,198 1.23%
Tax croaf s camyfonsaed ] Br
Difatreg basa abilag L= by
Alpevancs Jof cradil losasd 1,450 1,680
Crther, ret 165 221
Subitenn 094 8936
LR ) (o] (1.97H) 1 5656
Tﬂﬂdﬂmﬂ“!ﬁﬂ 5 B218 5 7358

Doforred 1ax labilities
Dopracalon and ormomzaton g TEI F 1240
OpRmTng mase rghl-aluss msms 574 b ]

Tetal deforrad tax labilities S 1326 & 1%

The fiem has recorded deferred vix assets of 5929 millian as
of December 2023 and 5787 million as of December 2022, in
connection with LLS. federal, state and local and [oreign net
operating loss careyforwards, The firm also recorded a
valmation allowance of 339 million as of December 2023 and
5301 million ax of December 2022, related 1o these net
aperating loss carryfonwards.
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Asx of December 2023, the US, federal net operating loss
careviorward was 518 bilion, the ste amnd local net
operating loss carrylorward was 82.7 billion, and the foreign
met operating loss carrvlorward was 06 Dillion, 10 no
utilized, the LLA. {ederal, the state and local, and [oreign net
operating loss carrvlorwards will begin to expire in 2024, IF
these careyforwards expire. they will ner have o material
impact on the firm's resulis of operations. As of December
23, ahe fiem has recorded  deferred rax assers of
5172 million in connection with forcipn x  credit
cirrvlorwards and  a related  salvasion  allowance  af
5172 million; As of December 2023, the firm has recorded
deferred tax assets of 546 million m connection with general
business credit carevlforwards amd $18 million in connection
with state and lecal fax credit carrylorwareds. [ net viilized,
the forcgn tax credin carrylorward will begin o expire n
233, the peneral business credit carrylorward will begin 1o
expire in 2024 and the state and local tax credit carrylorward
will begin to expire in 2026,

Asoof both December 2023 and December 2022, the firm had
no LLS. capital loss carryforwards and no related ner deferred
income 1ax o assets. As of December 2023, the firm hod
deferred tax assets of 8328 mullion in connection with foreign
capital loss carvyvlorwards and a valuation allowange of
5308 million related o these capial loss carryfonvards.

The valuation allowance increased by 5409 million during
2023 and 5674 million during 2022, The increases in both
2023 and 2022 were prmarily doe to an increase in deferred
rax assers (rom which the firm does not expect to realize any
benefin.

The fiom permanently reinvested eligible camings of certain
forcign  subsidiarics. As of both December 2023 and
December 2022, all WS taxes were accroed on these
subsidianes' distributable earnings,
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The firm recognizes tex positions in the consolidared
fimancial statements only when it is more likely than not that
thse positan will be sustarned on examation by the relevant
raxing authority based on the technical merits of the posivion.
A positien that meets this standard is measured ar the largest
amount of benelit thar will more likely than nor be realized
on settlement. A liability i estmablished for differences
betweoen posinons  taken o s eeturn and amounis
recognized in the consolidared financial searements.

The accrued lability for interest expense related 1o income
tax manters and ingome ax penalties was $320 millien as of
[riecember 2023 and 5205 million as of December 2022, The
firm recogmized interest expense and income wax penaltics of
590 million for 2023, 559 million for 2022 and 513 millien for
2020, It s reasonably possible that unrecognized tax benefits
could change significantly during the twelve months
subsequent 10 December 2023 doe o potencial  andit
settlements, However, at this tme it is nog possible o
estimate any potential change.

The wable below presents the changes in the labiliny for
unrecogmized  mx benefits, which is included in other
liabilitics.

Waar Ended o &8 of Decamibser

4w miiona 2023 2037 2021
Eagnning Baaris £ 1513 5 1486 5 1251
I BISAS DASA G0 CLETEND Wi TN DO 10N 143 1y Fir T
i eaad Dagsad o0 EEaT VRS L pOs N T84 L] -]
Dacraases haspd on prior yaars” tnx postons [ 4] an {1
Dacransas reatad o satiemants 20 {8 [1oel]
Exchangs moa [ uchsians 21 e 1]
Ending balance B 1748 £ 1433 5 1448

In the 1able above, the liability for uneecopnized max benefits
included 51.4 billion as of December 2023, and $1.2 billion as
of both December 2022 and December 2021 of unrecogiized
tax benefits which, if recopnized, would reduce the annual
el fective tax rate. The remaining unrecognized tax benefits in
the able above would nor affecr the anmual wx rare, as such
benefits have junsdictional offsets or relate 0 temporany
differences,
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Regulatory Tax Examinations
The firm is subject to examination by the LS. Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) anmd other saxing authorities in

purisdictions  where

the firm  has sigmificam  business

operations, such as the United Kingdom, Japan, Hong Kong
am various states, such as New York, The max vears under
examination vary by jursdicoion, The fiem docs not expect
completion of these audits 1w have 2 marerial impact on the
firm's fimancial conditon, but it may be matenial o operating
results for a particolar peniod, depending, i pan, on the
operating resulis for that periad.

The table below presents the earicst tax years that remain
subject to examination by major jurisdiction,

Asol
Jurisdiction Dwcember 2023
U5, Fadora 2011
N York State and City 016
Liry e B angaom 017
Japan 2017
Herg Kong 2017

The fiem has been accepred inte the Compliance Assurance
Process program by the IRS for each of the tax vears from
HH3 through 2024, This program allows the firm o work
with the IRS o identify and resolve potential LLS, federal tix
issies before the f(ling of mx renarns, All issues for the 2011
through 2018 tax years have been resolved and complerion is
pending fimal review by the Joim Comminee on Taxation,
All issues for the 201% through 2021 s years have been
resalved and will be effectively settled pending admimsiritve
completion by the IRS. Final complerion of tax years 2011
through 2021 will not have a material impact on the effective
mx rite, The 2022 max vear remains subject o post-filing
review, New York Siate and Ciey examinations of 1ax years
25 through 2018 commenced during 2021,

Al vears, incleding and subsequent 1o the years in the mable
above, remain open to examimation by the taximg asthorines.,
The fiem believes thar the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits it has established is adequate in relation o the
potential for additonal assessments,
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Mote 25.
Business Segments

The [irm manages and reports its activities in three business
sepnents: Global Banking & Markets, Asset & Wealih
Management and  Platform  Solutions. See Notwe | for
infarmation about the firm's busines segments,

Compensation and benefits expenses in the firm’s segments
reflect, among other [actors, the overall performance of the
firm, as well as the pedormance of wdividoal businesses,
Consequently, pre-tax margins in one segment of the firm's
business may be significantly affected by the performance of
the firm’s other business sepmenis,

The firm allocates assers (including allocations of global core
ligquid assets and cash, secured chent haancing and other
assets), revenues and expenses among the three business
segiments. Due to the integrated natre of these segments,
estinmites and judgmens are made i allocamnge ceriin assets,
revenues and expenses, The allocation process is based on the
manner 0 which  management  currently  views  the
performance of the segments,

The allocation of commaon sharchalders” equity and preferrad
stock dividends o each segment s based on the esunared
amount of equity required 1w support the acivities of the
segiment under relevant regulatory capital recuirements.

Net earmings for each segment is caleulated by applying the
firmwide tax rare to each segment’s pre-1ax carnings.

Management  believes  that  this allocation  provides a
reasonable representation of ich segment’s contribution 1w
consolidated net camings o common, remam on average
commaon equity and toal assers,  Transactions  between
sepments are based on spedific criteria or approximare third-
party rates.
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Segment Results
The table below presents a summary of the firmn's segment
resinlis.

Waur Ended Decarbe:

$ i evlgna 203X sy 7] 202
Global Benking & Markots

Hon-Rn e revenues. § X254 5 30041 5 3078
Hat Mo nosms HE 2445 2855
T Flil NrvBnAJEs W9 3747 T
Frondscn for chid; kegses 4m 568 T
Cipseating nxponses 18,01 17,851 19 543
P'I'Q-'Jtulml'gs § 11566 5 14168 S 17363
Mol sarmings F 83 5 1083 5 12890
Nt marmings to common § B70E 5 11458 5 T383§
AT SgE COMmITOn squety $ TBBE 5 BASE £ BOO6S
Ratuin o avix bgé Sommeron sgaty 121% 16.4% )
Asset & Wealth Mansgemant

Hon-mberest revennes ¥ WM 5 5Bad 5 1982
Wit nbidest inooms Ao60 2,551 Pl
Tatal rerl rénvérons 1WEse 13137 21586
Priowigacn ‘or crédit loRses 1608 By {163
Dgeer ir) e Bk Hhode 11550 10406
Fri-La aaimr $ 1368 F 1307 5 10728
Hat bifergi $ 107 B 1,092 5 85Em
Hat BIrgE 10 SOMron § 952 5 979 5 8459
ANETEQE SOIMIrOn Sy § 0078 F 31,762 F 39988
Mmmuwmmmmﬁ 37% 11% JA I
Platform Solutions

Hon-Benest fananies B MNs nem 5 03D
Mot nisest NoHTE 2,513 }, PO 773
Total et rvenues 2,378 1,502 [
Promon ‘or cred; osses 1,135 1.728 637
Dpseating nrpenses AL 1,763 S0
Proetax samergaiiossh § (2178 5 .88 S (1020
Nt sarrrgiiioss) £ (L7 5 L8 5 @Ad
ot sarrngailoss) To -coamman F MRS 8y 5 @ay
MErEgE COMmITan SOty £ x5 A8M £ 1077
Fequm ee ivie bh Sormnen sgaty [45.21% W8I (7 A
Total

Hon-nbarest (evinues $ 0003 5 JnAE7 5 52663
Wit Moitad] NGire 451 1678 G470
Tatsl fil Fveraes 48284 47185 50339
Pronasaen for coids Iosses 1.02% .15 357
DAl AsDenShE 34,487 N 21838
Fri-iin Sirorgs § W73 5 13466 3 I7044
Nt sarnegs B 8518 5 11781 T 21635
Has sarniegs 1o cormmon B T80T S 107 5 21151
ABEgE COMITON Gguy S105.804 5105287 S 91829
Hmummawmmwrmiq.._q:\l TEY 10.2% 22 0%

575/626

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)
oOoOooodn

THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Ini the tabie above:

* Kevennes and expenses directly  assocated with each
segment are ingluded ain determining pre-tax earmings,

Net revenucs in the firm's scpments include allocations of
interest income and expense to spealic pesitions in relaion
te the cash generated by, or funding requirements of, such
posttions. Net interest 5 included in segment net revenues
a5 11 i35 consisten) with how MaNAZeMen| ISSesses Sepimedl
performance.

Expenses not divectly associited with specific sepments are
allocated based on an estimate of suppor provided o each
SCEITRETINL,

The table below presents depredation and amortizon
cxpense by sepment.
Yoo Endad Decembar

5 in milions Z0E3 FairT] 2021
Globkal Banking & Muotknis £ 1,100 5 1,033 £ O34

Ao & Weath Maragerrst 2 A2E 1242 1003
Platborn So'utang 1,32 210 i)
Tatal § 4858 5 2anh 5 205
Iis the table above:

* Asset & Wealth Management included impairments related
o commercal real esiate  included within ClEs of
SLa6 billion for 2023,

* Plarform Solutions inclided the S306 million wrte-down
related to GreenSky for 2023, and an impaicment of
goodwill of 5504 million relared 1o Consumer platforms for
023,

Segment Assets
The table below presents assets by segment.

A3 ¢! Dcornbsr
£ mdigng 2023 2032
Gatal Banking & Markais S 381247 5 1.160.559
g & W Managem 191,863 480
Puiborm Splutions B2 484 &) 250
Tﬂ:l E"I,B-“&I- Z1 441.|'£

Geographic Information

Due to the highly imegrated narore of imemational financial
markets, the frm omanages ity businesses based on the
profitability of the enterprise as a whale. The methodaology
for allocating profitabality 1o geopraphic regions is dependent
on estimates and management judgment beciuse a signilicant
pomion  of the fiem’s activities  require  cross-horder
coordination i order 1o faclste the needs of the frm's
clients, Geopraphic resulis are generally allocared as follows:

* (lobal Banking & Markess: Investment banking fecs and
Oiher: locanon of the cient and mvestment banking team;
FICC intermediation and Equities intermediation: locarion
of the market-making desk: FICC (inancing and Equitics
financing: bocation of the desk,

# Asser & Wealth Managemem  (excluding  direci-io-
consumer  business,  Equity  invesoments  and Dbt
wvestimeenis): lociton of the sales teun andor mvatmenis;
Direcr-to-consumer busings: logaion of the client; Equiry
investments  and  Debt  investments:  location of  the
nvestment or investment professicnal,

* Platform Solutions: location of the cient.

The table below presents total ner frevenues, Pre-1ax carmings
and net camings by geographic region.

£ mficina 203 Fatee] M

Y¥aar Erstlised Discarnbar

Ay $ 10335 4% § 8RR BVw 330DV 8%
EMEA M 2% 12880 TN 14474 4%
Agid A7 1% 583 1% TSE  13%
Tistal Fet Fi 1 47 365 10070 § 58 100
Az § 8038 58% § 08 2w 517314 B4
EMEA 4,033 38% 5260 38W T84 3TE
A BEH A% 1310 . 9% 7858 8%
Total pea-tax darnigs § 10730 100% 5 13486 I00W SIF044 1D0%
ArTidenieg £ 4840 57% § G067 BAw 513796 B4W
EMES 3 arhe a6 3% ATR M
A5 530 ey 1,030 i s ] ] A%
Total et sarnings 8 _BSIE 100% £ 11261 00% S35 100%
In the 1able above:

= Americis prestax camings for 2023 were impacted by the
wnparmients eelited 1o commercial real ete ncleded
within CIEs, the wrte-down relited 10 Greendky, the
impairment of goodwill related 1o Consumer plarforms and
the FIMC special assessment fee,

® Substantially  all of the
antriburable to the U5,

amounis i Americas  were

* Asia includes Auseralia and New Zealand.
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Nota 26.
Credit Concentrations

The firm’s concentrations of credit risk anse from is market-
making, <liem facilisnion, inveting, underwriting, lending
and  collureralized transactions, and  cash  management
activities, and may be smpacted by changes i econoamg,
industey or political facrors, These activities expose the fivm
tox maany diflferent industries and counterpartics, and may also
subject the firm o a concentration of credit risk 10 a
particular central bank, comnrerparty, borrower or issuer,
ingluding soveraign issuers, or to a particular dearinghouse
or exchange. The lirm seeks v mitigate credin risk by actively
monmtonng  exposures  and  obiainming  collateral  from
counterparties as decmed appropriate,

The firm measures and monitors s ceedit exposure based on
amaounts owed to the finm after taking into account sk
mitigants. that the firm considers when determining credic
risk. Such nsk mitganis include neting and  collateral
arrangements  and  economic  hedges, such  as  credin
derivapives, fures and forward conteacs, Netting and
collateral agreements permit the firm o offse receivables and
pavables with such counterpanies andlor enable the firm 10
obtain collateral on an upfront or contingent basis.

The table below presents the credit concentrations included
in trading cash instrumenes and investments.

A o DeCarmibser

$ & radigng ﬂ
LLE. gewermman and agancy ol gatons S DB0.BR1 5 205005
Feroaniage of total assels 1548% 14 3%
MerdlLS, geviiriman and aaansy ol gatong H 90681 § 40334
Parcanisos ol ! asseis 55% 2H%

Ins adeition, the firm had $206,07 billion as of Degernber 2023
and 5208.53 billion as of December 2022 of cash deposiis held
at central banks (incloded m cash and cash equivalents), of
which 510566 billion as of December 20231 and 516577
billion as of December 2022 was held an the Federal Reserve.

As of bath Degember 2023 and December 2022, the firm did
not have credit exposure o any other counterpary thar
exceaded 2% of wial assers.

Collareral obusined by the firm related 1o derivative assets is
principally cash and is held by the firm or a third-pary
austodian, Collateral obtamed by the Giom related o resale
agreements and securities borrowed transacrions is primarily
LS. governmemt and apency obligations, and non-LLS.
government and agency obligations, See Mote 11 for further
informatton abow collateealized agreements and financngs.
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The table below presents 1.5 government and apgency
obligations, and non-L0S, governiment and agency oblipabons
thar collareralize resale agreements and securitigs borrowed

Eransactions,
As ot Dioernbe:
$ v olasng 2023 0

LS, gorverrenanr ard agensy o gatong
Non-UL S, govemimant and agancy ol gations

& 154058 5 18d4E97
& 92E33 5 rEatE

I the table above:

* Non-ULS, povernment and agency obligations primarily
consists of securities issued by the governments of the UK.,
Tapany, Geemany, Frange and laly,

* Given that the firm's primary credic exposure on such
transactions is to the counterparty to the transaction, the
firm would be exposed 1o the collareral issuer only in the
event of counterparty default.

Note 27,
Legal Proceedings

The firm is mvolved in a number of judicial, regulatory and
arbiteation progecdings (including those described  below)
CONCErNINg Mmeatters ansing in connection with the conduct of
the firm's businesses, Many of these proceedings are in early
siages, and many of these cases seck an indeterminare
amnount of damages,

Linder ASC 450, an event i “resonably possible™ il “the
chance of the luture cvent or evenis occurring is more than
remote but less than likely™ and an event 18 “remote”™ if “the
chance of the lwure event or evenis occurring is slighe.”
Thus, references to the upper end of the range of reasonably
possible Inss for cases in which the firm is able wo estimane a
range of reasonably possible loss mean the upper end of the
range of loss for cises for which the lirm believes the risk of
foss is more than slight,
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With respear o maners  described  below  for which
management has been able to estimare o range of resonably
possible loss where (i) aowal or porential plaimiffs have
ammed an amount of money damages, (i} the firm is being,
or threaened 1o be, sped by purchasers in o secorities offering
and is not being indemnificd by a pary that the firm believes
will pay the full amount of any judgment, or (i) the
purchasers are demanding thiar the firm repurchase securities,
mamagement has estimated the upper end of the range of
reasonably possible loss based on (a) in the case of (i), the
amount of money damages claimed, (b in the case of (i), the
difference berween the initial sales price of the securities thit
the fliem sold in such offering and the estimated lowest
subsegquent price of such secunties prior 1o the action baing
commenced and {¢) in the gase of (i), the price that
purchasers paid for the secuniies less the estmated value, i
any, as of December 2023 of the relevam securities, in each of
cascs (i, (i) and {ifi), 1aking into accoun any other faciors
believed 1o be relevant 1o the particular matter or matters of
that ype, As of the dare hereof, the firm has estimared the
upper end of the range of reasonably possible appregate loss
for such marters amd for any other matters deseribed below
where management has been able 1o cstumate a range of
reasonably  possible agpregate loss o be approximately
SL1 billion in excess of the aggregate reserves for such
matters.

Management is generally unable 10 esomate a range of
reasonably possible loss for matters other than those included
in the estimate above, including where (i) actual or potential
plaintifls have nor claimed an amount of money damages,
excepd in those instances where management can otherwise
determine an approprite amou, () maners are 0 eardy
stages, (iili} maters relare 1o regolawory investigations or
reviews, except in those instances where management can
otherwise determing an appropriie amount, (iv) there is
uncertainty as to the likelihood of a dass being cemified or
thse ultimane size of the Jass, (v) there i uncertaimty as o the
outcome of pending appeals or motions, (vi} there are
sigmbicani factwal ssues to be resolved, andfar (vir) there are
novel legal issues presented, For example, the fienn's potenrial
liabilitics with respect 1o the investigations and reviews
descnbed below in “Repulaory Investganions and Reviews
and  Relared Litigaion™  generally are non included in
manigement”s estimate of reasonably possible loss, However,
management does mor believe, based on curremly available
iformation, that the cutcomes of such other matters will
have a material adverse effect on the firm®s financial
condition, thongh the oucomes conld be maenial 1o the
firm's operating results for any panticular period, depending,
in part, upon the operating resulis for such period,

1MDE-Related Matters
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Berween 2012 and 2013, subsidiarics of the firm acted as
arrangers or purchasers of approximately 56,5 billion of debt

securities of 1M,

Omn November 1, 2008, the U5, Department of Justice (IMC)
unsealed a eriminal information and goilty plea by Tim
Leissner, 2 former paricipating managing director of the
firm, and an indictment against Ng Chong Hwa, a former
manmaging directar of the fiem, On Augast 28, 2018, Leissner
was adjodicared guiley by the 1S Districe Court for the
Eastern Distract of Mew York of conspinng to Lunder money
and to violate the U5 Foreign Corrupr Practices Act's

{ECPA)

anti-brbery  and

intermal  accounting  controls

provisions, Ng was charged with conspiring o lander
maney and o viokate the FOPAs anti-bribery and internal
agcounting contrals provisions, and on April 8, 2022, Ng was
found guilty on all couns following a rrial.

Om Augeost 18, 2020, the firm annoonced that it enteved into a

sertlement agreement with the Government of M

avsil 10

resolve the criminal and regulatory proceedings in Malavsia
invalving the [em, which includes a puarantee that the
Governmemt of Malaysia receives ai leasi 14 billion in
assels and procecds from assets scized by governmenial
authorities around the world velated 1o IMDB, See Now 18
for (umher information abom this guarantee, including
related arbitration proceedings,

On Ocrober 22, 2020, the Grem announced thar it seached
settlements of governmental and regolatory investigations.
relating 1o IMDE with the DOJ, the SEC, the FRE, the
NYDFS, the Financial Conduct Awthority, the Priedential
Repulation Avthoniy, the Singapore Attorney General's
Chambers, the Singapore Commercial Affairs Departmem,
the Meonetary Authority of Singapore and the Hong Kong
Securities and Fumres Commission, Group Ing, entered inio 2
three-vear deferred prosecution agreement with the DO, in
which a charge against the firm, one count of conspiracy 1o
violate the FOPA, was filed and will be dismissed wirhin six
months after the October 22, M3 expiraiion of the
agreement il the finm has abided by the erms of the
agreement. In addition, G5 Malaysia pleaded guilty 10 one
count of conspiracy 1o violate the FCPA, and was sentenced
on June %, 2021, In May 2021, the EL5. Department of Labor
granted the firm a five-vear exemption to maintain its siaus
as a qualified professional asset manager (QPAM).
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On December 20, 2018, a purative securities class action
Fawsuit was filed in the LS, Distrct Court for the Southern
Districy of New York against Group Inc, and cerain former
officers of the liem alleging vielavons of the ant-{raud
provisions of The Exchange Act with respect 1o Group Ine's
disclosures and public statements concerning IMDB and
secking unspecified damages. The plainafi filed the second
amended complaint on October 28, 2009, On June 28, 2021,
the court dismissed the daims against one of the imdividual
defendants ban denied the defendans” motion 1o dismiss with
respect to the firm and the remaining individual defendants.
On Avgist 4, 2023, the plainifl filed a thind amended
complaint, On Seprember 2%, 2023, the plainifi moved for
class certification,

Mortgage-Related Matters

Beginning in April 2000, 3 nuimber of purported securivies law
class actions were filed in the U5, Distric Coun for the
Southern Distngt of New York challenging the adequacy of
Group Inc.'s public disclosure of, among other things, the
firm's activities in the collateralized debt obligaton market,
and the firm's conflict of interst managament.

The consolidared amended complaing filed on July 25, 2011,
which mamed as defendams Group Inc, and certain current
and former officers and employees of Groop Inc, and its
affiliates, penerally allepes violarions of Sections 10(b) and
20{a) of the Exchange Act and secks monetary damages, The
defendams have moved for summary judgment. On April 7,
20X, the US, Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit
affiemed the districr coun™s August 14, 2008 grant of class
certification. On June 21, 2021, the United States Supreme
Court vacated the judgment of the Second Gircuit and
remanded the case for further procecdings., and on August 26,
H2E, the Second Circuit vacated the district coun’s grant of
class certification and remanded the case for fuether
procecdings. On Docember 8, 2021, the district court granted
the plaineifls’” maotion for dass certification. On March 9,
1022, the Second Circnit granted defendanis” perition seeking
mterlocutory review of the distrcr coun®s grane of dass
certification amd on August 10, 2023, reversed the district
court’s class  cenification order and  remanded  with
instructions to decertify the class, On Navember 16, 2023, the
parties voluntarily dismissed the action with prejudice.
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Complaims were filed in the U8 District Coun for the
Southern District aof New York on July 25, 2009 and May 29,
2020 against Goldman Sachs Mongage Company and GS
Morigage  Secunities Corp. by LS. Bank  Nawenal
Association, as trmstee for two residential mongage-backed
seeuritization trusts that issued S1.7 billion of sccuniies. The
compliints generally allege that mortgage loans in the frosts

failed 1w conform

1o applicable  representations - and

warraniies and seck specific perfonmance o, altemagively,
compensatory. damages and other reliel, On November 23,
2020, the coun granted in part and denied in part defendanis”
mation to dismiss the complaing in the firs action and denied
defendanis” motion 1o dismiss the complaing in the seoond
actionn, Om January 14, 2020, amended complaimts were filed

i barh acnons,

Currencies-Related Litigation

GE& Co, is among the defendans samed in a putative class
actiom filed in the U5, District Court for the Southern
District of New York on Augost 4, 2021, The amended
complaing, filed on Janvary &, 2022, generally asserts claims

under federal

anitrust law and state common law in

conngetion with an alleged conspiracy among the defendams
o manipulate auctiens for foreign exchange rransactions on
an electronic trading platform, as well as caims under the
Rackereer Influenced and Corrapr Organizations Act. The
complaint seeks dedaratory and injunctive relicf, as well as
unspecified amounts of 1eeble and other damages. On May
18, 2023, the coun dismissed cermain state common law
claims, but denied dismissal of the remaining chums, On July
7, 2023, the plaintiffs filed 4 second amended complain,
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Banco Espirito Santo $.A. and Oak Finance

In December 2014, Seprember 2015 and December 2015, the
Bank of Portugal (BoP) rendered decisions 1o reverse an
carlier teansfer 1o Novo Banco of an 5835 million facility
agreement (the Faalioy), soructured by GS1 between Oak
Fimange Luxembourg 5.4, (Oak Financel, a special purpose
vehicle formed in connection with the Facility, and Banco
Espiritn Santa 5.4, (BES) prior 1o the failure of BES, In
response, U8 and, with respect 1o the BoP's December 2015
deasion, G5B commenced acoons beginning in Febroary
Hn3 against Nove Banco S.A, (Nove Banco) in the English
Commercial Court and the Bol! in Pomuguese Adminiserative
Court, In July 2018, the English Supreme Court found that
the English coumns will not have jurisdiction over GS1% action
unless and until the Poriuguese Admimistrative Coun finds
against BoP in GSPs paralled action. In July 2018, the
Liquidation Commirnee for BES issued a decision secking 1o
claw back from GS1 554 millien pard o GSEand S50 million
allegedly paid 1o Cak Finance in connecrion with the Faciliry,
alleging that GS1 acred in bad fasth in extending the Facality,
inclucing because GSI allegedly knew thar BES was at risk of
imminent faillure, In Ocrober 2018, GS1 commenced an action
in Lisbon Commercial Coun challenging the Liguidation
Committee’s decision and has since also isswed o claim
against the Portugnese State secking compensation for losses
of approximarely 5222 million redaed 1o the filure of BES,
together with a conmngent <laim for the 3104 million sought
by the Liguidation Commitiee. On Aprl 11, 2023, GSI
commenced administrative  proceedings against the Bol,
secking the nullification of the Bol"s Seprember 2015 and
December 2005 decisions on new gronnds,

Financial Advisory Services

Group Inc. and certain of its affiliates are from time 1o nme
parties to variows civil lingadon and arbitraion procecdings
and other disputes with clients and thicd parties relating o
thie firm's financial advisory acuvitics, These claims generally
seek, among other things, compensatory damages and, n
sHTe Gises, pumitive damages, and in certaim cases allege that
the firm did not appropriately disdlose or deal with conflicis
of mterest,
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Archegos-Related Matters

GS& Co. is among the underwriters named as defendams ina
putative securities class action filed on Avguast 13, 2021 in
New York Supreme Coor, Conmty of New Yark, relating 1o
ViacomCBS Ing's (VizcomCRS) March 2021 public offerings
of 51.7 billion of common stock and 510 billion of preferred
stock, In addition te the underwriters, the defendans include
ViacomCES and certain of its officers and directors, GS& Co,
underwrore 646,154 shares of common stock representing an
ageregate offenng price of approximately 555 million and
323,077 shares of preferred stock representing an aggregale
offering price of approximately 532 million. The complaint
assens claims under the federal secunties laws and allegs
that  the  offering  decuments  comained material
misstatements and omissions, including, among other things,
that the offenng documents failed o disclose thar Archepos
Capital  Management, LFP {Archeges) had  subsianial
exposure o ViacomUBS, including through wial return
swaps 1o which certain of the underwriters, including
GS&Co., were allepedly  commerpartics, and thar such
underwriters failed 1o disclose their exposure 1 Archegos,
On December 21, 2020, the plaimifis filed a corrected
amended complaint, The complaim seeks rescission and
compensarory damages in unspecified amouns, On January
4, 2022, the plannfls moved for cass certification, On
February 6, 2013, the coun dismissed the claims agamst
ViacomCES and the individoal defendanes, bt demed the
defendants’ motions to dismiss with respeat 1o G38Co. and
the other underwriter defendants. On February 15, 2023, the
underwriter defendams appealed the court’s denial of the
matien to dismiss. On March 10, 2023, the plaintffs
appealed  the court’s dismissal of the claims  againse
ViacomCB5 and the individual defendants, On June 12, 2023,
the court denied the underwriter defendams’ motion 10 siay
the proceedings pending their appeal of the cowet's denial of
the motion 1o dismiss, snd on November 2, 2023, the
Appellate Division for the First Deparumeny affiemed the
conrr’s denial of the underwriter defendams’ motion, On
Jamuary 4, 2034, the court granted the plainills” motion for
class certification,
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Gronp Inc. is also a defendant in putative securiies class
actions liled beginning in October 2021 and consolidated in
the LS. District Court for the Southern Districn of New
York. The complaints allege thar Group Inc., along with
another financial instiniion, sold shares in Baidy Inc
(Baidu), Discovery Inc. (Discovery), GSX Techedu Inc.
(Gactud, QIYT Ing. GOQIYD, Tencem Music Entertinment
Group (Tencent), ViacomCRS, and Vipshop Holdings Lud,
Wipshopl  bised  on material  sonpublic  inforsion
reganching the hgudation of Archegos’ posiion i Badu,
Discovery, Gaot, Q1Y ], Tencent, ViacomCBS and Vipshap,
respectively, The complamits generally dssert violations of
Sections 1), 204 and 2001) of the Exchange Act and seck
unspeabhied damages, On June 13, 2022, the planifls i the
dlass acoons filed amended complains, On March 31, 2023,
the court granted the defendanis® motions 1o dismiss the
amended complaints without prejudice. In May 2023, the
plaintiffs in the cdass actions filed second  amended
complainis, and on July 18, 2023, the defendanis moved o
dismiss the second amended complains,

Om January 24, 2022, the firm received 2 demand from an
alleged sharcholder under Section 22 of the Delaware
General Corporation Law for books and records relating 1o,
among other things, the firm’s involvement with Archegos
and the firm’s controls with respect to insider trading,

Silicon Valley Bank Mattars

GSECo, is among the underwriters named as defendanes in a
putative securities class action filed en Aprl 7, 2023 and
consalidated e the LS. Distnct Count for the Northern
Districr of California and an individual acrion filed on
January 25, 2024 in the same court relating o SYE Financial
Group’s  (SVBFG)  January 2021 public  offerings  of
5500 million  principal ameount of senior notes  and
S730 million of depositary shares repreenting interests in
preferred stock, March 2021 public offering of approximanely
51,2 hillion of common stock, May 2021 public offerings of
SO bllion of depositary shares representing interesis in
preferred stock and 5500 million principal amount of semor
notes.  August 2021 public offering of approximarely
513 billion of common stock, and Apnil 2022 public offering
of 5800 million aggregate principal amount of senior noes,
among other public offerings of securitics. In addition 1o the
underwriters, the defendams include cenain of SVEFGS
offivers and directors and its anditor. GS&Co. underwroe
an agpregate of 831,250 deposiviey shares representing an
appregate offering price of approxamately 5831 mullion, an
apgregate of 3,266,108 shares of commaon stock representing
an aggregate offering price of approximately S1.8 billion and
SeTiOr Noles representing an aggregate price 1o the public of
approximarely 5727 million. The complaimts generally assern
claims under the federal securities laws and allege thae the
offering  documents contained material misstatements and
mmissions, The complainis seck compensatory damages in
unspecified amounts, On March 17, 2023, SVEFG filed for
Chapter 11 bankrupicy in the LLS. Bankrupicy Court for the
Southern [Hstrict of New York, On January 16, 2024, the
plaintiffs filed a consolidaed amended complaint in the
putative <hiss acton,

230 Goldman Sachs 2023 Form 10K

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo0ooOo0ooo00oo0OooOO(Eossss)

The firm is also ceoperating with and providing information
1o vanous povernimentl bodis m connection with thar
investiganions  amd  inquiries  regarding SVBFG and  fis
alfiliaves {collecuively SYBY, including the firm®s business with
SVR in or around March 2023, whes SVEB engaged the firm 1o
assist with a proposed capital raise and SVEB sold the firm a
portiolio of secunties,

Underwriting Litigation

Firmy affilizates are among the defendants in a number of
procecdings in connection with securitics offerings, In hese
proceedings, including those descnbed below, the planifis
assert cliass action or mdividual <haims veder federal and state
securities laws and in some cases other applicable laws, allepe
that the offering documents for the seconies that they
purchased conmained marteral misstemenis and omissions,
and penerally seek compensatory and rescissory damages in
unspecilied amowns, as well a8 rescission, Certain of these
proceedings invalve additional allegations.

Uber Technologies, Inc. GS5&Co. & among  the
wnderwriters mamed a5 defendants in several  pusative
securitics class actions fled beginning in September 2019 in
California Superior Court, County of San Francisco and the
LS. Diserict Court for the Northern Districr of California,
relating 1o Uber Tedhnologies, Inc.'s {Uber} $8.1 ballion May
219 initial public offering. In addition w the wodervriters,
the defendants include Uber and cortain of its officers and
directors, GS& Co. underwrote 35,864,408 shares of common
stock  representing an  apgregate  offering  price  of
approximately SL6 ballion, On November 16, 2020, the court
in the state court action pranted defendanis” motion 10
dismiss the consolidated amended complaine  filed on
February 11, 2020, and on December 16, 2020, plumilis
appealed, On Angust 7, 2020, defendants’ motion o dismiss
the district court action was denied. On Sepiember 25, 2020,
the plainiffs in the district conrt acion moved (or class
certification. On December 5, 2020, the plaintifs in the siate
court action filed a complain in the district court, which was
consolidated with the existing district court acion on
Jamury 25, 2021 On May 14, 2021, the plaonilis Gled a
secoancd amended complaing in e disteicn conr, parporting 1o
add the pluniifis from the state couri action as additional
class  representatives, On Octeber 1, 2021, defendans’
mation to dismiss the additional class representatives from
the second amended complaine was dented, and on July 26,
2022, the district cour granted ehe plainnifs” modon for class
certification. On Febroary 27, 2023, the U5, Court of
Appeats for the Ninth Circwic denied the defendams’ petition
secking interlocmory review of the disinici cowrt’s grant of
class cernification.
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GoHealth, Ine. G5& Co. is among the underwriters named
as defendants o putative secoribies class actions  Biled
Ireginming on Seprember 21, 2020 and consolidated in the LS.
Istrier Court for the Morthern Dhistrict of [Hlinms relating o
Gollealth, Ine.'s (GoMealth) 914 million July 2020 initial
public offering. In addition o the uwnderwriters, the
defendants include Gollealth, cerain of its officers and
direcrors and  certain of  its sharcholders.  GS&Co.
underwrote 11,540,550 shares of common stock representing
an apgregate offering price of approximately 5242 million,
On February 25, 2021, the plaintilfs filed a consolidated
complaint, On Apal 5, 2022, the defendams’ motion 1o
dismiss  the  consolidated  complaimt was  denied.  On
September 23, 2022, the plaintiffs moved for  dass
certifigation, On February 21, 2024, the coun prefiminarily
approved a seitlement. Under the terms of the setilement,
GS&Co, will wor be regquired 1o contmbute o the setdement,

Array Technologias, Ine. GS5&%Co. is among  the
underwriters named as defendants in a putative securitics
class action filed on May 14, 2021 in the LS, Distrc Court
for the Southern District of New York relaving 1o Ammay
Technologies, Inc.'s {Arvay) $1.2 billion Ocrober 2020 inial
public affering of common stack, S1.3 billion December 2030
offerimg of common stock and 5993 million March 2021
offering of common stock, In addition 1o the underwriters,
the defendants include Array and cereain of its officers and
directors. G5%Co. underwrote an agpregate of 31,912,213
shares of common stock in the three offerings representing an
ageregate offenng price of approximately 5877 million. On
December 7, 2021, the plaingffs  filed an amended
consolidated complaint, and on May 19, 2023, the coun
granted the defendants’ motion 1o dismiss the amended
consalidated complaine. On July 5, 2023, the conrt denied the
planuffs’ request for leave 10 amend the amended
consolidated  complaint  and  dismissed  the case  with
prejudive, On August 4, 2023, plaintifls appealed 1o the US.
Court of Appeals for the Secand Cincuir,
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Contextlogic Inc. GS&Co. is among the underwriters
mamed as defendants in putative securties class actions filed
beginning on May 17, 2021 and consolidaed in the LS,
Disina Couwrt for the Northern Districe of California,
relating o ComextLogic Inc.’s (Contextlogic) 511 billicn
December 2020 anitial public oifering of common stock. In
addinon 1o the underwnters, the  defendants  include
Contextlogic and cernain of s officers and  direciors,
GS& Co. underwrote 16,169,000 shares of common stock
representing an ageregaie offering price of approximarely
5388 million. On July 15, 2022, the plainuffs filed a
consaliclated amended complizing, and on March W3, 2023, the
court  geanted the  defendams’ motion o dismiss  the
consalidated amended complaint with leave 1o amend, On
April 10, 2023, the plaimiffs fled a second consolidaed
amended complaini, and on December 22, 2023, the court
granted in part and denied in pan the defendants” motion 1w
dismiss the second consolidated amended complaim with
leave to amend. On February 15, 2024, the plamnnifis filed a
third consolidared amended complaing,

DiDi Global Inc. Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLE (GS Asia) is
among the underwrters mamed as delendams in putanve
seqirities class actions liled beginning on July 6, 2021 in the
LS, Distmict Courss for the Southerm District of New York
and the Central Distrct of California and New York
Supreme Court, County of New York, relaong o Dily
Global Inc's (N} 54.4 billion Jume 2021 sminal public
offering of American Depositary Shares (ADS). In addition 1o
the underwriters, the defendants induede DHDY and cenain of
s efficers and directars, GS Asia underwrore 104,554,000
ADS  represemting  an aggregate offering price  of
approximately $1.5 billion, On Seprember 22, 2021, plaintilfs
in the California acion voluntarily dismissed their claims
without pregudice. On May 5, 202%, planulls in the
consolicated lederal action filed a second comsolidared
amended complaint, which indudes allegations of vialations
of Sections W) and 204 of the Exchunge Act against the
underwriter defendams, On June 3, 2022, the defendanis
moved o dismiss  the  second  consohdated  amended
complieing.

Vroom Ine. GS&Co. is among the underwriters namied as
defendants inoan amended complain for a putative securitios
class acnien filed on Ocober 4, 2021 in the 1S, District
Court for the Southern District of New York relating o
Yroom Inc.'s (Vreoom] approximately $38% million Seprember
20200 public offering of common stock. In addivon o the
underwriters, the defendants inchide Vroom and cerain of s
officers and direciors. GS& Co. underwrote 3,886,819 shares
of common stock representing an aggregate offenng price of
approximarely 5212 million, On December 20, 20218, the
defendants served a motion 1o dismiss the consolidaed
complaing,
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Zymargen Ine. GS&Co, is among the underwriters named
as defendants in a pmative securities class action filed on
August 4, 2021 in the U5, District Court for the Northern
District of Califamia relating 1o Zyvmergen Inc,'s (£ymergen)
5575 million April 2021 initial public offering of common
stack, [n addivion 1o the underwriters, the defendants include
Zymergen and certain of s officers and directons, GS&Co,
underwrote 5,750,345 shares of commaon stock representing
an agpregate offering price of approximately S178 million,
O Febroary 24, 2022, the pluntills Gled an amended
complaint, and on November 29, 2022, the court granted in
part and demied i part the delendanis’ motion to dismess the
amended complaint, denying dismissal of the claims for
violations of Section 11 of the Secunties Act. On Aupusi 11,
2023, the count granted the plaimtiifs’ movon for dass
certification. On Ocrober 3, 2023, Zymergen and three
affiliates filed Chaprer 11 bankruprey petitions in the LS.
Bankrupicy Court for the District of Delaware.

Watardrop Inc. G5 Asia is among the underwriters named
a5 defendants in a putative securities class action filed on
Seprember 14, 2021 im0 the ULS, District Cournt for the
Southern District of New York relaning 1o Waterdrop Inc.'s
{Waterdrop) 5360 million May 2021 inital public affenng of
ADS, In addition o the underwriters, the defendams include
Waterdrop and certain of is officers and direciors. GS Asia
underwrote 15,300,000 ADS  representing an  aggregane
offering price of approximately S184 million. On Febroary
20, 2022, the planoifs Aled an amended complamt, and on
February 3, 2023, the coun granted the defendams” motion o
dismiss the amended complaint. On Janwary 16, 2024, the
LLS, Courr of Appeals Tor the Second Circuir affiemed the
dismissal.

Sea Limited. (55 Asii is among the underwnvers named as
defendants i putatve secunves class acoons filed on
Febroary 11, 2022 and June 17, 2022, respectively, in New
York Supreme Court, County of New York, relating to Sea
Limived's approximately 4.0 billion Seprember 2021 public
offering of ADS and approximately 52.9 billion Scptember
W21 public offering of convertible senior notes. respectively.
In addition to the underwriters, the defendanis include Sea
Limited, cerain of its officers and directors and cerain of its
sharcholders, G5 Asia underwrote  5.222.500  ADS
representing an aggregare offering price of approximanely
516 billion and converible senior notes representing an
appregate offering price of approximarely $1.9 billion. On
August 3, 2022, the acnons were consolidated, and on Angust
9, 2022 ahe plainifs filed a consolidaed amended
complaint. The defendants had previously moved 1o dismiss
the action on july 15, 2022, with the paries supulating tha
the motion would apply to the consolidated amended
complaint. On May 15, 2023, the cowrt granted the
defendants” motion 1o dismiss the consolidated amended
complaint with prejudice, and on June 135, 2023, the plainiiis
moved for a rehearing or for leave 1o amend the consolidated
amended complaint and also appealed. On November 20,
1023, the coun denied the plainniffs” motion for a rehearing
or for leave to amend,
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Rivian Automotive Ine. 5% Co. @5 among  the
underwriters named as defendants in putative securities class
actions filed on March 7, 2022 and Februaey 28, 2023 in the
LS. Diserict Court for the Ceneral Dastrict of California and
in the Superior Court of the State of California, County aof
Orange, respectively, relating 1o Rivian Automaotive Inc's
(Rivian) approxinately $13.7 billion November 2021 ininal
public offering. In addition 1w the underwriters, the
defendants inclode Rivian and certain of iis officers and
directors, GS& Co, underwrore 44,733,050 shares of common
stock  representing an  aggrepare  offering  price  of
approximately 53,3 billion, On March 2, 2023, the plaingiffs
in the federal conrr action filed an amended consolidaed
compliint, and on July 3, 2023, the court demicd the
defendams’ maotion o dismiss the amended consolidaed
complaini. On June 30, 223, the court in the staie court
action granted the  defendants™ motion 1o dismiss  the
complaint, and on September 1, 2023, the plainffs appealed.
On December 1, 2023, the plaintifis moved for dass
cemification,

Natera Inc. GS&Co. is among the underwriters named as
defendams in putative securities class actons in New York
Suprene Courr, Counry of New York and the U5, Districe
Court for the Western District of Texas Gled on March 10,
2022 and October 7, 2022, respectively, relating 1o Natery
Inc.’s (Natera) approximately 5385 million July 2021 public
offering of common steck. In addition 10 the underwnters,
the defendants include Natera and cerain of its officers and
directors. GS& Co, underwrore 1,449,000 shares of common
stock  representing  an aperepgate  offering  price  of
approximately 5164 million. On July 15, 2022, the parties in
the state count action fled 2 stipulation and proposed order
approving the discontimaance of the action withour prejudice,
On Seprember 11, 2023, the federal court granted in part and
denied in part the defendanis’ motion 1o dismiss,

Robinhoed Markets, Inc. 5% Co. s among  the
underwriters named as defendants in a putative securilics
class acticn filed on December 17, 2021 in the L1S, Dissrict
Court {or the Northern Districe of California relating 1o
Robinhood Markets, Ine’s (Robinhood) approximarely 52,2
billion July 2021 initial public affering. In addition 1o the
underwriters, the defendants include Robinhood amd certain
of its officers and direcrars. GS&Co, underweote 18,039,706
shares of common stock representing an aggregate offering
price of approximarely S686 million, On February 10, 2023,
the count gramed the delendants” monon 1o dismiss the
complaint with leave to amend, and on March 13, 2023, the
plaintifls filed a second amended complaine. On January 24,
20124, the court granted the defendants” motion to dismiss the
second amended complaing without leave to amend.
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ON24, Inc. G53Co. is among the underwriters named as
defendants in a putative securities class action Giled on
November 3, 2021 in the LS. Districe Conrr for the Nosthern
Ihstrier of Califormia relating 10 ON24, Inc's (ON24)
approximately 5492 million February 2021 ininal public
offering of commen stock. In addition to the underwriters,
the defendants inclode ON24 and certain of s officers and
direcrors, including a director who was a Managing Director
of GS& Co. at the tme of the initial public offering. GS& Co.
underwrote 3,616,785 shares of commaon stock represcniing
an apgregate offering price of approximaiely 3181 million.
On March 18, 2022 the plaimiffs filed a consolidared
complaint, and on July 7, 2023, the court granied the
defendants” motion o dismss the comsolidated complamt
with leave 10 amend, On Seprember 1, 2023, the pliingiffs
filed an amended consalidated complamt, and on October 16,
2023, the defendans moved o dismiss  the amended
consalidated complaint.

Oscar Health, Ine. GS&Co. 15 among the underwriters
named as defendams in a putative securities class action filed
on May 12, 2022 in the LLS. District Court [or the Southern
District of New York relating ro Oscar Health, Ine.s (Oscar
Health) approximarely 51,4 billion March 2021 initial public
offerimg. In addivion (o the underwnters, the defendants
inglude Osear Health and certain of it alficers and directors,
GasCo. underwrote 12,760,633 shares of common stock
representing an ageregate offering price of approximarely
498 million. On December 5. 2022, the plainffs filed an
amended complaint, On Apaol 4, 2023, the defendants moved
1oy dismiss the amended complaing,
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Oak Street Health, Inc. (54 Co, is among the underwriters
ramed as defendants in an amended complaint for a putatve
securities chiss action bled on May 25, 1022 in the US
Dhistrict Conr for the Northem Districn of THinois relating 1o
Oak Street Health, Ine's (Oak Steeet) 5377 million Angust
20200 mmitial public offening, 5298 million December 2020
secondary equity  offering. 5681 million  February 2021
seconckiry cquiry  offering and 5747 million  May 3021
secondary equity offering. In addition 1o the underwriters,
the defendants include Ouak Street, certain of 1s officers and
directors  and  cerin of s shareholders.  GS& Co,
underwrote 4,137,103 shares of common stock in the August
202ih iniiial public offering representing an aggregaie offening
price of approximatedy $87 milhion, 1L,5303%4 shares of
cammon stock in the Degember 2020 secondary equity
offering  representing . an aggregate offering price  of
approximately 569 million, 3083088 shares of common
stock in the Febmmry 2021 secondary  equity  offening
representing an aggregate offering price of approxamately
5173 million and 3,013,065 shares of commen siock in the
May 2021 secondary equity  offering  representing  an
aggregate offering price of approximarely S187 million. On
February 10, 2023, the coort gramed in part and denied in
part the defendans’ maotion to dismiss, dismissing the claim
alleging a violaton of Section 122302} of the Sccuritics Act
and, with respect to the May 2021 secondary equity effering
only, the claim alleging a violton of Seqion 11 of the
Securities Act, bur declining 1o dismiss the remaining claims,
On December 15, 2023, the plaimiffs moved for class
certificabion,

Reata Pharmaceuticals, Ine. GS5&Co. 1= amoeng the
ninderwriters mamed as defendans in a consolidaed amended
complaint for a putative securities class actioen filed on June
21, 2022 im the 115, District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas relating 1o Reata Pharmacemicals, Inc's (Reata)
approximately S282 million December 2020 public offering of
common  stock. In addition w0 the underwriters, the
defendants include Keata and certain of its officers and
divectors. GS& Co, underwrore 1,000,000 shares of common
stock  representing  an  aggregare  offering  price  of
approxamately 5141 millien, On Seprember 7, 2022, the
defendants moved 1w dismiss the consolidied amended
complaint, O November 27, 2023, the coun prefimmarily
approved  a sentlement, which  wonld not require a
contribution from GS&Co.
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Bright Health Group, Ine. G5&Co. iz among the
widerwrters named as defendants noan amended complant
foor a1 purative secoritics class action filed on June 24, 2022 in
the LLS, Bistrict Court for the Eastern District of New York
relanng to Broght Health Group, Inc's (Brght Health)
approximately $924 million June 2021 inital public offering
of common stock. In addivon o the onderwriters, the
defendams include Bright Health and cerain of its officers
and directors. G5&Co. underwrote 11,297 000 shares of
common stock reprosenting an aggrogie offering price of
approximately 3203 million. On Ocrober 12, 2022, the
defendants moved o dismiss the amended complaing,

17 Education & Technology Group Inc. G5 Asia is among
the underwriters named as defendants in a potative securitics
class acvion filed on July 19, 2022 in the US, District Court
for the Central District of California and teansferred 1o the
LLS. Dhstrict Court for the Southern District of New York in
November 2022 relating 1o 17 Educaton & Technolopy
Group Inc.s (I7EdTech) approximarely 5331 mullion
December 2020 initial public offering of ADS. In addition o
the underwriters, the defendanis include 17EdTech and
certain of s officers and divectors, G5 Asia underwrone
12,604,000 ADS represcnting an appregate offering price of
approsimately 3132 mullion, On Januwary 31, 2023, the
plaintifls Gled an amended complaint, On November 8, 2023,
the court gramted the defendants” moton w dismiss the
amended complaint and denied the plamulls' request for
lezave vo amend,

LifeStance Health Group, Ine, GS&% o, 15 among the
winderwriters named as defendants in 2 putative securities
class action filed on Augmst 10, 2022 in the LS District
Court for the Southern Districe of New York relating w
LifeStance Healeh Group, Ing,'s {].ii’¢.‘{|:1n|;a,-:| approximately
SEX8 million Jume 2021 imial public offering of common
steck, I addition 1o the omderwriters, the defendants include
LifeStance and certain of its officers and direciors. GS&Co.
underwrote 10,580,000 shares of common stock representing
an apgregate offering price of approximarely 5190 million.
On December 19, 2022, the planiffs filed an amended
complaing, and on April 10, 2023, the defendans” motion 1o
dismiss the amended complaint was denied. On Seprember 7,
X023, the coun gramed the plaimiffs' moton for class
certification. On Jamuary 30, 2024, the court approved a
seitlement, which will mot require a contnbution fram
GS&Co.
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MINISO Group Helding Limited. (5 Asia is among the
underwriters named as defendants in a4 putative secunlics
clasa action filed on Augnst 17, 2022 in the U5, Districe
Court for the Central Dhistrict of California and transfersed 1o
the LS. District Court for thie Southern District of New York
on November 18, 2022 relating 1o MINISO Group Holding
Limted"s (MINISO) approximately 5856 million October
2020 initial public offering of ADS. In addition o the
underwriters, the defendanis include MINISO and certain of
ity officers and directors. G5 Asia underwrore 16,408,093
ADS  represemting  an aggregare  offering  price of
approximately S328 million, On April 24, 2023, the plainniffs
filed a second amended complaing, and on June 23, 2023, the
defendants moved to dismiss the second amended complaint.

Coupang, Inc. G538 Co. is among the uderwriters mamed as
defendants in a putative securities class action filed on Augst
26, 2022 in the LLA. District Court for the Southern Distric of
New  York  relating o Cowpang,  Inc’s  (Conpang)
approximately 34.6 billion March 2021 initial public offering
of common sk, In addivien 1o the underwriters, the
defendants incdlede Coupang and cerain of is officers and
directors, GS& Co. underwrore 42,900,000 shares of comumon
stock  representing  an  apgregate  offering  price  of
approximately 315 billion, On May 24, 2023, the plumifis
filed an amended complaing and on July 28 2023, the
defendants moved o dismiss the amended complaint.

Yatzen Holding Limited. G5 Asu s among  the
underwriters named as defendans in a putarive securitics
class aciion filed on Seprember 23, 2022 in the LS. Disiric
Court for the Southern District of New York relating 1o
Yasen Holding  Limited's  (Yasen)  approximarely
5617 million Movember 2020 initdal public offering of ADS,
In addivion 1o the underwriters, the defendanis include
Yatsen and certain of s officers and directors. G5 Asia
underwrote 2291250 ADS  representing  an  Gigpregale
offering price of approximately 5241 million. On October 4,
20023, the plantffs Hled an amended complaing, and on
December 4, 2023, the defendanis moved o dismiss the
amended complaint.
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Rent the Runway, Inc. G530 Co, is amaong the underwriters
amed as defendants in 4 putative securities class action Giled
on November 14, 2022 in the 1.5, District Coun for che
Eastern District of New York relaung to Rent the Runway,
Inc.s (Rent the Kunway) 5357 million Ocuober 2021 inidal
public offering of common stock. In addivon 1o the
wnderwriters, the defendanis include Bent the Rumwway and
certain of its officers and dircciors, GS&Co. underwroe
5254304 shares of common stock representing an aggregaie
of fering price of approximcuely S110 million, On Seprember
5, 2023, the plainifis fled an amended complaing, and on
October 20, 2023, the defendants served a motion 1o dismiss
the amended complaing,

Opendoor Technologies Inc. GS&Co. = among the
underwriters named a5 defendants in 2 putative securities
dass action filed on November 22, 2022 in the 1S, District
Cournt for the District of Arzoma relating o, among other
things, Opendoor  Technologies  Inc’s  (Opendonr)
approximately 3886 million February 2021 public offening of
common  siock, In addiion w the underwriters, the
defendants indude Opendoor and certain of s officers and
direcrors, GS& Co, underwrone 10,173,401 shares of common
stock  representing an aggeregate  offering  price of
approsimately 3275 million. On April 17, 2023, the plamaf(s
filed a consolidated amended complaing and on June 30,
2023, the defendants moved w0 dismiss the consolidated
amended complaint.

FIGS, Inc. (:5&Co. is ameng the underwriters named as
defendants in a puiative securniiies dass action filed on
December 8, 2022 in the LLS, Districr Court foe the Central
District of California  relating 10 FIGS, Ine’s (FIGS)
approximately S668 million May 2021 initial public offering
and ;11_'-pmxi|1m|¢ly 5413 million Seprember 2021 secandary
cquity  offering.  In addinon o the underwniters, the
defendants include FIGS, certain of its officers and directors
and certain of §is sharcholders. GS&Co.  underwrone
9,545,073 shares of commen stock i the May 2021 jmitaal
public offering represemiing an agpregare of fefng price of
approximately 3210 million and 3,179,047 shares of common
stock in the Seprember 2021 secondary equity offering
representing an aggregate offering price of approximately
SIX8 million, On April 10, 2023, the plaintifs fled a
consolidared complaing, and on January 17, 2024, the court
granted the defendants” motions o dizmiss the consolidated
complaint with leave 1o amend.
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Silvergate Capital Corporation. (5% o is among the
underwriters and sales agents named as defendams in a
puttive securitics class action filed on January 1%, 2023 in
the U5, District Court for the Southern District of
California, as amended on May 11, 2023, relating 1o
Silvergare Capital Corporation’s (Silvergate) approximately
SIE8 million January 2021 public offering of common stock,
approximately 5300 million “a-the-marker”  offering of
common stock conducted from March throogh May 2021,
approximarely 5200 million July 2021 pablic offering of
depositary shares representing interests in preferred stock,
amd approximately 8352 miltion  December 3021 pulblic
olfering of common siock, In addition w the underwriters
andl sales agents, the defendants include Silvergate and certain
of its officers and direcrors, GS& Co, underwrote 1,711,313
shares of common siock in the January 2021 public offering
of common stock representing an aggregate offering price of
approximatcly 8108 million, acted as a sales agent with
respect o up o a SHN0 million apgregate offering price of
shares of common stock in the March theough May 2021 “a1-
the-marker™ offering, underwrote 1L600,000 deposiiary shares
in the July 3021 poblic offering representing an aggregate
offering price of approximately %40 million, and underweone
1,375,397 shares of common stock in the December 2021
public offering of common stock representing an appregate
offering price of approximately 5199 miflion. On July 10,
2023, the defendants moved 1w dismiss the consolidated
amended complaint.

Centessa Pharmaceuticals ple. (5&Co. 15 among the
underwriters named as defendams in an amended complaing
for a putative securities class acton filed on February 10,
2023 wn the US, Distact Court for the Sonthern District of
Mew York reloiing o Centessa Pharmacewmicals  plcs
Centessa) approsamately 5380 mullion May 2021 insial
public offering of ADS, In addition 1o the underwriters, the
defendants incdude Centessa and certain of iis officers and
directors, GSECo, underwrole 6,072,000 ADS representing
an aggregate offering price of approximately S121 million,
On June 7, 2023, the defendants moved to dismiss the
amended complain.
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QYL Iree. S Asia is among the underwriters named as
defendants in a pusative securities class action filed on June 1,
H021 in the US. District Court for the Eastern District of
New York reluing o iQIYTs approximarely 324 billion
March 2008 initial public offering of ADS. In addivion 1o the
underwriters, the defendams indude iQTY], cerain of s
officers and directors and its controlling sharcholder, G5 Asia
underwrote 69,751,212 ADS reprosemting  an  apprepaie
offering price of approximately $1.3 billion, On November
3, 2022, the defendams served a motion to dismiss the
amended complain,

F45 Training Holdings Ine. G5&Co. s among the
underwriters named as defendams in an amended complaing
far 2 puiative secoritics chass acion filed on May 19, 2023 in
the WS, District Cowst for the Western District of Texas
relating ro P45 Training Holdings Ing.s (F435) approximaely
S350 million July 2021 imstial public offering of common
stock. In addition 1o the underwriters, the defendants include
43, certain of ats officers and directors and certain of its
shareholders, G5&Co, aced as a qualified independent
underwriter for the offening and underwrore 8,303,744 shares
of commaon stock representing an aggregate offering price of
approcamately 5133 million, On August 7, 2023, the
defendants filed a morion o dismiss the amended complaine.
On January 25, 2024, the plainiffs filed o second amended
complaing,

Olaplex Holdings, e, G55 Co. s among the underwniters
named as defendants in @ potative securities class action Gled
on April 28, 2023 in the 1L5. District Count for the Central
District of Califormia relating to Olaplex Moldings, Inc's
[Olaplex) approximarely 518 billion Seprember 2021 iniial
public offering of common stock. In addiion w© the
underwriters, the defendants include laplex, cerain of is
officers and direciors and  selling sharchelders. 58 Co.
underwrote 19,4 1% 420 shares of common stock representing
an aggregate offering price of approximanely 5408 million.
On June 22, 2023, the plaintiffs filed a revised consolidated
complaint, On July 1%, 2023, the defendams moved 1o
dismiss the revised consolidaned complain:.

Investment Management Services

Crroup Inc. and certain of s affibates are parties to vanous
avil lnigaion and arbitration procecdings and other disputes
with clients relating to losses allegedly sustained as a resuli of
the firm's investment management services. These claims
penerally seek, among other things, restinotion or other
compensatory damages and, in some cases, punitive damages.

¥ Goldman Sechs 2023 Form 10K
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Securities Lending Antitrust Litigation

Croup Inc. and GS& Co. were among the defendams named
i oa putanve anoirust class action and three mdividual
actions relating 10 securities lending praciices filed in the 115,
District Coun for the Southern Disingt of New York
beginning i August 2007, The complants generally assert
claims under federal and state andirrust law and swre
common law in conmection with an alleged conspiracy among
the defendants 1o prechde the development of electronic
platiorms for securities lending transacuons, The mdividual
complaings alse assert claims for wrious inederence with
business relations and under state teade pracuices law and, in
the second and thind individual actions, wnjust enrichment
pnder state commaon bw, The complaims seek declaratory
and imjuncove relict, as well as unspecificd amounts of
compensatory, treble, pumitive and other damages, Group
Inc. was voluntarily dismissed from the purative class acion
on January 26, 2008, Defendans’ motioen 1o dismiss the class
action complaint was  denied on Seprember 27, 2018,
Defendants” motion 1o dismiss the licst individual action was
granted on August 7, 20019, On Seprember 30, 2021, the
defendants’ motion to dismiss the second and third individual
actions, which were consolidated in June 2019, was granted,
and on March 24, 2023, the UL% Courn of Appeals for the
Second Circon affirmed the dismissal. Om Jume 30, 2022, the
Magistrate Judpe recommended thar the plaintiffs’ morion
for chass cenification in the putative class aciion be granted in
part and denied in part, On August 15, 2022, the plainnilfs
and defendamis filed objections 10 the Magisirae Judpe's
report and recommendation with the district cour. On
Seprember 1, 2023, the court preliminanly approved a
settlement among  the plainuils and cenain defendans,
including the firm, 1o resolve this action, The firm had
reserved the full amount of its proposed contribution 1o the
settlement.
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Variable Rate Demand Obligations Antitrust Litigation
Group Inc. and GS& Co. were among the defendans named
in a putative class acuon relating o varable rate demand
obligations (WRDOs), filed beginning in February 2009 under
separate complaints and consolidated in the LLS. Districe
Court for the Southern Distna of New York. The
consalidaed amended complaim, filed on May 31, 2019,
generally asserts claims under federal antivust low and stane
commaon law in conmection with an alleged conspiracy among
the defendams 1o maniputate the marker for VRDOs, The
complaint secks declarmory and injunctive relief, as well as
wspecified  amounts of compensatory, treble and other
damages. Group Inc. was voluntanly dismissed from the
putative cliss acnon on June 3, 2009, On November 2, 2020,
the court granted in part and denied in pan the defendants’
mobon to disos, denussing the state common law clams
against GS&Co., bt denving  dismissal of the federal
antitrust law claims.

GS&Co, s also among the defendants named in a related
putative class action filed on June 2, 2021 im the U5, District
Court for the Southerm Districl of New York, The complaint
alleges the same conspiracy in the marker for VRDOs as thar
alleged in the consolidated amended complant filed on May
31, 2009, and asserts federal antitnssy law, state law and staite
common law claims against the defendans. The complaine
seeks declaratory amd injuncuve relief, as well as unspeafiod
amounts of compensarory, treble and other damages. On
August 6, 2020, plamtiffs in the May 31, 2019 acoon filed an
amended complaint consolidating the June 2, 3021 action
with the May 31, 2019 action. On Seprember 14, 2021,
defendants filed a joint partial motion 1w dismiss the August
6. 2021 amended consolidated complaine. On June 28, 2022,
thie court granted i part and demed i pan the defendants’
motion o dismiss, dismissing the suae breach of fiduciary
duty claim against GS&Co., but declining to dismiss any
portien of the federal antirrust law dasms. On Seprember 21,
3023, the coun gramed the plainiifis’ morion for dass
certification. On October 5, 2023, the defendamis filed a
petition with the LS. Coner of Appeals for the Second
Circuit secking interlocutory review of the district court's
gramt of class certilication,
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Interest Rate Swap Antitrust Litigation

Group Ing., GS& Co.. GSI, G5 Bank USA and Goldman Sachs
Financial Markets, L.P. are among the defendants named ina
putative antitrust class action relating 1o the rading of
interest rate swaps, filed in November 2005 and consolidaned
in the LS. District Court for the Southern District of New
York, The same Goldman Sachs entities are also among the
defendants named in two antitrust actions rebang o the
trading of interest rate swaps, commenced in April 2006 and
June 28, respectively, in the U5, Disrrcr Conrer for the
Seuthern District of New York by three operators of swap
execution faciliies and cerain of their affiliates. These
actions have been consolidated for precrial proceedings. The
complanis generally assert dawns under federal antitrust law
and stae common law in connecoon with an alleged
conspiracy among the defendanis o predude  exchange
trading of interest re swaps. The complaims in the
individual acrions also assen claims under siate antivrust law,
The complaints seek declarmory and injuncive reliel, as well
as rreble damages inoan wnspecificd amount. Defendams
moved to dismiss the dass and the Orst imdividoal action amd
the district court dismissed the state common law claims
asseried by the plaintffs in the first individual acton and
otherwise limited the state commaon law claim in the putabyve
class acuon and the amitmest claims in both actions o the
period from 2013 o 2006, On November 20, 2018, the court
granted in par and denied in pan the defendants” motion 1w
dismiss the second individual action, disnussing the siaie
common law claims for unjust enmchmen amnd  onious
interference, but denving dismissal of the federal and siae
antitrust claims. On March 13, 2009, the court demed the
pl;|i:!|:il’fs" mation in the patative class action 1o amend their
compluint to add allegations related 1o conduct from 2008 o
202, but granted the motion e add limged allegaions from
MM3 o 20016, which the plamafls added in a founh
consalidated amended complaing fled on March 22, 2019,
On December 15, 2023, the conrr denied the plaimtifls’
mation for class certification, and on December 28, 2023, the
plainiils filed a petition with the U5, Courr of Appeals for
the Second Circuit seeking interlocmary review of the district
court’s denial of class centilication,
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Commodities-Related Litigation

Gl is among the defendams named in potative class actions
refaning to trading in platinum and palladium, filed beginning
on November 23, 2004 and maost recenmtly amended on May
13, 2007, in the LS. District Court for the Southern District
of New York, The amended complaint generally alleges thar
the defendamis  violaed Tederal andreost lvws and  the
Commaodity Exchange Ac in connection with an alleged
conspiracy to manipulate a benchmark for physical platinam
and palladivm prices and seek declaratory and injunciive
relicl, as well as rreble damages in an unspecified amount, On
March 29, 2020, the cowrr granted the defendams” motions 1o
chsmiss and for reconsideration, resulting in the disnissal of
all ¢laims, and on Febroary 37, 2023, the ULS, Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuir reversed the distiict court's
dismissal of certain plamtafls’ antitrust daims and vacired
the diserict court’s dismissal of the plainiffs” Commodity
Exchange Ac claim. On April 12, 2023, the defendants’
petition for reheaning or rehearing en banc with the U5,
Conrt of Appeals for the Second Circoit was denied. On July
31, 2023, the defendants filed 2 motion for judgment on the
pleadings.

GS%Co., GSL ). Arom & Company LLC and Metro
Intermanional  Trade  Services  (Metro), 3 previously
consolidated subsidiary of Group Inc. that was sold in the
fourth quaarter of 2014, are among the defendants i a
number of poatve dass and  individueal  acions  filed
beginning on August 1. 2003 and comsolidated in the UL
Dristricy Court for the Southern Districe of New York, The
complains generally allege violations of federal antcmst
laws amd state laws in connection with the storge of
aluminem and aluminem teading. The complains seck
dedaratory, injunctive and other equitable relief, as well as
unspecified monetary damages, including treble damages. In
December 2006, the district court granied  defendanis’
motions o dismiss and on August 27, 2009, the Second
Garcoit vacated the districr cournt’s dismissals and remanded
the case to district coun for further proceedings, On July 23,
X0M), the district conrt denied the chass plaimiils” motion for
dlass cenification, and on December §6, 2020 the Second
Circuit denied leave o appeal the demial. On February 17,
2020, she distric court gramed defendants” motion for
stmnary judgiment with respect o the daims of mest of the
individual plaingffs, and on November [, 2023, the LS.
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit affirmed the district
courl’s judgiment, On May 31, 201, the two remaming
individual plaintiffs emered inte a sertlement with the
defendams. The fiem has paid the [l amount of s
contribation to the settdement,

In connection wiith the sale of Mero, the birm agreed 10
provide indemnities 1o the bover, including for any potential
liabilities for legal or regulatory proceedings arising our of
the conduct of Metro's business while the firm owned .

¥ Goldman Sachs 2023 Form 10K
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U5, Treasury Securities Litigation

GS&Co. is among the primary dealers named as defendamis
i several putative dass actons relating o the marker for
LS. Treasury securities, filed beginning in July 2015 and
consolidated in the US. District Court for the Southern
Disiricr of New York, GS&Co, is also among the primary
dealers named as defendants in a similar individual acion
filed i the LLS, Districy Court for the Southern District of
New York on August 25, 2017, The consolidated class action
complaint, filed on December 29, 2007, generally alleges that
the defendants viokared amitrust laws in conmection with an
alleged conspiracy 1o manipulate the when-issued marker and
actions  for 1LS, Treasury  secunves and  thae certain
defendams, incleding GS&:Co., colluded 1o preclude rrading
of LS, Treasury securities on clecironic trading platforms in
order o impede compention in the bidding process, The
individual action alleges a similar conspiracy  regarding
manipulation of the when-issued marker and auctions, as
well as related fomores and oprions in violaon of the
Commodity Exchange Act. The complaims seck declaraiory
and imunctive reliel, treble damages in an unspecified
amount and restitution. Defendants” motion o dismiss was
granted on March 31, H21. On May 14, 2021, plainn(is Giled
an amended complaim. Defendanis” morion 1o dismiss the
amended complaint was granted on March 31, 2022 and on
February 1, 2024, the 115, Count of Appeals (or the Second
Circuin affirmed the dismissal.

Corporate Bonds Antitrust Litigation

Gromp Ing, and GS&Co, are among the dealers named as
defendams in a putative class action relating 1o the secondary
market for odd-lot corporate bonds, filed on Aprl 21, 2020 n
the LLS, Distrct Couwnt for the Southern Districr of New
York. The amended comsolidated complaim, filed on
Oerober 29, 2000, asserts daims under federal antitrust law
in connecrion with alleged anti-competitive conduct by the
defendants in the secondary market for odd-lots of corporae
bamds, aid seeks declasuary and injunctive eeliel, a5 well as
unspecificd monctary damages, including creble and punitive
damages and restitution, On Ocrober 25, 2021, the coun
pranted defendanis’ morion 10 dismiss with prejudice, On
November 13, 2021, plaintffs appealed o the US, Coun of
Appeals Tor the Second Circuit, On November 10, 2022, the
districa court denied the plainifis' mouon for an indicabve
rulmg that the judgment shonald be vacated becanse the wile
of the district judge owned stock in one of the defendams and
the district judge did not recuse himself.
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Cradit Default Swap Antitrust Litigation

Group Inc., GS&Co. and GS were among the defendants
named i oa putative antitrnst cass acvon relating o the
sertlement of credic defavle swaps, filed on June 30, 2021 in
the LS. District Court for the Districs of New Mexico, The
complaint generally asserts claims wnder federal amitrus law
and the Commadity Exchange Act im connection with an
alleged conspiracy among the defendants 1o manipalate the
benchmark price used w valve crediv defanl swaps for
seitlement. The complaint also asserts a dam for unjust
enrichment under state comman liw. The complam seeks
declarmory and  injuncuve reliel, as well as unspecified
amaounts of treble and other damages, On November 15,
1021, the defendants filed a motion 1o dismiss the complaine.
On February 4, 2022, the plaintiffs filed an amended
complaint and volunmarily dismissed Group Inc. from the
action, On June 5, 2023, the court dismissed the claims
against certain foreign  defendams Tor lack of personal
jurisdiciion bt denied the defendants” morion 1w dismiss
with respect (o GS&Co., GS1and the remaining defendants,
On Jamuary 24, 2024, the ¢ourt geanted the defendants”
maotion to stay the proceedings pending the resolution of the
motion filed by the defendinis on November 3, 2023 i the
LS. District Court for the Soothern District of Xew York 1o
enforce a 2013 settdement and release amang the parties. On
January X6, 2024, the LLS, Distdcr Court for the Southern
District of New York granted the defendans’ motion o
enforce the senlement and relese and enjoined the plainlls
fram pursuing any claims againsg the defendanis in the New
Mexico acnion Tor any alleged viokinon of law based on
conduet before June 30, 2014,

Employment-Related Matters

O Seprember 15, 3000, a putative dlass action was fled in
the LS. District Court for the Southern District of Mew York
by three female [ormer employees, The complaing  as
subsequently amended, alleges thar Gronp Inc. and G5& Co.
have systematically discriminated against female emplovees
in respect of compensaton, promorion and perfarmance
evaluations. The complami alleges a chiss consisting of all
female emplovees emploved an specified levels in specifiad
areas by Group Inc. and G830 Co. since July 2002, and asseris
clavms under federal and New Yok City discriminanion laws,

On November 7, 2023, the court approved a scurlement
among the partics pursuant o which the firm made a
pavment of 5215 million, The seubement also provides thar
the fiem will engage an independent expen 10 complete
standard validation studies of s pedonmance evaluation and
pramotion  feom  vice president 1o managing  director
Processes, continue or implement certun practices as part of
its performance evaluation and promotion processes, and
engage an independent expen 1o perform an annoal pay
equity analysis for the 2023, 2024 and 2015 vear-end
compensation cycles,
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Consumer Investigation and Review

The firm is cooperating with the CFPB and  other
povernmental  bodies  relatng  to imvestigations  andlor
inquirics concerming G5 Bank USA’s credit card account
management  practices and  is providing  informarion
regarding  the  application  of  refunds,  creditng  of
nonconforming  payments,  billing  error resolution,
advermsements, reporting o credit burcaws, and any other
consumer-related informarion requested by them,

Regulatory Investigations and Reviews and Related
Litigation

Crrounp Inc. and certain of its affiliates are subjea o a number
of other investigations and reviews by, and in some cases
have received subpoenas and requests for docaments and
mformaton  from, vanous povernmental and  regulatory
badies and seli-regulitory organizations and hitigation and
sharcholder requests relating 1o vanous matters relating 1o
the firm's businesses and operations, inclading:

* The securities offering process and nnderwriting practices;

® The firm's investment management and financial advisory
APV

Conllicis of interesy;

# Research praciices, including research independence and
mieractions between research analvsts and other firm
personnel, including invesumenr banking personnel, as well
as third parties;

Treansactions involving government-refared financings and
other matters, municipal securities. including wall-cross
procedures and conflicr of interst disclosure with respect
vo seave wngd municipal elients, the trading and structoring
of municipal denvanve mstrumems in connection with
mumicipal olfenngs, palitical conteibution rales, muonicipal
advisory services and the possible impact of credic defanie
swap transactions on mumcipal 1ssuers;

* Consumer lencding, as well as residential morigage lending,
servicing and securitzation, and compliance with related
consumer laws;

Goidman Sachs 2023 Form 10K 229
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* The offering, awction, sales, rrading and clearance of
corporate  and  povernment seCurilies,  Curréndics,
commaditics and other financial products and relared sales
and ether communications and activites, as well as the
firm's supervision and controls relating 1o such activities,
including  compliance with applicable short sale rules,
algonthmic, high-lrequency and quanitative trading, the
firm's U5 alermative mading system (dark poaol). futnees
trading, options irading, when-ssued trading, transaciion
amd regulanory reporting, technology svsiems and conrols,
communications recordkeeping and recording, securitics
lenclimg practices, prime brokerage activities, teading and
clearance of credit derivative instraments and intersst rne
swaps, commodities activities and metals storage, private
placement  practices, allocwions of and  rading  in
secuniies, and trading acoviiies and communications in
connection with the establishment of benchmark rates,
stich as curreney rates;

* Compliance with the FCPA;
* The firm's hiring and compensition praciices;
* The firm's system of risk management and controls; and

* lnsider trading. the potential misuse and dissesmination of
material nonpublic information regarding corporate and
povernmental devdopments and the clfeariveness of the
firm's insider trading contrels and mfonmation barriers.

The firm is cooperating with afl such povernmenial and
regulatory investigations and revicws.

230 Goldman Sechs 2023 Form 10K
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Pote 28.
Employee Benefit Plans

The firm sponsors vanoos pension plans and cerain other
postretirement benefit plans, primrily healthcare and life
insurance, The firm also provides cenain benefits 1o former
or inactve emplovees prioT i retrement.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Postretirement
Plans.

Employess of certain non-ULS subsidiaries partiapate in
varions defined benefit pension plans. These plans generally
provide benefits based on years of credited service and a
percentage of eligible compensation. The firm maintains 2
defined benefin pension plan for cerain ULK. employees. As
of Aprl 2008, the LLK. defined benefit plan was closed 1o
new paricipants and {rozen {or existing pamicipants s of
March 31, 2008, The non-LLS, plans do not have @ matenal
imipact on the s consolidated resulis of speriions,

The firm alse maingains a defined benelit pension plan for
substantially all U5, emplovees hired prior to November 1,
2003, As of November 2004, this plan was closed 10 new
paricipanis and frozen for existing participanis. In addition,
the fiem mainting unfinded postretirement benelin plans
that provide medical and life insurance for cligible retires
and their depessdents covered under these programs. These
pl:ms. doo mor have @ matgrial ampact on the firm's
consolidated resulis of operatons.,

The firm recognizes the funded stws of s defined beneli
pension and postretirement plans, measured as the difference
between the fair value of the plan assets amd the benefnt
oldigation, in the consolidated balance sheets. As of
December 2023, other assets included 593 million (related w
overfunded pension plang) and other Babilives incheded
5449 million refaed o these plans. As of December 2022,
other assets incloded 5111 million (relaved 10 overfunded
pension plans) and other Giabilities included 5337 million
related 1o these plans.

Dafined Contribution Plans

The firm contributes 1o emplover-sponsored ULS, and mon-
LLS. defined contribution plans. The firm's conrribation 1o
these plans was 5377 mallion for 2023, S378 million for 2022
amd 5274 million for 2021,
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIRIES
MNotes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 29.
Employee Incentive Plans

The cost of cmployee services received in exchange for a
share-based award is generally measured based on the grani-
date Gair value of the award, Share-based awards thar do net
require future service {i.e., vested awards, incleding awards
granted to  retrement-chigible emplovees) are expensed
immediarely. Share-based awards thar require fure service
are amortized over the relevant service period. Forfeitures are
recorded when they ocur,

Cash dividend equivalems paid on RSUs are generally
charged 10 retained camings. [f KSUs that require futare
service are fodfered, the relared  dividend  equivalens
originally charged o retained camings are reclassified w
compensation expense in the period i which forfeitre
OCOUrS,

The firm generally issues new shares of commoen stock upon
delivery of share-based wwards, In limited cases, as ontlined
in the applicable award agreemenis, the firm may cash senle
share=based compensation awards accounted for as equity
instruments, For these awards, additional paid-in capiral is
adjusted to the extent of the difference between the value of
the award an the time of cish setlement and the grani-gae
value of the award. The tax effect related to the settlement of
share-based awards and pavments of dividend cquivalems is
recorded in income tax benefit or expense,

Stock Incentive Plan

The firm sponsors a stock incentive plan, The Goldman
Sache Amended and Restted Steck Incentive Plan (2021}
(2021 511, which provides (or prants of RSUs, restricied
stock, dividend equivalent rights, incentive stock ophions,
nongualified stock opions, stock apprecation rights, and
other share-based awards, cach of which may be subpect 1o
terms and  conditions, incduding performance or market
conditions. On April 29, 2021, sharcholders approved the
J0X1 SIP, The 2021 S i a successor to several predecessor
stosck inventive plans, the first of which was adopred on April
30, 1999, and each of which was approved by the firm's
sharcholders,
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As of December 2023, 58.4 million shares were available o be
delivered pursuant 1o awards granted under the 2021 510, If
any shares of common stock undedving awards granted
under the 2021 SIP or awards granved onder predecessor
stock incentive plans are not delivered because such awards
are fordeited, terminated or cingeled, or i shares of common
stock underlving such awards are surrendered or withheld 1o
satisfy any obligation of the grantee Gncluding axes), those
shares will become available 1o be defivered pursuam 1o
awards pranted under the 2021 SIP. Shares available o be
delivered under the 2021 SIF also are subject 1o adjustment
for certain events or changes in corporate stmciure s
provided under the 2021 S1F. The 2021 SIF is scheduled 1o
rermimite o the date of the annual megting of shareholders
that cwours i 2025,

Restricted Stock Units

The firm  pranis RSUs (ncluding RSUs  subject 1o
performance or marker conditions) o emplovees, which are
generally valued based on the dosing price of the underdying
shares on the date of gran, after wking into accoum a
liquidity discount for any applicable post-vesting and defivery
transfer  restricions,  The value of equity awards also
considers the impact of material non-public information, if
amy, that the firm expects to make available shortly following
prant. RSUs not subject 1o performance or marker condirions
generally vest and wnderlving shars of common siock are
delivered (ner of required withholding ax) over a three-vear
period a5 omlined in the applicable award apreements,
Award  agreements  generally provide  that  vesung s
aecelerated in gefain circumarandes, such as on retirement,
dearh, disability and, in certain cases, conflicted employmen.
Delivery of the underlying shares of common stock s
conditioned om the grantees savislving certain vesging and
other requirements outlined in the award agreements,

5L thar are subject w performance or markel conditions
gencrally are settled afier the end of a three- o five-vear
peniodd. For awands that are subject wo performance or market
conditions, generally the final award is adjusted from sero up
to L30%% of the onginal grant based on the extent w0 which
those condiens are satisfied, Dividend equivalems that
accrue on these awards are pard when the awards segile.

Goidman Sachs 2083 Form 10K 231
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIMRIES
MNotes to Consclidated Financial Statements

The table below presents the 2023 acrivity related 1o stock
seftled RSLUs.

Wesghied Avarags
Gran:-Dane Faer Vi o

Reamzrad Siock Rasmensd Sook

th'l:h.r.:unm.g MBMMEE
Future Mo Fulute Futsre Mo Funse
Sernm Sernce Seraon Sorvson
HI-QLI-IE Flaq.l!d Papsrad MMM
Bag nrvng balance BEREXID IrAE T2 & 20814 & MM
Graritad 3000465 IAMEE0 § I320@ § 227.07
Farfadnad 1127 (A7) & 3643 § 30562
Datverad - @018, 188 § - & 2721
Viened 19 3 19 5 30885 & J09.85
Ernding balance 4378141 15306921 § 31031 § 30437

Ini the table above:

* The weighted average grant-date fair value of RSLs
pranted was 532923 dunng 2023, 5316.98 duning 2022 and
$264.57 during 2021, The gram=date fair value of these
RSUs included an average liguidity discownt of 4.5%
dunng 2023, 6,0% dunng 2022 and 10.2% during 2021, 1o
rellect postvesting and  delivery  rransfer  restricrions,
generally of 1 vear for borh 2023 and 2022, and up to 4
years for 2021,

The aggregae [air value of awards thar veswed was
5247 billion dwring 2023, 5341 billion during 3022 and
52,64 hillion during 2021,

The ending balance included restricred stock subject 10
future  service  requirements of 347240 shars as of
December 2023 and 357,367 shares as of December 2022,

The ending balance included RSUs subject to future service
requirements and performance or marker conditions of
617,655 RaUs as of December 2023 and 618,248 RSUs a5 of
Drecember 2002, and the maximum amoune of such KSUs
thar may be emed was 913,551 RSUs as of Decenber 2023
and #14,441 R5Us as of December 2022

The endimg balance also included RSUs not subject 1w
furure service requirements bur subject o perfarmance
conditions of 16200470 R5Us as of December 2023 and
1457, 702 RSUs as of December 2022, and the maximmm
amaunt of such B5Us thar may be camed was 2,430,705
KSUs as of December 2023 and 2,186,553 RSUs as of
ecember 2022,

3 Goldman Sechs 2023 Form 106K

In relation to 2023 vear-end, during the first quarter of 2024,
the firm granted 1ois employess 6.4 million BRSLs (of which
21 million RSUs require futaee service as o condition for
delivery of the redared shares of commaon stock). These RSLs
are subject 1w additonal conditions as outlined in the awaed
apreements. Shares underlying these BSUs, net of roquired
withholding tax, generally are delivered over a three-vear
perind. These awards are generally subject 10 a one-year
post-vesting and delivery transfer restnction. These awards
are not included in the mble above,

As of December 2023, there was 5642 million of watal
unrecognized compensation cost related o non-vested share-
based compensation arrangemens, This cost is expected 10
be recogmized over a weighted average perod of 1.79 vears,
In addition, there is unrecognized compensation cost relared
1o share-based compensation  arrangements  subject 1o
performance conditions, The maximum pavout related 10
these awards is $487 million. This cost is expected 1o be
recopnized over a weighted average period of 141 vears,

The wable below presents the share-based compensanon and
the relared excess tax benefin.

Your Ended Decsmbisr

3w rilliong mE pirrry a1
S - Bl SO o S 2008 5 4107 8 2553

Excads na e bdinadl Bor shueebdesd wards & 188 5 324 § 108

In the rable above, excess net tax benelw for share-based
awards includes the net tax benefic on dividend equivalenis
paid on RSUs and the delivery of common stock underdying
share-based awards,

Owverrides

The firm shires a pormion of s overrides relaed w0
investiment  management services with approximately  $00
eriplovees, The fair value of thee overrdes is recopnized as
compensation cxpense aver the vesting period. Swch expense
wis SHIF mullion for 2023, 5493 mulhon for 2022 and
5547 million for 2021,
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIMRIES
MNotes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 30.
Parent Company
Group Inc. - Condensed Statements of Earnings

‘Wear Ended Decamber
& in riligng P P 2021
Ravanues
Diviadands froen aubecdian s and athar alffimes;
Bk B S8 5 100 506580
Hornank 11499 6243 15563
Cnhar ravenisss 11.985] au60 539
lintal none inbomes rvenuss 9Eg2 k4 33080
Inhams] iNComa 18839 B38BT 385
In SRS AXpATSA 21479 9438 4 &0
Mol nisrpsd joss 126400 (10405 [Hi%1
Jatal nat ravanuos EOE2 1 A53  O0 08
Dparsting expenses
Commpansnton and banaef s 287 328 (L]
Crher papensas 219 a1 00
Total opnnad ng mupansas S08 1003 1 0es
Pro-ta sarmings B 448 G0 30.4m0
Banalit bor 1axas [1.078) 1.3%& 550
Undstrbuted sarmnguioes) of subs’daries
aryd oihar alfales 1000 9183 @360
a1 sam rgs 8518 11261 183
Prafesrid dtock didends (2] 497 At

M“wwﬂmm S'.Feﬂ' E10, 764 £31,161

Supplemental Disclosures:

In the condensed statemenis of earnings above, revenues and
expenses included the following with subsidiaries and other
alfilianes:

* Drividends from bank subsidianes included cash dividends
of 558 million for 2023, 897 million for 2022 and S16,99
billion for 2021.

# Dividends from nonbank subsiianes and other aflibates
included cash dividends of 511.49 billion for 2023, S6.14
billion for 2022 and $15.14 billion for 2021,

* (iher revennes included S(892) million for 2023, S(3,34)
billion for 2022 and $(1.01) billien for 2021,

* Interest ancome included 51682 billion for 2023, S7.47
billica for 2022 and $3.39 billion for 2021,

* Inrerest expense included 59.94 billion for 2023, 5380
billicmn for 2022 and $1.24 ballion for 2021,

¢ (nher expenses included S105 million for 2023, 5116
million for 2022 and S113 mallion for 2021,

Group Inc's other comprehensive income/(loss) was 592
million for 2023, 509420 million for 2022 and S(6e34) million
fear 2021
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Group Ine. - Condensed Balance Sheets

Ry

5 = rivillagand 2023 2022
Ansals
Caeh el GaEh doqul valante:

With thindpaery basika L] a5 = 5

Wit oy sty Baiek r 46
Loans i and racavahias rom subsdarag;

Ennk 1.833 3,545

Honbank (84,813 ardd 54 825 a1 farr vacusd 2RE.E88  Ju0.402
invasimants n subsdanas and ather affaies;

Bank 855,164 48543

Hontank 78,591 Bh, 08l
I'rad rg assais (ot fnir waluap 2,187 b4
Irevistrnanits (S22 443 and 523,804 af Tar vaund TE A0 B9, 483
Oithr nfisats T.A08 §, b6
Total assels SBAE 223 L4790 000

Liabilities and shareholders” sguity
Repurchase bgiedrranis wih subsdhanid {al fer wakiel § 78,776 § 66,650

Haounsd Dornoeinga with fubdidlares 19.233 16, 749
Payalias b subaifaras 588 E10
Iradng “abiidas o Lo vivuel fi b 2,544
Urdecuesd SNor-18mm Do ngs;
WNTTh thiend et e 050, T2 anad 55,007 &t da'e viviasl 31833 FiEX3
With subs'darinss 5,10 4,578

Liresmscuened CrgeRnm ET oA Mg a:
Vith thind part'os 28 066 and 5272 437 st falr vaiun| 179,338 185672

Wit subsidiarins a6 YR
Othar (a6t 3640 300
Toax: lakit o Er R IR

Commitments, contingancies and guaranteas
Shareholders’ equity

Frafarad s10ck 11203 10,0
Coraron stock 9 @
Shar s-Eanad s 5121 Iy, CEw
A Cona’ padin cap e B0,247 [
Entansd namings 1H3 688 130002
Aooumaaied other comprabens e s |2,918) 43,000
Stock ho'd (o trad at cosl 1 B4 531]
[ots) sharaho dees’ [ [TL 115.“_“ [IFAT=
Total labilities end sharehobdem” equ 561 Sargnid

Supplemental Disclosures:

Goldman  Sachs Funding LLC, a whollv-owned, direct
subsidiary of Group Inc., has provided Group Inc. with a
commirted ling of credit thar allows Group Inc, 1o draw
sufficient funds to micer its cash needs in the ordinary course
of business,

Trading assers included derivative comrras with subsidianics
of $155 million a5 of December 2023 and $2.17 billion as of
December 2022,

Trading liabilities  included derivarive conieacts with
subsicharies of 3898 million as of December 2023 and 52,54
billiga as of December 2022,

As of December 2023, unsecured long-term borrowings with
subsichanes by maturiny date are 57753 Billion m 2025, 5128
million in 2026, 5119 million in 2027, 5202 million in 2028
and 51.23 billion i 2029-thercafier.

Goidman Sachs 2023 Form 10K 233
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THE GOLOMAN SACHS GROUP, NG, AND SUBSIDIMRIES
MNotes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Group Inc. — Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
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Supplemental Disclosures:

Cash payments for interest, net of capitalized inerest, were
520,53 billion for 2023, 38.54 billion for 20221 and 54.72
billion for 2021, and included 59.40 billion for 2023, 8355
billion for 2022 and 51.33 billion for 2021 of payments 1o
subsidiaries,

Cash payments/{refunds) for income taxes, net, were 5671
million for 2023, 5259 billion for 2022 and $3.74 hallion for
2021,

Naon-cash activities during the vear ended December 2023:

* Group Inc. exchanged 142 billion of equity investment in
its whaolly-owned subudiines for loans,

Mon-cash ativittes durfing the vear ended December 2022

* Croup Inc. issued $1.75 billion of equity in connection with
the acquisition of GreenSky, Upon dosing of the
teansaction, GreenSky became o whaolly-owned subsediary
aof (5 Bank USA.

Naon-cash activities during the vear ended December 2021 ;

* Group Inc. exchanged 5948 million of loans for additional
cquity investment in its whol lv-owned subsidiaries.
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THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, MC, AND SUBSIDRARIES

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk

Cuantitanive and gqualitanve disclosures about market nsk
are st forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Fimancial Condition and Resols of Operations Risk
Management™ im Parr 11, Inemn 7 of this Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data

Management’'s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting

Management of The Goldman Sachs Gronp, Inc., 1wogether
with sis consolidated subsidiaries (ihe firm}, 15 responsible for
cstablishing and mamtining ;]l.h,'n;|||:_!ﬂ|;' mternal contenl over
financial reporting. The finn®s internal control over financial
reporting is a4 process designed onder the supervision of the
firm's principal executive and pringipal finangal officers 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
fimangial reporting and the preparation of the firm’s finangal
statements for exiernal reporting purposes - accordance
with LLA. penerally accepred accounting principles,

As of December 300 2023, management conducted an
assessment of the firm’s internal comrol over financial
reporting based on the (eamework established in lnernal
Control Integrared  Framework (2013) issued by the
Commmittes of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSCH, Based o this assessment, nuimigeement
has determined that the fiem’s intermal contrel ever financial
reporting as of Decermber 31, 2023 was elfective,

124 Geldman Sachs 2023 Form 10K
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Ohor internal control over Ginanaal reporting includes policies
and procedures thit pertain o the maintenance of records
thar, in reasonable detail, accurarely and fairly  reflect
transactions and dispositions of assets; provide reasonable
assurance thar rransactions are recorded as necessary 1o
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
UL, generally accepred acconming  pranciples, and tha
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizatons of managernent and the dircctors of the
firm; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenrion
or tmely detection of wmavihonzed acqusition, use or
disposition of the firm® assets thar could have a material
effect on our linancial staremenes.

The firm's internal control over fmancial reporting as of
December 31, 2023 has  been  audited by
PricewatethouseCoopers LLP (PCAOB 1D 238), an
independent registered public accounging firm, as sned in s
repoart appeanng below. which expresses an ungualified
opanian on the effeciveness of the iom®s internal comral over
financial reparting as of December 31, 2023,
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.:

Opinions on the Financial Satements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, of comprehensive income, of changes in shareholders
equity and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, including the related notes (collectively referred
to as the “ consolidated financial statements’). We aso have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2023 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in al material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basisfor Opinions

The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isto express opinions on the Company’ s consolidated
financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect
to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in al material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financia reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s interna control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financia statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to
the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especialy challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financia statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
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communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to

which they relate.
Valuation of Certain Level 3 Financial I nstruments

As described in Notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financia statements, as of December 31, 2023, the Company carries financial instruments
at fair value, which includes $25.1 billion of financial assets and $28.7 billion of financial liabilities classified in level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, as one or more inputs to the financial instrument’s valuation technique are significant and unobservable. Significant unobservable
inputs used by management to value certain of the level 3 financial instruments included: market multiples, discount rates, and capitalization
rates for equity securities; credit spreads for credit derivatives; and correlation for hybrid financial instruments.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the valuation of certain level 3 financial instruments
isacritica audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the fair value estimate of certain level 3 financial
instruments, (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence related to
the aforementioned significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of certain level 3 financial instruments, and (iii) the audit effort
involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to the valuation of financial
instruments, including controls over the methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of certain level 3 financia
instruments. These procedures also included, among others, testing the compl eteness and accuracy of data used by management, as well as (i)
testing management’s process for developing the fair value estimate of certain level 3 financia instruments, (ii) evaluating the
appropriateness of the techniques used by management, (iii) evaluating the reasonableness of the aforementioned significant unobservable
inputs, and either (iv) the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in evaluating (a) the appropriateness of the
techniques used by management and (b) the aforementioned significant unobservable inputs, or (v) the use of professionals with specialized
skill and knowledge to assist in evaluating the reasonableness of management’s estimate by (a) evaluating the appropriateness of the
techniques used by management and (b) developing an independent estimate of fair value for a sample of certain level 3 securities using
independently determined assumptions, and comparing the independent range of prices to management’s estimate.

Allowance for Loan Losses - Wholesale Loan Portfolio

As described in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s allowance for loan losses for the wholesale loan portfolio
reflects management’s estimate of loan losses over the remaining expected life of the loans and also considers forecasts of future economic
conditions. As of December 31, 2023, $2.6 billion of the allowance for loan losses and $157.2 billion of the loans accounted for at amortized
cost related to the wholesale loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses for the wholesale loan portfolio is measured on a collective basis
for loans that exhibit similar risk characteristics using a modeled approach and on an asset-specific basis for loans that do not share similar
risk characteristics. In addition, it includes qualitative components to reflect the uncertain nature of economic forecasting, capture uncertainty
regarding model inputs, and account for model imprecision and concentration risk. The wholesale model's determine the probability of default
and loss given default based on various risk factors, including internal credit ratings.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the allowance for loan losses for the wholesale loan
portfolio is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the allowance for loan losses for the
wholesale loan portfolio using the modeled approach, (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing
procedures and evaluating management’s determination of internal credit ratings used in the modeled approach, and (iii) the audit effort
involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to the Company’s allowance for
loan losses for the wholesale loan portfolio, including controls over the determination of internal credit ratings. These procedures aso
included, among others, (i) testing management’s process for developing the allowance for loan losses for the wholesale |oan portfolio using
amodeled approach, (ii) evaluating the appropriateness of the modeled approach, (iii) testing the completeness and accuracy of data used in
the modeled approach, and (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of the internal credit ratings used by management. Professionas with
specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in evaluating (i) the appropriateness of the modeled approach and (ii) the reasonableness
of theinternal credit ratings.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
February 22, 2024

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1922.
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